
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/INTRODUCTIONS

3. ROLL CALL
4. PRESENTATION
5. CITIZENS ADDRESS AGENDA ITEMS AND NON-AGENDA ITEMS

6. TOWNSHIP MANAGER REPORT

7. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS OF ACTIVITIES AND ANNOUNCEMENTS
8. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

9. CONSENT AGENDA (SALMON)

A. Communications

B. Minutes

(1) March 15, 2022 Special Meeting
(2) March 15, 2022 Regular Meeting

C. Bills

D. MDOT Performance Resolution

E. Ratification of New Full Time Paramedic/Firefighter

F. Fireworks Display Permit – Celebrate Meridian
G. Liquor License- Celebrate Meridian

10. QUESTIONS FOR THE ATTORNEY

11. HEARINGS (CANARY)

A. Daniels Drain Public Drain Improvement SAD #21

12. ACTION ITEMS (PINK)
A. Economic Development Corporation Member Appointment
B. Letter of Agreement between the Township and the DPW and the DPR Technical, Professional

and Officeworkers Association of Michigan (TPOAM)
C. Ingham County Broadband Task Force Appointment
D. 2021 Order to Maintain Sidewalk Resolution #4 - Set Public Hearing for May 3, 2022
E. Imposing Escrow Conditions for Permitted Work by Telecommunication Within the ROW

13. BOARD DISCUSSION ITEMS (ORCHID)
A. Daniels Drain Public Drain Improvement SAD #21
B. Ordinance 2022-09 – Rezone 2260 Jolly Oak Drive – PO to C-2

C. Zoning Ordinance Updates
D. Juneteenth
E. Small Talk Children’s Advocacy Center Donation

14. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC

15. OTHER MATTERS AND BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS
16. ADJOURNMENT

All comments limited to 3 minutes, unless prior approval for additional time for good cause is obtained from the Supervisor. 
Appointment of Supervisor Pro Tem and/ or Temporary Clerk if necessary. Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or 
services should contact the Meridian Township Board by contacting: Township Manager Frank L. Walsh, 5151 Marsh Road, 
Okemos, MI 48864 or 517.853.4258 - Ten Day Notice is Required. 
Meeting Location: 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Ml 48864 Township Hall  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

AGENDA 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN          
TOWNSHIP BOARD – REGULAR MEETING 

April 12, 2022 6:00 PM 



9A 

CONSENT AGENDA  
BOARD 

COMMUNICATIONS APRIL 
12, 2022 

• EST. 1842 • 

MERIDIAN A 
T O W N S H I PAt•1i 
~ 



-\ . r- ' l 

NOTIFICATION OF MUNICIPALITIES ? . ~·:1 
(Section 280.72 of Public Act 40 of 1956, as amended) 

C) 

This is to notify you that on March 9, 2022, a Board of Determination ordered and 

determined that maintenance and improvement of the Wilkshire Drain is necessary and conducive 

to the public health, convenience or welfare. 

Dated: March fl_, 2022 

Certified Mailing Number: 7 6 J Q 215()' OCXS! ;;2_ 5sj '7 S 3 

Date Mailed: 3 -- l q ~d ;:;z 



• EST. 1842 • 

MERIDIAN A 
T O W N S H I P•t•li 
~ 

Meridian Township 
5151 Marsh Road 
Okemos, Ml 48864 

P 517.853.4000 
F 517.853.4096 

Township Board: 

Patricia Herring 
Jackson 
Township Supervisor 

Deborah Guthrie 
Township Clerk 

Phil Deschaine 
Township Treasurer 

Scott Hendrickson 
Township Trustee 

Kathy Ann Sundland 
Township Trustee 

Marna Wilson 
Township Trustee 

Courtney Wisinski 
Township Trustee 

Frank L. Walsh 
Township Manager 

March 14, 2022 

Mr. Dean Hall 
President 
Michigan Sportsmen Against Hunger 
P.O. Box 5127 
Warren, MI 48090 

Neal Easterbrook 
Vice President 
Michigan Sportsmen Against Hunger 

Dear Mr. Hall and Mr. Easterbrook: 

We are writing to express our gratitude for your participation in Meridian Township's 
2021-2022 Deer Management Program. The success of the program is dependent on the 
many partnerships taking place between local government, the Michigan Department of 
Natural Resources, private landowners, The Beef Barn, and Michigan Sportsmen Against 
Hunger. 

This year, nearly 70 township residents participated in the archery program and 
harvested a total of 130 deer, donating the majority to the hungry through the generosity 
of Michigan Sportsmen Against Hunger. In addition, the 2022 police deer cull harvested 
200 deer that were all donated to feed the hungry. The harvests resulted in the donation 
of 7,414 pounds of venison to 13 local food banks and to the needy families atthe Santa's 
First Responder Party. 

We would also like to thank you for the time and support that you provide to Township 
staff and your commitment to our processing partner, The Beef Barn. 

Thank you again for your commitment to wildlife conservation and the well-being of the 
residents of Meridian Township, and throughout Michigan. We value your continued 
support and hope that we can work together in 2023. 

Patricia Jackson 
Meridian Township Supervisor 

~ 
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

A PRIME COMMUNITY 

meridian.mi.us ----



• EST. 1842 • 

MERIDIAN A 
T O W N S H I P•t41J!li 
~ 

Meridian Township 
5151 Marsh Road 
Okemos, Ml 48864 

P 517.853.4000 
F 517.853.4096 

Township Board: 

Patricia Herring 
Jackson 
Township Supervisor 

Deborah Guthrie 
Township Clerk 

Phil Deschaine 
Township Treasurer 

Scott Hendrickson 
Township Trustee 

Kathy Ann Sundland 
Township Trustee 

Marna Wilson 
Township Trustee 

Courtney Wisinski 
Township Trustee 

Frank L. Walsh 
Township Manager 

March 14, 2022 

Mr. Dean Hall 
President 
Michigan Sportsmen Against Hunger 
P.O. Box 5127 
Warren, MI 48090 

N ea! Easterbrook 
Vice President 
Michigan Sportsmen Against Hunger 

Dear Mr. Hall and Mr. Easterbrook: 

We are writing to express our gratitude for your participation in Meridian Township's 
2021-2022 Deer Management Program. The success of the program is dependent on the 
many partnerships taking place between local government, the Michigan Department of 
Natural Resources, private landowners, The Beef Barn, and Michigan Sportsmen Against 
Hunger. 

This year, nearly 70 township residents participated in the archery program and 
harvested a total of 130 deer, donating the majority to the hungry through the generosity 
of Michigan Sportsmen Against Hunger. In addition, the 2022 police deer cull harvested 
200 deer that were all donated to feed the hungry. The harvests resulted in the donation 
of 7,414 pounds of venison to 13 local food banks and to the needy families atthe Santa's 
First Responder Party. 

We would also like to thank you for the time and support that you provide to Township 
staff and your commitment to our processing partner, The Beef Barn. 

Thank you again for your commitment to wildlife conservation and the well-being of the 
residents of Meridian Township, and throughout Michigan. We value your continued 
support and hope that we can work together in 2023. 

~~~~ 
Patricia Jackson 
Meridian Township Supervisor 

~ 
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

A PRIME COMMUNITY 

meridian.mi.us 



• EST. 1B42 • 

MERIDIAN A 
T O W N S H I P•t4Jii1i 
~ 

Meridian Township 
5151 Marsh Road 
Okemos, MI 48864 

P 517.853.4000 
F 517.853.4096 

Township Board: 

Patricia Herring 
Jackson 
Township Supervisor 

Deborah Guthrie 
Township Clerk 

Phil Deschaine 
Township Treasurer 

Scott Hendrickson 
Township Trustee 

Kathy Ann Sundland 
Township Trustee 

Marna Wilson 
Township Trustee 

Courtney Wisinski 
Township Trustee 

Frank L. Walsh 
Township Manager 

March 14, 2022 

Mr. Josh Neuland 
Beef Barn 
3095 Cooper Street 
Jackson, MI 49201 

Dear Mr. Neuland: 

We are writing to express our gratitude for your participation in Meridian Township's 
2021-2022 Deer Management Program. We would also like to thank you for the time and 
support that you provide to Township staff and your commitment to being our 
processing partner. 

The success of the program is dependent on the many partnerships taking place between 
local government, the Michigan Department of Natural Resources, private landowners, 
The Beef Barn, and Michigan Sportsmen Against Hunger. This year, nearly 70 township 
residents participated in the archery program and harvested a total of 130 deer, donating 
the majority to the hungry through the generosity of Michigan Sportsmen Against 
Hunger. In addition, the 2022 police deer cull harvested 200 deer that were all donated 
to feed the hungry. The harvests resulted in the donation of 7,414 pounds of venison to 
13 local food banks and to the needy families at the Santa's First Responder Party. 

Thank you again for your commitment to wildlife conservation and the well-being of the 
residents of Meridian Township, and throughout Michigan. We value your continued 
support and hope that we can work together in 2023. 

_J)~~ -~ 
Patricia Jackson ~ 
Meridian Township Supervisor 

~ 
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

A PRIME COMMUNITY 

meridian.mi.us 

~ 



 
 

The community of Meridian Township is in close proximity to the Michigan State Capitol and Michigan State University. The Township 
serves the community through exceptional services, beneficial amenities and an outstanding quality of life. It is a welcoming community 
that celebrates quality education, recreation and lifestyles. 
 

  

 
 

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 
March 17, 2022 

 
CONTACT: Frank L. Walsh, Township Manager 

517.853.4254| walsh@meridian.mi.us   

 

 

 
Meridian Township Board Appoints Two New Township Trustees 

Vacant Seats Now Filled Until November General Election 
 
Meridian Township, MI – At the March 15 Township Board meeting, Scott Hendrickson and Marna Wilson 
were unanimously selected to fill the two vacant Trustee seats on the Meridian Township Board. Both 
Hendrickson and Wilson are well known throughout the Township neighborhoods, having served for 
years on several Township Boards and Commissions.  
 
The Township received a total of nine applications for the vacant Trustee seats.  The Board held a special 
meeting prior to the March 15 regular meeting to interview and consider the three finalists for the two 
vacancies.  
 
“The current Board agreed that these candidates offered experiences and perspectives lost to this Board 
with the unfortunate passing of Supervisor Ron Styka and the resignation of Trustee Dan Opsommer for 
a new opportunity,” stated Supervisor Patricia Herring Jackson. “The Board wants to thank each of the 
nine Trustee applicants for their interest, effort and continuing commitment to service in Meridian 
Township.” 
 
Scott Hendrickson has dedicated himself to public service his entire career. Previously, he worked as a 
Legislative Aide to State Senator Glenn Anderson (representing western Wayne County), at a technology 
consulting firm and for the Ingham County Clerk’s Office. He joined the Meridian Township Planning 
Commission in January 2019, where he served as both Chair, Vice Chair and liaison to other Commissions.  
 
"I am humbled by the kind words and confidence from the Township Board and I am honored to accept this 
appointment," said Scott Hendrickson. "Meridian Township is my home; it is where I plan to live with my 
family and raise my children for years to come. I will do everything in my power to ensure that Meridian 
continues to be a great place to live, work and visit." 
 
As a 36-year resident of Meridian Township, Marna Wilson has served as a community leader and volunteer 
for many years in multiple organizations. She is the past President of the Haslett-Okemos Rotary Club, Board 
Member of the Friends of Okemos Library, member of the Indian Hills Homeowners Association Board and 
an active member of the Meridian Garden Club. In addition to her time as a Township Trustee (1992-1996), 
Wilson also served as former Meridian Township Planning Commissioner (1988-1992).  
 
“I am honored to be appointed to the Board of Trustees. Public service is my passion and I look forward to the 
opportunity to serve the citizens of Meridian Township,” stated Marna Wilson.  
 
The newly appointed Trustees will be sworn in on March 17 and will participate in their first Township 
Board meeting on April 12. These appointees, as well as anyone else seeking to be elected to serve the 
remainder of these terms (expiring November 20, 2024), will need to run for office in the 2022 August 
Primary and 2022 General Election. 

### 

A PRIME COMMUNITY 
marfdlan.ml.us -----

mailto:walsh@meridian.mi.us


 
 

The community of Meridian Township is in close proximity to the Michigan State Capitol and Michigan State University. The Township 
serves the community through exceptional services, beneficial amenities and an outstanding quality of life. It is a welcoming community 
that celebrates quality education, recreation and lifestyles. 
 

  

 
 

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 
March 21, 2022 

 
CONTACT: Miriam Mattison, Finance Director 

517.853.4104| mattison@meridian.mi.us 

 

 

 

Township Awarded Highest Form of Recognition in Financial Reporting 
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Accounting and Financial Reporting 

 
Meridian Township, MI – The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) 
awarded the 2020 Certificate of Achievement (COA) for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Meridian Township. 
The Township has received this award every year since 2012. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Certificate of Achievement is the highest form of recognition in the area of governmental accounting and 
financial reporting. When a Certificate of Achievement is awarded to a government, an Award of Financial 
Reporting Achievement (AFRA) is also presented to the individual or department designated as primarily 
responsible for earning this honor.  
 
“I am very honored to be receiving this award for the 6th year in a row. This award recognizes my desire to be 
thorough and accurate in accounting standards and reporting,” stated Miriam Mattison, Finance Director. “I 
want to thank the Township Board and Manager Walsh for giving me the tools necessary to achieve this award 
each year.” 
 
The GFOA established the COA for Excellence in Financial Reporting Program in 1945 to encourage and assist state 
and local governments to go beyond the minimum requirements. Local units of government within the State of 
Michigan are required by law to file a financial audit report. Populations over 4,000 are required to file an audit 
report each year. While a COA is not required, Meridian Township files this report each year. The COA includes 
statistical data, additional schedules like tax levies and debt and is more comprehensive than a financial audit 
report.  
 
“There is a sacred trust when it comes to protecting tax payer dollars,” stated Township Manager Frank L. Walsh. 

“This award exemplifies the outstanding work of our financial team led by Finance Director Miriam Mattison.” 

Local units of government contract with independent accounting firms to determine whether the financial 
statements are presented fairly, including verifying financial transactions, tracing cash receipts, compliance with 
contracts and internal controls. Meridian Township contracted with Yeo and Yeo to conduct their 2020 audit 
report. Once the audit was reviewed and completed with the state, Meridian Township submitted the audit report 
to be reviewed by the GFOA.  
 

### 

A PRIME COMMUNITY 
marfdlan.ml.us -----

mailto:mattison@meridian.mi.us


MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP RESIDENTS 
 

NOTICE OF REVIEW OF SPECIAL ASSESSMENT ROLL FOR 
DANIELS DRAIN PUBLIC DRAIN IMPROVEMENT 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 21 
By Charter Township of Meridian 

Ingham County, Michigan 
 
 
TO THE RECORD OWNERS OF, OR PARTIES IN INTEREST IN, THE FOLLOWING PROPERTY 
CONSTITUTING THE PROPOSED SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT: 
       A Drainage District located in parts of Sections 22, 23, 26 & 27, Meridian Township, T4N, R1W, 

Ingham County, Michigan.  The property within this Drainage District description is as follows. Chief 
Okemos Plat, Lots 1 thru 6, Cornell Woods #1 Plat, Lots 1 thru 52, Cornell Woods #2 Plat, Lots 53 

thru 62, Cornell Woods #3 Plat, Lots 63 thru 74, Cornell Woods #4 Plat, Lots 75 & 76, Cornell Woods #5 
Plat, Lots 111 thru 114, Cornell Woods #6 Plat, Lots 119 thru 134, Cornell Woods #8 Plat, Lots 154 & 155, 

Cornell Woods North Plat, Lots 1 thru 25, Forest Hills #1 Plat, Lots 17 thru 28, Forest Hills #2 Plat, Lots 
165 thru 187, Forest Hills #3 Plat, Lots 188 thru 248, Forest Hills #4 Plat, Lots 249 thru 253, Lots 290 thru 

292, Lots 312 thru 314, Lots 316 thru 323, Navajo Ridge Plat, Lot 32 & 33, Supervisors Plat of Seneca 
Drive Plat, Lots 6 thru 9, Whispering Oaks Plat, Lots 1 thru 3, Lots 10 thru 29 and Lots 31 thru 37, 

Silverstone Estates Plat, Lots 4 thru 7, 20 and 21; also, beginning at the intersection of the centerline of 
Dobie Road and the South line of Section 22, thence east 533.9 ft. +/- to the SW corner of Lot 196, 

Forest Hills #3 Plat, thence North 1113.5 ft. +/- along the west line of said Plat to the NW corner of Lot 
205, Forest Hills #3 Plat, thence East 1488.8 ft. +/- to the NE corner of Lot 177, Forest Hills #3 Plat, 

thence South 752.25 ft.+/- to the NW corner of Lot 12, Cornell Woods North Plat, thence East 1322.11 
ft. +/- along North line of said Plat to the NE corner of Lot 24 of Cornell Woods North Plat, thence North 
907.03 ft. to the NW corner of the Plat of Whispering Oak Subdivision, thence S76°28’10”E 1059.96 ft. 

along the South right of way line of Grand River Ave. to the NE corner of the Plat of Whispering Oak 
Subdivision, thence S08°59’20”W 240.25 ft., thence S00°21’20”W 240 ft.,  thence S89°38’40”E 333 ft. to 
the Centerline of Cornell Road, thence North along said centerline 3512.12 ft. +/-, thence west  1320 ft. 
+/-, thence south 802.37 ft. to the NE corner of the Silverstone Estates Subdivision, thence S00°02’33”W 
594.17 ft., thence N89°52’04”E 32.99 ft., thence S00°15’17”E 99.80 ft., thence S89°51’33”W 691.98 ft., 
thence S00°19’35”E 279.61 ft., thence S89°35’16”W 668.07 ft.  to the east right of way line of Powell 
Road, thence west 50 ft. to the centerline of Powell Road, thence South 14.5 ft. along said centerline, 

thence West 742 ft., thence South 50 ft. +/-, thence west 381.75 ft.,  thence south 296.27 ft. to the 
North right of way line of Grand River Avenue, thence Southwest 138 ft. +/- to the intersection of the 

South right of way line of Grand River Avenue and the South right of way line of Hamilton Road, thence 
SW along Hamilton Road right of way 282 ft +/-, thence South 290.18 ft., thence West 301.5 ft. +/- , 

thence north 267 ft. +/- to the South right of way line of Hamilton Road, thence southwest along said 
right of way line 28.9 ft., thence south 167 +/-, thence southwest 140 ft. +/- to the east right of way line 

of Dobie Road, thence south along said line 84 ft., thence west 33 ft. to the centerline of Dobie Road, 
thence S84°55’18”W 284 ft., thence North 247 ft. to the South right of way line of Hamilton Road, 
thence SW along said right of way line S84°55’18”W 67.10 ft., thence S05°05’03”E 164 ft., thence 

N89°47’28”W 63.96 ft., thence S00°12’32”W 85.60 ft., thence N89°44’57”W 132.64 ft., thence 
S00°19’03”W 175.84 ft. to the NW corner of Lot 4, Chief Okemos Plat, thence S00°57’37”S 87.40 ft., 

thence along the North line of Chief Okemos Plat thence N85°01’30”E 530.64 ft. to the  
 
 

 
 
 

~ 
MERIDIAN A 

T O W N S H I P•t•li 
~ 



NOTICE OF REVIEW OF SPECIAL ASSESSMENT ROLL FOR 
DANIELS DRAIN PUBLIC DRAIN IMPROVEMENT 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 21 
Page 2 
 

centerline of Dobie Road, thence south 1318 ft. +/- to the beginning; also, beginning at the most 
SW corner of Lot 143, Cornell Woods #8 Plat, thence N89°41’37”E 330.0 ft., thence S72°39’22”E 
230.87 ft., thence N89°41’37”E 155.0 ft. to the centerline of Cornell Road, thence South on said 
centerline 689 ft., thence S89°41’39”W 705.0 ft. to the NE corner of Lot 139, Cornell Woods #7 
Plat, thence North 760 ft. +/- to the beginning. 

 
and excluding road right of way and other lands deemed not benefitted and excluding all streets 
and other land deemed not benefitted. 
 
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a special assessment roll has been prepared and is on file in the Office 
of the Township Clerk for public examination.  Said special assessment roll has been prepared for 
the purpose of assessing the cost of the following described drain improvements to the property 
benefited therefrom:  the Ingham County Drain Commissioner developed plans to implement the 
necessary improvements to the Daniels Drain (to reduce the flooding, remove sediments from the 
pond, improve overall water quality and repair/replace broken pipes and appurtenances in the 
system) and bids were opened and approved in July 2021 resulting in Meridian Township’s share of 
the Daniels Drain improvement costs of $5,536,644.  The Township Board approved on 
September 21, 2021 they will fund 50% of the Township’s share of the Daniels Drain 
improvement cost from the Meridian Township General Fund and the assessment of the 
remaining cost ($2,768,322) will be apportioned to the special assessment district using the 
principles of “benefits derived”, which involve many factors including size of the parcel, land 
use type, amount of runoff, unique property characteristics, etc.   
 
TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that the Township Board will meet on Tuesday, April 12, 2022, at 6:00 
p.m., at the Meridian Township Municipal Building, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864-1198, 
(517) 853-4000, for the purpose of reviewing said special assessment roll and hearing any 
objections thereto. 
 
Appearance and protest at the hearing in the special assessment proceedings is required in order to 
appeal the amount of the special assessment to the state tax tribunal.  Your personal appearance at 
the hearing is not required, but you or your agent may appear in person at the hearing and protest 
the special assessment.  To make an appearance and protest, you must file your written objections 
by letter or other writing with the Township Clerk before the close of this hearing.  The owner or 
any person having an interest in the real property may file a written appeal of the special 
assessment with the state tax tribunal within 30 days after the confirmation of the special 
assessment roll if that person appeared and protested the special assessment at this hearing. 
 
 
 
Published:    Towne Courier    Deborah Guthrie 

           03.27.2022 & 04.03.2022  Township Clerk 
1 Affidavit 

 
 
 
 

 Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.  A PRIME COMMUNITY 

meridia n.m i.us 

..____ 



 
 

The community of Meridian Township is in close proximity to the Michigan State Capitol and Michigan State University. The Township serves the 
community through exceptional services, beneficial amenities and an outstanding quality of life. It is a welcoming community that celebrates quality 
education, recreation and lifestyles. 

 

  

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 
March 28, 2022 

 
                                   CONTACT: LuAnn Maisner, Parks & Recreation Director 

517.853.4604 | maisner@meridian.mi.us  

 

 
Meridian Township 2021-2022 Deer Management Program Completed 

Combined Archery Harvest and Deer Cull Efforts Deemed a Success 
 

Meridian Township, MI – Meridian Township’s Parks and Recreation Department concluded the 11th year of the 
Deer Management Program which consist of a volunteer archery program and deer cull conducted and managed by 
the Township’s Police Department. The combined efforts resulted in a total deer harvest of 330 deer. 
 
The archery portion of the Deer Management Program was conducted from October 1, 2021 – January 1, 2022. 
The Township Board initiated this program in 2010 in response to the continued high number of car/deer 
collisions and concerns with ongoing destruction of vegetation in parks, land preserves and residential 
neighborhoods.  
 
The reported car/deer accidents have decreased over a 10-year period by more than 23%, with the least amount 
of accidents (100) reported in 2020. Reports from residents regarding decreases in landscape destruction, and a 
noticeable reduction in deer browsing damage to parks and preserves demonstrates a level of success, while also 
fostering a healthier deer population. 
 
“We are so very appreciative of our community volunteer archers who continue to be dedicated to the safe 
implementation of the program,” stated LuAnn Maisner, Parks & Recreation Director. 
 
The firearms deer cull was conducted from January 1 – February 28, 2022. The Township Board approved an annual 
deer cull in December 2020 as an additional tool to reduce the local over-population of white-tailed deer. The 
Michigan Department of Natural Resources (DNR) issued the Meridian Township Police a Damage and Nuisance 
Animal Control Permit to implement the cull. The permit allows for a controlled cull outside of the regular hunting 
season and has exceptions to hunting rules.  
 
“We are pleased with the results of the deer cull and the efforts of the Police Department,” stated Police Chief Ken 
Plaga. “Targeted areas of culling herds have greatly reduced the danger of injury to people in our community and 
costs resulting from property damage due to automobile crashes.”  
 
The success of the overall program this year was due to the effective collaborative efforts of the Township Board, 
Administration, Department of Public Works staff, Parks and Recreation Department staff, Police Department, 
volunteer archery hunters, the Michigan Department of Natural Resources Wildlife Division and the Michigan 
Sportsman Against Hunger Organization (MSAH). Thanks to the generosity of MSAH, Meridian Township was 
able to donate 7,414 lbs. of venison to 13 local food banks and to needy families at the Santa’s First Responders 
Party. The value of the processing fees donated to this year’s program by MSAH totaled $9,262.50. 
 
For more information about the Township’s Deer Management Program, residents can call 517.853.4600 or visit 
www.meridian.mi.us/DeerManagement. 

 
### 

A PRIME COMMUNITY 
marfdlan.ml.us -----

mailto:maisner@meridian.mi.us
http://www.meridian.mi.us/DeerManagement


 
 

The community of Meridian Township is in close proximity to the Michigan State Capitol and Michigan State University. The Township 
serves the community through exceptional services, beneficial amenities and an outstanding quality of life. It is a welcoming community 
that celebrates quality education, recreation and lifestyles. 

  

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 
March 28, 2022 

 
CONTACT: LuAnn Maisner, Parks and Recreation Director 

517.853.4604 | maisner@meridian.mi.us  

 

Meridian Township Brings Back “Celebrate Meridian” Festival in 2022 
Sponsorship Opportunities Available for Community-Wide Celebration 

 
Meridian Township, MI – Meridian Township’s largest and most popular event is set to return in 
2022. Make the most of your summer at the Celebrate Meridian Festival on Saturday, June 25 from 
8:00 am - 11:00 pm. The event will once again be free and open to the public. 
 
“After a 2-year hiatus due to the global pandemic, we are so excited to once again be offering Meridian 
Township’s premier summer celebration,” stated Parks & Recreation Director LuAnn Maisner. 
“There will be a number of fun activities for all age groups, but the best part will be seeing everyone’s 
smiling faces once again.” 
 
This year’s festival will take place at the Meridian Township Municipal Complex/Central Park (5151 
Marsh Road, Okemos) and the Marketplace on the Green Pavilion (1995 Central Park Drive, Okemos), 
north of Meridian Mall. Due to road construction detours, Central Park Drive will only be closed 
during the fireworks show and not for the duration of the celebration.  
 
Event Day Schedule:  
 
8:00 am – 2:00 pm  Meridian Farmers’ Market – Marketplace on the Green 
    Support local vendors offering farm, food and crafts. 
 
3:00 pm – 9:00 pm  Children’s Activities – Municipal Complex 

Enjoy fun for the whole family with children’s rides, games and 
inflatables.  

 
3:00 pm – 7:00 pm  Meridian Historical Village – Central Park 
    Tour buildings and learn about history.  
 
4:00 pm – 11:00 pm  Music, Food, Beer and Fireworks – Marketplace on the Green 

Join us at the Marketplace on the Green Pavilion for live music, a beer 
tent, business expo, food and fireworks will light the sky at 10:20 
pm.  
 

To ensure that the Celebrate Meridian Festival continues to be a community-wide success, local 
businesses and regional partners are encouraged to become an event sponsor. Those interested can 
contact the Parks & Recreation Department at 517.853.4600 or email parks@meridian.mi.us.  
 
For more information about the Celebrate Meridian Festival, visit the Meridian Township website at 
www.meridian.mi.us/CelebrateMeridian.  

### 

A PRIME COMMUNITY 
marfdlan.ml.us -----

mailto:maisner@meridian.mi.us
mailto:parks@meridian.mi.us
http://www.meridian.mi.us/CelebrateMeridian


April 1, 2022 

Meridian Township Board of Trustees 

5151 Marsh Road 

Okemos Michigan 48864 

Re; Daniels Drian Special Assessment 

Dear Trustees, 

I write to again dispute being included in the upcoming Daniels Drain Assessment, however I support the 
need to have the project move forward and paid for in partnership with the Township and the property 
owners that benefit form it. I firmly believe that our property does Not benefit from the existing nor the 
improvements to the Daniels Drain and should not be included in the district. 

Back on November 16, 2021, I attended the public hearing and spoke opposing the assessment to our 
primary residence located at 4767 Cornell Road, Okemos. After the meeting, I contacted Meridian 
Township engineer Younes lshraidi to explain why, and he directed me to the Ingham County Drian 
Commissioner. On November 18, 2021 I spoke with Deputy Dain Commission Paul Pratt who after 
hearing my explanations, seemed to agree that the Ledebuhr property is not benefitting from the 
Daniels drain. He suggested that if the Township/County is unwilling to remove our land from the 
Drainage district, that a strong consideration be made to lower the Coefficient Calculation to reflect the 
negligible possibility. 

Mr. Pratt suggested then that I speak with the consultant that did the onsite work to determine if the 
Ledebuhr property was needing to be included in the Daniels Drainage District, which I then did. I spoke 
with Project Engineer Kyle Smith in late November. Kyle helped me identify the two buried drains under 
Grand River Avenue he claims are why the Ledebuhr property is included in the district. He pointed out 
and marked the "East drain", which is on the Doggie Day Care property adjacent and to the East of the 
Ledebuhr property. He claims that that drain runs water under Grand River in a flow that runs North to 
South and thereby drains the Ledebuhr property by ground water flowing from our property over the 
Doggie Day Care property to the East drain. In practice, this does not happen! Please see attached 
drawings and photo's A- E. Water is currently sitting on the surface of both the Ledebuhr property and 
the Doggie Day Care property, and not being drained as the water level never reaches the elevation of 
the "East" Drain. This may have been caused by the Doggie Day Care grading after construction of their 
new building. We are currently at the highest standing water level in the 80 years my family has been 
involved as owners of this land. If, the water level were to ever exceed the current level of flooding, we 
have a drainage culvert under our existing Grand River Driveway that would carry the water westerly to 
the "West" Drain, which does carry water northward into the Hathaway Drain. See photo's F and G. 

Photo's Hand I are of the "West" Drain, which is a drain under Grand River Avenue bringing water from 
the south side of Grand River, and storm water directly from the roadway, northward onto the Ledebuhr 
property to run northward to the Hathaway drain. The last time Grand River was reworked, we signed a 



drainage easement to allow this water to run northward onto our property to accommodate the 
Department ofTransportation project. Grand River Avenue is much higher in elevation than the 
Ledebuhr property and it's impossible for water to flow from the Ledebuhr property over Grand River 
Avenue. Finally, if as the Engineer consultant concludes that the Ledebuhr property drains southward 
under Grand River Avenue, it most certainly pools on the south side of Grand River working it's way the 
"West" drain, (which it never pools there), it would then flow back under Grand River in the "West" 
drain back onto the Ledebuhr property to eventually connect to the Hathaway drain, Not the Daniels 
drain. 

I appreciate your consideration of all this information, and I look forward to your conclusions supporting 
eliminating the Ledebuhr property from the Daniels drain since we already have multiple drains dealing 
with our ground water runoff. 

Sincerely, 

4767 Cornell Road 

Okemos Michigan 48864 



(tt) 





·, I• 

_:~_/ ' 'i · s+exrd.,-;.5 v.J"?-f.t.r- °''"' 
-· 1 ; ''·, .,,Ledeb...,J,,,.- /1",.,l'~A/ _ 

/ ," _jJ t) ~ > 'µ D 1- -r? C) -vJ \.?) It I • , I 

~ rq,rr d~,/1 /J~r­
(cJ/'11vt fos...+, 

.~:-·,\ l)ge__s i.Ja'f -('(tJ-.../ OC(/(;)Jf 

c; r c;ty,cl K1 ~ e,- , 



dl'l ,L. eel el Jiv- flr o /<>I'/; ·· 
11 o +- r,.) /I /I. ;,1 1.:J c;f"''f 
dr ot"'7.I\ z.. (-ev°"' f., ()."" 

~ ,e?a !, -j cl r<>1 ' ~ ~ i) 

I, .j ~ j-o r eo r- L.. 



~ hdvv f::::?/ jf- clror , ;, 
v A cl cv Ir dt"d Kt v -_..,...... "',.., 

ad ~c.~"" i- pre) trr/2 --f c) 

~sr,{_7:J°-3:J 7 ~ ~ 
X)v Ac1-'~ lv~ fv---;/'{<>-w -

1 

~ ~ oJtl., a c C-ol'"d •~ ,lo 
('" ~ l'\l u I f 0n--f l 



v}J...oft:J }a£,~ )(3 o/JJ..... 

/4o{::::-,~ \.v' es f c,/l 

£-c>clei,vJv /J"";?r/.f:? 
-Frd ,_, sf;v,d I Py '-A..., °t~ -, 

Svr;I.A/ _1 ~ t v~,i- (../~ rr- , 
. . ' 

dr,vi\A,./7 '-'" "•; ( drq,~ , ; _ 
\JJ q-h,- i o u./c: .s' t­
W-e>t .~ '-v- i,-., i ~ d.,,01,";.

1 
1 ...-, i-u Aed@ J ,_;/v fl< CV' tri;;: 



,, /4 '• r ,. 
t 

/1 I I , " ' , 

/J hofo ~~ 3/Jv(:i.. 

vf 111 Wr-5T C)"' 
C-e I c::,Lvlv-- l7rd1 ,rl;? 

sh,vV-~j d,-,v-~½ 
Cu } v ~rf -..J A_,°'c ~ 
~ ( { d VJJ \J\./Ofrfy- 7c) 

drQ~ -fo. ~~ 



tl~\ll~~~., ~• yt[~1 tf}Jj1Jllfil~WJJ~ 

· /J ~ -(c,~r-. 3(10/Ll_ '. 
@ 

Sio'-0' LU~1f drarc~ 

tJ t1 ~ ~ eb v4,--/tv/?/'6 
0 CCC? /1 f I~ \.V 01/-r- --f'/1:>-"1 
C rOf ,.,d J9\ ~r '9°~ '- f ~/1.d__ 

DJJ\ ~ ~~cl it~ 
r ~ A/\~ ~ ('\ -J,o /:ede~ 
@✓i>v>«-~/ rv~~•"";,_J ~G 



· r.o-/ o ic, 3 f :,o/ .J.. 

~ ho '-'IJ W e{J d/"c:r ,~ 

c; I'") C, d JQ C -r-Ao.r/-/l ~d /J~ 

~ s~-./'tli C,C/v.r5 ~~ord_ 

. f;?lv~ Qcc ~l,?J tu 

'-v"'?i C ~~ / J,i_J c.J,,.,.d~ 
~f\c! t<t~ ~~rfu 
~~~Jv'f--



 
 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, INGHAM COUNTY 

LEGAL AD NOTICE: Special Use Permits #22-05011 & 
#22-051 

 (3830 & 3836 Okemos Road) 

    

 
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
LEGAL NOTICE 

Special Use Permits #22-05011 & 22-051 
(3830 & 3836 Okemos Road) 

Planning Commission Public Hearing 
Monday, April 25, 2022 – 7 pm 

 
Notice is hereby given that the Planning Commission of the Charter Township of Meridian will 
hold public hearings on Monday, April 25, 2022 at 7:00 p.m. in the Meridian Municipal Building, 
Town Hall Room, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI, 48864 (phone 517-853-4560) to hear all 
persons interested in an amendment and new special use permit (SUP) requests from JV 
Landlord-Lansing, LLC. The applicant is requesting to construct a 9,488 square foot building 
addition at 3830 & 3836 Okemos Road. The approximate 4.52-acre subject site is zoned RA 
(Single Family-Medium Density).  

Information may be examined at the Department of Community Planning and Development, 
5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Michigan 48864-1198, between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 
p.m., Monday through Friday.  Written comments may be sent prior to the public hearing to 
the Planning Commission, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Michigan, 48864, or by email to 
planningcommission@meridian.mi.us, or at the public hearing. 
 
Publish:   Towne Courier    Deborah Guthrie 
   April 3, 2022     Township Clerk 
 
1 Affidavit, please 
 
 

 

~ 
MERIDIAN A 
~ 0 ~~~1i 
~ 

A PRIME COMMUNITY 

meridian.mi.us -----



 
 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, INGHAM COUNTY 

TOWNSHIP BOARD MEETING NOTICE  
 CHANGE IN MEETING TIME TO 5 PM 

FOR  
TUESDAY, APRIL 26, 2022 MEETING 

  

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
MEETING NOTICE 

CHANGE OF MEETING TIME FOR  
TUESDAY, APRIL 26, 2022 MEETING TO 5 PM 

 
 

At its March 15, 2022 meeting, the Meridian Township Board moved to change the meeting time of 
their Tuesday, April 26th meeting from 6 pm to 5 pm. The meeting time change allows for 
additional time to discuss agenda items such as the use of the ARPA Funds  

Meridian Township Board 
Tuesday, April 26, 2022 at 5 pm 

Meridian Municipal Building 
Town Hall Room 

5151 Marsh Road, Okemos 
  

The meeting agenda, packet and/or virtual meeting credentials will be posted on the Township 
webpage at www.meridian.mi.us  

 
 

 
 

~ 
MERIDIAN A 
~ 0 ~~~,, 
~ 

A PRIME COMMUNITY 

meridian.mi.us ---

http://www.meridian.mi.us/


 
 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, INGHAM COUNTY 

LEGAL AD NOTICE: Variance Request 22-04-20-1 
 Jerry Fedewa Homes 

WEDNESDAY, April 20, 2022 

 
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
LEGAL NOTICE 

Variance Request 22-04-20-1 
Jerry Fedewa Homes 

Zoning Board of Appeals Public Hearing 
Wednesday, April 20, 2022 – 6:30 pm 

 
Notice is hereby given that the Zoning Board of Appeals of the Charter Township of Meridian 
will hold a public hearing on Wednesday, April 20, 2022 at 6:30 p.m. in the Meridian Municipal 
Building, Town Hall Room, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI, 48864 (phone 517-853-4560) to 
hear all persons interested in a variance request for a front yard setback at 6059 East Lake 
Drive. Jerry Fedewa Homes is proposing to construct a single-family home that does not meet 
the front yard setback permitted by ordinance. The subject site is zoned RB, Single Family High 
Density & Lake Lansing Residential Overlay District. 
 
Information may be examined at the Department of Community Planning and Development, 
5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Michigan 48864-1198, between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 
p.m., Monday through Friday.  Written comments may be sent prior to the public hearing to 
the Zoning Board of Appeals, Charter Township of Meridian, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, 
Michigan, 48864, or by email to chapman@meridian.mi.us, or at the public hearing. 
 
Publish:   Towne Courier    Deborah Guthrie 
   April 3, 2022     Township Clerk 
 
1 Affidavit, please 
 
 

 

~ 
MERIDIAN A 
~ 0 ~~~1i 
~ 

A PRIME COMMUNITY 

meridian.mi.us -----



 
 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, INGHAM COUNTY 

LEGAL AD NOTICE: Variance Request 22-04-20-2 
 Jerry Fedewa Homes 

WEDNESDAY, April 20, 2022 

 
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
LEGAL NOTICE 

Variance Request 22-04-20-2 
Jerry Fedewa Homes 

Zoning Board of Appeals Public Hearing 
Wednesday, April 20, 2022 – 6:30 pm 

 
Notice is hereby given that the Zoning Board of Appeals of the Charter Township of Meridian 
will hold a public hearing on Wednesday, April 20, 2022 at 6:30 p.m. in the Meridian Municipal 
Building, Town Hall Room, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI, 48864 (phone 517-853-4560) to 
hear all persons interested in a variance request for a front yard setback at 6099 East Lake 
Drive. Jerry Fedewa Homes is proposing to construct a single-family home that does not meet 
the front yard setback permitted by ordinance. The subject site is zoned RB, Single Family High 
Density & Lake Lansing Residential Overlay District. 
 
Information may be examined at the Department of Community Planning and Development, 
5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Michigan 48864-1198, between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 
p.m., Monday through Friday.  Written comments may be sent prior to the public hearing to 
the Zoning Board of Appeals, Charter Township of Meridian, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, 
Michigan, 48864, or by email to chapman@meridian.mi.us, or at the public hearing. 
 
Publish:   Towne Courier    Deborah Guthrie 
   April 3, 2022     Township Clerk 
 
1 Affidavit, please 
 
 

 

~ 
MERIDIAN A 
~ 0 ~~~1i 
~ 

A PRIME COMMUNITY 

meridian.mi.us -----



 
 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, INGHAM COUNTY 

LEGAL AD NOTICE: Variance Request 22-04-20-3 
 Eyde Hannah Plaza, LLC 

WEDNESDAY, April 20, 2022 

 
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
LEGAL NOTICE 

Variance Request 22-04-20-3 
Eyde Hannah Plaza, LLC 

Zoning Board of Appeals Public Hearing 
Wednesday, April 20, 2022 – 6:30 pm 

 
Notice is hereby given that the Zoning Board of Appeals of the Charter Township of Meridian 
will hold a public hearing on Wednesday, April 20, 2022 at 6:30 p.m. in the Meridian Municipal 
Building, Town Hall Room, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI, 48864 (phone 517-853-4560) to 
hear all persons interested in a variance request for a freestanding sign. Eyde Hannah Plaza, 
LLC is proposing a freestanding sign in excess of the allowed square footage permitted by 
ordinance located at 4790 South Hagadorn Road. The subject site is zoned C-2, Commercial. 
 
Information may be examined at the Department of Community Planning and Development, 
5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Michigan 48864-1198, between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 
p.m., Monday through Friday.  Written comments may be sent prior to the public hearing to 
the Zoning Board of Appeals, Charter Township of Meridian, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, 
Michigan, 48864, or by email to chapman@meridian.mi.us, or at the public hearing. 
 
Publish:   Towne Courier    Deborah Guthrie 
   April 3, 2022     Township Clerk 
 
1 Affidavit, please 
 
 

 

~ 
MERIDIAN A 
~ 0 ~~~1i 
~ 

A PRIME COMMUNITY 

meridian.mi.us -----



 
 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, INGHAM COUNTY 

LEGAL AD NOTICE: Variance Request 22-04-20-4 
 SH G2755, LLC 

WEDNESDAY, April 20, 2022 

 
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
LEGAL NOTICE 

Variance Request 22-04-20-4 
SH G2755, LLC 

Zoning Board of Appeals Public Hearing 
Wednesday, April 20, 2022 – 6:30 pm 

 
Notice is hereby given that the Zoning Board of Appeals of the Charter Township of Meridian 
will hold a public hearing on Wednesday, April 20, 2022 at 6:30 p.m. in the Meridian Municipal 
Building, Town Hall Room, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI, 48864 (phone 517-853-4560) to 
hear all persons interested in a variance request for a wall sign. SH G2755, LLC is proposing a 
wall sign on a facade not permitted by ordinance located at 2755 East Grand River Avenue. The 
subject site is zoned C-2, Commercial. 
 
Information may be examined at the Department of Community Planning and Development, 
5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Michigan 48864-1198, between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 
p.m., Monday through Friday.  Written comments may be sent prior to the public hearing to 
the Zoning Board of Appeals, Charter Township of Meridian, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, 
Michigan, 48864, or by email to chapman@meridian.mi.us, or at the public hearing. 
 
Publish:   Towne Courier    Deborah Guthrie 
   April 3, 2022     Township Clerk 
 
1 Affidavit, please 
 
 

 

~ 
MERIDIAN A 
~ 0 ~~~1i 
~ 

A PRIME COMMUNITY 

meridian.mi.us -----



 

The community of Meridian Township is in close proximity to the Michigan State Capitol and Michigan State University. The Township serves the 
community through exceptional services, beneficial amenities and an outstanding quality of life. It is a welcoming community that celebrates quality 
education, recreation and lifestyles. 

 

  

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 
April 5, 2022 

 
                            CONTACT: LuAnn Maisner, Parks & Recreation Director 

517.853.4604 | maisner@meridian.mi.us  

 

Community-Wide Love A Park Day Returns 
Join Meridian Township Clean Up Efforts 

 
Meridian Township, MI – Volunteers are encouraged to spread their love to local parks by joining Meridian 
Township in this year’s Love A Park Day. The event will take place on Wednesday, April 20 from 5:00 pm to 
7:00 pm.  
 
This year, the volunteer work will focus on the following parks: 

 Hillbrook Park (1751 Lake Lansing Rd., Haslett) 
 Harris Nature Center (3998 Van Atta Rd., Okemos) 
 Hartrick Park (3685 Hulett Rd., Okemos) 
 Nancy Moore Park (1960 Gaylord C. Smith Ct., Haslett) 
 Central Park (5151 Marsh Rd., Okemos) 
 Eastgate Park (4203 Meridian Rd., Okemos) 
 Marketplace on the Green (1995 Central Park Dr., Okemos)  

 
Volunteers can register online for a specific park location at https://signup.com/go/KjaCVCi. Individual 
work will be assigned to volunteers after registration.  

 
“This is a great opportunity for the community lend a hand in sprucing-up our parks following the long 
winter season,” stated Parks & Recreation Director LuAnn Maisner. “We welcome and appreciate our 
community’s support!” 
 
This event is an opportunity for large community groups and/or individuals to help celebrate the Township 
Park System by cleaning up local parks, land preserves, trails and other public spaces. Volunteers will help 
plant flowers, mulch playgrounds and gardens, pick up trash, weed and rake baseball infields, remove 
invasive species and more.  
 
For questions, contact the Parks & Recreation Department at 517.853.4600 or parks@meridian.mi.us. Visit the 
Township website at www.meridian.mi.us/Calendar for a full listing of Township events and registration 
details.  

 
### 

A PRIME COMMUNITY 
marfdlan.ml.us -----

mailto:maisner@meridian.mi.us
https://links.signup.com/?ref=R3MAALToS_9mXGdvrhumJuwqj8nxowekAQAAAHxE46iH6CgLHZh0E78tpDNronkKYRaGuESCSFGki1i5yFnb2rd0nSuEng_D5Ivhml4qP0dQokeDoeMc_2qb2qkLPi3rTQ8WuzJnxg-h_bSUCBF1iooZ_9ZjAmtViAC78yWXUM3lWszA45-e_s0vG6D6Urqc2aXbnPvJRm60PwL4QwR7hfq6OjLgSt8oHQ8fSUI_Pdxp1c2kchYngWze-Vw
mailto:parks@meridian.mi.us
http://www.meridian.mi.us/Calendar


 

The community of Meridian Township is in close proximity to the Michigan State Capitol and Michigan State University. The Township serves the 
community through exceptional services, beneficial amenities and an outstanding quality of life. It is a welcoming community that celebrates quality 
education, recreation and lifestyles. 

 

  

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 
April 5, 2022 

 
                            CONTACT: LuAnn Maisner, Parks & Recreation Director 

517.853.4604 | maisner@meridian.mi.us  

 

Flashlight Easter Egg Hunt Returns to Meridian 
A Twist on a Springtime Tradition  

 
Meridian Township, MI – The community is invited to join in on the fun during the Flashlight Easter Egg 
Hunt on Saturday, April 16 beginning at 7:00 pm. This great family outing includes children's activities, 
carnival games, arts and crafts, music, a visit with the Easter Bunny and more.  
 
Once the sky beings to darken at approximately 9:30 pm, hunters will head to the "Secret Egg Patch" in 
Nancy Moore Park (1960 Gaylord C. Smith Ct., Haslett) to search for special eggs and other goodies using 
their own flashlights. Egg hunters will be divided into age groups of 3 and under, 4-7 years old and 8-12 
years. Children must be supervised by an adult. 
 
Pre-registration is required for this event. Fees are $10 per child before the April 11 deadline and $12 per 
child after that date. 

 
Visit the Township website at www.meridian.mi.us/Calendar for registration details as well as a full listing of 
upcoming events. For questions, contact the Parks & Recreation Department at 517.853.4600 or 
parks@meridian.mi.us.  

 
### 

A PRIME COMMUNITY 
marfdlan.ml.us -----

mailto:maisner@meridian.mi.us
http://www.meridian.mi.us/Calendar
mailto:parks@meridian.mi.us


 
 

The community of Meridian Township is in close proximity to the Michigan State Capitol and Michigan State University. The Township 
serves the community through exceptional services, beneficial amenities and an outstanding quality of life. It is a welcoming community 
that celebrates quality education, recreation and lifestyles. 
 

  

 
 

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 
April 5, 2022 

 
CONTACT: Frank L. Walsh, Township Manager 

517.853.4254 | walsh@meridian.mi.us 

 

 

 
Meridian Township Selects New Director of Project Management & Operations  

Leadership Position to Oversee Township American Rescue Plan Act Projects 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Meridian Township, MI – On Monday, March 21, Meridian Township staff welcomed Melissa Massie as the 
new Director of Project Management & Operations.  
 
The Township's mission of this leadership position is to oversee several Township projects which majority 
relates to the fulfillment of the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds. Meridian Township is expected to 

receive $4,539,464 in ARPA funding. The Township Board will discuss the Board’s objectives for the 

disbursement of these funds on Tuesday, April 26 at 5:00 pm in the Town Hall Room of the Municipal Building. 

The Board will then determine the process for selecting the projects these funds will be utilized for.    

“We have a bevy of projects in the works and on the drawing board. We need to make sure that we don’t lose 

sight of providing excellent customer service at the same time we are managing major capital projects,” stated 

Township Manager Frank L. Walsh. “Melissa’s vast experience in customer service and project management 

are a perfect match for our current and future needs.”   

Melissa previously served as the Senior Operations Manager for a specialty chemical company in Holt, 

Michigan. In her role, she managed the office operations and customer relations. She was responsible for 

managing ongoing projects, reporting and maintaining vendor relationships. 

"I am excited to transition my skills to a position that allows me to help people on a local level within my 

hometown of Meridian Township,” said Director of Project Management & Operations Melissa Massie. “I 

am looking forward to completing projects that will enhance this incredible community.” 

ARPA funds are required to be expended by December 31, 2026 with project contracts in place by December 
31, 2024. Meridian Township’s Director of Project Management & Operations was posted as an 18-month 
temporary full-time position. 
 

### 

~ A PRIME COMMUNITY ..____ 

marfdlan.ml.us 

mailto:walsh@meridian.mi.us


Meridian Township 

.Jtiafad~ 
f-lSS .7~!iJ, 
(Jl~.,11.,7-IJ'J'H 

Attn: Director of Public Works and Engineering and Township Board /·,,,·~-::--:-·. 

5151 Marsh Rd. ;,-.,,. :- r 
/, . . .. {t ) . 

Okemos, Ml. 48864 ;._ •.,.I' .. · "' } 
I ••• drvr .r • u ' ·':") 

• ' '<:$' ' . ~ ,·.<,·~ 
. ~~ .. ~f-4" ry: ~. ".• c<... •• \ ~'°' 1:-;' 

~ /. ··, 
/ t, 

'~ --~ - --~ '-,:: .,, 

Re: Appeal of Special Assessment for Daniels Drain Project 

Dear Township Board and Director of Public Works and Engineering, 

We are writing to appeal the special assessment for the Daniel's Drain Project. We are 

requesting a reconsideration of the assessment for our property at 1455 lvywood Dr. 

Okemos, Ml 48864, Parcel code number 33-02-02-23-353-008. 

We do understand that the assessment is based on several parameters. 

We have, as part of our property, designated wetlands which has a drain opening into 

the storm sewer system. 

About three quarters of the year those wetlands are either dry or low (below the drain 

opening). Therefore, we are assuming that the water in the wetlands either evaporates 

in the warmer months or soaks into the unfrozen ground or both. This would be true 

late Spring, Summer, Fall and early to mid-Winter. Likewise, any runoff into the 

wetlands from adjoining properties does not drain into the storm sewer system during 

those times. 

During those three fourths of the year there is nothing draining off most of our 

property into the storm sewer system. 

Therefore, we are appealing for a reduction of the estimated special assessment for the 

Daniel's Drain Project. 

Sincerely, 



Patrick E. Lindemann 
Ingham County Drain Commissioner 

PO Box 220 
707 Buhl Avenue 

Mason, MI 48854-0220 

Phone: (517) 676-8395 

Fax: (517) 676-8364 

http://dr.ingham.org 

April 4, 2022 

Barb Byrum 
Ingham County Clerk 
341 S. Jefferson 
Mason, Michigan 48854 

INVOICE #4403 

INVOICE 

Carla Florence Clo• 
Deputy Drain Commiuioner 

Paul C. Pratt 
Deputy Drain Commi:,:,ionar 

Angie Cosman 
Chief of Engineering at>d Inspection 

Sheldon Lewis 
Administrative As:1istant 

The invoiced amount is for the annual installment of the Daniels Drain special 
assessment (13.85% of the total project cost of $6,690,000), pursuant to the 
Daniels Drain Special Assessment Roll, as approved by the Daniels Drain Drainage 
Board on July 28, 2021. 

Please make payment to Daniels Drain Drainage District. 

Principal Amount 
Interest 
Total Amount Due: 

266516995.vl 

Payment due on or before May 1, 2022. 

$36,689.30 
$8,399.10 

$45,088.40 



Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, INGHAM COUNTY 

LEGAL AD NOTICE: Township Board Public Hearing - Meridian 
Redevelopment Fund Village of Okemos, LLC Request 

 (Village of Okemos, LLC) 

Public Hearing Date:  April 26, 2022 at 6 pm

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
LEGAL NOTICE 

Meridian Redevelopment Fund Request 
Village of Okemos, LLC 

Township Board Public Hearing 

Notice is hereby given that the Township Board of the Charter Township of Meridian will hold 
a public hearing on Tuesday April 26th, 2022 at 6:00 p.m. in the Meridian Municipal Building, 
Town Hall Room, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864 (phone 517-853-4560) to hear all 
persons interested in a request from Village of Okemos, LLC for the use of the Meridian 
Redevelopment Fund in support of public infrastructure improvements.  

The developer introduced the request for the use of the Meridian Redevelopment Fund to 
address infrastructure improvements in public right of ways and easements (i.e. water, 
sewer, other utility work, and repaving) of Ardmore, Clinton, Hamilton and Methodist streets 
February 3, 2022. A subcommittee established by the Township Board met Tuesday March 1, 
2022 to hear the request of the development team. The subcommittee recommended a 
partial approval not to exceed $1,250,000 of the Meridian Redevelopment Fund to 
the Township Board. At the regular Township Board meeting Tuesday March 15, 2022, 
the Township Board made a motion for a public hearing to be set according to the 
requirements as established in the Economic Development Corporation Act, to hear 
public comment regarding the Village of Okemos, LLC request of the Meridian 
Redevelopment Fund not to exceed $1,250,000 for infrastructure improvements on 
Ardmore, Hamilton, Clinton and Methodist near the project site. The following parcels 
are included in the project: 21-405-008, 21-405-009, 21-405-005, 21-405-010, 
21-409-001, 21-409-002, 21-409-003, 21-409-004, 21-409-008, 21-409-006, and 
21-409-009.

Information may be examined at the Department of Economic Development, 5151 
Marsh Road, Okemos, Michigan 48864-1198, between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., 
Monday through Friday and on the Township website at https://www.meridian.mi.us/
government/at-your-fingertips/current-applications-before-meridian-township.   

Written comments may be sent prior to the public hearing to Amber Clark, Neighborhoods 
& Economic Development Director, Charter Township of Meridian, 5151 Marsh Road, 
Okemos, Michigan, 48864, or by email to Clark@meridian.mi.us. 

Publish: Lansing State Journal 
Friday  April 8, 2022  

Deborah Guthrie 
Township Clerk 

1 Affidavit, please 

~ 
MERIDIAN A 

T O W N S H I P•t•li 
~ 

A PRIME COMMUNITY 
meridian.mi.us 

.._____ 



Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, INGHAM COUNTY 

LEGAL AD NOTICE: Mixed Use Planned Unit Development #22-00014 

(SP Holding Company LLC) 

MONDAY, April 25, 2022 at 7:00 PM 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
LEGAL NOTICE 

Mixed Use Planned Unit Development #22-00014 
(SP Holding Company LLC) 

Planning Commission Public Hearing 

Notice is hereby given that the Planning Commission of the Charter Township of Meridian 
will hold a public hearing on Monday, April 25, 2022 at 7:00 p.m., in the Meridian Township 
Municipal Building, Town Hall Room, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos (phone 517-853-4560), to 
hear all persons interested in a request from SP Holding Company LLC for a mixed use 
planned unit development containing 302 residential units and 21,750 square feet of 
commercial/office space. The approximate 19-acre project site is located on the southwest 
corner of Marsh Road and Haslett Road at 1621 & 1655 Haslett Road.  The site is zoned C-2 
(Commercial). 

Information may be examined at the Department of Community Planning and Development, 
5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Michigan 48864, between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., 
Monday through Friday.  Written comments may be sent prior to the public hearing to Brian 
Shorkey, Senior Planner, Charter Township of Meridian, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, 
Michigan, 48864, or by email to shorkey@meridian.mi.us. 

Publish: Towne Courier Deborah Guthrie 
April 10, 2022  Township Clerk 

1 Affidavit, please 

~ 
MERIDIAN A 
~ 0 ~~~1i 
~ 

A PRIME COMMUNITY 

meridian.mi.us 



From: Cindy Grundemann   
 
Good job!! 
Keep up the good work! 
 
I have a treehouse in my backyard that could be used as a stand.  Please let me know if you would be 
interested for next year’s cull. 
 
4220 Van Atta Road 
 
 



 
To: Meridian Township Board 
From: Ari and Jessi Adler, 1580 Hillside Drive, Okemos. Parcel 33-02-02-427-006 
Re: Protesting Daniels Drain Assessment  
Date: April 2022 
 
To the Meridian Township Trustees:  
 
For the official record, we, the homeowners of 1580 Hillside Drive (Parcel 33-02-02-427-006) 
object to the Daniels Drain Special Assessment for our parcel in the estimated amount of 
$6,589.23 based on the factors listed below (Note: this amount is higher than the amount you 
provided us in the fall of 2021). Through this letter we are reserving our right to file an appeal 
to the State Tax Tribunal and also request that the entire assessment roll and factors be looked 
at more closely for the sake of the entire neighborhood and the township to ensure equity and 
legality.  
 
The residents of Forest Hills, Cornell Woods and other property owners in the Daniels Drain 
district NEVER asked for this drain project and in fact were unaware of it until it began in 
summer of 2021. The request for the project came solely from the Board of Directors of the 
Walden Ponds Cooperative Homes, Inc. Had they not petitioned for this project and the ICDC 
and/or the township decided to do this project on their own, we would not be paying such 
outrageous amounts for this project – again, a project the overwhelming majority of residents 
did not ask for, nor knew anything about until it began. Therefore, the residents of the Forest 
Hills neighborhood believe the Ponds Cooperative Homes should be the sole responsible 
party to pay for this project. 
 
Or, it should be Meridian Township’s responsibility to pay for the entirety of it. We don’t 
disagree with the need for repair due to the collapsing tile and gunk-filled pond, but this 
township has made numerous zoning, rezoning, and property development mistakes since the 
drain/pond installation dating back to the 1940s that run contrary to the master plan (and even 
basic common sense). These decisions made by the township have been negatively impacting 
this drain and surrounding developments for decades, yet the township has turned a blind eye 
to the consequences in favor of more money from developers. The pond and drains were too 
small and falling apart for the number of houses in Forest Hills, New Forest Hills, Cornell Woods, 
and on Dobie Road, that the township continued to approve for building. And, yet, they never 
required developers or the ICDC to fix the drains or build a new retention pond to take the load 
off the current pond, even when they knew our pipes and pond couldn’t handle the current 
water load. Every bit of new road, driveway, and rooftop added more runoff that wasn’t being 
absorbed into the ground and instead dumped into the Daniels Drain pipes and pond that were 
not infrastructurally capable of handling that much. Therefore, it should not be the current 
homeowners’ responsibility to pay for all of the development and infrastructure mistakes 
made by township officials that have led to the drain’s failure.  
 



We also do not agree with the so-called “benefits” and “proximity to tangible improvements,” 
which the assessment indicates for our property. In fact, this project is more detrimental than 
beneficial for the following reasons: 

• We have never had any issues with flooding or water on our property.  
• We have a completely fine culvert pipe under our driveway and a deep and clean ditch 

in our yard (But just last week someone came to cut off the end of our driveway to tear 
it all up and put in a new pipe and tear up the road – again, we didn’t need this, ours 
was working fine, yet, we are being forced to pay for a new road and pipe that we didn’t 
need, and at an expense we cannot afford and that gives us no new benefits.) 

• We back up to the natural area and water on our yard soaks in to the ground and helps 
replenish the aquifer to our well that we rely on for daily water.  

• We have no curb or gutter on our street, thus no driveway approach. The only 
pavement on our property is our driveway. 

• The project removed an unnecessary, massive number of trees directly behind our 
house that not only helped with runoff and filtration, but will result in a loss of 
property/resale value for us because, as the realtors say “location, location, location.” 
The destruction of the nature and privacy we enjoyed by having thick woods behind our 
house in the natural areas is a significant blow to any future sale of our house.  

• The so-called “landscaping improvements” to the pond and planned sidewalks around 
the pond will be off-limits to the residents of Forest Hills such since that is private 
property owned by the Ponds Cooperative and there are no trespassing signs 
everywhere. So, we will get NO benefit from the landscaping improvements. 

• Trees and plantings? You cut down at least 600, 50+ year old mature trees and are only 
replacing them with a handful of small trees. This is NOT an improvement of any kind 
and does not benefit my property in any way. In fact, now I can see directly into the 
windows of the condos, and they can see into my backyard – this is a detriment to both 
sides who used to enjoy privacy.  

 
Therefore, considering all of the above, the special assessment dollar amount for our 
property is not reasonably proportionate to the so-called “benefits” and we would like it 
reconsidered and lowered to reflect reality. Ideally, the appropriate parties (the Ponds Co-Op 
and Meridian Township) should pay for the entirety of this project that we never asked for 
and has caused undue harm to our property with no tangible benefits for the debt we are 
being forced to incur against our will.  
 
Thank you, 
Jessi and Ari Adler 
 
 



From: Donna C <dhcot@hotmail.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, April 5, 2022 10:42 AM 
To: Amber Clark <clark@meridian.mi.us> 
Subject: The Village of Okemos concerns to address. 

I am very concerned about the lack of planned parking at the Village of Okemos. 
After the approved variance  and other changes:  There is less than a quarter of the original 
parking spaces required. 
About one hundred parking  spots for 400+  people  (in  the residential and commercial units 
planned). 

This will impact safety of the children in the school at Clinton road as well as those living and 
visiting establishments there. 
It will negatively affect the traffic patterns, safety, and congestion of nearby streets.  What 
about noise and litter?  

Lack of parking will encourage people who live at the Village of Okemos (and their visitors), as 
well as customers to the new businesses, to park on local side streets:   Clinton, Ardmore, and 
Methodist roads  (as well as local parks nearby).  There will be a lack of adequate parking. 

I would think a developer could not fill residential units until all the parking spaces for them are 
addressed. 
I would think a developer could not open new businesses there (without adequate parking 
spaces). 
The city has minimum required parking requirements for a reason (safety/ traffic flow/ 
preventing parking on side streets). 

Please do not allow structures to go up without meeting requirements. 

mailto:dhcot@hotmail.com
mailto:clark@meridian.mi.us


 
Meridian Township Board of Trustees 
5151 Marsh Road 
Okemos, MI 48864 

 

March 7, 2022 

 

Dear Meridian Township Board of Trustees, 

I’m writing in strong support of my friend Scott Hendrickson for an appointment to the Meridian 
Township Board of Trustees. Scott has the right combination of experience in local issues, commitment 
to our community, and diligence and professionalism for this role. 

As a Planning Commissioner, Scott has demonstrated excellent and thoughtful judgment on some of the 
most pressing issues facing the Township, including our downtown developments in Okemos and 
Haslett. Scott shares my strong belief that mixed use is the way to go for these projects, and I know he 
will work to find creative solutions to bring developer concerns in line with our community desires and 
needs without wasting taxpayer money.  

As Chief Deputy County Clerk, Scott has proven an invaluable asset to Ingham County. I have had the 
privilege of working with him on several of my constituents’ concerns, and have been impressed by how 
quickly, efficiently and effectively he has responded. Meridian Township needs Trustees who meet 
deadlines, do the reading, and listen and respond to their constituents. You won’t find a better choice in 
these respects than Mr. Hendrickson. 

Scott’s character is also ideally suited to this role. He is the kind of leader who listens and brings people 
together. When faced with conflict, he is able to set aside his own ego to the benefit of the governing 
body, and very much to the benefit of those we serve. He will be a voice of reason and moderation on 
the Meridian Township Board of Trustees. 

Thank you for your consideration of Scott Hendrickson’s application. I hope you will include my letter in 
your packet for March 8th.  

 

Sincerely, 
 

 

Emily Stivers 
Ingham County Commissioner 



' 

Apri l 09, 2022 

To: Meridian Township Board Members 

My name is Helen Huang and I am a representalive or Nev,> China of Michigan Inc, which owns 

471 4 Powell Rd {parcel number: 33-02-02-23-301-001). I am writing to appeal against the 

Daniels Drain Special Assessment tax of$5719.82 

There are lots of trees and wetlands armmd the cast and south s ides of my property. Rainwater 

always stands around my property and doesn't go away at all, just sits south and behind/east of 

the forest, rainwater doesn't drain into the Daniels Drain, plus there is a new drain mnning north 

in front ofmy property(photos enclose). It was installed when Powell Road was paved in 202 1 

and I have paid my share for it. So I bel ieve my property docs not benefit from the Daniels Drain 

especially the front part of the house. If the back/east and south side portion cannot remove, at 

least land use code C should be mixed forest and we0ands at 0. 15 instead of 0.30 or similar 

to neighbors ( 1491, 1493, 1494, 1495 Si lverstone way around 0.1 5) 

I hope I've made my point clear and look forward to reducing the Daniels Drain Special 

Assessment Tax. 

Thank you for considering this objection. 

Helen Huang 

..) 





I 



• 

' _;. . 

• 
.. ' .. 

• 

'.,... t"ok. 

' • • • \ _,;., 





  

 
MEDIA ADVISORY 

 

COUNTY OF INGHAM 
 

P.O. Box 319 - Mason, Michigan 48854 - (517) 676-7200 - 
Fax: (517) 676-7264 

www.ingham.org 
 

Press Release  
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 
 

INGHAM COUNTY TRAIL AND PARK MILLAGE FUNDING  
AWARDED TO  

ELEVEN LOCAL GOVERNMENT UNITS 
 

Contact:   
Becky Bennett – 517-676-7200 – bbennett@ingham.org 
Tim Morgan – 517-676-2233 – tmorgan@ingham.org 

 
 
INGHAM COUNTY – Ingham County is pleased to announce that Resolution #22-115 was 

passed by the Ingham County Board of Commissioners on March 8, 2022 awarding funding to 

eleven local municipalities for trail improvements.  The trail and park millage approved by 

voters in November 2014 and renewed in March 2020 generates approximately $4 million in 

revenue annually.  Resolution #22-115 provides $2,749,346.00 for several projects. The 

approved projects provides for new construction, trail repairs, support for a Volunteer 

Coordinator position, planning and engineering, and development of a park and recreation plan 

and feasibility study.  

 

"We are thrilled to launch a strong investment in the trail system across Ingham County and 

include some of the smaller communities such as Alaiedon Township and Vevay Township who 

have not received any funding to date through this program," said Bryan Crenshaw, Chairperson 

of the Ingham County Board of Commissioners. The County will now enter into a contract with 

each municipality and each municipality will manage its own projects:  



Entity Project Title 
Grant 
Award  

 
Description 

Alaiedon Township 
Leek Cemetery Nature Trail & 
Improvements $296,400.00 

- Project includes phase 1 of crushed limestone trail, pavilion, 
entry arch, benches, and interpretive/wayfinding signs 
- Paved ADA parking spaces will be added near the trail 
entrance (at the back of the cemetery) 
- Project also includes Planning & Engineering for the 
Township 5-Yr Recreation Plan 

City of Lansing / 
FLRT Trail Ambassador Coordinator $20,000.00 

- Continue funding for part-time trail ambassador coordinator 
position 

City of Lansing 
River Trail Bank Stabilization – Mt. Hope 
Cemetery $170,000.00 

- Project includes repair of failing sheet pile wall & trail, 
where trail is falling into Sycamore Creek 
- Project includes survey, soil borings, engineering and 
permitting 

City of Lansing River Trail - Overband & Crack Sealing $60,000.00 

- Project includes preventative maintenance of crack sealing; 
approximately 9.8 of the 17 miles of trail 
- Project includes survey, soil borings, engineering and 
permitting 

City of Leslie 
Leslie Shared Use Path - Hull Rd. to S. 
Cameo Dr. $313,796.00 

- New path creates loop to Hull Rd. Path;  there is a worn foot 
path; also lighting is included 
- Allows kids to walk safely from middle school to high school 

City of Leslie 
Leslie Shared Use Path - Middle School to 
Russell Park $265,000.00 

- New path to connect Middle School path to the Russell Park 
path 

City of Mason 
Jefferson Trailhead / Community Garden 
Improvements $204,000.00 

- Project includes expansion of the existing parking lot, a new 
ADA restroom (vault), and a drinking fountain and interpretive 
sign 

City of Mason Hayhoe Riverwalk Trail - Repair $337,000.00 

- Repair of trail surface (cold milling) from Kipp Rd. to 
Howell Rd. with overlay of new asphalt, drainage 
improvements 

City of Williamston 
Memorial Park Trail Planning & 
Engineering $40,700.00 

- Prime Professional - LAP, Inc. 

Lansing Township 
Waverly Rd Shared Use Pathway, Phase II - 
Feasibility Study $18,750.00 

- Project includes feasibility study to evaluate the trail 
connection along Waverly Road from Old Lansing Road to the 
Grand River to make the connection to the Lansing River Trail 
at Moores River Drive. 

Leroy Township Simmons Memorial Park Improvements $21,600.00 

- Project includes a new basketball court, connecting paths, 
ADA parking improvements, new trees, benches, play area 
safety surfacing replenishment 



Leslie Township 
Township Grounds Lighting & Recreational 
Improvements $300,000.00 

- New solar LED lighting, picnic tables, benches, exercise 
stations, playground equipment, and a bike rack around the 
1/3-mile walking path 

Meridian Township 
MSU to Lake Lansing Connector Trail, 
Phase III 

$225,000.00 
+ 
($1,500,000.
00 already 
committed 
by 
Resolution 
#20-563) 

- Project includes final connection to Lake Lansing Parks 
(South & North), and develops a trailhead at Green Road 
 

Vevay Township 
Vevay Township Community Park and 5-
Year Recreation Plan $81,500.00 

- Project includes updating the 5-Yr Recreation Plan, and 
design and preliminary engineering for regional trail 
connectivity, and park improvements, and DNR grant writing 

Village of 
Stockbridge 

Greater Stockbridge Connectivity & 
Wellness Park Enhancements $395,600.00 

- Project includes a path to connect Veterans Park to the 
Lakelands Trail, the Jr/Sr High School and Beckwith Nature 
Preserve, the Lake-Lake Trail and the Iron Belle Trail;  also 
included is an outdoor gym, skatepark updates, a sand    
volleyball court, restroom renovations, a bike repair station 
and a bike rack 

 

For more information, please visit the Ingham County Parks Department website at www.inghamcountyparks.org.    

 
###  

A TRAILS AND PARK 
MILLAGE FUNDED 

PROJECT 



I've  tried almost every suggested  way to prevent  deer from destroying  my yard. 
Fencing,spray,etc. All to no avail! Deer are still a cause of damage.Please continue to cull deer 
and increase  the number culled. Thank you J Stei born 
 



Hello,   

I own the property located at 1284 W. Grand River Ave, Okemos, MI 48864  parcel 33-02-02-23-376-002 

I have received the letter regarding the meeting that will taking place on April 12. 2022.  Please accept 
this email as my formal response to the special assessment.  

The first thing I have to say is that $11,842.65 is a lot of money for my business.  I own 2.5 acres, 
however, not all of it is developed so therefore is not used.  In addition, I have the following questions: 

Is the assessment due as a lump sum?  If so, when is the due date? 

Can the assessment be paid over time in our property taxes?  If so, in what percentages and for how 
long? 

I would like to request that my assessment be made based on the amount of land I am using and not the 
size of the parcel.  An assessment of this size, if due in one lump sum, would cause my business financial 
hardship.   

I appreciate your time. 

Sincerely,

Janice Milligan 
Managing Member, Milligan Eastside LLC 
President, Doggy Daycare and Spa 
janice@doggydaycareandspa.com 
(517) 333-9663 ext. 3
www.lansinghiphounds.com

mailto:janice@doggydaycareandspa.com
http://www.lansinghiphounds.com/




Dear Meridian Township Trustees: 

I am writing to thank you for your support of the various efforts to reduce the number of deer in 
Meridian Township. I believe that continuation of these efforts is critical to keep the deer 
population in check.  

The damage to our property prior to the deer control efforts, was extensive. The deer were 
destroying plants that they are “not supposed” to eat and required fencing and other efforts to 
protect landscaping that was supposed to be “deer resistant.” 

With the efforts of the Township over the past couple of years, the amount of destruction has 
been decreased significantly. With the efforts, we still frequently see deer around our property – 
just not the herds that we used to see. 

I strongly urge the Township to continue similar efforts in the future. 

Thank you for your efforts to keep the Township a great place to live! 

Larry Wagenknecht 
6097 Partridge St. 
Haslett, MI  48840 
517-719-6167 - cell



 
 

The community of Meridian Township is in close proximity to the Michigan State Capitol and Michigan State University. The Township 
serves the community through exceptional services, beneficial amenities and an outstanding quality of life. It is a welcoming community 
that celebrates quality education, recreation and lifestyles. 
 
  

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 
March 29, 2022 

 
CONTACT: Ed Besonen, Sergeant 

517.853.4800 | besonen@meridian.mi.us 

 

Meridian Township Police Investigate Overturned Kayak  
Overturned kayak on Lake Lansing 

 
MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP, MI – On March 29, 2022 at approximately 9:02 a.m., the Meridian Township 
Fire Department and police officers responded to Lake Lansing Park South for a report of an 
overturned kayak with people in distress.  On their arrival members of both the Fire and Police 
departments rescued the two individuals from the water.  A four-year-old boy was unresponsive and 
not breathing.  Paramedics attempted lifesaving actions on the boy and both individuals were 
transported to Sparrow Hospital, where the boy was pronounced dead. A 33-year-old female was 
with the boy at the time of the incident and is being treated at Sparrow Hospital. Both people involved 
in this incident are Haslett residents. 
 
This investigation is ongoing. Anyone who has additional information regarding this complaint are 
requested to contact the Meridian Township Police Department at 517.853.4800 or submit an 
anonymous tip through the Police Department’s social media sites.  

 
 

### 
 

~ 
MERIDIAN A 
'{ o ~~ s__i;__~1' 
~ 

A PRIME COMMUNITY 
meridian.mi.us 

...____ 



Good morning, 

Please find attached a letter of recommendation for Scott Hendrickson for the Township Trustee 
appointment to be included with the rest of his application materials. Please include this in the 
Board Packet for your consideration of applications at the March 8th Board Meeting.  

Thank you very much! 

Please let me know if I may be of further assistance. 

Sincerely, 
Michelle Wright 
Executive Assistant 
Pronouns: she/her/hers 
Ingham County Clerk Barb Byrum’s Office 
(517) 676-7215

https://gscc.msu.edu/education/pronouns.html


BRANCH OFFICE 
Veterens Memorial Courthouse 
Lansing. Ml 48933 
clerk@ingham.org 
clerk.ingham.org 

March 7, 2022 

Meridian Township Board 
c/o Abigail Tithof 
5151 Marsh Road 
Okemos, Ml 48864 

Barb Byrum 
Ingham County Clerk 

Dear Meridian Township Board, 

MAIN OFFICE 
P.O. Box 179 

341 Soulh Jefferson 
Mason, Ml 48854 

PhOne: (517) 676-7201 
Fax: (517) 676-7254 

I am writing today to recommend the appointment of Scott Hendrickson to the vacancy on tne 
Meridian Township Board. 

I have been impressed by Scott's service to Meridian Township for as long as I have known 
him. He brings his thoughtful expertise to three local boards and commissions and has shown a 
remarkable dedication lo his community. In my view, bringing his level of experience and 
previous familiarity with the operations of Township governance is crucial to being able to step 
in and make a significant and positive impact immediately. 

Scott began working for me as my Chief Deputy County Clerk in November of 2019. He has 
been a tremendous asset to my team and a trusted advisor and confidant Scott helped to 
successfully navigate my Office through the COVID-19 pandemic and has been an extremely 
effective advocate for me and my priorities throughout his tenure. Scott's attention to detail, 
constituent service, and overall acumen will make him an asset to the Township Board. 

I am so pleased to offer Scott my highest recommendation and it is my firm belief that the 
Township Board would be wise to appoint Scott Hendrickson to join the Board as a Township 
Trustee. 

Please let me know if I may provide any additional information to help you to come to your 
decision. 

. ... 



February 28, 2022 
 
Dear Mr. Ishraidi,  
 
It’s been several months now since my last contact with your office and since the 
Township Board received written and verbal comments, objections and questions 
regarding preliminary assessments for the Daniels Drain project.  I still have several 
unresolved concerns and questions regarding assessment amounts and the 
calculations used in their determination. 
   
1) I have questions regarding apparent discrepancies regarding contributing 
acreage, runoff coefficients (c values), and betterment multipliers used in the 
assessment roll spreadsheet?  My lot size is 90’x150’ (0.3099 acre) and yet Spicer 
has my contributing acreage listed as 0.3172 acre in their assessment roll.  Why is 
an incorrect acreage being used in the calculations?  
 
2) Last fall when we met, you told me the P2 factor on my parcel increased my 
assessment amount by roughly $350-$375.  Derek Perry had noted to me, 
previously by email, that the P2 would increase my assessment amount by 20%.  
From what I see, the P2 multiplier raises my assessment by $700-750.  What is the 
correct amount? 
 
3) Why is my current assessment amount $1200 higher than my neighbor’s (a mere 
stone’s throw away from my lot) when our parcel sizes are comparable, but their 
home (roof size) and concrete drive surface area are greater than mine?  Why is 
their C factor 0.3 compared to 0.3161 for my lot?  Why are there so many 0.3 C 
factors used throughout the assessment roll?  Shouldn’t everyone have a weighted C 
factor > 0.3 when roof and drive areas are factored in?  
 
4) Has the Township board and/or the Engineering Dept. reconsidered anything 
and/or made any adjustments or changes to assessment amounts following 
property owner input and objections voiced last fall?  I was unable to attend the 
‘formal public hearing’ meeting last Nov. 16, but from what I heard from many 
disgruntled neighbors, the public hearing was merely just an agenda item included 
in the township’s monthly board meeting (with limited time for input).  Would it be 
possible to schedule a stand alone Drain Meeting to specifically discuss the 
assessment methodology/amounts and allow people to ask questions and voice 
concerns?   
 
5) I still haven’t received a satisfactory explanation as to what exact drainage 
benefits and improvements I am receiving after the 3 months of construction  
inconveniences & hassles endured during the removal and replacement (in kind) of 
the 400’ of storm pipe in front of my home.  What truly justifies the use of the P2 
‘benefits derived’ surcharge on the properties on Ivywood Drive for this work 
(which was purely repair or corrective in nature).   No new catch basins, storm sewer 
runs, pipe size increases, swale ditches, C&G, drive approaches, etc.  ….. just new 



bituminous pavement to replace the original pavement (which was in good 
condition) ripped out to access the pipe.  Derek Perry had referred to this 
betterment factor as a ‘resetting of the clock’ on various infrastructure items.  Why 
does ‘resetting the clock’ for concrete storm pipe, that should still have at least 75% 
of its design life remaining, justify this additional assessment cost to me?  I already 
pay gas taxes, vehicle license and registration fees, and the township road/street 
millage to maintain roads and streets, so why is new pavement being included in 
your betterment circle?  Is it correct to assess these road rehabilitation costs to 
property owners on a drainage project?  How can the Township, in good faith, 
assign a 20% P2 multiplier to everyone located adjacent to any project work 
being done in the Cornell Woods subdivision, regardless of the work type, 
justification, size or magnitude?  There are four (4) homeowners on Satinwood 
Dr. that are getting the P2 surcharge just based being located adjacent to a single 
simple manhole replacement & the 30’x30’ pavement patch.  Others are being 
financially surcharged for work to relocate a storm pipe back within the existing 
ROW.  This P2 ‘benefit derived’ logic just doesn’t seem fair and equitable to my 
situation and many others in Cornell Woods subdivision.  Assigning the higher 
‘betterment derived’ multipliers to all property owners adjacent to all work sites 
throughout the drainage district, to possibly help justify the assessment increases 
being levied against the Ponds Cooperative for all the Waldon Pond improvements 
and for others receiving real & actual drainage betterments, just isn’t right or fair.   
 
6) Would it be possible for me to again meet with you (and maybe Spicer) sometime, 
in order to discuss the many concerns and questions I have noted above?  I do not 
have a displeasure with this overall drain project; I just merely object to the 
Township’s methodology used to calculate the assessments in my area based 
on the supposed tangible improvements and betterments adjacent to certain 
properties and question all the apparent discrepancies in the assessments roll 
calculations.  
 

Thank you and I look forward to your response, 

Mike Zavadil 

 

 

 

 

 



Dear Board members, 
 
I want to thank you, the hunters, and the Meridian Police, for coordinating the excellent job that was 
once again done in culling our deer herd. The hunters and the police did a great job. Last summer we 
saw the results of the wintertime cull immediately, as deer damage in our neighborhood was way down. 
I am sure that damage will again be down this coming summer. 
 
But we must not let up. We still see deer tracks across our lawn (on most nights) and on the golf course 
(Red Cedar). I urge that next year the Township seek to get even more deer tags, so as to really take the 
deer herd down to a level that it was at before this latest period of population growth.  
 
But the bottom line – thanks to everyone involved. Ours is a model for other communities to follow, and 
that should make everyone involved both proud and happy. 
 
 
 
All the best, 
 
 
Randall Schaetzl 
 
 



CONSENT AGENDA 
PROPOSED BOARD MINUTES 

April 12th, 2022 

PROPOSED MOTION: 

(1) Move to approve and ratify the minutes of the Special Meeting 
of March 15th, 2022, as submitted.

(2) Move to approve and ratify the minutes of the Regular Meeting 
of March 15th , 2022, as submitted.

ALTERNATE MOTION: 

(1) Move to approve and ratify the minutes of the Special Meeting 
of March 15th, 2022, with the following amendment(s):

(2) Move to approve and ratify the minutes of the Regular Meeting 

of March 15th , 2022, with the following amendment(s):

[insert amendments]

9.B



Page 1 
 
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
SPECIAL MEETING TOWNSHIP BOARD 2022   -DRAFT- 
5151 Marsh Road, Okemos MI 48864-1198 
853-4000, Township Hall Room  
TUESDAY, March 15th, 2022 3:00 pm 
 
PRESENT: Supervisor Jackson, Clerk Guthrie, Treasurer Deschaine, Trustees Wisinski, 

Sundland 
 
ABSENT:  
 
STAFF: Township Manager Walsh, Assistant Township Manager and Director of Public 

Works and Engineering Opsommer, HR Director Tithof, Clerk’s Assistant Zachary 
Lemaster 

 
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
 

Supervisor Jackson called the meeting to order at 3:00 pm. 

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/INTRODUCTIONS 

 
Supervisor Jackson led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

3. ROLL CALL 
 
Clerk’s Assistant Zachary Lemaster called the roll of the board. All present. 

4. CITIZENS ADDRESS AGENDA ITEMS AND NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 
Supervisor Jackson opened Public Remarks at 4:00 pm. 

 
NONE 

 
Supervisor Jackson closed Public Remarks at 4:00 pm. 

 
5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

Supervisor Jackson reviewed the March 15th, 2022 Township Board Special Meeting Agenda. 
 

Treasurer Deschaine moved to approve the agenda as presented. Seconded by Trustee 
Wisinski. 

 
VOICE VOTE: YEAS:  Supervisor Jackson, Clerk Guthrie, Treasurer Deschaine, Trustee 

_________Wisinski, Sundland 
 NAYS:  None  

 
Motion carried: 5-0 

 



Page 2 
 
 

 
  
6. TRUSTEE CANDIDATE INTERVIEWS 
  

Supervisor Jackson explained the candidates would go through a round robin style interview 
process where each board member would ask a series of questions to gather more information 
on the applicant’s experience, credentials and why they should be one of the Trustees chosen. 
 
A. 3:00 PM – Linda Burkhardt 

 
At 3:00 PM Linda Burkhardt’s interview began. 
 
Each board member asked Linda Burkhardt a series of questions about her credentials, work 
history, experiences, how she would improve the township, and what unique qualities she 
would bring to the Township Board. 
 
At 3:33 PM Linda Burkhardt’s interview ended. 
 
The Board recessed briefly in-between interviews.  
 

B. 3:35 PM – Scott Hendrickson 
 
At 3:40 Scott Hendrickson’s interview began. 
 
Each board member asked Scott Hendrickson a series of questions about his credentials, 
work history, experiences, how he would improve the township, and what unique qualities he 
would bring to the Township Board. 
 
At 4:11 PM Scott Hendrickson’s interview ended. 
 
The Board recessed briefly in-between interviews.  
 

C. 4:10 PM - Marna Wilson 
 
At 4:20 Marna Wilson’s interview began. 
 
Each board member asked Marna Wilson a series of questions about her credentials, work 
history, experiences, how she would improve the township, and what unique qualities she 
would bring to the Township Board. 
 
At 4:52 Marna Wilson’s interview ended. 

 
7. BOARD DELIBERATION 

 
At 4:54 PM the board deliberated on each of the candidates interviews. 
 

8. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 

Supervisor Jackson opened Public Remarks at 5:13 pm. 



Page 3 
 
 

 
NONE 
 
Supervisor Jackson closed Public Remarks at 5:13 pm. 

 
9. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Clerk Guthrie moved to adjourn. Seconded by Trustee Wisinski. 
 
VOICE/HAND VOTE:   Motion carried 5-0 

 
Supervisor Jackson adjourned the meeting at 5:14 pm. 

 
 

 
 

___________                 _____________ 
PATRICIA H. JACKSON, 

TOWNSHIP SUPERVISOR 

 
____________               ________________ 

DEBORAH GUTHRIE 
TOWNSHIP CLERK 

 
 



Page 1 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
REGULAR MEETING TOWNSHIP BOARD 2022   -DRAFT- 
5151 Marsh Road, Okemos MI 48864-1198 
853-4000, Township Hall Room
TUESDAY, March 15th, 2022 6:00 pm

PRESENT: 

ABSENT: 

STAFF: 

Supervisor Jackson, Clerk Guthrie, Treasurer Deschaine, Trustees Wisinski, 
Sundland 

None 

Township Manager Walsh, Assistant Township Manager and Director of Public 
Works and Engineering Opsommer, Chief of Police Plaga, IT Director Gebes, HR 
Director Tithof, Director of Economic Development Clark, Director of Finance 
Mattison, Director of Community Planning and Development Schmitt, Clerk’s 
Assistant Zachary Lemaster, Multimedia Staff Samantha Diehl, Senior Parks and 
Land Management Coordinator Jane Greenway, Land Stewardship Coordinator 
Emma Campbell, Utility Worker Mike Ellis, Chad Fedewa 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER

Supervisor Jackson called the meeting to order at 6:01 pm. 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/INTRODUCTIONS

Supervisor Jackson led the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. ROLL CALL

Clerk’s Assistant Zachary Lemaster called the roll of the board. All Present.

4. PRESENTATION

A. 2021-2022 Deer Management Program

Senior Parks and Land Management Coordinator Jane Greenway, Parks Stewardship
Coordinator Emma Campbell, Chad Fedewa, Mike Ellis and Chief Plaga gave a presentation on
the 2021-2022 Deer Management Program.

Clerk Guthrie asked how Mike Ellis processes deer.

Mike Ellis stated once the officers dispatch the deer they are brought to the service center
where they are field dressed and then transported to the beef barn where the deer is ground
into one-pound packages that are then distributed to food banks.



Page 2 

Treasurer Deschaine asked Chad Fedewa if he was aware about how many deer are in the 
township. 

Chad Fedewa replied the estimate seven years ago was 65 deer per square mile. 

B. Township Manager’s Quarterly Report

Manager Walsh gave his Quarterly Report to the board. He reported the Assessing 
Department is fully staffed and the Board of Review is currently underway. Assessor 
Winstead has started the program to become a level four Assessor as required by the state. 
The Communications Department is fully staffed and is overseeing upgrades to the Town Hall 
Room. The Community Planning and Development Department is fully staffed. Demolition is 
taking place at the new Trader Joe’s, and Hyper Shine Carwash sites. Nothing Bundt Cakes is 
coming in at the corner of Okemos Rd. and Grand River Rd. Buddies Pizza is opening soon and 
the Sparrow Development on Jolly is moving forward. Meridian townships tax base has 
reached two billion dollars. Director Schmitt is working on a sign ordinance, Director Clark is 
working on Pine Village and the Village of Okemos. Finance department is fully staffed and 
working on the 2021 audit report and received an award of excellence in finance from the 
Government Finance Officers Association. The Fire Department is fully staffed with 34 
Firefighter Paramedics. The Emergency Operations Plan is in development and the township 
has acquired a new ambulance, a new fire pumper, a new ladder truck, and a new command 
staff vehicle that are paid for in full. Human Resources department is fully staffed and is 
rewriting personnel policies and moving forward with Diversity Equity and Inclusion 
program. Information and Technology infrastructure is being improved through Brightline, 
with the main improvements being replacement of switches and the firewall. Parks and 
Recreation celebrated 25 years with Harris Nature Center, there is an event on April 16th for 
the Flashlight Easter Egg Hunt at Nancy Moore park. Love Your Park day is coming up, and 
Celebrate Meridian is coming back this year. Public Works department is replacing the roof at 
Okemos library, bids on solar array are due Friday. There has been major progress on 
community signage. The MSU to Lake Lansing pathway, the Daniels Drain project, the Local 
Roads project, the Okemos’s Bridge project and the Grand River project are all progressing. 

Clerk Guthrie asked for a brief update on the Village of Okemos Project. 

Manager Walsh stated there is a lot of infrastructure that needs to be improved around the 
Village of Okemos’s site and it will be paid for initially by the township. He stated the 
township will not invest in the development itself, and the township will capture the future 
taxes through Tax Increment Financing to reimburse the township’s infrastructure 
investment. 

Manager Walsh also reported he is holding listening sessions for each union group and 
coming up with a comprehensive plan to offset employee cost of living increases due to 
inflation. He stated this plan may come forward in about three to four weeks. 

5. CITIZENS ADDRESS AGENDA ITEMS AND NON-AGENDA ITEMS

Supervisor Jackson opened Public Remarks at 6:44 pm.



Page 3 

NONE 

Supervisor Jackson closed Public Remarks at 6:44 pm. 

6. TOWNSHIP MANAGER REPORT

Manager Walsh did not give a second report. 

7. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS OF ACTIVITIES AND ANNOUNCEMENTS

Treasurer Deschaine
• Attended Economic Development Corporation meeting on March 3rd

• Attended Downtown Development Authority meeting on March 7th

• March 16th  is the CATA Board of Directors meeting at 4 pm at the old sears store

Trustee Wisinski 
• Environmental Commission appointed Bill McConnell as its Chair and Kendra

Grassechi as its Vice-Chair
• Emma Campbell is working with the Harris Nature Center to hold an educational

session on gardening with native plants, the event is sold out but will be recorded,  the
Harris Nature Center is also holding a native plant sale

• The Green Grants have been decided by the Parks Commission and a letter has been
drafted to grantees

• Attended March 9th Land Preservation Advisory Board meeting
• Groundwater Management board and Election Commission have not met since the last

Township Board Meeting

Clerk Guthrie 
• Attended Rotary meeting today where a review of coordinating food pantries was given

by Cecelia Kramer
• Meridian Cares fundraiser, “Keep our Bellies Full” is taking place today at Culvers

tonight

8. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Supervisor Jackson reviewed the March 15th, 2022 Township Board Agenda.

Treasurer Deschaine moved to approve the agenda as presented. Seconded by Trustee 
Wisinski. 

VOICE VOTE: YEAS:  Supervisor Jackson, Clerk Guthrie, Treasurer Deschaine, Trustees 
_________Wisinski, Sundland 
NAYS:  None  

Motion carried: 5-0 



Page 4 

9. CONSENT AGENDA

Supervisor Jackson reviewed the Consent Agenda.

Treasurer Deschaine moved to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.  Seconded by 
Trustee Wisinski. 

ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS:  Clerk Guthrie, Treasurer Deschaine, Trustees Wisinski, Sundland, 
_________Supervisor Jackson 
NAYS:  None  

Motion carried: 5-0 

A. Communications

Treasurer Deschaine moved that the communications not already assigned for disposition 
be referred to the Township Manager or Supervisor for follow-up. Seconded by Trustee 
Wisinski. 

ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS:  Clerk Guthrie, Treasurer Deschaine, Trustees Wisinski, Sundland, 
_________Supervisor Jackson 
NAYS:  None  

Motion carried: 5-0 

B. Approval of Minutes – March 1, 2022 Regular Meeting and March 8 2022 Special Meeting

Treasurer Deschaine moved to approve and ratify the minutes of March 1, 2022 Regular 
Meeting and March 8 2022 Special Meeting, as presented. Seconded by Trustee Wisinski. 

ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS:  Clerk Guthrie, Treasurer Deschaine, Trustees Wisinski, Sundland, 
_________Supervisor Jackson 
NAYS:  None  

Motion carried: 5-0 

C. Bills

Treasurer Deschaine moved to approve that the Township Board approve the Manager’s 
Bills as follows:  Seconded by Trustee Wisinski. 

Common Cash  $           250,312.42 
Public Works  $       2,250,756.34 
Trust & Agency $                 207,899.53 

Total Checks $           2,708,968.29 

Credit Card Transactions $       17,776.84 
09/16/2021 to 09/29/2021 



Page 5 

Total Purchases $          2,726,745.13 

ACH Payments $    875,072.18 

ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS:  Clerk Guthrie, Treasurer Deschaine, Trustees Wisinski, Sundland, 
_________Supervisor Jackson 
NAYS:  None  

Motion carried: 5-0 

10. QUESTIONS FOR THE ATTORNEY- NONE

11. HEARINGS – NONE

12. ACTION ITEMS

A. Daniels Drain Public Drain Improvement SAD #21 Resolution 3 & Resolution #4-Set a Public
Hearing for April 12, 2022

Assistant Manager Opsommer outlined the Daniels Drain Public Drain Improvement SAD #21
Resolution 3 & Resolution #4 and setting a Public Hearing for April 12, 2022.

Assistant Manager Opsommer explained that after meeting with residents that he has
updated the project. Resolution 3 and 4 reflect those updates.

Trustee Wisinski moved to approve Daniels Drain Public Drain Improvement Special 
Assessment District No. 21 Resolution No. 3, which approves the Special Assessment District, 
and defraying the cost thereof by Special Assessment against the properties specifically 
benefited thereby; and approves the Special Assessment District estimate of cost in the 
amount of $2,768,322; and determines the Special Assessment District. Seconded by Clerk 
Guthrie. 

Trustee Wisinski asked if Assistant Manager Opsommer had made changes to the project 
since the last time the board has seen them. 

Assistant Manager Opsommer replied he has. He stated a few parcels on Dobie Rd. do not 
have culverts or any drainage related to Daniels Drain. Any land that drains into a ditch will 
not be included in the assessment. A part of Cornell Elementary is in the drainage district and 
will not be assessed, as well as two lift stations that will also not be assessed. 

Clerk Guthrie asked for clarification on why some homes on Dobie Rd. are being assessed for 
less drainage.  

Assistant Manager Opsommer stated the grading allowed for some drainage to run into the 
ditches of some front yards and become groundwater, never utilizing a drain. 

Clerk Guthrie stated some residents had called and asked if flags in their yards were related 
to the Daniels Drain project, but noted they were not in the assessment district. 



Page 6 

Assistant Manager Opsommer stated he couldn’t be sure what the flags are related to as 
there are several projects ongoing but if residents would like to know about the flags please 
contact the Department of Public Works at dpw@meridian.mi.us. 

Treasurer Deschaine stated residents are not upset just because of the Daniels Drain 
Assessment, but that multiple drain assessments have taken place recently. He asked if 
Opsommer has reached out to the Drain Commissioner about this. 

Assistant Manager Opsommer replied he has. 

Supervisor Jackson clarified after Assistant Manager Opsommer removes property from the 
assessment he has to recalculate the assessments and that all this is, is an updated 
assessment role. 

Assistant Manager Opsommer replied yes. 

ROLL-CALL VOTE: YEAS:  Treasurer Deschaine, Trustees Wisinski, Sundland, Supervisor  
_________Jackson, Clerk Guthrie 
NAYS:  None  

Motion carried: 5-0 

Trustee Wisinski moved to approve Daniels Drain Public Drain Improvement Special 
Assessment District No. 21 Resolution No. 4, which provides for the Special Assessment Roll 
to be filed with the office of the Township Clerk and shall be available for public examination 
during regular working hours on regular working days; provides that the Township Board 
shall meet at 6:00 pm on Tuesday, April 12, 2022 for purposes of reviewing and hearing 
objections to the Special Assessment roll; and directs the Township Clerk to cause notice of 
such hearing and the filing of the assessment roll. Seconded by Clerk Guthrie. 

ROLL-CALL VOTE: YEAS:  Trustees Wisinski, Sundland, Supervisor Jackson, Clerk Guthrie, 
_________Treasurer Deschaine 
NAYS:  None  

Motion carried: 5-0 

B. Final Preliminary Plat #19012 (Giguere Homes), Sanctuary III

Director Schmitt outlined Final Preliminary Plat #19012 (Giguere Homes), Sanctuary III.

Treasurer Deschaine asked if this item would have come back to the board since no progress
had been made in the last two years.

Director Schmitt stated it would have, but given the litigation surrounding the project, Staff
believes the timing is appropriate.

Treasurer Deschaine moved to approve the resolution for Final Preliminary Plat #19012 
(Giguere Homes), a request to construct Sanctuary III, a single family subdivision consisting 



Page 7 

of 7 lots located East of Hulett Road, north of Jolly Road, off of Robins Way. Seconded by 
Trustee Wisinski. 

Clerk Guthrie asked what a 433 agreement is. 

Director Schmitt replied it is an agreement with respect to modifying drainage district 
boundaries. 

ROLL-CALL VOTE: YEAS:  Trustee Sundland, Supervisor Jackson, Clerk Guthrie, Treasurer 
_________Deschaine, Trustee Wisinski 
NAYS:  None  

Motion carried: 5-0 

C. Special Use Permit – 22-011 – The Meridian Company– Building greater than 25,000 square
feet

Director Schmitt outlined Special Use Permit – 22-011 – The Meridian Company– Building
greater than 25,000 square feet.

Trustee Wisinski moved to adopt the resolution approving the request from M&J 
Management, LLC to construct a building greater than 25,000 square feet on the vacant 
property adjacent to their existing facility at 1999 M-78 Highway. The vacant 5-acre parcel is 
zoned I, Industrial. Seconded by Clerk Guthrie. 

ROLL-CALL VOTE: YEAS:  Supervisor Jackson, Clerk Guthrie, Treasurer Deschaine, Trustees 
_________Wisinski, Sundland 
NAYS:  None  

Motion carried: 5-0 

D. Ordinance 2022-01 – Fire Hydrant Hose Connection Standards – Final Adoption

Director Schmitt outlined the Ordinance 2022-01 – Fire Hydrant Hose Connection Standards
– Final Adoption

Trustee Sundland moved to adopt the resolution approving Ordinance 2022-01, an 
ordinance to add fire hydrant hose connection standards in Chapter 78, Utilities. Seconded 
by Treasurer Deschaine. 

ROLL-CALL VOTE: YEAS:  Clerk Guthrie, Treasurer Deschaine, Trustees Wisinski, Sundland, 
_________Supervisor Jackson 
NAYS:  None  

Motion carried: 5-0 

E. Appointment of New Township Trustees



Page 8 

Supervisor Jackson outlined the Appointment of New Township Trustees. 

Treasurer Deschaine moved to appoint Scott Hendrickson as Meridian Township Trustee for 
a term of March 15, 2022 to November 20, 2022. Seconded by Trustee Wisinski. 

All board members spoke in support of the motion to appoint Scott Hendrickson as Township 
Trustee. 

ROLL-CALL VOTE: YEAS:  Treasurer Deschaine, Trustees Wisinski, Sundland, 
_________Supervisor Jackson, Clerk Guthrie 
NAYS:  None  

Motion carried: 5-0 

Clerk Guthrie moved to appoint Marna Wilson as Meridian Township Trustee for a term of 
March 15, 2022 to November 20, 2022. Seconded by Treasurer Deschaine. 

All board members spoke in support of the motion to appoint Marna Wilson as Township Trustee. 

ROLL-CALL VOTE: YEAS:  Trustees Wisinski, Sundland, Supervisor Jackson, Clerk Guthrie, 
_________Treasurer Deschaine 
NAYS:  None  

Motion carried: 5-0 

F. Community Services Millage

Assistant Manager Opsommer outlined the Community Services Millage.

Treasurer Deschaine moved to adopt the resolution authorizing the Ballot Proposal for a 10-
year renewal of the community services millage. Seconded by Clerk Guthrie. 

Treasurer Deschaine stated this millage is .15 mil for a typical township home with a taxable 
value of $145,000. The cost is about $40 per household but provides a lot of value to residents 
with the senior center program, Parks and Recreation and the Meridian Human Services as 
well. The millage does not provide the services but provides for the coordination of the 
services. 

Trustee Wisinski asked how the Headlee Roll Back amendment works. 

Assistant Manager Opsommer stated when the township’s tax base growth exceeds the rate of 
inflation, the millage rates roll back proportionately. Since some very valuable parcels have 
sold this past year their value has uncapped and caused a large growth that will trigger a 
rollback this year. 

Treasurer Deschaine clarified that annually taxes go up 5% or at the rate of inflation 
whichever is less. 



Page 9 

ROLL-CALL VOTE: YEAS:  Trustee Sundland, Supervisor Jackson, Clerk Guthrie, Treasurer 
_________Deschaine Trustee Wisinski 
NAYS:  None  

Motion carried: 5-0 

G. American Rescue Plan Study Session-Set a Date

Manager Walsh outlined American Rescue Plan Study Session-Set a Date.

Treasurer Deschaine moved to modify the start time our regularly scheduled Tuesday, April 
26, 2022 Board Meeting from 6:00 p.m. to 5:00 p.m. for the sole purpose of discussing the 
Township’s American Rescue Plan funding process. Seconded by Trustee Wisinski. 

VOICE VOTE: YEAS:  Supervisor Jackson, Clerk Guthrie, Treasurer Deschaine, Trustees 
_________Wisinski, Sundland 
NAYS:  None  

Motion carried: 5-0 

H. Township Mileage Rate

Manager Walsh outlined the Township Mileage Rate.

Trustee Wisinski moved to increase the Township’s mileage reimbursement from 55.5 cents 
per mile to 62.5 cents per mile based on the significant uptick in gas prices. The increase 
shall be revisited at the first board meeting in May 2022. Seconded by Trustee Sundland. 

Clerk Guthrie asked how this number was chosen. 

Manager Walsh stated he simply wanted a number higher than the federal rate. 

Supervisor Jackson noted this is a temporary increase. 

Manager Walsh stated that is correct and that he may raise it again. 

VOICE VOTE: YEAS:  Clerk Guthrie, Treasurer Deschaine, Trustees Wisinski, Sundland, 
_________Supervisor Jackson 
NAYS:  None  

Motion carried: 5-0 

13. BOARD DISCUSSION ITEMS

A. Village of Okemos, LLC Meridian Redevelopment Fund Request #2

Director Clark outlined the Village of Okemos, LLC Meridian Redevelopment Fund Request #2
for discussion.



Page 10 

Eric Helzer of Advanced Redevelopment Solutions further outlined the Village of Okemos, 
LLC Meridian Redevelopment Fund Request #2 for discussion with a presentation.  

Mr. Helzer explained why the developer is requesting additional funds from the township and 
how Advanced Redevelopment Solutions plans to repay the redevelopment fund over 20 
years using tax dollars. 

Trustee Sundland asked if the developer is putting a restaurant on the corner.  

Mr. Helzer replied yes, the corners of Okemos Rd. and Hamilton Rd. will likely be restaurants. 

Supervisor Jackson asked if the boulevard would remain a part of the project.  

Mr. Helzer replied it would. 

Supervisor Jackson asked about the trees on the top of the building. 

Mr. Helzer stated there will be a rooftop patio that will have potted trees. 

Supervisor Jackson asked about usage of the roof patio. 

Mr. Helzer replied it is a private area for residents. 

Mr. Helzer described preexisting contamination that has been noticed on the project site and 
how the developer plans on managing that contamination. 

Supervisor Jackson asked how many parking places will be available. 

Director Clark stated they have 94 spaces and still need 5 more. 

Clerk Guthrie asked if the amount of parking spaces are required by Ordinance. 

Mr. Helzer stated it is due to Ordinance requirements.  

Clerk Guthrie asked if there would be restaurant access in the pass through. 

Mr. Helzer was not able to answer at this time. 

Clerk Guthrie asked if there is a lot of greenery on Clinton and Ardmoor Ave. 

Mr. Helzer replied it is fairly dense.  

Director Clark stated the landscape plan was good as far as staff was concerned. 

Clerk Guthrie asked for a layout of the commercial space. 

Mr. Helzer replied they don’t have any tenants yet but pointed out on blueprints where 
commercial areas would be. 



Page 11 

Clerk Guthrie asked if the apartments are priced by apartment or bed. 

Mr. Helzer stated it will be by apartment and will supply more information in the future. 

Trustee Wisinski asked what type of parking would be available.  

Mr. Helzer stated parallel parking will be available on the street with more traditional 
parking lots to the rear of the proposed buildings. 

Trustee Wisinski asked if the contamination didn’t exist, how the storm water would be 
managed. 

Mr. Helzer stated it would be managed under the parking lot. 

Trustee Wisinski asked if the developer could still go subsurface. 

Mr. Helzer stated they would likely be using a Vapor Mitigation System within the building 
and that underground management of stormwater can’t happen with the contamination. 

Trustee Wisinski asked if the rendering of the facade is exact. 

Mr. Helzer stated it is a plan and the only changes would be minor at this point. 

Treasurer Deschaine asked if it was 95 parking spaces per block. 

Director Clark replied 95 total spaces. 

Treasurer Deschaine asked where tenants would park. 

Mr. Helzer stated he would get back to him with more details on parking. 

Supervisor Jackson stated Director Clark has brought this before the board to give feedback 
on the Economic Development Corporation’s recommendation to pay the developer 1.25 
million dollars from the redevelopment fund and asked if this project is dependent on 
forward progress. 

Director Clark stated EGLE(Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy) needs to see forward 
progress this year or the developer may no longer be eligible for matching EGLE funds. 

Supervisor Jackson asked if the sooner the 1.25 Million dollars is approved the sooner the 
board can secure funds from EGLE and Michigan Economic Development Corporation. 

Director Clark stated that is correct. 

Trustee Wisinski moved to suspend the rules and to approve the Village of Okemos LLC 
Meridian redevelopment request #2 and establish a hearing date for April 4th 2022 or 
a date the director decides to receive public comment. Seconded by Clerk Guthrie. 



Page 12 

VOICE VOTE: YEAS:  Clerk Guthrie, Treasurer Deschaine, Trustees Wisinski, Sundland, 
_________Supervisor Jackson 
NAYS:  None  

Motion carried: 5-0 

Trustee Wisinski moved to approve the Village of Okemos LLC Meridian Redevelopment 
request #2 and establish a hearing date for April 4th 2022 or a date the director decides to 
receive public comment. Seconded by Clerk Guthrie.  

VOICE VOTE: YEAS:  Clerk Guthrie, Treasurer Deschaine, Trustees Wisinski, Sundland, 
_________Supervisor Jackson 
NAYS:  None  

Motion carried: 5-0 

B. Update on the Grand River Ave/M-43 Construction Project

Assistant Manager Opsommer outlined the Update on the Grand River Ave/M-43
Construction Project for discussion.

Trustee Wisinski asked why these two projects are happening at the same time.

Assistant Manager Opsommer stated he doesn’t believe it was intentional, as both projects
have needed to be done for some time.

Treasurer Deschaine asked if the bridge project has accelerated.

Assistant Manager Opsommer stated he would need to reach out and get the most current
information.

14. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC

Supervisor Jackson opened Public Remarks at 9:25 pm.

NONE

Supervisor Jackson closed Public Remarks at 9:25 pm.

15. OTHER MATTERS AND BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS

Clerk Guthrie
• Thanked Director Clark and Communications team for posting about female business

leaders in the community

16. ADJOURNMENT

Treasurer Deschaine moved to adjourn. Seconded by Trustee Wisinski. 



Page 13 

VOICE/HAND VOTE:   Motion carried 5-0 

Supervisor Jackson adjourned the meeting at 9:26 pm. 

 ___________      _____________ 
PATRICIA H. JACKSON, 

TOWNSHIP SUPERVISOR 

____________    ________________ 
DEBORAH GUTHRIE 
TOWNSHIP CLERK 

































 

 

__. _ 

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

 

To:  Board Members 
 
From:  Dan Opsommer, Assistant Township Manager 

Director of Public Works and Engineering 
 

Date:  April 12, 2022 
 
Re: 2022 MDOT Performance Resolution 
 

This Performance Resolution is required by the Michigan Department of Transportation for 
purposes of issuing to a municipality an ''Individual Permit for Use of State Highway Right of 
Way'', and/or an ''Annual Application and Permit for Miscellaneous Operations within State 
Highway Right of Way''. 
 
The purpose of the resolution is to designate which position(s) are authorized to apply to MDOT 
for the necessary permit(s) to work within State Highway Right of Way on behalf of the Township. 
 
I am recommending that the following positions are authorized to apply to MDOT for the 
necessary permit(s) to work within State Highway Right of Way on behalf of the Township: 
 

• Director of Public Works and Engineering 
• Chief Engineer 
• Superintendent of Public Works 
• Senior Project Engineer 
• Project Engineer 

 
The following motion has been prepared for Board consideration: 
 

MOVE TO ADOPT THE 2022 MDOT PERFORMANCE RESOLUTION AND AUTHORIZE 
THE FOLLOWING POSITIONS TO APPLY TO MDOT FOR THE NECESSARY PERMITS TO 
WORK WITHIN THE STATE HIGHWAY RIGHT OF WAY ON BEHALF OF THE CHARTER 
TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN: DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS AND ENGINEERING, CHIEF 
ENGINEER, SUPERINTENDENT OF PUBLIC WORKS, SENIOR PROJECT ENGINEER, AND 
PROJECT ENGINEER. 

 
Attachments: 
 

1. 2022 MDOT Performance Resolution 



Michigan Department 
of Transportation

2207B (05/21) PERFORMANCE RESOLUTION FOR 
MUNICIPALITIES 

Page 1 of 2 

This Performance Resolution (Resolut ion) is required by the Michigan Department of Transportation for 

purposes of issuing to a Municipality an ''Individual Permit for Use of State Highway Right of Way'', and/or 

an ''Annual Application and Permit for Miscellaneous Operations within State Highway Right of Way''.

RESOLVED WHEREAS, the  
(County, City, Village, Township, etc.) 

hereinafter referred to as the ''MUNICIPALITY,'' periodically applies to the Michigan Department of 
Transportation, hereinafter referred to as the "DEPARTMENT," for permits, referred to as ''PERMIT,'' to 
construct, operate, use and/or maintain utilities or other facilities, or to conduct other activities, on, over, and 
under State Highway Right of Way at various locations within and adjacent to its corporate limits; 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the DEPARTMENT granting such PERMIT, the MUNICIPALITY 
agrees that: 

1. Each party to this Resolut ion shall remain responsible for any claims arising out of their own acts and/or
omissions during the performance of this Resolut ion , as provided by law. This Resolut ion is not
intended to increase either party's liability for, or immunity from, tort claims, nor shall it be interpreted,
as giving either party hereto a right of indemnification, either by Agreement or at law, for claims arising
out of the performance of this Agreement.

2. If any of the work performed for the MUNICIPALITY is performed by a contractor, the MUNICIPALITY shall
require its contractor to hold harmless, indemnify and defend in litigation, the State of Michigan, the
DEPARTMENT and their agents and employee’s, against any claims for damages to public or private
property and for injuries to person arising out of the performance of the work, except for claims that result
from the sole negligence or willful acts of the DEPARTMENT, until the contractor achieves final acceptance
of the MUNICIPALITY Failure of the MUNICIPALITY to require its contractor to indemnify the
DEPARTMENT, as set forth above, shall be considered a breach of its duties to the DEPARTMENT.

3. Any work performed for the MUNICIPALITY by a contractor or subcontractor will be solely as a contractor
for the MUNICIPALITY and not as a contractor or agent of the DEPARTMENT. The DEPARTMENT shall
not be subject to any obligations or liabilities by vendors and contractors of the MUNICIPALITY, or their
subcontractors or any other person not a party to the PERMIT without the DEPARTMENT’S specific prior
written consent and notwithstanding the issuance of the PERMIT. Any claims by any contractor or
subcontractor will be the sole responsibility of the MUNICIPALITY.

4. The MUNICIPALITY shall take no unlawful action or conduct, which arises either directly or indirectly out
of its obligations, responsibilities, and duties under the PERMIT which results in claims being asserted
against or judgment being imposed against the State of Michigan, the Michigan Transportation Commission,
the DEPARTMENT, and all officers, agents and employees thereof and those contracting governmental
bodies performing permit activities for the DEPARTMENT and all officers, agents, and employees
thereof, pursuant to a maintenance contract. In the event that the same occurs, for the purposes of the
PERMIT, it will be considered as a breach of the PERMIT thereby giving the State of Michigan, the
DEPARTMENT, and/or the Michigan Transportation Commission a right to seek and obtain any necessary
relief or remedy, including, but not by way of limitation, a judgment for money damages.

5. The MUNICIPALITY will, by its own volition and/or request by the DEPARTMENT, promptly restore and/or
correct physical or operating damages to any State Highway R ight of Way resulting from the
installation construction, operation and/or maintenance of the MUNICIPALITY’S facilities according to a
PERMIT issued by the DEPARTMENT.



6. With respect to any activities authorized by a PERMIT, when the MUNICIPALITY requires insurance on
its own or its contractor's behalf it shall also require that such policy include as named insured the State
of Michigan, the Transportation Commission, the DEPARTMENT, and all officers, agents, and employees
thereof and those governmental bodies performing permit activities for the DEPARTMENT and all
officers, agents, and employees thereof, pursuant to a maintenance contract.

7. The incorporation by the DEPARTMENT of this Resolution as part of a PERMIT does not prevent the
DEPARTMENT from requiring additional performance security or insurance before issuance of a
PERMIT.

8. This Resolution shall continue in force from this date until cancelled by the MUNICIPALITY or the
DEPARTMENT with no less than thirty (30) days prior written notice provided to the other party. It
will not be cancelled or otherwise terminated by the MUNICIPALITY with regard to any PERMIT which has
already been issued or activity which has already been undertaken.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the following position(s) are authorized to apply to the DEPARTMENT for 
the necessary permit to work within State Highway Right of Way on behalf of the MUNICIPALITY. 

Title and/or Name: 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true copy of a resolution adopted by 

the   
(Name of Board, etc.)

of the  of 
(Name of MUNICIPALITY) (County) 

 meeting held on the _______day at a 

of ______________________ A.D. ________________. 

Print Signed Name

MDOT 2207B (05/21) Page 2 of 2 

 Title

Signed 



 
 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

9. E  

To:  Board Members 

From:  Michael Hamel, Fire Chief 

Date:  April 6, 2022 

Re:  Ratification of New Paramedic/Firefighter 

 
Timothy Brighton, from Jerome, graduated from the Paramedic Program at Dorsey Emergency 
Medical Academy and began his career in 2015 working for the Carlsbad Fire Department in New 
Mexico. In 2018 and 2019 he worked for LifeCare Ambulance in Battle Creek and was most recently 
employed by Reading Emergency Unit in Hillsdale from 2019-2022. He is licensed at the Paramedic 
level for the State of Michigan and holds Fire Fighter I & II certification. 

 
Move to authorize the Fire Department to appoint Timothy Brighton to Full-Time 
Paramedic/Firefighter. 



Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

To: Board Members 

From: LuAnn Maisner CPRP, Director of Parks and Recreation 

Date: April 12, 2022 

Re: Fireworks Display Permit – Celebrate Meridian 

The Meridian Township Parks and Recreation Department is organizing the annual Celebrate 
Meridian event on Saturday, June 25, 2022.  The finale of the event will be fireworks at Central 
Park South.  The fireworks display is planned to begin at approximately 10:20 p.m. (weather 
permitting). 

According to state law, Township Board approval is required to grant permits for fireworks 
display and storage.  Night Magic Displays has performed the Township fireworks display for the 
past 23 years and has a great working relationship with our Fire Department.  

The following motion is prepared for Board consideration: 

MOVE TO APPROVE THE FIREWORKS PERMIT FOR CELEBRATE MERIDIAN FESTIVAL ON 
SATURDAY, JUNE 25, 2022, BY PYROTECHNIC OPERATOR NIGHT MAGIC DISPLAYS. 

Attachment: 

1. Application for Fireworks

9. F







To: Township Board 

From: LuAnn Maisner, CPRP 

 Director, Parks & Recreation  

Date: April 12, 2022 

Re: Celebrate Meridian Liquor License Resolution 

          Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community 

Meridian Township Parks & Recreation is requesting Township Board approval to apply 
for a one-day liquor license to sell beer and wine at the Celebrate Meridian event 
scheduled for Saturday, June 25, 2022.  The license type is a Special License Application which is 
issued by the Michigan Liquor Control Commission (MLCC), under authority from the Michigan 
Department of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs (LARA).  A certified copy of a resolution of the 
Township Board authorizing the license request must be included in the application to the State.   

For municipalities, the license fee for the “Special License” is $50.  The license is good for one day, 
with sales restricted to 7:00 a.m. until 2:00 a.m., the following day. The Celebrate Meridian event 
liquor sales will run from approximately 12:00 p.m. until 11:30 p.m.  Parks & Recreation is 
prepared to provide a secure site with appropriate barriers as required per law, and monitor 
and restrict beer/wine sales from visibly intoxicated persons and minors. 

• MOTION TO APPROVE THE PARKS & RECREATION REQUEST TO APPLY FOR ONE-DAY
LIQUOR LICENSE FROM THE MICHIGAN LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION (MLCC) FOR
THE CELEBRATE MERIDIAN  EVENT ON JUNE 25, 2022.

Attachment 
1. Resolution to approve special license application
2. Special license application

9.G.



MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP 
RESOLUTION TO APPROVE 
LIQUOR LICENSE REQUEST 

2022 CELEBRATE MERIDIAN 
 

 
 

RESOLUTION 
 

At the regular meeting of the Township Board of the Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham 
County, Michigan, held at the Meridian Municipal Building, in said Township on the 12th day of 
April, 2022 at 6:00 p.m. local time. 
 
PRESENT: ________________________________________________________________ 
 

________________________________________________________________ 
  
ABSENT: ________________________________________________________________ 
 
 The following resolution was offered by ______________ and supported by ________________. 
 

WHEREAS, Meridian Township Parks & Recreation Department has requested Township 
Board approval to apply for a one-day liquor license to sell beer and wine from the Michigan Liquor 
Control Commission (MLCC) at the Celebrate Meridian event scheduled for Saturday; June 25, 2022; 
and  
 

WHEREAS, the Parks & Recreation Department will operate beer and wine sales at 
Marketplace on the Green, 1995 Central Park Drive, in conformance with all applicable laws as 
established in the provisions of the one-day liquor license; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Celebrate Meridian event is Meridian Township’s premier summer event 
celebration and will feature fun activities for all age groups, including the Farmers’ Market, children’s 
activities and rides, live music, and a beer and wine tent; and 
 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THE TOWNSHIP BOARD OF THE CHARTER 
TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN hereby approves of applying for a one-day liquor license from the MLCC 
for sale of beer and wine at the Celebrate Meridian event on Saturday, June 25, 2022. 
 
ADOPTED: YEAS: _________________________________________________________  
 

_________________________________________________________ 
 
  NAYS: _________________________________________________________ 
 
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
   ) ss 
COUNTY OF INGHAM ) 
  
 
 
 
 
 



Township Board 
April 12, 2022 
RE: Resolution to Approve 
Liquor License Request Celebrate Meridian 
Page 2 
 

 
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 
 
I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the Charter Township of Meridian, 

Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and a complete copy of 
a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Township Board on the 12th day of April, 2022. 
 
 

       ____________________________________________ 
       Deborah Guthrie 
       Township Clerk 



 

 

11. A. & 13. A.  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

 

To:  Board Members 
 
From:  Dan Opsommer, Assistant Township Manager  

Director of Public Works and Engineering 
 

Date:  April 12, 2022 
 

Re: Daniels Drain Public Drain Improvement SAD #21 Public Hearing  
and Board Discussion 

 

The Daniels Drain is a Chapter 20 drain that is located on Grand River Avenue between Central 
Park Drive, Dobie Road and Cornell Road. The storm water system, including the detention pond, 
primarily serves all or some of the following neighborhoods: Chief Okemos, Navajo Ridge, Forest 
Hills, East and West Ponds, Cornell Woods North, Whispering Oaks and Cornell Woods.  
 
In 2015, the Board of Directors of the Ponds Cooperative Homes, Inc. formally requested that 
Meridian Township submit a petition under Chapter 20 of the Michigan Drain Code of 1956 to 
make needed improvements to the drain and retention pond, improve overall water quality, and 
repair/replace broken pipes and appurtenances in the system. A presentation by the Ingham 
County Drain Commission (ICDC) that provided additional supporting justification material was 
also held on March 2, 2016. Following several meetings and associated public hearings, the 
petition was filed with the Ingham County Drain Commissioner in the spring of 2016 to proceed 
with design and engineering for improvements to the Daniels Drain.  
 
The Ingham County Drain Commissioner developed the plans to implement the necessary 
improvements to the Daniels Drain and has started constructing the improvements. As a Chapter 
20 Drain, it is maintained by the Ingham County Drain Commissioner, but is fully funded by direct 
assessments on three public entities including Meridian Township, the Ingham County Road 
Department (ICRD) and the Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT).  
 
Bids were opened and approved resulting in our share of the Daniels Drain improvement costs at 
$5,536,644 (81.44%). The remaining costs of the $6,695,183.84 project will be assessed to the 
ICRD and MDOT. The initial revenue for the project will be provided by a 20-year bond sold 
publically by the ICDC.  
 
The Township Board has indicated they will fund 50% of the Township's share of the Daniels 
Drain improvement cost of $5,536,644 from the Meridian Township General Fund, and the 
assessment of the remaining cost of ($2,768,322) will be apportioned to the special assessment 
district using the principles of "benefits derived", which will involve many factors including size of 
the parcel, land use type, amount of runoff, unique property characteristics, proximity to the 
retention pond, etc. 
 
The Township Board held an informational meeting on Thursday, August 26, 2021 at 6:00 pm at 
the Meridian Municipal Building to discuss the Daniels Drain project, with notices mailed to 
owners in the proposed assessment district. You can review the presentation that the Ingham 

https://www.meridian.mi.us/home/showpublisheddocument/23870/637660076788030000


 

 

 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

 

Memo to Township Board 
April 12, 2022 
Re: Daniels Drain Public Drain Improvement SAD #21 Public Hearing and Board Discussion 
Page 2 

County Drain Commission Office and GEI Consultants gave at the informational public meeting 
held on August 26, 2021 at 6 p.m. by clicking here. 
 
Resolutions #1 was approved by the Township Board on September 21, 2021 to fund 50% of the 
Township's share of the Daniels Drain improvement cost from the Meridian Township general 
fund and ordered the Department of Public Works to use the plans developed by the Ingham 
County Drain Commission and prepare a special assessment district for the remaining cost.  
 
Resolution #2 was approved by the Township Board on October 19, 2021, tentatively approving 
the establishment of a special assessment district for the purposes of paying the cost thereof, and 
to set the first public hearing for November 16, 2021 to hear any objections to the special 
assessment district or roll. After said public hearing, Township staff met with owners in regards to 
objections of the special assessment district. 
 
Resolutions #3 and #4 were approved by the Township Board on March 15, 2022, which proposed 
an updated special assessment roll based on input from property owners in the Daniels Drain 
Public Improvement Special Assessment District No. 21 and set the second public hearing for the 
Township Board meeting on April 12, 2022. Notices were mailed to all property owners in the 
Daniels Drain Public Improvement Special Assessment District No. 21 on March 25, ahead of the 
10-day statutory requirement. 
 
To develop the assessment roll, the Township contracted with Spicer Group, Inc. based on their 
extensive experience developing similar assessments for storm water projects throughout the 
State of Michigan. On Tuesday night, members of the Spicer Group will attend to discuss the 
recommended special assessment roll and how it was prepared in collaboration with the 
Township Department of Public Works. 
 
The Ingham County Drain Commission Office and their engineering firm for the Daniels Drain 
project, GEI Consultants, will also be in attendance to answer any questions you have Tuesday 
evening as it relates to all of the project elements outside of the assessment roll. 
 
Attachments: 
 

1. Daniels Drain Public Improvement Special Assessment District No. 21 Map 
2. Daniels Drain Annual Assessment and Proximity Code Map Based on Resolution 3 
3. Daniels Drain Annual Assessment and Proximity Code Map Based on Resolution 2 
4. Proposed Assessments for Daniels Drain Public Improvement Special Assessment District 

No. 21 Based on Resolution 3 

https://www.meridian.mi.us/home/showpublisheddocument/23870/637660076788030000
https://www.meridian.mi.us/home/showpublisheddocument/23870/637660076788030000


27 26

22 23

NEWMAN  RD.

W
AS

H
IN

G
TO

N
  H

G
TS

.

D
O

BI
E 

 R
D

.

N
O

R
TH

VI
EW

  D
R

.

SEN
EC

A  D
R

.

M
AN

IT
O

U
  D

R
.

CHIEF OKEMOS

HEIRLOOM VIEW

  O
A

K
 

 P
O

I N
T

E
 

 C
T

.
 

 

ETHEL  ST.

IVYWOOD  DR.

FOREST  HILLS  DR.

MIS
TY

W
OOD

D
R

.

SPICEWOOD

AL
D

ER
W

O
O

D
  D

R
.

SA
TI

N
W

O
O

D
  D

R
.

H
IC

KO
R

YW
O

O
D

  D
R

.

AR
BO

R
  D

R
.

EL
M

W
O

O
D

  D
R

.

G
R

EE
N

W
O

O
D

  D
R

.

O
AK

W
O

O
D

  D
R

.

C
H

ER
R

Y 
 H

IL
L 

 D
R

.

SWEETWOOD  DR.

FOX  CHASE

WHITE OAKS DR.SHORTWOOD
CIR.

MERCER  DR.

G
O

LD
EN

W
O

O
D

  D
R

.

C
O

R
N

EL
L 

 R
D

.

SILVERWOOD 

D
R

.

SILKWOOD  DR.

HILLSIDE  DR.

EASTWOOD  DR.

PONTCHARTRAIN DR.

M
AR

BO
R

O
U

G
H

  R
D

.

O
AK

W
O

O
D

  D
R

.

O
AK

LA
W

N

SE
N

EC
A 

 D
R

.

SHAKER  BLVD.

MIRABEAU  DR. C
AL

G
AR

Y 
 B

LV
D

.

ST
O

N
EY

C
R

O
FT PEBBLESTONE

PENOBSCOT  DR.

 
 

 
 M

A
N

I TOU     

ONEIDA  DR.

GRAND  RIVER  AVE.  (M-43)

   
   

   
  C

T.

SA
G

O
  W

AY

Bay-
Meadows
Ct.

Donerail Pl.

Sa
nd

ow
n 

Ct
.

Tanforan Pl.

Waterford Ct.Thistledown Pl.

Cranwood Ct.

Pimlico Pl.

Treetop Dr.

E. Pond Dr.

Pa
dd

oc
k 

D
r.

Minoka Tr.

Indian Way

Bl
ac

kf
oo

t W
ay

Bl
ac

ks
to

ne
 T

r.

D
AN

BU
R

Y 
 W

AY

  D a n b
u

r
y

 E
.

 

BIRCHWOOD  DR.

SPICE WOOD
 

DR
. 

D
R

.

S.

KE
W

EE
N

AW

DR.

MARSH  R
D.

DR.
K

E
N

O
S HA

TRL.

FOREST HILLS DR.

W
R

IG
HT

W

IND
DR.D

O
BI

E 
 R

D
.

C
O

R
N

EL
L 

 R
D

.

M
EA

DO
W

S
Seven
Trails
Ct.

AVE.

W. Pond Dr.

PO
W

EL
L 

 R
D

.

C
EN

TR
AL

  P
AR

K 
 D

R
.

D
O

BI
E 

 R
D

.

C
ou

nt
ry

w
ay

 D
r.

GRAND  RIVER  AVE.  (M-43)

SILVERSTONE WAY

DANIELS DRAIN PUBLIC DRAIN IMPROVEMENT SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO.  21

NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
4385

AutoCAD SHX Text
4381

AutoCAD SHX Text
4375

AutoCAD SHX Text
4371

AutoCAD SHX Text
4380

AutoCAD SHX Text
4374

AutoCAD SHX Text
4370

AutoCAD SHX Text
1300

AutoCAD SHX Text
1284

AutoCAD SHX Text
1272

AutoCAD SHX Text
1264

AutoCAD SHX Text
1250

AutoCAD SHX Text
1251

AutoCAD SHX Text
1255

AutoCAD SHX Text
1259

AutoCAD SHX Text
1265

AutoCAD SHX Text
1273

AutoCAD SHX Text
1285

AutoCAD SHX Text
1301

AutoCAD SHX Text
1258

AutoCAD SHX Text
1403

AutoCAD SHX Text
1320

AutoCAD SHX Text
1324

AutoCAD SHX Text
1328

AutoCAD SHX Text
1332

AutoCAD SHX Text
1336

AutoCAD SHX Text
1340

AutoCAD SHX Text
1378

AutoCAD SHX Text
1384

AutoCAD SHX Text
1399

AutoCAD SHX Text
1393

AutoCAD SHX Text
1402

AutoCAD SHX Text
4470

AutoCAD SHX Text
4469

AutoCAD SHX Text
4465

AutoCAD SHX Text
4459

AutoCAD SHX Text
1408

AutoCAD SHX Text
1414

AutoCAD SHX Text
4435

AutoCAD SHX Text
4441

AutoCAD SHX Text
4447

AutoCAD SHX Text
4453

AutoCAD SHX Text
4434

AutoCAD SHX Text
4440

AutoCAD SHX Text
4429

AutoCAD SHX Text
4423

AutoCAD SHX Text
4417

AutoCAD SHX Text
4411

AutoCAD SHX Text
4405

AutoCAD SHX Text
4399

AutoCAD SHX Text
4393

AutoCAD SHX Text
4387

AutoCAD SHX Text
4381

AutoCAD SHX Text
1415

AutoCAD SHX Text
1400

AutoCAD SHX Text
4382

AutoCAD SHX Text
4428

AutoCAD SHX Text
4422

AutoCAD SHX Text
4404

AutoCAD SHX Text
4394

AutoCAD SHX Text
4388

AutoCAD SHX Text
1413

AutoCAD SHX Text
4452

AutoCAD SHX Text
4446

AutoCAD SHX Text
4445

AutoCAD SHX Text
4439

AutoCAD SHX Text
4464

AutoCAD SHX Text
4458

AutoCAD SHX Text
4463

AutoCAD SHX Text
4457

AutoCAD SHX Text
4451

AutoCAD SHX Text
4433

AutoCAD SHX Text
4427

AutoCAD SHX Text
4421

AutoCAD SHX Text
4399

AutoCAD SHX Text
4393

AutoCAD SHX Text
4387

AutoCAD SHX Text
4379

AutoCAD SHX Text
4436

AutoCAD SHX Text
4430

AutoCAD SHX Text
4460

AutoCAD SHX Text
4454

AutoCAD SHX Text
4448

AutoCAD SHX Text
4442

AutoCAD SHX Text
1316

AutoCAD SHX Text
1321

AutoCAD SHX Text
1325

AutoCAD SHX Text
1329

AutoCAD SHX Text
1337

AutoCAD SHX Text
1341

AutoCAD SHX Text
4461

AutoCAD SHX Text
4455

AutoCAD SHX Text
4454

AutoCAD SHX Text
4460

AutoCAD SHX Text
4443

AutoCAD SHX Text
4449

AutoCAD SHX Text
4435

AutoCAD SHX Text
4427

AutoCAD SHX Text
4428

AutoCAD SHX Text
4416

AutoCAD SHX Text
4404

AutoCAD SHX Text
4396

AutoCAD SHX Text
4388

AutoCAD SHX Text
4398

AutoCAD SHX Text
4392

AutoCAD SHX Text
4386

AutoCAD SHX Text
4378

AutoCAD SHX Text
1399

AutoCAD SHX Text
1391

AutoCAD SHX Text
1383

AutoCAD SHX Text
1375

AutoCAD SHX Text
4335

AutoCAD SHX Text
1339

AutoCAD SHX Text
1331

AutoCAD SHX Text
1323

AutoCAD SHX Text
1392

AutoCAD SHX Text
4367

AutoCAD SHX Text
1407

AutoCAD SHX Text
1350

AutoCAD SHX Text
4366

AutoCAD SHX Text
4321

AutoCAD SHX Text
4299

AutoCAD SHX Text
4320

AutoCAD SHX Text
4298

AutoCAD SHX Text
1299

AutoCAD SHX Text
1287

AutoCAD SHX Text
1285

AutoCAD SHX Text
1283

AutoCAD SHX Text
1288

AutoCAD SHX Text
1286

AutoCAD SHX Text
1284

AutoCAD SHX Text
1300

AutoCAD SHX Text
1298

AutoCAD SHX Text
1296

AutoCAD SHX Text
1294

AutoCAD SHX Text
1292

AutoCAD SHX Text
1290

AutoCAD SHX Text
1311

AutoCAD SHX Text
1312

AutoCAD SHX Text
1397

AutoCAD SHX Text
1391

AutoCAD SHX Text
1385

AutoCAD SHX Text
1373

AutoCAD SHX Text
1379

AutoCAD SHX Text
1374

AutoCAD SHX Text
4424

AutoCAD SHX Text
1392

AutoCAD SHX Text
1381

AutoCAD SHX Text
1903

AutoCAD SHX Text
1900

AutoCAD SHX Text
4465

AutoCAD SHX Text
4453

AutoCAD SHX Text
1904

AutoCAD SHX Text
1902

AutoCAD SHX Text
4421

AutoCAD SHX Text
4500

AutoCAD SHX Text
4476

AutoCAD SHX Text
4466

AutoCAD SHX Text
4456

AutoCAD SHX Text
1886

AutoCAD SHX Text
4490

AutoCAD SHX Text
4428

AutoCAD SHX Text
4418

AutoCAD SHX Text
4408

AutoCAD SHX Text
4396

AutoCAD SHX Text
4386

AutoCAD SHX Text
4376

AutoCAD SHX Text
1903

AutoCAD SHX Text
4496

AutoCAD SHX Text
1684

AutoCAD SHX Text
1673

AutoCAD SHX Text
4460

AutoCAD SHX Text
4456

AutoCAD SHX Text
4444

AutoCAD SHX Text
1684

AutoCAD SHX Text
1685

AutoCAD SHX Text
4408

AutoCAD SHX Text
4400

AutoCAD SHX Text
4390

AutoCAD SHX Text
4378

AutoCAD SHX Text
4370

AutoCAD SHX Text
4360

AutoCAD SHX Text
4352

AutoCAD SHX Text
1676

AutoCAD SHX Text
1677

AutoCAD SHX Text
4316

AutoCAD SHX Text
1671

AutoCAD SHX Text
4461

AutoCAD SHX Text
4453

AutoCAD SHX Text
4443

AutoCAD SHX Text
1670

AutoCAD SHX Text
1651

AutoCAD SHX Text
1652

AutoCAD SHX Text
4434

AutoCAD SHX Text
1672

AutoCAD SHX Text
1664

AutoCAD SHX Text
1656

AutoCAD SHX Text
1648

AutoCAD SHX Text
1640

AutoCAD SHX Text
1630

AutoCAD SHX Text
1622

AutoCAD SHX Text
1614

AutoCAD SHX Text
1606

AutoCAD SHX Text
1590

AutoCAD SHX Text
1580

AutoCAD SHX Text
1572

AutoCAD SHX Text
1562

AutoCAD SHX Text
1552

AutoCAD SHX Text
1542

AutoCAD SHX Text
4489

AutoCAD SHX Text
1647

AutoCAD SHX Text
1652

AutoCAD SHX Text
1637

AutoCAD SHX Text
1629

AutoCAD SHX Text
1615

AutoCAD SHX Text
1597

AutoCAD SHX Text
1642

AutoCAD SHX Text
1634

AutoCAD SHX Text
1624

AutoCAD SHX Text
1616

AutoCAD SHX Text
1604

AutoCAD SHX Text
1596

AutoCAD SHX Text
1586

AutoCAD SHX Text
1639

AutoCAD SHX Text
1631

AutoCAD SHX Text
1621

AutoCAD SHX Text
1613

AutoCAD SHX Text
1603

AutoCAD SHX Text
1591

AutoCAD SHX Text
1581

AutoCAD SHX Text
1571

AutoCAD SHX Text
1563

AutoCAD SHX Text
1551

AutoCAD SHX Text
4465

AutoCAD SHX Text
4453

AutoCAD SHX Text
4449

AutoCAD SHX Text
1566

AutoCAD SHX Text
1576

AutoCAD SHX Text
4436

AutoCAD SHX Text
1569

AutoCAD SHX Text
4435

AutoCAD SHX Text
4444

AutoCAD SHX Text
4456

AutoCAD SHX Text
4462

AutoCAD SHX Text
4468

AutoCAD SHX Text
1673

AutoCAD SHX Text
1661

AutoCAD SHX Text
4341

AutoCAD SHX Text
4347

AutoCAD SHX Text
4357

AutoCAD SHX Text
4365

AutoCAD SHX Text
4373

AutoCAD SHX Text
4344

AutoCAD SHX Text
4352

AutoCAD SHX Text
4360

AutoCAD SHX Text
4370

AutoCAD SHX Text
1646

AutoCAD SHX Text
4360

AutoCAD SHX Text
4368

AutoCAD SHX Text
4378

AutoCAD SHX Text
4388

AutoCAD SHX Text
4396

AutoCAD SHX Text
4404

AutoCAD SHX Text
4414

AutoCAD SHX Text
4424

AutoCAD SHX Text
4371

AutoCAD SHX Text
4431

AutoCAD SHX Text
4421

AutoCAD SHX Text
4411

AutoCAD SHX Text
4403

AutoCAD SHX Text
4395

AutoCAD SHX Text
1667

AutoCAD SHX Text
1661

AutoCAD SHX Text
1651

AutoCAD SHX Text
1641

AutoCAD SHX Text
1633

AutoCAD SHX Text
1625

AutoCAD SHX Text
1615

AutoCAD SHX Text
1607

AutoCAD SHX Text
1603

AutoCAD SHX Text
1636

AutoCAD SHX Text
1626

AutoCAD SHX Text
1622

AutoCAD SHX Text
1606

AutoCAD SHX Text
1596

AutoCAD SHX Text
4375

AutoCAD SHX Text
4395

AutoCAD SHX Text
4392

AutoCAD SHX Text
4383

AutoCAD SHX Text
4397

AutoCAD SHX Text
1655

AutoCAD SHX Text
1649

AutoCAD SHX Text
1635

AutoCAD SHX Text
1622

AutoCAD SHX Text
1628

AutoCAD SHX Text
1634

AutoCAD SHX Text
1640

AutoCAD SHX Text
1652

AutoCAD SHX Text
1616

AutoCAD SHX Text
1591

AutoCAD SHX Text
4328

AutoCAD SHX Text
4314

AutoCAD SHX Text
4298

AutoCAD SHX Text
4294

AutoCAD SHX Text
4288

AutoCAD SHX Text
4291

AutoCAD SHX Text
4291

AutoCAD SHX Text
4297

AutoCAD SHX Text
4313

AutoCAD SHX Text
4237

AutoCAD SHX Text
4337

AutoCAD SHX Text
1586

AutoCAD SHX Text
4361

AutoCAD SHX Text
1581

AutoCAD SHX Text
1571

AutoCAD SHX Text
4328

AutoCAD SHX Text
4318

AutoCAD SHX Text
4308

AutoCAD SHX Text
4298

AutoCAD SHX Text
4301

AutoCAD SHX Text
4311

AutoCAD SHX Text
4321

AutoCAD SHX Text
4331

AutoCAD SHX Text
1626

AutoCAD SHX Text
1616

AutoCAD SHX Text
1606

AutoCAD SHX Text
1596

AutoCAD SHX Text
1570

AutoCAD SHX Text
1560

AutoCAD SHX Text
1631

AutoCAD SHX Text
4298

AutoCAD SHX Text
4304

AutoCAD SHX Text
4305

AutoCAD SHX Text
4299

AutoCAD SHX Text
4496

AutoCAD SHX Text
1504

AutoCAD SHX Text
4421

AutoCAD SHX Text
4411

AutoCAD SHX Text
4401

AutoCAD SHX Text
4391

AutoCAD SHX Text
4385

AutoCAD SHX Text
4371

AutoCAD SHX Text
4363

AutoCAD SHX Text
4422

AutoCAD SHX Text
4421

AutoCAD SHX Text
4422

AutoCAD SHX Text
4437

AutoCAD SHX Text
4445

AutoCAD SHX Text
4451

AutoCAD SHX Text
4431

AutoCAD SHX Text
4412

AutoCAD SHX Text
4392

AutoCAD SHX Text
4382

AutoCAD SHX Text
4372

AutoCAD SHX Text
4364

AutoCAD SHX Text
4411

AutoCAD SHX Text
4401

AutoCAD SHX Text
4391

AutoCAD SHX Text
4381

AutoCAD SHX Text
4371

AutoCAD SHX Text
4363

AutoCAD SHX Text
4412

AutoCAD SHX Text
4400

AutoCAD SHX Text
4392

AutoCAD SHX Text
4382

AutoCAD SHX Text
4372

AutoCAD SHX Text
4364

AutoCAD SHX Text
4351

AutoCAD SHX Text
4350

AutoCAD SHX Text
1534

AutoCAD SHX Text
1512

AutoCAD SHX Text
4350

AutoCAD SHX Text
1547

AutoCAD SHX Text
1529

AutoCAD SHX Text
1511

AutoCAD SHX Text
4293

AutoCAD SHX Text
4299

AutoCAD SHX Text
4305

AutoCAD SHX Text
4323

AutoCAD SHX Text
4294

AutoCAD SHX Text
4293

AutoCAD SHX Text
4298

AutoCAD SHX Text
4299

AutoCAD SHX Text
4306

AutoCAD SHX Text
4305

AutoCAD SHX Text
4322

AutoCAD SHX Text
4323

AutoCAD SHX Text
4402

AutoCAD SHX Text
1890

AutoCAD SHX Text
1884

AutoCAD SHX Text
1874

AutoCAD SHX Text
1864

AutoCAD SHX Text
1854

AutoCAD SHX Text
1913

AutoCAD SHX Text
4335

AutoCAD SHX Text
4327

AutoCAD SHX Text
4336

AutoCAD SHX Text
4326

AutoCAD SHX Text
1891

AutoCAD SHX Text
1885

AutoCAD SHX Text
1875

AutoCAD SHX Text
1863

AutoCAD SHX Text
1855

AutoCAD SHX Text
1845

AutoCAD SHX Text
1834

AutoCAD SHX Text
1824

AutoCAD SHX Text
4330

AutoCAD SHX Text
1921

AutoCAD SHX Text
1917

AutoCAD SHX Text
4317

AutoCAD SHX Text
4311

AutoCAD SHX Text
4303

AutoCAD SHX Text
4295

AutoCAD SHX Text
4296

AutoCAD SHX Text
4300

AutoCAD SHX Text
4304

AutoCAD SHX Text
4312

AutoCAD SHX Text
4316

AutoCAD SHX Text
4305

AutoCAD SHX Text
4299

AutoCAD SHX Text
1808

AutoCAD SHX Text
4315

AutoCAD SHX Text
4325

AutoCAD SHX Text
4320

AutoCAD SHX Text
4310

AutoCAD SHX Text
4300

AutoCAD SHX Text
4296

AutoCAD SHX Text
1799

AutoCAD SHX Text
1801

AutoCAD SHX Text
4590

AutoCAD SHX Text
4582

AutoCAD SHX Text
4574

AutoCAD SHX Text
4566

AutoCAD SHX Text
4558

AutoCAD SHX Text
4540

AutoCAD SHX Text
4532

AutoCAD SHX Text
4524

AutoCAD SHX Text
4516

AutoCAD SHX Text
4508

AutoCAD SHX Text
4599

AutoCAD SHX Text
4591

AutoCAD SHX Text
4585

AutoCAD SHX Text
4581

AutoCAD SHX Text
4573

AutoCAD SHX Text
4565

AutoCAD SHX Text
1275

AutoCAD SHX Text
1289

AutoCAD SHX Text
1297

AutoCAD SHX Text
1305

AutoCAD SHX Text
1311

AutoCAD SHX Text
1323

AutoCAD SHX Text
1339

AutoCAD SHX Text
4519

AutoCAD SHX Text
4505

AutoCAD SHX Text
4571

AutoCAD SHX Text
4563

AutoCAD SHX Text
4551

AutoCAD SHX Text
1338

AutoCAD SHX Text
1324

AutoCAD SHX Text
1310

AutoCAD SHX Text
1302

AutoCAD SHX Text
4548

AutoCAD SHX Text
4554

AutoCAD SHX Text
4562

AutoCAD SHX Text
4559

AutoCAD SHX Text
1250

AutoCAD SHX Text
4507

AutoCAD SHX Text
4555

AutoCAD SHX Text
1259

AutoCAD SHX Text
1090

AutoCAD SHX Text
1100

AutoCAD SHX Text
1148

AutoCAD SHX Text
1174

AutoCAD SHX Text
4545

AutoCAD SHX Text
4525

AutoCAD SHX Text
4505

AutoCAD SHX Text
4540

AutoCAD SHX Text
4520

AutoCAD SHX Text
4500

AutoCAD SHX Text
4485

AutoCAD SHX Text
4465

AutoCAD SHX Text
4455

AutoCAD SHX Text
4435

AutoCAD SHX Text
4420

AutoCAD SHX Text
4430

AutoCAD SHX Text
4450

AutoCAD SHX Text
4460

AutoCAD SHX Text
4480

AutoCAD SHX Text
1365

AutoCAD SHX Text
1366

AutoCAD SHX Text
4334

AutoCAD SHX Text
1362

AutoCAD SHX Text
4367

AutoCAD SHX Text
4384

AutoCAD SHX Text
1311

AutoCAD SHX Text
1415

AutoCAD SHX Text
1412

AutoCAD SHX Text
1902

AutoCAD SHX Text
1905

AutoCAD SHX Text
4607

AutoCAD SHX Text
4597

AutoCAD SHX Text
4587

AutoCAD SHX Text
4575

AutoCAD SHX Text
4565

AutoCAD SHX Text
4555

AutoCAD SHX Text
4545

AutoCAD SHX Text
4527

AutoCAD SHX Text
1904

AutoCAD SHX Text
4648

AutoCAD SHX Text
4638

AutoCAD SHX Text
4628

AutoCAD SHX Text
4618

AutoCAD SHX Text
4608

AutoCAD SHX Text
4598

AutoCAD SHX Text
4588

AutoCAD SHX Text
4578

AutoCAD SHX Text
4568

AutoCAD SHX Text
4558

AutoCAD SHX Text
4548

AutoCAD SHX Text
4538

AutoCAD SHX Text
4528

AutoCAD SHX Text
4518

AutoCAD SHX Text
1873

AutoCAD SHX Text
1847

AutoCAD SHX Text
1819

AutoCAD SHX Text
1817

AutoCAD SHX Text
1878

AutoCAD SHX Text
1908

AutoCAD SHX Text
4829

AutoCAD SHX Text
4790

AutoCAD SHX Text
4792

AutoCAD SHX Text
4794

AutoCAD SHX Text
1938

AutoCAD SHX Text
1878

AutoCAD SHX Text
1842

AutoCAD SHX Text
1802

AutoCAD SHX Text
1800

AutoCAD SHX Text
1728

AutoCAD SHX Text
4800

AutoCAD SHX Text
4835

AutoCAD SHX Text
1696

AutoCAD SHX Text
1664

AutoCAD SHX Text
4749

AutoCAD SHX Text
4876

AutoCAD SHX Text
4738

AutoCAD SHX Text
1622

AutoCAD SHX Text
1614

AutoCAD SHX Text
1600

AutoCAD SHX Text
1560

AutoCAD SHX Text
1510

AutoCAD SHX Text
4739

AutoCAD SHX Text
1855

AutoCAD SHX Text
1857

AutoCAD SHX Text
1859

AutoCAD SHX Text
1861

AutoCAD SHX Text
1863

AutoCAD SHX Text
1867

AutoCAD SHX Text
1871

AutoCAD SHX Text
1875

AutoCAD SHX Text
1839

AutoCAD SHX Text
1802

AutoCAD SHX Text
1792

AutoCAD SHX Text
1784

AutoCAD SHX Text
1750

AutoCAD SHX Text
1738

AutoCAD SHX Text
1732

AutoCAD SHX Text
1716

AutoCAD SHX Text
1755

AutoCAD SHX Text
1659

AutoCAD SHX Text
1811

AutoCAD SHX Text
1807

AutoCAD SHX Text
1805

AutoCAD SHX Text
1803

AutoCAD SHX Text
4659

AutoCAD SHX Text
4643

AutoCAD SHX Text
4635

AutoCAD SHX Text
4621

AutoCAD SHX Text
4605

AutoCAD SHX Text
4597

AutoCAD SHX Text
4591

AutoCAD SHX Text
4634

AutoCAD SHX Text
4622

AutoCAD SHX Text
4606

AutoCAD SHX Text
4598

AutoCAD SHX Text
4590

AutoCAD SHX Text
4660

AutoCAD SHX Text
4650

AutoCAD SHX Text
4642

AutoCAD SHX Text
1785

AutoCAD SHX Text
4584

AutoCAD SHX Text
4576

AutoCAD SHX Text
4570

AutoCAD SHX Text
4562

AutoCAD SHX Text
4554

AutoCAD SHX Text
4548

AutoCAD SHX Text
4538

AutoCAD SHX Text
4520

AutoCAD SHX Text
4512

AutoCAD SHX Text
4504

AutoCAD SHX Text
4585

AutoCAD SHX Text
4557

AutoCAD SHX Text
4551

AutoCAD SHX Text
4543

AutoCAD SHX Text
4535

AutoCAD SHX Text
4532

AutoCAD SHX Text
4540

AutoCAD SHX Text
4548

AutoCAD SHX Text
4556

AutoCAD SHX Text
4525

AutoCAD SHX Text
4537

AutoCAD SHX Text
4545

AutoCAD SHX Text
4553

AutoCAD SHX Text
4559

AutoCAD SHX Text
4567

AutoCAD SHX Text
4573

AutoCAD SHX Text
4519

AutoCAD SHX Text
4511

AutoCAD SHX Text
4503

AutoCAD SHX Text
4579

AutoCAD SHX Text
1811

AutoCAD SHX Text
1805

AutoCAD SHX Text
1793

AutoCAD SHX Text
1787

AutoCAD SHX Text
4568

AutoCAD SHX Text
1730

AutoCAD SHX Text
1741

AutoCAD SHX Text
1721

AutoCAD SHX Text
1705

AutoCAD SHX Text
1710

AutoCAD SHX Text
1720

AutoCAD SHX Text
4515

AutoCAD SHX Text
1701

AutoCAD SHX Text
1749

AutoCAD SHX Text
1695

AutoCAD SHX Text
4650

AutoCAD SHX Text
1665

AutoCAD SHX Text
1619

AutoCAD SHX Text
1575

AutoCAD SHX Text
4640

AutoCAD SHX Text
4562

AutoCAD SHX Text
4554

AutoCAD SHX Text
4544

AutoCAD SHX Text
4510

AutoCAD SHX Text
4504

AutoCAD SHX Text
1553

AutoCAD SHX Text
4597

AutoCAD SHX Text
1600

AutoCAD SHX Text
4585

AutoCAD SHX Text
4575

AutoCAD SHX Text
4565

AutoCAD SHX Text
4555

AutoCAD SHX Text
4547

AutoCAD SHX Text
4539

AutoCAD SHX Text
4529

AutoCAD SHX Text
4521

AutoCAD SHX Text
1590

AutoCAD SHX Text
1580

AutoCAD SHX Text
1568

AutoCAD SHX Text
1558

AutoCAD SHX Text
1546

AutoCAD SHX Text
1536

AutoCAD SHX Text
1526

AutoCAD SHX Text
1605

AutoCAD SHX Text
1595

AutoCAD SHX Text
1585

AutoCAD SHX Text
1577

AutoCAD SHX Text
1567

AutoCAD SHX Text
1557

AutoCAD SHX Text
1547

AutoCAD SHX Text
1537

AutoCAD SHX Text
4546

AutoCAD SHX Text
4550

AutoCAD SHX Text
4552

AutoCAD SHX Text
4554

AutoCAD SHX Text
4556

AutoCAD SHX Text
4547

AutoCAD SHX Text
4551

AutoCAD SHX Text
4553

AutoCAD SHX Text
4555

AutoCAD SHX Text
4557

AutoCAD SHX Text
4515

AutoCAD SHX Text
4511

AutoCAD SHX Text
4507

AutoCAD SHX Text
4508

AutoCAD SHX Text
4510

AutoCAD SHX Text
4543

AutoCAD SHX Text
4542

AutoCAD SHX Text
4513

AutoCAD SHX Text
4509

AutoCAD SHX Text
4505

AutoCAD SHX Text
4512

AutoCAD SHX Text
4514

AutoCAD SHX Text
4518

AutoCAD SHX Text
4579

AutoCAD SHX Text
4569

AutoCAD SHX Text
4559

AutoCAD SHX Text
4549

AutoCAD SHX Text
4541

AutoCAD SHX Text
4531

AutoCAD SHX Text
4521

AutoCAD SHX Text
4515

AutoCAD SHX Text
4505

AutoCAD SHX Text
4600

AutoCAD SHX Text
4590

AutoCAD SHX Text
4580

AutoCAD SHX Text
4570

AutoCAD SHX Text
4560

AutoCAD SHX Text
4550

AutoCAD SHX Text
4542

AutoCAD SHX Text
4532

AutoCAD SHX Text
4522

AutoCAD SHX Text
4516

AutoCAD SHX Text
4506

AutoCAD SHX Text
4590

AutoCAD SHX Text
4572

AutoCAD SHX Text
4558

AutoCAD SHX Text
4540

AutoCAD SHX Text
4526

AutoCAD SHX Text
4519

AutoCAD SHX Text
4506

AutoCAD SHX Text
4517

AutoCAD SHX Text
4526

AutoCAD SHX Text
4530

AutoCAD SHX Text
4534

AutoCAD SHX Text
4538

AutoCAD SHX Text
4522

AutoCAD SHX Text
1448

AutoCAD SHX Text
4684

AutoCAD SHX Text
1478

AutoCAD SHX Text
1492

AutoCAD SHX Text
4714

AutoCAD SHX Text
1284

AutoCAD SHX Text
4706

AutoCAD SHX Text
4698

AutoCAD SHX Text
4690

AutoCAD SHX Text
4758

AutoCAD SHX Text
4762

AutoCAD SHX Text
4766

AutoCAD SHX Text
4768

AutoCAD SHX Text
4788

AutoCAD SHX Text
4864

AutoCAD SHX Text
1140

AutoCAD SHX Text
1205

AutoCAD SHX Text
1200

AutoCAD SHX Text
4974

AutoCAD SHX Text
1237

AutoCAD SHX Text
4513

AutoCAD SHX Text
4554

AutoCAD SHX Text
1236

AutoCAD SHX Text
4556

AutoCAD SHX Text
1167

AutoCAD SHX Text
1239

AutoCAD SHX Text
1225

AutoCAD SHX Text
1320

AutoCAD SHX Text
4534

AutoCAD SHX Text
4530

AutoCAD SHX Text
1163

AutoCAD SHX Text
4298

AutoCAD SHX Text
4330

AutoCAD SHX Text
1231

AutoCAD SHX Text
1215

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
1160

AutoCAD SHX Text
1157

AutoCAD SHX Text
1185

AutoCAD SHX Text
1234

AutoCAD SHX Text
1200

AutoCAD SHX Text
1190

AutoCAD SHX Text
1155

AutoCAD SHX Text
4371

AutoCAD SHX Text
4332

AutoCAD SHX Text
4322

AutoCAD SHX Text
4306

AutoCAD SHX Text
4296

AutoCAD SHX Text
4288

AutoCAD SHX Text
1455

AutoCAD SHX Text
1493

AutoCAD SHX Text
1474

AutoCAD SHX Text
1466

AutoCAD SHX Text
1456

AutoCAD SHX Text
1455

AutoCAD SHX Text
1465

AutoCAD SHX Text
1473

AutoCAD SHX Text
1490

AutoCAD SHX Text
1495

AutoCAD SHX Text
4322

AutoCAD SHX Text
4306

AutoCAD SHX Text
4301

AutoCAD SHX Text
4327

AutoCAD SHX Text
4364

AutoCAD SHX Text
4374

AutoCAD SHX Text
4382

AutoCAD SHX Text
4392

AutoCAD SHX Text
4412

AutoCAD SHX Text
4420

AutoCAD SHX Text
4411

AutoCAD SHX Text
4405

AutoCAD SHX Text
4393

AutoCAD SHX Text
4383

AutoCAD SHX Text
4375

AutoCAD SHX Text
4365

AutoCAD SHX Text
4424

AutoCAD SHX Text
4428

AutoCAD SHX Text
4417

AutoCAD SHX Text
4453

AutoCAD SHX Text
1460

AutoCAD SHX Text
1452

AutoCAD SHX Text
1440

AutoCAD SHX Text
4466

AutoCAD SHX Text
4458

AutoCAD SHX Text
4454

AutoCAD SHX Text
4448

AutoCAD SHX Text
4438

AutoCAD SHX Text
4420

AutoCAD SHX Text
4414

AutoCAD SHX Text
4408

AutoCAD SHX Text
4398

AutoCAD SHX Text
4386

AutoCAD SHX Text
4374

AutoCAD SHX Text
4364

AutoCAD SHX Text
4350

AutoCAD SHX Text
1426

AutoCAD SHX Text
4461

AutoCAD SHX Text
4455

AutoCAD SHX Text
4441

AutoCAD SHX Text
4431

AutoCAD SHX Text
4423

AutoCAD SHX Text
4419

AutoCAD SHX Text
4393

AutoCAD SHX Text
4375

AutoCAD SHX Text
4365

AutoCAD SHX Text
4395

AutoCAD SHX Text
4407

AutoCAD SHX Text
4415

AutoCAD SHX Text
1470

AutoCAD SHX Text
1492

AutoCAD SHX Text
4442

AutoCAD SHX Text
4448

AutoCAD SHX Text
4454

AutoCAD SHX Text
4462

AutoCAD SHX Text
4470

AutoCAD SHX Text
1445

AutoCAD SHX Text
4432

AutoCAD SHX Text
1494

AutoCAD SHX Text
1484

AutoCAD SHX Text
1474

AutoCAD SHX Text
1462

AutoCAD SHX Text
1452

AutoCAD SHX Text
1440

AutoCAD SHX Text
1430

AutoCAD SHX Text
1420

AutoCAD SHX Text
4459

AutoCAD SHX Text
1485

AutoCAD SHX Text
1312

AutoCAD SHX Text
4383

AutoCAD SHX Text
4393

AutoCAD SHX Text
4409

AutoCAD SHX Text
4455

AutoCAD SHX Text
4445

AutoCAD SHX Text
4446

AutoCAD SHX Text
4436

AutoCAD SHX Text
4428

AutoCAD SHX Text
4418

AutoCAD SHX Text
4410

AutoCAD SHX Text
4400

AutoCAD SHX Text
4392

AutoCAD SHX Text
4380

AutoCAD SHX Text
4397

AutoCAD SHX Text
4407

AutoCAD SHX Text
4415

AutoCAD SHX Text
4423

AutoCAD SHX Text
4433

AutoCAD SHX Text
4441

AutoCAD SHX Text
4400

AutoCAD SHX Text
4410

AutoCAD SHX Text
4418

AutoCAD SHX Text
4428

AutoCAD SHX Text
4436

AutoCAD SHX Text
4446

AutoCAD SHX Text
4454

AutoCAD SHX Text
1721

AutoCAD SHX Text
1722

AutoCAD SHX Text
1712

AutoCAD SHX Text
1700

AutoCAD SHX Text
1740

AutoCAD SHX Text
4415

AutoCAD SHX Text
4425

AutoCAD SHX Text
4435

AutoCAD SHX Text
4443

AutoCAD SHX Text
4455

AutoCAD SHX Text
4463

AutoCAD SHX Text
1770

AutoCAD SHX Text
1798

AutoCAD SHX Text
1806

AutoCAD SHX Text
1816

AutoCAD SHX Text
1824

AutoCAD SHX Text
1834

AutoCAD SHX Text
1784

AutoCAD SHX Text
4479

AutoCAD SHX Text
4487

AutoCAD SHX Text
4495

AutoCAD SHX Text
4478

AutoCAD SHX Text
4488

AutoCAD SHX Text
4496

AutoCAD SHX Text
4483

AutoCAD SHX Text
4489

AutoCAD SHX Text
1747

AutoCAD SHX Text
1757

AutoCAD SHX Text
1765

AutoCAD SHX Text
1775

AutoCAD SHX Text
1785

AutoCAD SHX Text
4381

AutoCAD SHX Text
1801

AutoCAD SHX Text
1817

AutoCAD SHX Text
1827

AutoCAD SHX Text
1843

AutoCAD SHX Text
1848

AutoCAD SHX Text
1842

AutoCAD SHX Text
1711

AutoCAD SHX Text
1701

AutoCAD SHX Text
4220

AutoCAD SHX Text
4234

AutoCAD SHX Text
1417

AutoCAD SHX Text
1423

AutoCAD SHX Text
1429

AutoCAD SHX Text
1435

AutoCAD SHX Text
1473

AutoCAD SHX Text
1418

AutoCAD SHX Text
1424

AutoCAD SHX Text
1430

AutoCAD SHX Text
1436

AutoCAD SHX Text
1442

AutoCAD SHX Text
1448

AutoCAD SHX Text
1454

AutoCAD SHX Text
1462

AutoCAD SHX Text
1470

AutoCAD SHX Text
1478

AutoCAD SHX Text
1486

AutoCAD SHX Text
1491

AutoCAD SHX Text
1494

AutoCAD SHX Text
1441

AutoCAD SHX Text
1406

AutoCAD SHX Text
4735

AutoCAD SHX Text
1749

AutoCAD SHX Text
1705

AutoCAD SHX Text
1212

AutoCAD SHX Text
4499

AutoCAD SHX Text
138

AutoCAD SHX Text
137

AutoCAD SHX Text
136

AutoCAD SHX Text
135

AutoCAD SHX Text
139

AutoCAD SHX Text
140

AutoCAD SHX Text
141

AutoCAD SHX Text
142

AutoCAD SHX Text
155

AutoCAD SHX Text
143

AutoCAD SHX Text
154

AutoCAD SHX Text
153

AutoCAD SHX Text
152

AutoCAD SHX Text
151

AutoCAD SHX Text
150

AutoCAD SHX Text
144

AutoCAD SHX Text
145

AutoCAD SHX Text
146

AutoCAD SHX Text
147

AutoCAD SHX Text
148

AutoCAD SHX Text
149

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
28

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
31

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
33

AutoCAD SHX Text
34

AutoCAD SHX Text
35

AutoCAD SHX Text
36

AutoCAD SHX Text
37

AutoCAD SHX Text
38

AutoCAD SHX Text
39

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
41

AutoCAD SHX Text
42

AutoCAD SHX Text
43

AutoCAD SHX Text
44

AutoCAD SHX Text
45

AutoCAD SHX Text
46

AutoCAD SHX Text
47

AutoCAD SHX Text
48

AutoCAD SHX Text
49

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
51

AutoCAD SHX Text
52

AutoCAD SHX Text
53

AutoCAD SHX Text
54

AutoCAD SHX Text
55

AutoCAD SHX Text
56

AutoCAD SHX Text
57

AutoCAD SHX Text
58

AutoCAD SHX Text
59

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
61

AutoCAD SHX Text
62

AutoCAD SHX Text
63

AutoCAD SHX Text
64

AutoCAD SHX Text
65

AutoCAD SHX Text
66

AutoCAD SHX Text
67

AutoCAD SHX Text
68

AutoCAD SHX Text
69

AutoCAD SHX Text
70

AutoCAD SHX Text
71

AutoCAD SHX Text
72

AutoCAD SHX Text
73

AutoCAD SHX Text
74

AutoCAD SHX Text
75

AutoCAD SHX Text
76

AutoCAD SHX Text
77

AutoCAD SHX Text
78

AutoCAD SHX Text
79

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
81

AutoCAD SHX Text
82

AutoCAD SHX Text
83

AutoCAD SHX Text
84

AutoCAD SHX Text
85

AutoCAD SHX Text
86

AutoCAD SHX Text
87

AutoCAD SHX Text
88

AutoCAD SHX Text
89

AutoCAD SHX Text
90

AutoCAD SHX Text
96

AutoCAD SHX Text
97

AutoCAD SHX Text
98

AutoCAD SHX Text
99

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
101

AutoCAD SHX Text
102

AutoCAD SHX Text
103

AutoCAD SHX Text
104

AutoCAD SHX Text
105

AutoCAD SHX Text
106

AutoCAD SHX Text
107

AutoCAD SHX Text
108

AutoCAD SHX Text
109

AutoCAD SHX Text
110

AutoCAD SHX Text
111

AutoCAD SHX Text
112

AutoCAD SHX Text
113

AutoCAD SHX Text
114

AutoCAD SHX Text
115

AutoCAD SHX Text
116

AutoCAD SHX Text
117

AutoCAD SHX Text
118

AutoCAD SHX Text
119

AutoCAD SHX Text
120

AutoCAD SHX Text
121

AutoCAD SHX Text
122

AutoCAD SHX Text
123

AutoCAD SHX Text
124

AutoCAD SHX Text
125

AutoCAD SHX Text
126

AutoCAD SHX Text
127

AutoCAD SHX Text
128

AutoCAD SHX Text
129

AutoCAD SHX Text
130

AutoCAD SHX Text
131

AutoCAD SHX Text
132

AutoCAD SHX Text
133

AutoCAD SHX Text
134

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
164

AutoCAD SHX Text
163

AutoCAD SHX Text
162

AutoCAD SHX Text
249

AutoCAD SHX Text
250

AutoCAD SHX Text
251

AutoCAD SHX Text
252

AutoCAD SHX Text
253

AutoCAD SHX Text
323

AutoCAD SHX Text
322

AutoCAD SHX Text
321

AutoCAD SHX Text
320

AutoCAD SHX Text
319

AutoCAD SHX Text
318

AutoCAD SHX Text
317

AutoCAD SHX Text
316

AutoCAD SHX Text
315

AutoCAD SHX Text
314

AutoCAD SHX Text
313

AutoCAD SHX Text
312

AutoCAD SHX Text
254

AutoCAD SHX Text
255

AutoCAD SHX Text
256

AutoCAD SHX Text
257

AutoCAD SHX Text
258

AutoCAD SHX Text
259

AutoCAD SHX Text
260

AutoCAD SHX Text
261

AutoCAD SHX Text
262

AutoCAD SHX Text
263

AutoCAD SHX Text
264

AutoCAD SHX Text
265

AutoCAD SHX Text
266

AutoCAD SHX Text
267

AutoCAD SHX Text
156

AutoCAD SHX Text
157

AutoCAD SHX Text
158

AutoCAD SHX Text
159

AutoCAD SHX Text
160

AutoCAD SHX Text
161

AutoCAD SHX Text
293

AutoCAD SHX Text
294

AutoCAD SHX Text
295

AutoCAD SHX Text
296

AutoCAD SHX Text
297

AutoCAD SHX Text
298

AutoCAD SHX Text
299

AutoCAD SHX Text
300

AutoCAD SHX Text
301

AutoCAD SHX Text
302

AutoCAD SHX Text
303

AutoCAD SHX Text
304

AutoCAD SHX Text
305

AutoCAD SHX Text
306

AutoCAD SHX Text
307

AutoCAD SHX Text
308

AutoCAD SHX Text
309

AutoCAD SHX Text
310

AutoCAD SHX Text
311

AutoCAD SHX Text
292

AutoCAD SHX Text
291

AutoCAD SHX Text
268

AutoCAD SHX Text
269

AutoCAD SHX Text
270

AutoCAD SHX Text
271

AutoCAD SHX Text
272

AutoCAD SHX Text
273

AutoCAD SHX Text
274

AutoCAD SHX Text
275

AutoCAD SHX Text
290

AutoCAD SHX Text
289

AutoCAD SHX Text
288

AutoCAD SHX Text
287

AutoCAD SHX Text
286

AutoCAD SHX Text
285

AutoCAD SHX Text
146

AutoCAD SHX Text
145

AutoCAD SHX Text
144

AutoCAD SHX Text
143

AutoCAD SHX Text
147

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
92

AutoCAD SHX Text
53

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
28

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
31

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
33

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
205

AutoCAD SHX Text
204

AutoCAD SHX Text
203

AutoCAD SHX Text
202

AutoCAD SHX Text
201

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
199

AutoCAD SHX Text
198

AutoCAD SHX Text
206

AutoCAD SHX Text
207

AutoCAD SHX Text
208

AutoCAD SHX Text
209

AutoCAD SHX Text
210

AutoCAD SHX Text
211

AutoCAD SHX Text
212

AutoCAD SHX Text
213

AutoCAD SHX Text
214

AutoCAD SHX Text
223

AutoCAD SHX Text
222

AutoCAD SHX Text
221

AutoCAD SHX Text
220

AutoCAD SHX Text
219

AutoCAD SHX Text
218

AutoCAD SHX Text
217

AutoCAD SHX Text
216

AutoCAD SHX Text
215

AutoCAD SHX Text
197

AutoCAD SHX Text
196

AutoCAD SHX Text
195

AutoCAD SHX Text
189

AutoCAD SHX Text
188

AutoCAD SHX Text
248

AutoCAD SHX Text
247

AutoCAD SHX Text
232

AutoCAD SHX Text
231

AutoCAD SHX Text
230

AutoCAD SHX Text
178

AutoCAD SHX Text
179

AutoCAD SHX Text
180

AutoCAD SHX Text
181

AutoCAD SHX Text
182

AutoCAD SHX Text
183

AutoCAD SHX Text
184

AutoCAD SHX Text
185

AutoCAD SHX Text
186

AutoCAD SHX Text
187

AutoCAD SHX Text
177

AutoCAD SHX Text
176

AutoCAD SHX Text
175

AutoCAD SHX Text
174

AutoCAD SHX Text
173

AutoCAD SHX Text
172

AutoCAD SHX Text
171

AutoCAD SHX Text
170

AutoCAD SHX Text
169

AutoCAD SHX Text
168

AutoCAD SHX Text
167

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
223

AutoCAD SHX Text
222

AutoCAD SHX Text
221

AutoCAD SHX Text
220

AutoCAD SHX Text
219

AutoCAD SHX Text
218

AutoCAD SHX Text
217

AutoCAD SHX Text
216

AutoCAD SHX Text
215

AutoCAD SHX Text
214

AutoCAD SHX Text
213

AutoCAD SHX Text
212

AutoCAD SHX Text
211

AutoCAD SHX Text
210

AutoCAD SHX Text
204

AutoCAD SHX Text
203

AutoCAD SHX Text
202

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14  

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16  

AutoCAD SHX Text
17    

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
194

AutoCAD SHX Text
193

AutoCAD SHX Text
192

AutoCAD SHX Text
191

AutoCAD SHX Text
190

AutoCAD SHX Text
224

AutoCAD SHX Text
225

AutoCAD SHX Text
226

AutoCAD SHX Text
227

AutoCAD SHX Text
228

AutoCAD SHX Text
229

AutoCAD SHX Text
233

AutoCAD SHX Text
234

AutoCAD SHX Text
235

AutoCAD SHX Text
236

AutoCAD SHX Text
237

AutoCAD SHX Text
238

AutoCAD SHX Text
239

AutoCAD SHX Text
240

AutoCAD SHX Text
241

AutoCAD SHX Text
242

AutoCAD SHX Text
243

AutoCAD SHX Text
244

AutoCAD SHX Text
245

AutoCAD SHX Text
246

AutoCAD SHX Text
263

AutoCAD SHX Text
264

AutoCAD SHX Text
265

AutoCAD SHX Text
266

AutoCAD SHX Text
268

AutoCAD SHX Text
269

AutoCAD SHX Text
270

AutoCAD SHX Text
271

AutoCAD SHX Text
272

AutoCAD SHX Text
284

AutoCAD SHX Text
285

AutoCAD SHX Text
286

AutoCAD SHX Text
287

AutoCAD SHX Text
288

AutoCAD SHX Text
292

AutoCAD SHX Text
293

AutoCAD SHX Text
314

AutoCAD SHX Text
315

AutoCAD SHX Text
316

AutoCAD SHX Text
317

AutoCAD SHX Text
318

AutoCAD SHX Text
319

AutoCAD SHX Text
320

AutoCAD SHX Text
321

AutoCAD SHX Text
322

AutoCAD SHX Text
323

AutoCAD SHX Text
324

AutoCAD SHX Text
325

AutoCAD SHX Text
326

AutoCAD SHX Text
327

AutoCAD SHX Text
328

AutoCAD SHX Text
329

AutoCAD SHX Text
163

AutoCAD SHX Text
164

AutoCAD SHX Text
173

AutoCAD SHX Text
174

AutoCAD SHX Text
175

AutoCAD SHX Text
176

AutoCAD SHX Text
177

AutoCAD SHX Text
178

AutoCAD SHX Text
179

AutoCAD SHX Text
180

AutoCAD SHX Text
190

AutoCAD SHX Text
191

AutoCAD SHX Text
192

AutoCAD SHX Text
193

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
28

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
31

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
33

AutoCAD SHX Text
34

AutoCAD SHX Text
35

AutoCAD SHX Text
36

AutoCAD SHX Text
37

AutoCAD SHX Text
38

AutoCAD SHX Text
39

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
41

AutoCAD SHX Text
42

AutoCAD SHX Text
43

AutoCAD SHX Text
44

AutoCAD SHX Text
45

AutoCAD SHX Text
46

AutoCAD SHX Text
47

AutoCAD SHX Text
48

AutoCAD SHX Text
49

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
51

AutoCAD SHX Text
52

AutoCAD SHX Text
53

AutoCAD SHX Text
54

AutoCAD SHX Text
55

AutoCAD SHX Text
56

AutoCAD SHX Text
57

AutoCAD SHX Text
58

AutoCAD SHX Text
59

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
61

AutoCAD SHX Text
62

AutoCAD SHX Text
63

AutoCAD SHX Text
64

AutoCAD SHX Text
65

AutoCAD SHX Text
67

AutoCAD SHX Text
66

AutoCAD SHX Text
68

AutoCAD SHX Text
69

AutoCAD SHX Text
70

AutoCAD SHX Text
71

AutoCAD SHX Text
72

AutoCAD SHX Text
73

AutoCAD SHX Text
74

AutoCAD SHX Text
75

AutoCAD SHX Text
78

AutoCAD SHX Text
79

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
81

AutoCAD SHX Text
82

AutoCAD SHX Text
76

AutoCAD SHX Text
77

AutoCAD SHX Text
324

AutoCAD SHX Text
325

AutoCAD SHX Text
326

AutoCAD SHX Text
327

AutoCAD SHX Text
328

AutoCAD SHX Text
329

AutoCAD SHX Text
330

AutoCAD SHX Text
331

AutoCAD SHX Text
332

AutoCAD SHX Text
333

AutoCAD SHX Text
334

AutoCAD SHX Text
335

AutoCAD SHX Text
336

AutoCAD SHX Text
337

AutoCAD SHX Text
338

AutoCAD SHX Text
339

AutoCAD SHX Text
340

AutoCAD SHX Text
341

AutoCAD SHX Text
342

AutoCAD SHX Text
343

AutoCAD SHX Text
344

AutoCAD SHX Text
345

AutoCAD SHX Text
346

AutoCAD SHX Text
347

AutoCAD SHX Text
348

AutoCAD SHX Text
349

AutoCAD SHX Text
350

AutoCAD SHX Text
351

AutoCAD SHX Text
352

AutoCAD SHX Text
353

AutoCAD SHX Text
354

AutoCAD SHX Text
355

AutoCAD SHX Text
356

AutoCAD SHX Text
357

AutoCAD SHX Text
358

AutoCAD SHX Text
359

AutoCAD SHX Text
360

AutoCAD SHX Text
361

AutoCAD SHX Text
362

AutoCAD SHX Text
363

AutoCAD SHX Text
364

AutoCAD SHX Text
365

AutoCAD SHX Text
366

AutoCAD SHX Text
367

AutoCAD SHX Text
368

AutoCAD SHX Text
369

AutoCAD SHX Text
370

AutoCAD SHX Text
371

AutoCAD SHX Text
372

AutoCAD SHX Text
373

AutoCAD SHX Text
374

AutoCAD SHX Text
375

AutoCAD SHX Text
376

AutoCAD SHX Text
377

AutoCAD SHX Text
378

AutoCAD SHX Text
379

AutoCAD SHX Text
380

AutoCAD SHX Text
381

AutoCAD SHX Text
382

AutoCAD SHX Text
383

AutoCAD SHX Text
384

AutoCAD SHX Text
385

AutoCAD SHX Text
386

AutoCAD SHX Text
387

AutoCAD SHX Text
388

AutoCAD SHX Text
389

AutoCAD SHX Text
398

AutoCAD SHX Text
399

AutoCAD SHX Text
400

AutoCAD SHX Text
401

AutoCAD SHX Text
402

AutoCAD SHX Text
403

AutoCAD SHX Text
404

AutoCAD SHX Text
405

AutoCAD SHX Text
406

AutoCAD SHX Text
407

AutoCAD SHX Text
412

AutoCAD SHX Text
413

AutoCAD SHX Text
414

AutoCAD SHX Text
415

AutoCAD SHX Text
416

AutoCAD SHX Text
417

AutoCAD SHX Text
422

AutoCAD SHX Text
423

AutoCAD SHX Text
424

AutoCAD SHX Text
425

AutoCAD SHX Text
426

AutoCAD SHX Text
427

AutoCAD SHX Text
165

AutoCAD SHX Text
166

AutoCAD SHX Text
120

AutoCAD SHX Text
121

AutoCAD SHX Text
122

AutoCAD SHX Text
123

AutoCAD SHX Text
124

AutoCAD SHX Text
125

AutoCAD SHX Text
126

AutoCAD SHX Text
127

AutoCAD SHX Text
128

AutoCAD SHX Text
129

AutoCAD SHX Text
150

AutoCAD SHX Text
151

AutoCAD SHX Text
152

AutoCAD SHX Text
153

AutoCAD SHX Text
154

AutoCAD SHX Text
155

AutoCAD SHX Text
112

AutoCAD SHX Text
113

AutoCAD SHX Text
114

AutoCAD SHX Text
115

AutoCAD SHX Text
116

AutoCAD SHX Text
117

AutoCAD SHX Text
83

AutoCAD SHX Text
84

AutoCAD SHX Text
85

AutoCAD SHX Text
86

AutoCAD SHX Text
87

AutoCAD SHX Text
88

AutoCAD SHX Text
130

AutoCAD SHX Text
131

AutoCAD SHX Text
110

AutoCAD SHX Text
132

AutoCAD SHX Text
133

AutoCAD SHX Text
134

AutoCAD SHX Text
135

AutoCAD SHX Text
136

AutoCAD SHX Text
148

AutoCAD SHX Text
149

AutoCAD SHX Text
109

AutoCAD SHX Text
108

AutoCAD SHX Text
107

AutoCAD SHX Text
106

AutoCAD SHX Text
105

AutoCAD SHX Text
104

AutoCAD SHX Text
96

AutoCAD SHX Text
95

AutoCAD SHX Text
94

AutoCAD SHX Text
93

AutoCAD SHX Text
92

AutoCAD SHX Text
91

AutoCAD SHX Text
90

AutoCAD SHX Text
89

AutoCAD SHX Text
111

AutoCAD SHX Text
342

AutoCAD SHX Text
341

AutoCAD SHX Text
340

AutoCAD SHX Text
339

AutoCAD SHX Text
338

AutoCAD SHX Text
330

AutoCAD SHX Text
331

AutoCAD SHX Text
332

AutoCAD SHX Text
333

AutoCAD SHX Text
334

AutoCAD SHX Text
118

AutoCAD SHX Text
119

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
28

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
31

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
33

AutoCAD SHX Text
34

AutoCAD SHX Text
35

AutoCAD SHX Text
36

AutoCAD SHX Text
37

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCHOOL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CORNELL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST. MARTHA'S

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHURCH/SCHOOL

AutoCAD SHX Text
4750

AutoCAD SHX Text
1314

AutoCAD SHX Text
1467

AutoCAD SHX Text
1475

AutoCAD SHX Text
1910

AutoCAD SHX Text
1908

AutoCAD SHX Text
1906

AutoCAD SHX Text
1900

AutoCAD SHX Text
1898

AutoCAD SHX Text
1896

AutoCAD SHX Text
1894

AutoCAD SHX Text
1893

AutoCAD SHX Text
1895

AutoCAD SHX Text
1897

AutoCAD SHX Text
1899

AutoCAD SHX Text
1903

AutoCAD SHX Text
1905

AutoCAD SHX Text
1907

AutoCAD SHX Text
1909

AutoCAD SHX Text
1911

AutoCAD SHX Text
1913

AutoCAD SHX Text
1921

AutoCAD SHX Text
1919

AutoCAD SHX Text
1917

AutoCAD SHX Text
1915

AutoCAD SHX Text
1851

AutoCAD SHX Text
1841

AutoCAD SHX Text
1821

AutoCAD SHX Text
4850

AutoCAD SHX Text
1748

AutoCAD SHX Text
1699

AutoCAD SHX Text
1735

AutoCAD SHX Text
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text
4530

AutoCAD SHX Text
4486

AutoCAD SHX Text
4487

AutoCAD SHX Text
1172

AutoCAD SHX Text
1741

AutoCAD SHX Text
1476

AutoCAD SHX Text
1710

AutoCAD SHX Text
4767

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNRUH DRAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
1780

AutoCAD SHX Text
1830

AutoCAD SHX Text
1850

AutoCAD SHX Text
4517

AutoCAD SHX Text
4425

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
36

AutoCAD SHX Text
37

AutoCAD SHX Text
38

AutoCAD SHX Text
39

AutoCAD SHX Text
4800

AutoCAD SHX Text
4806

AutoCAD SHX Text
1605

AutoCAD SHX Text
1611

AutoCAD SHX Text
1881

AutoCAD SHX Text
4598

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
4568

AutoCAD SHX Text
1505

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
1475

AutoCAD SHX Text
1487

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
1457

AutoCAD SHX Text
4587

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
4573

AutoCAD SHX Text
4591

AutoCAD SHX Text
4595

AutoCAD SHX Text
4597

AutoCAD SHX Text
1500

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
1514

AutoCAD SHX Text
1491

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
1481

AutoCAD SHX Text
1499

AutoCAD SHX Text
4568

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
4554

AutoCAD SHX Text
4586

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
4572

AutoCAD SHX Text
1524

AutoCAD SHX Text
1534

AutoCAD SHX Text
1544

AutoCAD SHX Text
1554

AutoCAD SHX Text
4539

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
4525

AutoCAD SHX Text
4540

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
4530

AutoCAD SHX Text
4554

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
4544

AutoCAD SHX Text
4547

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
4533

AutoCAD SHX Text
4529

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
4515

AutoCAD SHX Text
1569

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
1559

AutoCAD SHX Text
1583

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
1573

AutoCAD SHX Text
1597

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
1587

AutoCAD SHX Text
1570

AutoCAD SHX Text
1571

AutoCAD SHX Text
1563

AutoCAD SHX Text
1555

AutoCAD SHX Text
1460

AutoCAD SHX Text
1450

AutoCAD SHX Text
1445

AutoCAD SHX Text
1457

AutoCAD SHX Text
1835

AutoCAD SHX Text
1707

AutoCAD SHX Text
1761

AutoCAD SHX Text
1930

AutoCAD SHX Text
OKEMOS PUBLIC SCHOOLS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1815

AutoCAD SHX Text
1669

AutoCAD SHX Text
4568

AutoCAD SHX Text
1455

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
1400

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
1711

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCHOOL

AutoCAD SHX Text
MONTESSORI

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGEWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
1801

AutoCAD SHX Text
4830

AutoCAD SHX Text
2049

AutoCAD SHX Text
1829

AutoCAD SHX Text
1821

AutoCAD SHX Text
1834

AutoCAD SHX Text
1842

AutoCAD SHX Text
1826

AutoCAD SHX Text
1820

AutoCAD SHX Text
1846

AutoCAD SHX Text
1856

AutoCAD SHX Text
1866

AutoCAD SHX Text
1862

AutoCAD SHX Text
1804

AutoCAD SHX Text
1806

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
4724

AutoCAD SHX Text
1499

AutoCAD SHX Text
1497

AutoCAD SHX Text
1495

AutoCAD SHX Text
1493

AutoCAD SHX Text
1491

AutoCAD SHX Text
1489

AutoCAD SHX Text
1487

AutoCAD SHX Text
1485

AutoCAD SHX Text
1494

AutoCAD SHX Text
1492

AutoCAD SHX Text
1490

AutoCAD SHX Text
1488

AutoCAD SHX Text
1486

AutoCAD SHX Text
1484

AutoCAD SHX Text
4736

AutoCAD SHX Text
4738

AutoCAD SHX Text
4730

AutoCAD SHX Text
4732

AutoCAD SHX Text
4734

AutoCAD SHX Text
4731

AutoCAD SHX Text
4733

AutoCAD SHX Text
1483

AutoCAD SHX Text
1496

AutoCAD SHX Text
1498



$566.94

$2,869.66

$15,277.42

$1,205.82

$8,182.69

$11,376.63

$10,083.95

$8,999.04

$3,825.03

$16.50

$592.13

$1,056.30

$1,208.74

$370.90

$80.18

$771.01

$1,236.24

$2
30

.86

$394.49

$2
14

.69

$539.65

$1
69

.80

$4
73

.81

$948.54

$1
,90

9.5
8

$759.07

$357.40
$350.44

$370.58
$389.76

$395.48

$1
,10

2.2
0

$63.66

$571.45

$174.03

$451.32

$25
2.6

3

$97.85

$1,034.76

$79.34

$25
3.8

3

$9
4.4

8

$4
79

.05
$480.96

$159.84

$285.99

$239.60

$3
28

.09

$94.28

$97.00

$237.93

$1
69

.24

$1
1.2

3

$218.51

$211.64

$309.54

$8
4.8

3

$488.99

$26
1.4

0

$67.27

$37
9.4

3

$289.42

$2
71

.69

$40.13

$1
69

.80

$3
1.9

6
$1

71
.21

$1
75

.06

$1
69

.13

$2
37

.45

$2
31

.34

$2
12

.03

$214.79

$96.18

$2
33

.91

$31
1.6

2

$3
8.7

7

$80
.38

$3
92

.34

$24.36

$4.96

$8
4.8

9

$36.03

$210.64

$6
3.1

5

$264.61

$10.01

$177.61
$2

83
.47

$2
83

.47

$2
83

.47

$2
83

.47

$2
86

.13

$2
36

.23

$2
85

.36

$2
83

.47

$1
60

.48

$3
4.5

2

$122.95

$25.50

$1
40

.99

$94.66

$87.02

$271.24
$282.10

$57.44

$81.94

$84.47

$283.47

$82.38

$93.91

$90.26

$240.86

$76.49

$458.53

$2
67

.24

$92.21

$216.78

$136.75

$339.11

$2
36

.23

$252.61

$1
28

.98

$224.05

$1
30

.76

$2
78

.20

$236.97

$321.35

$241.69

$243.10

$261.51

$2
61

.51

$262.82

$348.53

$128.73

$1
10

.04

$130.28

$138.16

$121.08

$7
7.3

8

$6
0.8

5

$216.37

$116.58

$116.48

$117.04

$116.16
$2

48
.47

$248.47

$2
36

.11

$1
21

.38

$3
53

.77

$196.76

$1
19

.35

$2
36

.11

$104.97

$2
36

.11

$2
36

.11

$2
36

.11

$2
36

.11

$2
36

.11
$2

36
.11

$2
36

.11

$2
36

.11

$196.76

$1
82

.81

$129.61
$2

36
.11

$2
36

.11
$2

36
.11

$2
36

.11

$2
36

.11

$196.76

$2
36

.11
$2

36
.11

$8
9.5

6

$246.41

$2
31

.31

$1
25

.01

$2
34

.06

$1
08

.72

$232.28

$206.81

$138.13

$2
65

.62

$2
38

.86

$2
38

.86

$2
38

.86

$236.11

$133.16

$401.77

$238.17

$191.61 $253.10

$128.93

$238.17

$205.19

$238.29

$238.17

$238.83

$206.77

$124.49

$223.43

$1
12

.84

$196.55$105.96
$187.04

$187.04

$185.89

$1
10

.73

$330.43

$187.04

$189.81

$204.64

$1
18

.54

$215.52

$180.81

$2
24

.21

$200.44

$2
16

.09

$219.64

$185.05

$2
12

.78

$186.57

$188.57

$1
08

.66

$1
07

.84

$1
04

.96

$1
03

.13

$191.22

$186.48

$2
57

.83

$324.09

$108.06

$2
59

.60

$332.76
$331.16

$193.89

$217.21

$177.31

$171.59

$171.59

$176.28

$18
0.2

2

$334.77

$1
76

.51
$1

76
.40

$1
90

.70

$1
76

.28

$177.41

$1
76

.17
$1

76
.06

$1
63

.50
$1

57
.30

$267.73

$164.91
$168.34

$1
85

.64

$188.75
$1

70
.61

$157.30
$1

74
.66

$1
78

.74
$1

81
.46

$1
54

.86

$82.69

$39.53

$329.46

$468.41

$329.46

$175.71

$119.59

$309.56

$451.33

$285.34

$269.85

$442.85

$174.02

$202.15

$273.46

$382.82 $417.99
$383.10

$391.37
$397.42

$387.19

$299.73

$201.53

$226.97

$293.93

$240.20

$255.41

$223.76

$367.26

$282.03

$141.27

$277.69

$248.47

$237.34

$212.23

$287.75

$281.96
$239.12

$220.30

$252.29

$278.68

$223.80

$371.46

$246.60

$164.36

$183.63

$208.66

$196.36

$283.28

$164.29

$220.50

$235.31

$188.08$204.47

$159.94

$192.34

$292.28

$82.69

*** Dollar amounts labeled on parcels represent the
estimated installment payment over 20 years ***

Daniels Drain Service Area
Roads
Meridian Parcels

Parcels By Proximity Codes
P1
P2
P3

³

Daniels Drain Assessment Roll Proximity Factors - April 7, 2022

FOREST HILLS DR

PONTCHARTRAIN DR

IVYWOOD DR

BIRCHWOOD DR

HILLSIDE TRL

PEBBLESTONE DR

SILVERWOOD DR

HAMILTON RD

CO
RN

EL
L R

D

EL
MW

OO
D 

DR

GR
EE

NW
OO

D 
DR

AR
BO

R 
DRCH

ER
RY

 H
ILL

 D
R

OA
KW

OO
D 

DR

HI
CK

OR
YW

OO
D 

DR

W GRAND RIVER AVE

SE
NE

CA
 D

R

PO
WE

LL
 R

D

EASTWOOD DR





Daniels Drain Meridian Township Proposed Assessments

Total Project Meridian Township Assessment 5,536,644$                                                                                 

Proximity 

Code

Proximity 

Benefit Land Use Code C

50% to be Covered by Township 2,768,322$                                                                                 P1 1.00

Deciduous 

Forest 0.15

Remaining Amount to be spread to the District 2,768,322$                                                                                 P2 1.20

Developed, High 

Intensity 0.90

P3 1.40

Developed, Low 

Intensity 0.30

Developed, 

Medium 

Intensity 0.40

Developed, 

Open Space 0.30

Hay/Pasture 0.20

Mixed Forest 0.15

Woody 

Wetlands 0.15

ROLLNUM TAX NUM PARCELNUM OWNERNAME PROPSTREET TOTAL ACRES BENEFIT ACRES PROPCLASS P Code P C C x A C x A x P C x A x P %

 C x A x P 

Amount 

Commons 

Adjusted                

C x A x P Adjusted CAP Pct  Adjusted CAP Amount 

 20 Year Installment 

Payment Estimate 

1 22-379-006 33-02-02-22-379-006 WEAVER FAMILY TRUST 4622 SENECA DR 0.6150 0.1387 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0416 0.04 0.0573% 1,586.79$          0.0416 0.0573% 1,586.79$                       79.34$                               

2 22-379-007 33-02-02-22-379-007 FEINTUCH, JEANETTE A & BETTY 4606 SENECA DR 0.5990 0.4189 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.1257 0.13 0.1731% 4,792.05$          0.1257 0.1731% 4,792.05$                       239.60$                             

3 22-379-008 33-02-02-22-379-008 WEISS, CHRISTOPHER R & THERESA 4598 SENECA DR 0.5830 0.4160 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.1248 0.12 0.1719% 4,758.67$          0.1248 0.1719% 4,758.67$                       237.93$                             

4 22-379-009 33-02-02-22-379-009 HENKEL, LOUIS G TRUSTEE 4590 SENECA DR 0.8290 0.7891 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.2367 0.24 0.3261% 9,026.46$          0.2367 0.3261% 9,026.46$                       451.32$                             

5 22-379-010 33-02-02-22-379-010 CORKIN, HELEN S & 4584 SENECA DR 0.4280 0.3105 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0932 0.09 0.1283% 3,552.23$          0.0932 0.1283% 3,552.23$                       177.61$                             

6 22-379-011 33-02-02-22-379-011 WESTRATE, ROBERT B III & MARCELA AK 4576 SENECA DR 0.3510 0.0087 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0026 0.00 0.0036% 99.15$                0.0026 0.0036% 99.15$                             4.96$                                 

7 22-404-009 33-02-02-22-404-009 SP INVESTMENTS LP 1745 HAMILTON RD 1.2110 0.2261 201 P1 1.00 0.3938 0.0891 0.09 0.1227% 3,396.08$          0.0891 0.1227% 3,396.08$                       169.80$                             

8 22-404-010 33-02-02-22-404-010 SP INVESTMENTS LP 4655 DOBIE RD 1.1930 1.0861 201 P1 1.00 0.4581 0.4975 0.50 0.6853% 18,970.80$        0.4975 0.6853% 18,970.80$                     948.54$                             

9 22-404-011 33-02-02-22-404-011 SP INVESTMENTS LP 4665 DOBIE RD 1.0990 1.0990 201 P1 1.00 0.4938 0.5427 0.54 0.7476% 20,695.23$        0.5427 0.7476% 20,695.23$                     1,034.76$                          

10 22-405-003 33-02-02-22-405-003 L & S REAL PROPERTIES, LLC 4650 DOBIE RD 0.5080 0.0518 201 P1 1.00 0.4000 0.0207 0.02 0.0286% 790.68$             0.0207 0.0286% 790.68$                          39.53$                               

11 22-405-006 33-02-02-22-405-006 MICHIGAN BELL TELEPHONE CO 4640 DOBIE RD 3.0250 1.4046 201 P1 1.00 0.4513 0.6340 0.63 0.8733% 24,174.86$        0.6340 0.8733% 24,174.86$                     1,208.74$                          

12 22-426-005 33-02-02-22-426-005 EDWARD W SPARROW HOSPITAL ASSOC 1600 GRAND RIVER AVE 2.9500 0.0096 201 P1 1.00 0.9000 0.0087 0.01 0.0119% 329.97$             0.0087 0.0119% 329.97$                          16.50$                               

13 22-426-008 33-02-02-22-426-008 LAG WIXOM LLC 1510 GRAND RIVER AVE 8.9530 1.5837 201 P1 1.00 0.3993 0.6324 0.63 0.8712% 24,116.33$        0.6324 0.8712% 24,116.33$                     1,205.82$                          

14 22-427-003 33-02-02-22-427-003 WILSON, LUDMILLA F LEPESCHKIN 4590 MARLBOROUGH RD 0.3810 0.3810 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.1143 0.14 0.1889% 5,230.21$          0.1372 0.1889% 5,230.21$                       261.51$                             

15 22-427-004 33-02-02-22-427-004 PAYNE TRUST, JANICE R 1600 HILLSIDE DR 0.3440 0.3440 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.1032 0.12 0.1706% 4,722.28$          0.1238 0.1706% 4,722.28$                       236.11$                             

16 22-427-005 33-02-02-22-427-005 SHAHEEN, CAROL A 1590 HILLSIDE DR 0.3440 0.3440 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.1032 0.12 0.1706% 4,722.29$          0.1238 0.1706% 4,722.29$                       236.11$                             

17 22-427-006 33-02-02-22-427-006 ADLER, ARI B & 1580 HILLSIDE DR 0.4800 0.4800 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.1440 0.17 0.2380% 6,589.23$          0.1728 0.2380% 6,589.23$                       329.46$                             

18 22-427-008 33-02-02-22-427-008 LTG NORTHVIEW LLC 1575 GRAND RIVER AVE 1.3590 1.2017 201 P1 1.00 0.8335 1.0016 1.00 1.3796% 38,191.56$        1.0016 1.3796% 38,191.56$                     1,909.58$                          

19 22-427-009 33-02-02-22-427-009 ELLENS PROPERTIES LLC 1619 GRAND RIVER AVE 6.9040 6.5222 201 P1 1.00 0.7237 4.7199 4.72 6.5014% 179,980.88$      4.7199 6.5014% 179,980.88$                   8,999.04$                          

20 22-427-010 33-02-02-22-427-010 MERIDIAN CHARTER TOWNSHIP 4625 NORTHVIEW DR 4.1500 0.0000 402 P2 1.20 0.0000 0.0000 0.00 0.0000% -$                    0.0000 0.0000% -$                                 -$                                   

21 22-428-001 33-02-02-22-428-001 CAWOOD BUILDING CO 1553 GRAND RIVER AVE 0.5170 0.5170 202 P1 1.00 0.4961 0.2565 0.26 0.3533% 9,779.80$          0.2565 0.3533% 9,779.80$                       488.99$                             

22 22-428-002 33-02-02-22-428-002 PONDS COOPERATIVE HOMES INC THE 1555 W POND DR 9.4300 9.4300 201 P3 1.40 0.4520 4.2621 5.97 8.2192% 227,532.70$      5.9670 8.2192% 227,532.70$                   11,376.63$                       

23 22-428-003 33-02-02-22-428-003 BEECH, TIMOTHY L & BARBARA A 1568 HILLSIDE DR 0.3620 0.3430 401 P2 1.20 0.3405 0.1168 0.14 0.1931% 5,344.74$          0.1402 0.1931% 5,344.74$                       267.24$                             

24 22-428-004 33-02-02-22-428-004 FREDERICK, DANICA D 1558 HILLSIDE DR 0.3790 0.3790 401 P2 1.20 0.3208 0.1216 0.15 0.2010% 5,564.08$          0.1459 0.2010% 5,564.08$                       278.20$                             

25 22-428-005 33-02-02-22-428-005 JIANG, DANIEL & JIN QUAN 1546 HILLSIDE DR 0.3440 0.3440 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.1032 0.12 0.1706% 4,722.29$          0.1238 0.1706% 4,722.29$                       236.11$                             

26 22-428-006 33-02-02-22-428-006 MOFFETT, THOMAS TRUST 1536 HILLSIDE DR 0.3440 0.3440 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.1032 0.12 0.1706% 4,722.28$          0.1238 0.1706% 4,722.28$                       236.11$                             

27 22-428-007 33-02-02-22-428-007 MCCARTHY, KRISTY K 1526 HILLSIDE DR 0.4130 0.4130 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.1239 0.15 0.2048% 5,669.49$          0.1487 0.2048% 5,669.49$                       283.47$                             

28 22-451-001 33-02-02-22-451-001 FEDEWA HOLDINGS LLC 1730 CHIEF OKEMOS CIR 1.5200 1.3401 201 P1 1.00 0.3017 0.4044 0.40 0.5570% 15,420.19$        0.4044 0.5570% 15,420.19$                     771.01$                             

29 22-451-002 33-02-02-22-451-002 1720 ASSOCIATES 1720 CHIEF OKEMOS CIR 1.1030 1.1030 201 P1 1.00 0.3609 0.3981 0.40 0.5484% 15,181.36$        0.3981 0.5484% 15,181.36$                     759.07$                             

30 22-451-003 33-02-02-22-451-003 HILLCO PROPERTIES, LLC 1710 CHIEF OKEMOS CIR 1.2130 1.2130 201 P2 1.20 0.3972 0.4817 0.58 0.7963% 22,044.00$        0.5781 0.7963% 22,044.00$                     1,102.20$                          

31 22-452-011 33-02-02-22-452-011 1741 CHIEF OKEMOS CIRCLE LLC 1741 CHIEF OKEMOS CIR 1.3770 0.3596 201 P1 1.00 0.3367 0.1211 0.12 0.1668% 4,617.14$          0.1211 0.1668% 4,617.14$                       230.86$                             

32 22-453-001 33-02-02-22-453-001 CHIEF OKEMOS APARTMENTS LLC 1721 CHIEF OKEMOS CIR 1.1180 0.2815 201 P1 1.00 0.4000 0.1126 0.11 0.1551% 4,293.89$          0.1126 0.1551% 4,293.89$                       214.69$                             

33 22-453-002 33-02-02-22-453-002 1705 CHIEF OKEMOS LLC 1705 CHIEF OKEMOS CIR 1.1260 0.6970 201 P1 1.00 0.3565 0.2485 0.25 0.3423% 9,476.23$          0.2485 0.3423% 9,476.23$                       473.81$                             

34 22-455-004 33-02-02-22-455-004 FAGAN, PATSY J 4562 DOBIE RD 0.9430 0.6755 401 P1 1.00 0.3071 0.2074 0.21 0.2857% 7,909.66$          0.2074 0.2857% 7,909.66$                       395.48$                             

35 22-455-005 33-02-02-22-455-005 HILLIKER, KEVIN T & LAUREL 4554 DOBIE RD 0.9430 0.6531 401 P1 1.00 0.3130 0.2044 0.20 0.2816% 7,795.11$          0.2044 0.2816% 7,795.11$                       389.76$                             

36 22-455-006 33-02-02-22-455-006 LEONE, JOHN 4544 DOBIE RD 0.9430 0.6438 401 P1 1.00 0.3019 0.1944 0.19 0.2677% 7,411.51$          0.1944 0.2677% 7,411.51$                       370.58$                             

37 22-455-008 33-02-02-22-455-008 DARGAZANY, ROOZBEH 4510 DOBIE RD 0.9430 0.6127 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.1838 0.18 0.2532% 7,008.82$          0.1838 0.2532% 7,008.82$                       350.44$                             

38 22-455-009 33-02-02-22-455-009 SHAW, BRADLEY T & ESTHER C 4504 DOBIE RD 0.9430 0.6249 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.1875 0.19 0.2582% 7,148.08$          0.1875 0.2582% 7,148.08$                       357.40$                             

39 22-455-010 33-02-02-22-455-010 MICHIGAN TREE APARTMENTS LLC 4568 BLACKSTONE TRL 8.5700 8.5700 201 P2 1.20 0.4173 3.5765 4.29 5.9117% 163,653.78$      4.2918 5.9117% 163,653.78$                   8,182.69$                          

40 22-455-011 33-02-02-22-455-011 MISTRY, KEKI & PHYLLIS DOBIE RD 1.1700 0.9435 402 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.2830 0.28 0.3899% 10,792.98$        0.2830 0.3899% 10,792.98$                     539.65$                             

41 22-455-012 33-02-02-22-455-012 MISTRY, KEKI & PHYLLIS 4530 DOBIE RD 1.3300 0.6897 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.2069 0.21 0.2850% 7,889.78$          0.2069 0.2850% 7,889.78$                       394.49$                             

42 22-456-001 33-02-02-22-456-001 PAYNE, LACEY E 4597 MARLBOROUGH RD 0.4110 0.4110 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.1233 0.15 0.2038% 5,642.03$          0.1480 0.2038% 5,642.03$                       282.10$                             

43 22-456-002 33-02-02-22-456-002 SESNIAK, CHARLES R & JENNIFER M 4585 MARLBOROUGH RD 0.3590 0.3590 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.1077 0.13 0.1780% 4,928.20$          0.1292 0.1780% 4,928.20$                       246.41$                             

44 22-456-003 33-02-02-22-456-003 LAVIRE, RANDALL & KAREN 4575 MARLBOROUGH RD 0.4130 0.4130 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.1239 0.15 0.2048% 5,669.49$          0.1487 0.2048% 5,669.49$                       283.47$                             

45 22-456-004 33-02-02-22-456-004 LAETZ, RANDALL P 4565 MARLBOROUGH RD 0.3440 0.3440 401 P2 1.20 0.3034 0.1044 0.13 0.1725% 4,776.51$          0.1253 0.1725% 4,776.51$                       238.83$                             

46 22-456-005 33-02-02-22-456-005 MANTURUK, EDWARD P 4555 MARLBOROUGH RD 0.3440 0.3440 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.1032 0.12 0.1706% 4,722.29$          0.1238 0.1706% 4,722.29$                       236.11$                             

47 22-456-006 33-02-02-22-456-006 SELOVER, HOWARD B & 4547 MARLBOROUGH RD 0.3470 0.3470 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.1041 0.12 0.1721% 4,763.47$          0.1249 0.1721% 4,763.47$                       238.17$                             

48 22-456-007 33-02-02-22-456-007 LOWE, CURT & ANNA 4539 MARLBOROUGH RD 0.3470 0.3470 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.1041 0.12 0.1721% 4,763.46$          0.1249 0.1721% 4,763.46$                       238.17$                             

49 22-456-008 33-02-02-22-456-008 RODRIQUEZ, TONYA LYNN 4529 MARLBOROUGH RD 0.3470 0.3470 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.1041 0.12 0.1721% 4,763.47$          0.1249 0.1721% 4,763.47$                       238.17$                             

50 22-456-009 33-02-02-22-456-009 VEITH, JOHN P & KATHLEEN 4521 MARLBOROUGH RD 0.3620 0.3620 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.1086 0.13 0.1795% 4,969.39$          0.1303 0.1795% 4,969.39$                       248.47$                             

51 22-456-010 33-02-02-22-456-010 CROFT, TREVOR & KATHERINE 4517 MARLBOROUGH RD 0.4780 0.4780 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.1434 0.17 0.2370% 6,561.78$          0.1721 0.2370% 6,561.78$                       328.09$                             

52 22-456-011 33-02-02-22-456-011 HARPER, GARY L AND LAI W TRUST 4513 MARLBOROUGH RD 0.4540 0.4540 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.1362 0.16 0.2251% 6,232.32$          0.1634 0.2251% 6,232.32$                       311.62$                             

Based on Ex. Cover Proximity and CommonsBased on Ex. Cover and Proximity

3/11/2022 1 of 5



Daniels Drain Meridian Township Proposed Assessments

ROLLNUM TAX NUM PARCELNUM OWNERNAME PROPSTREET TOTAL ACRES BENEFIT ACRES PROPCLASS P Code P C C x A C x A x P C x A x P %

 C x A x P 

Amount 

Commons 

Adjusted                

C x A x P Adjusted CAP Pct  Adjusted CAP Amount 

 20 Year Installment 

Payment Estimate 

53 22-456-012 33-02-02-22-456-012 DAVIS, KRISTIN M & 4509 MARLBOROUGH RD 0.3440 0.3440 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.1032 0.12 0.1706% 4,722.29$          0.1238 0.1706% 4,722.29$                       236.11$                             

54 22-456-013 33-02-02-22-456-013 SWITZER, DAVID A & JEANETTE M 4505 MARLBOROUGH RD 0.3440 0.3440 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.1032 0.12 0.1706% 4,722.29$          0.1238 0.1706% 4,722.29$                       236.11$                             

55 22-476-001 33-02-02-22-476-001 NOVOTNY, MILDRED 4540 MARLBOROUGH RD 0.3440 0.3440 401 P2 1.20 0.3375 0.1161 0.14 0.1919% 5,312.44$          0.1393 0.1919% 5,312.44$                       265.62$                             

56 22-476-002 33-02-02-22-476-002 DUNCAN, KATHLEEN H 4557 EASTWOOD DR 0.3440 0.3440 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.1032 0.12 0.1706% 4,722.29$          0.1238 0.1706% 4,722.29$                       236.11$                             

57 22-476-003 33-02-02-22-476-003 WHEELER, CECIL DAVID & 4555 EASTWOOD DR 0.3440 0.3440 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.1032 0.12 0.1706% 4,722.28$          0.1238 0.1706% 4,722.28$                       236.11$                             

58 22-476-004 33-02-02-22-476-004 MENDOZA, RACHELLE NICHOLE & 4553 EASTWOOD DR 0.3440 0.3440 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.1032 0.12 0.1706% 4,722.29$          0.1238 0.1706% 4,722.29$                       236.11$                             

59 22-476-005 33-02-02-22-476-005 FLEMING II, RAYMOND J & GALE A 4551 EASTWOOD DR 0.3440 0.3440 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.1032 0.12 0.1706% 4,722.28$          0.1238 0.1706% 4,722.28$                       236.11$                             

60 22-476-006 33-02-02-22-476-006 COUTHEN, JORDAN 4547 EASTWOOD DR 0.3440 0.3440 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.1032 0.12 0.1706% 4,722.29$          0.1238 0.1706% 4,722.29$                       236.11$                             

61 22-476-007 33-02-02-22-476-007 HAWLEY, FREDERICK J & SARAH TRUST 4543 EASTWOOD DR 0.3620 0.3620 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.1086 0.13 0.1795% 4,969.38$          0.1303 0.1795% 4,969.38$                       248.47$                             

62 22-476-008 33-02-02-22-476-008 STORY, DONN L & QUENDA 4526 MARLBOROUGH RD 0.3440 0.3440 401 P2 1.20 0.3028 0.1042 0.12 0.1722% 4,765.88$          0.1250 0.1722% 4,765.88$                       238.29$                             

63 22-476-009 33-02-02-22-476-009 ANDERSON, KRISTIN K 4510 MARLBOROUGH RD 0.3440 0.3440 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.1032 0.12 0.1706% 4,722.28$          0.1238 0.1706% 4,722.28$                       236.11$                             

64 22-476-010 33-02-02-22-476-010 ANDREWS, VINCENT P & MARGARET M 4508 MARLBOROUGH RD 0.3440 0.3440 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.1032 0.12 0.1706% 4,722.29$          0.1238 0.1706% 4,722.29$                       236.11$                             

65 22-476-011 33-02-02-22-476-011 HILL, LAURA C & COREY L 4507 EASTWOOD DR 0.3370 0.3370 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.1011 0.12 0.1671% 4,626.19$          0.1213 0.1671% 4,626.19$                       231.31$                             

66 22-476-012 33-02-02-22-476-012 STOW, GARY W & BRENDA L 4511 EASTWOOD DR 0.3480 0.3480 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.1044 0.13 0.1726% 4,777.19$          0.1253 0.1726% 4,777.19$                       238.86$                             

67 22-476-013 33-02-02-22-476-013 POSSANZA, JEFFREY & ROSEMARY 4515 EASTWOOD DR 0.3480 0.3480 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.1044 0.13 0.1726% 4,777.20$          0.1253 0.1726% 4,777.20$                       238.86$                             

68 22-476-014 33-02-02-22-476-014 CHEN, SHU I 4519 EASTWOOD DR 0.3620 0.3620 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.1086 0.13 0.1795% 4,969.38$          0.1303 0.1795% 4,969.38$                       248.47$                             

69 22-477-001 33-02-02-22-477-001 HOWARD, DAN & CHRISTINE 4572 MARLBOROUGH RD 0.4130 0.4130 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.1239 0.15 0.2048% 5,669.49$          0.1487 0.2048% 5,669.49$                       283.47$                             

70 22-477-002 33-02-02-22-477-002 MARLETT, MARK E & LESLIE 1605 HILLSIDE DR 0.4130 0.4130 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.1239 0.15 0.2048% 5,669.49$          0.1487 0.2048% 5,669.49$                       283.47$                             

71 22-477-003 33-02-02-22-477-003 THRUSH, JOHN J & DIANA TRUSTEES 1595 HILLSIDE DR 0.4130 0.4130 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.1239 0.15 0.2048% 5,669.49$          0.1487 0.2048% 5,669.49$                       283.47$                             

72 22-477-004 33-02-02-22-477-004 OBERG, KEITH 1585 HILLSIDE DR 0.4130 0.4130 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.1239 0.15 0.2048% 5,669.49$          0.1487 0.2048% 5,669.49$                       283.47$                             

73 22-477-005 33-02-02-22-477-005 MORSE, JEFFERY E 1577 HILLSIDE DR 0.4130 0.4130 401 P2 1.20 0.3020 0.1247 0.15 0.2062% 5,707.22$          0.1497 0.2062% 5,707.22$                       285.36$                             

74 22-477-006 33-02-02-22-477-006 EARLEY, ROBERT D & JEAN E 1567 HILLSIDE DR 0.4130 0.4130 401 P2 1.20 0.3028 0.1251 0.15 0.2067% 5,722.51$          0.1501 0.2067% 5,722.51$                       286.13$                             

75 22-477-007 33-02-02-22-477-007 BINDER, TECLA E & 1557 HILLSIDE DR 0.4130 0.4130 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.1239 0.12 0.1707% 4,724.58$          0.1239 0.1707% 4,724.58$                       236.23$                             

76 22-477-008 33-02-02-22-477-008 MCDEVITT, CONNOR 1547 HILLSIDE DR 0.4750 0.4750 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.1425 0.14 0.1963% 5,433.83$          0.1425 0.1963% 5,433.83$                       271.69$                             

77 22-477-009 33-02-02-22-477-009 GROSSMAN, GLENN RICHARD 1537 HILLSIDE DR 0.4130 0.4130 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.1239 0.12 0.1707% 4,724.57$          0.1239 0.1707% 4,724.57$                       236.23$                             

78 22-477-010 33-02-02-22-477-010 BADRA, YOUSIF A 4558 MARLBOROUGH RD 0.3440 0.3440 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.1032 0.12 0.1706% 4,722.28$          0.1238 0.1706% 4,722.28$                       236.11$                             

79 22-477-011 33-02-02-22-477-011 TELFER, MARY K 4556 EASTWOOD DR 0.3440 0.3440 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.1032 0.12 0.1706% 4,722.29$          0.1238 0.1706% 4,722.29$                       236.11$                             

80 22-477-012 33-02-02-22-477-012 CRICHTON, CHRISTIE L 4554 EASTWOOD DR 0.3440 0.3440 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.1032 0.12 0.1706% 4,722.29$          0.1238 0.1706% 4,722.29$                       236.11$                             

81 22-477-013 33-02-02-22-477-013 STEVENS, A DENISE 4552 EASTWOOD DR 0.3410 0.3410 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.1023 0.12 0.1691% 4,681.10$          0.1228 0.1691% 4,681.10$                       234.06$                             

82 22-477-014 33-02-02-22-477-014 PETERS, KIMBERLY 4550 EASTWOOD DR 0.3480 0.3480 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.1044 0.13 0.1726% 4,777.20$          0.1253 0.1726% 4,777.20$                       238.86$                             

83 22-477-015 33-02-02-22-477-015 MONROE, VICKI LYNN 4546 EASTWOOD DR 0.3440 0.3440 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.1032 0.12 0.1706% 4,722.29$          0.1238 0.1706% 4,722.29$                       236.11$                             

84 22-477-016 33-02-02-22-477-016 MCDOUGALL, GEORGE & CAREY TRUST 4542 EASTWOOD DR 0.4960 0.4960 401 P2 1.20 0.3344 0.1658 0.20 0.2741% 7,588.69$          0.1990 0.2741% 7,588.69$                       379.43$                             

85 22-477-017 33-02-02-22-477-017 SANTONE, ANTOINETTE M 4538 EASTWOOD DR 0.6660 0.6660 401 P2 1.20 0.3144 0.2094 0.25 0.3461% 9,580.99$          0.2513 0.3461% 9,580.99$                       479.05$                             

86 22-477-018 33-02-02-22-477-018 JORDAN, KAROLYN & 4534 EASTWOOD DR 0.4510 0.4510 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.1353 0.16 0.2236% 6,191.13$          0.1624 0.2236% 6,191.13$                       309.56$                             

87 22-477-019 33-02-02-22-477-019 COOPER, CHRISTOPHER SCOTT 4530 EASTWOOD DR 0.3810 0.3810 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.1143 0.14 0.1889% 5,230.21$          0.1372 0.1889% 5,230.21$                       261.51$                             

88 22-477-020 33-02-02-22-477-020 VANHOOGSTRAAT, DEAN P & EMILY M 4526 EASTWOOD DR 0.4800 0.4800 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.1440 0.17 0.2380% 6,589.24$          0.1728 0.2380% 6,589.24$                       329.46$                             

89 22-477-021 33-02-02-22-477-021 CLAUSEN, MARY L 4522 EASTWOOD DR 0.6490 0.2329 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.0699 0.08 0.1155% 3,196.89$          0.0838 0.1155% 3,196.89$                       159.84$                             

90 22-477-022 33-02-02-22-477-022 OFARRELL, PAMELA A TRUST 4518 EASTWOOD DR 0.4280 0.1742 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.0523 0.06 0.0864% 2,391.76$          0.0627 0.0864% 2,391.76$                       119.59$                             

91 22-477-023 33-02-02-22-477-023 SCHENKER, PENNY L 4514 EASTWOOD DR 0.3440 0.1739 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.0522 0.06 0.0862% 2,386.91$          0.0626 0.0862% 2,386.91$                       119.35$                             

92 22-477-024 33-02-02-22-477-024 HAMMOND, MARLENE J 4512 EASTWOOD DR 0.3440 0.1821 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.0546 0.07 0.0903% 2,500.20$          0.0656 0.0903% 2,500.20$                       125.01$                             

93 22-477-025 33-02-02-22-477-025 LUTER, RUTH A TRUST 4506 MARLBOROUGH RD 0.3440 0.2663 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.0799 0.10 0.1321% 3,656.30$          0.0959 0.1321% 3,656.30$                       182.81$                             

94 22-477-026 33-02-02-22-477-026 FITCH, CHARLES W & JANE A 4579 OAKWOOD DR 0.3440 0.3440 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.1032 0.10 0.1422% 3,935.24$          0.1032 0.1422% 3,935.24$                       196.76$                             

95 22-477-027 33-02-02-22-477-027 BRONSON TRUST, ALLAN G & JANET E 4569 OAKWOOD DR 0.3440 0.2266 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0680 0.07 0.0936% 2,592.23$          0.0680 0.0936% 2,592.23$                       129.61$                             

96 22-477-028 33-02-02-22-477-028 WATRALL, ETHAN C & DARJES, JENNIFER 4559 OAKWOOD DR 0.3440 0.2046 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0614 0.06 0.0846% 2,340.86$          0.0614 0.0846% 2,340.86$                       117.04$                             

97 22-477-029 33-02-02-22-477-029 KUKOWSKI, KAYLA & EVAN 4549 OAKWOOD DR 0.3440 0.2038 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0611 0.06 0.0842% 2,331.67$          0.0611 0.0842% 2,331.67$                       116.58$                             

98 22-477-030 33-02-02-22-477-030 MEDICK, JOHN J 4541 OAKWOOD DR 0.3440 0.2036 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0611 0.06 0.0841% 2,329.50$          0.0611 0.0841% 2,329.50$                       116.48$                             

99 22-477-031 33-02-02-22-477-031 SALEHI, HABIB & JOAN 4531 OAKWOOD DR 0.3440 0.2031 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0609 0.06 0.0839% 2,323.19$          0.0609 0.0839% 2,323.19$                       116.16$                             

100 22-477-032 33-02-02-22-477-032 STEFFEL, ANDREW & SUSAN 4521 OAKWOOD DR 0.3440 0.1835 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0551 0.06 0.0758% 2,099.36$          0.0551 0.0758% 2,099.36$                       104.97$                             

101 22-477-033 33-02-02-22-477-033 JOHNSON, BRANT 4515 OAKWOOD DR 0.3440 0.0446 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0134 0.01 0.0184% 510.08$             0.0134 0.0184% 510.08$                          25.50$                               

102 22-478-001 33-02-02-22-478-001 TERRY, KENNETH & 4600 OAKWOOD DR 0.3790 0.3790 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.1137 0.11 0.1566% 4,335.63$          0.1137 0.1566% 4,335.63$                       216.78$                             

103 22-478-002 33-02-02-22-478-002 STANAWAY, BRETT & JILLIAN 4590 OAKWOOD DR 0.3440 0.3440 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.1032 0.10 0.1422% 3,935.24$          0.1032 0.1422% 3,935.24$                       196.76$                             

104 22-478-003 33-02-02-22-478-003 SCOFES, GEORGE STEPHEN 4580 OAKWOOD DR 0.3440 0.3440 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.1032 0.10 0.1422% 3,935.24$          0.1032 0.1422% 3,935.24$                       196.76$                             

105 22-478-004 33-02-02-22-478-004 JOHNSON, ZACHARY Q & KATRINA 4570 OAKWOOD DR 0.3440 0.2126 401 P1 1.00 0.2335 0.0496 0.05 0.0684% 1,893.21$          0.0496 0.0684% 1,893.21$                       94.66$                               

106 22-478-005 33-02-02-22-478-005 BEADERSTADT, RICHARD E & 4560 OAKWOOD DR 0.3440 0.1646 401 P1 1.00 0.1830 0.0301 0.03 0.0415% 1,148.82$          0.0301 0.0415% 1,148.82$                       57.44$                               

107 22-478-006 33-02-02-22-478-006 ZIMMERMAN, ANN 4550 OAKWOOD DR 0.3440 0.1445 401 P1 1.00 0.2974 0.0430 0.04 0.0592% 1,638.70$          0.0430 0.0592% 1,638.70$                       81.94$                               

108 22-478-007 33-02-02-22-478-007 PETERS, SUSAN J REV TRUST #1 4542 OAKWOOD DR 0.3440 0.1477 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0443 0.04 0.0610% 1,689.30$          0.0443 0.0610% 1,689.30$                       84.47$                               

109 22-478-008 33-02-02-22-478-008 LAMMERS, DONALD & GIOVANNA TRUSTEES 4532 OAKWOOD DR 0.3440 0.1525 401 P1 1.00 0.2993 0.0456 0.05 0.0629% 1,740.45$          0.0456 0.0629% 1,740.45$                       87.02$                               

110 22-478-009 33-02-02-22-478-009 KEITH, DANNY C & JENNIFER 4522 OAKWOOD DR 0.3440 0.1534 401 P1 1.00 0.2816 0.0432 0.04 0.0595% 1,647.51$          0.0432 0.0595% 1,647.51$                       82.38$                               

111 22-478-010 33-02-02-22-478-010 STEBBINS, BONNIE J 4516 OAKWOOD DR 0.3440 0.1578 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0473 0.05 0.0652% 1,805.15$          0.0473 0.0652% 1,805.15$                       90.26$                               

112 22-478-011 33-02-02-22-478-011 HUGHES, PATRICIA D TRUSTEE 4506 OAKWOOD DR 0.3440 0.1612 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0484 0.05 0.0666% 1,844.23$          0.0484 0.0666% 1,844.23$                       92.21$                               

113 23-151-008 33-02-02-23-151-008 POWELL ROAD HOLDING LLC 1494 SILVERSTONE WAY 0.3980 0.0327 402 P2 1.20 0.1500 0.0049 0.01 0.0081% 224.57$             0.0059 0.0081% 224.57$                          11.23$                               

114 23-151-009 33-02-02-23-151-009 POWELL ROAD HOLDING LLC 1494 SILVERSTONE WAY 0.3980 0.0931 402 P2 1.20 0.1500 0.0140 0.02 0.0231% 639.12$             0.0168 0.0231% 639.12$                          31.96$                               

115 23-152-001 33-02-02-23-152-001 POWELL ROAD HOLDING LLC 1495 SILVERSTONE WAY 0.3810 0.3810 402 P2 1.20 0.1500 0.0572 0.07 0.0945% 2,615.10$          0.0686 0.0945% 2,615.10$                       130.76$                             

116 23-152-002 33-02-02-23-152-002 POWELL ROAD HOLDING LLC 1493 SILVERSTONE WAY 0.4190 0.3583 402 P2 1.20 0.1500 0.0537 0.06 0.0888% 2,459.04$          0.0645 0.0888% 2,459.04$                       122.95$                             

117 23-152-003 33-02-02-23-152-003 POWELL ROAD HOLDING LLC 1491 SILVERSTONE WAY 0.3870 0.2552 402 P2 1.20 0.1647 0.0420 0.05 0.0695% 1,923.56$          0.0504 0.0695% 1,923.56$                       96.18$                               

118 23-152-004 33-02-02-23-152-004 POWELL ROAD HOLDING LLC 1489 SILVERSTONE WAY 0.3850 0.0847 402 P2 1.20 0.2000 0.0169 0.02 0.0280% 775.33$             0.0203 0.0280% 775.33$                          38.77$                               

119 23-176-002 33-02-02-23-176-002 LEDEBUHR, DAVID S & JANE V TRUSTEES 4767 CORNELL RD 78.2000 1.8144 401 P1 1.00 0.1639 0.2974 0.30 0.4096% 11,338.87$        0.2974 0.4096% 11,338.87$                     566.94$                             

120 23-301-001 33-02-02-23-301-001 NEW CHINA OF MI, INC 4714 POWELL RD 0.5000 0.5000 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.1500 0.15 0.2066% 5,719.82$          0.1500 0.2066% 5,719.82$                       285.99$                             

121 23-301-003 33-02-02-23-301-003 BECKETT JR, FREDERICK W TRUSTEE 4684 POWELL RD 0.3600 0.3600 401 P1 1.00 0.3069 0.1105 0.11 0.1522% 4,212.85$          0.1105 0.1522% 4,212.85$                       210.64$                             

122 23-301-008 33-02-02-23-301-008 PERNA, GAETANO TRUSTEE 1410 GRAND RIVER AVE 0.4600 0.1063 201 P1 1.00 0.4187 0.0445 0.04 0.0613% 1,696.59$          0.0445 0.0613% 1,696.59$                       84.83$                               

123 23-301-012 33-02-02-23-301-012 PERNA, GAETANO TRUSTEE GRAND RIVER AVE 20.5300 6.1495 201 P2 1.20 0.2040 1.2543 1.51 2.0732% 57,393.17$        1.5051 2.0732% 57,393.17$                     2,869.66$                          

124 23-301-013 33-02-02-23-301-013 LAG WIXOM LLC 1492 GRAND RIVER AVE 5.5330 5.5330 201 P2 1.20 0.3022 1.6718 2.01 2.7634% 76,500.52$        2.0062 2.7634% 76,500.52$                     3,825.03$                          

125 23-302-001 33-02-02-23-302-001 POWELL ROAD HOLDING LLC 4724 POWELL RD 0.8100 0.4417 402 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.1325 0.13 0.1825% 5,052.53$          0.1325 0.1825% 5,052.53$                       252.63$                             

126 23-302-900 33-02-02-23-302-900 POWELL ROAD HOLDING LLC POWELL RD 3.4100 2.9118 402 P2 1.20 0.1586 0.4617 0.55 0.7631% 21,125.97$        0.5540 0.7631% 21,125.97$                     1,056.30$                          

127 23-351-002 33-02-02-23-351-002 MERIDIAN MEADOWS APTS STANEV LLC 4555 PADDOCK DR 21.5880 20.8767 201 P1 1.00 0.3838 8.0129 8.01 11.0373% 305,548.48$      8.0129 11.0373% 305,548.48$                   15,277.42$                       

128 23-351-005 33-02-02-23-351-005 PONDS COOPERATIVE HOMES INC THE 1445 E POND DR 9.3700 9.3700 201 P3 1.40 0.4032 3.7778 5.29 7.2852% 201,679.07$      5.2890 7.2852% 201,679.07$                   10,083.95$                       

129 23-351-006 33-02-02-23-351-006 HDI TREETOPS PADDOCK DR 1.8000 1.8000 202 P2 1.20 0.3002 0.5403 0.65 0.8931% 24,724.85$        0.6484 0.8931% 24,724.85$                     1,236.24$                          

3/11/2022 2 of 5



Daniels Drain Meridian Township Proposed Assessments

ROLLNUM TAX NUM PARCELNUM OWNERNAME PROPSTREET TOTAL ACRES BENEFIT ACRES PROPCLASS P Code P C C x A C x A x P C x A x P %

 C x A x P 

Amount 

Commons 

Adjusted                

C x A x P Adjusted CAP Pct  Adjusted CAP Amount 

 20 Year Installment 

Payment Estimate 

130 23-352-001 33-02-02-23-352-001 DINGMAN-SNACHEZ, RUTH T 1440 TREETOP DR 0.0143 0.0143 401 P1 1.00 0.3362 0.0048 0.0048 0.0066% 183.59$             0.0434 0.0597% 1,653.82$                       82.69$                               

131 23-352-001C 33-02-02-23-352-001C TREETOP CONDO COMMON AREA TREETOP DR 0.8820 0.8820 0 P1 1.00 0.3497 0.3084 0.3084 0.4249% 11,761.85$        0.0000 0.0000% -$                                 -$                                   

132 23-352-002 33-02-02-23-352-002 KABEER, AHMAD & SAJEDA 1442 TREETOP DR 0.0143 0.0143 401 P1 1.00 0.3362 0.0048 0.0048 0.0066% 183.59$             0.0434 0.0597% 1,653.82$                       82.69$                               

133 23-352-003 33-02-02-23-352-003 WU, JIN & 1446 TREETOP DR 0.0143 0.0143 401 P1 1.00 0.3292 0.0047 0.0047 0.0065% 179.78$             0.0433 0.0596% 1,650.02$                       82.50$                               

134 23-352-004 33-02-02-23-352-004 SIGMON, TYLER G 1444 TREETOP DR 0.0143 0.0143 401 P1 1.00 0.3292 0.0047 0.0047 0.0065% 179.78$             0.0433 0.0596% 1,650.02$                       82.50$                               

135 23-352-005 33-02-02-23-352-005 HDI BUILDERS INC TREETOP DR 0.0143 0.0143 402 P1 1.00 0.3223 0.0046 0.0046 0.0064% 175.97$             0.0432 0.0595% 1,646.21$                       82.31$                               

136 23-352-006 33-02-02-23-352-006 HDI BUILDERS INC TREETOP DR 0.0143 0.0143 402 P1 1.00 0.3223 0.0046 0.0046 0.0064% 175.97$             0.0432 0.0595% 1,646.21$                       82.31$                               

137 23-352-007 33-02-02-23-352-007 HDI BUILDERS INC TREETOP DR 0.0143 0.0143 402 P1 1.00 0.3153 0.0045 0.0045 0.0062% 172.17$             0.0431 0.0593% 1,642.41$                       82.12$                               

138 23-352-008 33-02-02-23-352-008 HDI BUILDERS INC TREETOP DR 0.0143 0.0143 402 P1 1.00 0.3153 0.0045 0.0045 0.0062% 172.17$             0.0431 0.0593% 1,642.41$                       82.12$                               

139 23-353-001 33-02-02-23-353-001 WALLACE, JACK E & HIEU L 1403 IVYWOOD DR 0.2950 0.2950 401 P1 1.00 0.3204 0.0945 0.09 0.1302% 3,604.43$          0.0945 0.1302% 3,604.43$                       180.22$                             

140 23-353-002 33-02-02-23-353-002 LI, HAIRONG & JIANG, YING 1415 IVYWOOD DR 0.3230 0.3230 401 P1 1.00 0.3446 0.1113 0.11 0.1533% 4,244.58$          0.1113 0.1533% 4,244.58$                       212.23$                             

141 23-353-003 33-02-02-23-353-003 VAIL, LUCY & ROGER 1417 IVYWOOD DR 0.2750 0.2750 401 P1 1.00 0.3461 0.0952 0.10 0.1311% 3,629.26$          0.0952 0.1311% 3,629.26$                       181.46$                             

142 23-353-004 33-02-02-23-353-004 ESWARAN-PILLAI, SWARNAVEL & 1423 IVYWOOD DR 0.2760 0.2760 401 P1 1.00 0.3397 0.0937 0.09 0.1291% 3,574.84$          0.0937 0.1291% 3,574.84$                       178.74$                             

143 23-353-005 33-02-02-23-353-005 THOMAS, ROBERT M & CAROLYN L 1429 IVYWOOD DR 0.2750 0.2750 401 P1 1.00 0.3331 0.0916 0.09 0.1262% 3,493.10$          0.0916 0.1262% 3,493.10$                       174.66$                             

144 23-353-006 33-02-02-23-353-006 LEE, SUNG KI & HYUN JIN 1435 IVYWOOD DR 0.2740 0.2740 401 P1 1.00 0.3266 0.0895 0.09 0.1233% 3,412.28$          0.0895 0.1233% 3,412.28$                       170.61$                             

145 23-353-007 33-02-02-23-353-007 MAALI, MANOUC & IPLAKCHI, NAHID 1441 IVYWOOD DR 0.2740 0.2740 401 P1 1.00 0.3553 0.0974 0.10 0.1341% 3,712.74$          0.0974 0.1341% 3,712.74$                       185.64$                             

146 23-353-008 33-02-02-23-353-008 MCALVEY, MICHAEL K & LINDA L 1455 IVYWOOD DR 0.9270 0.9270 401 P1 1.00 0.3233 0.2997 0.30 0.4128% 11,428.99$        0.2997 0.4128% 11,428.99$                     571.45$                             

147 23-353-009 33-02-02-23-353-009 HU, HUYI 1473 IVYWOOD DR 0.7900 0.7900 401 P1 1.00 0.3193 0.2523 0.25 0.3475% 9,619.13$          0.2523 0.3475% 9,619.13$                       480.96$                             

148 23-353-010 33-02-02-23-353-010 CAMPBELL, BRUCE B & SULIN 1491 IVYWOOD DR 0.4570 0.4570 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.1371 0.14 0.1888% 5,227.92$          0.1371 0.1888% 5,227.92$                       261.40$                             

149 23-353-011 33-02-02-23-353-011 PAIGE, SHAWN D & GRETCHEN P RV TRST 1494 IVYWOOD DR 0.5340 0.5340 401 P1 1.00 0.2110 0.1127 0.11 0.1552% 4,295.72$          0.1127 0.1552% 4,295.72$                       214.79$                             

150 23-353-012 33-02-02-23-353-012 MEYER, JONATHAN S & CHERI M 1486 IVYWOOD DR 0.5380 0.5380 401 P1 1.00 0.2666 0.1434 0.14 0.1976% 5,469.24$          0.1434 0.1976% 5,469.24$                       273.46$                             

151 23-353-013 33-02-02-23-353-013 KANG, HAE JIN 1478 IVYWOOD DR 0.3190 0.3190 401 P1 1.00 0.3162 0.1009 0.10 0.1390% 3,846.81$          0.1009 0.1390% 3,846.81$                       192.34$                             

152 23-353-014 33-02-02-23-353-014 WAKEMAN, JONATHAN E & 1470 IVYWOOD DR 0.3220 0.3220 401 P1 1.00 0.3106 0.1000 0.10 0.1378% 3,813.94$          0.1000 0.1378% 3,813.94$                       190.70$                             

153 23-353-015 33-02-02-23-353-015 LAMBERT, KEITH & 1462 IVYWOOD DR 0.2750 0.2750 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0825 0.08 0.1136% 3,145.90$          0.0825 0.1136% 3,145.90$                       157.30$                             

154 23-353-016 33-02-02-23-353-016 KORKMAZ, SINEM 1454 IVYWOOD DR 0.2750 0.2750 401 P1 1.00 0.3118 0.0858 0.09 0.1181% 3,269.91$          0.0858 0.1181% 3,269.91$                       163.50$                             

155 23-353-017 33-02-02-23-353-017 JEONG, SANGHYUP 1448 IVYWOOD DR 0.2750 0.2750 401 P1 1.00 0.3358 0.0923 0.09 0.1272% 3,521.27$          0.0923 0.1272% 3,521.27$                       176.06$                             

156 23-353-018 33-02-02-23-353-018 TAN, FRANK SONGYANG & 1442 IVYWOOD DR 0.2750 0.2750 401 P1 1.00 0.3360 0.0924 0.09 0.1273% 3,523.46$          0.0924 0.1273% 3,523.46$                       176.17$                             

157 23-353-019 33-02-02-23-353-019 NGUYEN, PHU H 1436 IVYWOOD DR 0.2750 0.2750 401 P1 1.00 0.3362 0.0925 0.09 0.1274% 3,525.69$          0.0925 0.1274% 3,525.69$                       176.28$                             

158 23-353-020 33-02-02-23-353-020 VANSTEEL, ERIC C & LAUREN G 1430 IVYWOOD DR 0.2750 0.2750 401 P1 1.00 0.3364 0.0925 0.09 0.1274% 3,527.93$          0.0925 0.1274% 3,527.93$                       176.40$                             

159 23-353-021 33-02-02-23-353-021 ODEKIRK, GUY MICHAEL 1424 IVYWOOD DR 0.2750 0.2750 401 P1 1.00 0.3366 0.0926 0.09 0.1275% 3,530.16$          0.0926 0.1275% 3,530.16$                       176.51$                             

160 23-353-022 33-02-02-23-353-022 KE, HEZAO & 1418 IVYWOOD DR 0.2410 0.2410 401 P1 1.00 0.3370 0.0812 0.08 0.1119% 3,097.11$          0.0812 0.1119% 3,097.11$                       154.86$                             

161 23-353-023 33-02-02-23-353-023 CORNELL WOODS ASSOCIATION IVYWOOD DR 0.0000 0.0000 402 P1 1.00 0.0000 0.0000 0.00 0.0000% -$                    0.0000 0.0000% -$                                 -$                                   

162 23-353-024 33-02-02-23-353-024 KINTZ, TARA M & 1412 IVYWOOD DR 0.5990 0.5990 401 P1 1.00 0.2710 0.1624 0.16 0.2236% 6,190.85$          0.1624 0.2236% 6,190.85$                       309.54$                             

163 23-353-025 33-02-02-23-353-025 BEERS, KIM-VAN T 1406 IVYWOOD DR 0.4830 0.4830 401 P1 1.00 0.2756 0.1331 0.13 0.1834% 5,076.60$          0.1331 0.1834% 5,076.60$                       253.83$                             

164 23-353-026 33-02-02-23-353-026 JAISWAL, RAVINDRA & JIGYASHA 1400 IVYWOOD DR 0.5180 0.5180 401 P2 1.20 0.3310 0.1715 0.21 0.2834% 7,846.79$          0.2058 0.2834% 7,846.79$                       392.34$                             

165 23-376-002 33-02-02-23-376-002 MILLIGAN EASTSIDE LLC 1284 GRAND RIVER AVE 2.9820 1.1484 201 P1 1.00 0.2704 0.3106 0.31 0.4278% 11,842.65$        0.3106 0.4278% 11,842.65$                     592.13$                             

166 23-377-008 33-02-02-23-377-008 DUROW, GARY W TRUST 1259 GRAND RIVER AVE 1.4870 0.1402 201 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0421 0.04 0.0579% 1,603.60$          0.0421 0.0579% 1,603.60$                       80.18$                               

167 23-377-009 33-02-02-23-377-009 LUCAS, ROSS T JR & CAROLYN S 4555 CORNELL RD 1.6530 0.6350 401 P1 1.00 0.3064 0.1945 0.19 0.2680% 7,418.05$          0.1945 0.2680% 7,418.05$                       370.90$                             

168 23-377-011 33-02-02-23-377-011 POTTERPIN, TERRY A & RONALD J 1250 ETHEL ST 0.9100 0.0505 401 P1 1.00 0.3027 0.0153 0.02 0.0211% 583.29$             0.0913 0.1257% 3,480.63$                       174.03$                             

169 23-378-001 33-02-02-23-378-001 BISWAS, SUBIR K & KOVUMAL P 4505 MISTYWOOD DR 0.4510 0.4510 401 P1 1.00 0.3564 0.1607 0.16 0.2214% 6,129.24$          0.2367 0.3261% 9,026.58$                       451.33$                             

170 23-378-002 33-02-02-23-378-002 GOOD, SHAWN DOUGLAS & VALERIE D 4519 MISTYWOOD DR 0.4240 0.4240 401 P1 1.00 0.3686 0.1563 0.16 0.2153% 5,959.64$          0.2323 0.3199% 8,856.98$                       442.85$                             

171 23-378-003 33-02-02-23-378-003 MOTALLEBI, BADRI VAHEDIAN 1339 S SPICEWOOD DR 0.3570 0.3570 401 P1 1.00 0.3069 0.1096 0.11 0.1509% 4,178.08$          0.1856 0.2556% 7,075.43$                       353.77$                             

172 23-379-001 33-02-02-23-379-001 JAMES, NATHAN & KELLY 4559 N SPICEWOOD DR 0.3030 0.1815 401 P1 1.00 0.4000 0.0726 0.07 0.1000% 2,768.30$          0.1486 0.2047% 5,665.65$                       283.28$                             

173 23-379-002 33-02-02-23-379-002 MASSA, GERALD R & MARILYN O 4565 N SPICEWOOD DR 0.3310 0.3310 401 P1 1.00 0.3591 0.1188 0.12 0.1637% 4,531.95$          0.1948 0.2684% 7,429.30$                       371.46$                             

174 23-379-003 33-02-02-23-379-003 MA, HUIBO HEIDI & WANG, HONGBING 4573 N SPICEWOOD DR 0.3850 0.3850 401 P1 1.00 0.3441 0.1325 0.13 0.1825% 5,050.99$          0.2084 0.2871% 7,948.34$                       397.42$                             

175 23-379-004 33-02-02-23-379-004 KING, MICHAEL J & KIMBERLEY S 4581 N SPICEWOOD DR 0.3870 0.3870 401 P1 1.00 0.3341 0.1293 0.13 0.1781% 4,930.00$          0.2053 0.2827% 7,827.35$                       391.37$                             

176 23-379-005 33-02-02-23-379-005 WHISPERING OAKS ASSOCIATION MISTYWOOD DR 0.0000 8.3555 402 P1 1.00 0.2728 2.2795 2.28 3.1398% 86,920.42$        0.0000 0.0000% -$                                 -$                                   

177 23-379-006 33-02-02-23-379-006 ENGAN, KAREN E TRUSTEE 4585 MISTYWOOD DR 0.4190 0.4190 401 P1 1.00 0.3926 0.1645 0.16 0.2266% 6,273.30$          0.2405 0.3313% 9,170.64$                       458.53$                             

178 23-379-007 33-02-02-23-379-007 SERGENT, DARLENE K TRUSTEE 4591 MISTYWOOD DR 0.4160 0.4160 401 P1 1.00 0.3444 0.1433 0.14 0.1973% 5,462.49$          0.2192 0.3020% 8,359.84$                       417.99$                             

179 23-379-008 33-02-02-23-379-008 DEGAN, SHANNON T & KRISTEN L 4599 MISTYWOOD DR 0.4160 0.4160 401 P1 1.00 0.3004 0.1250 0.12 0.1721% 4,764.64$          0.2009 0.2768% 7,661.99$                       383.10$                             

180 23-379-009 33-02-02-23-379-009 BROUGHTON, FLEUR 4590 MISTYWOOD DR 0.4160 0.4160 401 P1 1.00 0.3055 0.1271 0.13 0.1751% 4,846.46$          0.2031 0.2797% 7,743.81$                       387.19$                             

181 23-379-010 33-02-02-23-379-010 DAVIS, ANITA V 4582 MISTYWOOD DR 0.4160 0.4160 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.1248 0.12 0.1719% 4,759.07$          0.2008 0.2766% 7,656.42$                       382.82$                             

182 23-379-011 33-02-02-23-379-011 MCALVEY, DAVID G & LISA J 4574 MISTYWOOD DR 0.3920 0.3920 401 P1 1.00 0.2599 0.1019 0.10 0.1403% 3,884.78$          0.1779 0.2450% 6,782.12$                       339.11$                             

183 23-379-012 33-02-02-23-379-012 BILLS, KENNETH L & JAMIE 4566 MISTYWOOD DR 0.3790 0.3790 401 P1 1.00 0.2442 0.0926 0.09 0.1275% 3,529.75$          0.1685 0.2322% 6,427.10$                       321.35$                             

184 23-379-013 33-02-02-23-379-013 BURAK, KRISTOPHER M & NOELLE C 4558 MISTYWOOD DR 0.2540 0.2540 401 P1 1.00 0.3044 0.0773 0.08 0.1065% 2,948.28$          0.1533 0.2112% 5,845.62$                       292.28$                             

185 23-379-014 33-02-02-23-379-014 LAPHAM, KIRK A & KIMBERLY J 4540 MISTYWOOD DR 0.3100 0.3100 401 P1 1.00 0.3179 0.0985 0.10 0.1357% 3,757.90$          0.1745 0.2404% 6,655.24$                       332.76$                             

186 23-379-015 33-02-02-23-379-015 VIJ, PANKAJ & GHANDI, GARIMA 4532 MISTYWOOD DR 0.3100 0.3100 401 P1 1.00 0.3032 0.0940 0.09 0.1295% 3,584.37$          0.1700 0.2341% 6,481.72$                       324.09$                             

187 23-379-016 33-02-02-23-379-016 ZHOU, ZHENGFANG & WU, PEIRU 4524 MISTYWOOD DR 0.3100 0.3100 401 P1 1.00 0.3152 0.0977 0.10 0.1346% 3,725.88$          0.1737 0.2393% 6,623.23$                       331.16$                             

188 23-379-017 33-02-02-23-379-017 DOXIE, SHULAWN L & WILLIAM H 4516 MISTYWOOD DR 0.3280 0.3280 401 P1 1.00 0.2967 0.0973 0.10 0.1341% 3,711.20$          0.1733 0.2387% 6,608.55$                       330.43$                             

189 23-379-018 33-02-02-23-379-018 CHO, JAE YOUL & 4508 MISTYWOOD DR 0.4760 0.4340 401 P2 1.20 0.3258 0.1414 0.17 0.2337% 6,470.81$          0.2457 0.3384% 9,368.16$                       468.41$                             

190 23-380-001 33-02-02-23-380-001 LIU, HUI & ZHANG, PENG 1338 S SPICEWOOD DR 0.2200 0.2200 401 P1 1.00 0.3554 0.0782 0.08 0.1077% 2,981.33$          0.1542 0.2124% 5,878.68$                       293.93$                             

191 23-380-002 33-02-02-23-380-002 CHASE, STEVEN & JOY 1324 S SPICEWOOD DR 0.3100 0.1977 401 P1 1.00 0.3043 0.0602 0.06 0.0829% 2,294.70$          0.1362 0.1876% 5,192.05$                       259.60$                             

192 23-380-003 33-02-02-23-380-003 CARR, GARY & SUSAN M 1310 S SPICEWOOD DR 0.3100 0.1975 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0593 0.06 0.0816% 2,259.34$          0.1352 0.1863% 5,156.69$                       257.83$                             

193 23-380-005 33-02-02-23-380-005 SHAPIRO, ERIK M & KAREN O 4548 N SPICEWOOD DR 0.2810 0.0569 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0171 0.02 0.0235% 650.92$             0.0931 0.1282% 3,548.27$                       177.41$                             

194 23-380-006 33-02-02-23-380-006 MCCARTHY, SAMUEL 4554 N SPICEWOOD DR 0.2780 0.1791 401 P1 1.00 0.3598 0.0644 0.06 0.0888% 2,457.24$          0.1404 0.1934% 5,354.58$                       267.73$                             

195 23-380-007 33-02-02-23-380-007 GURBUZ, AYCA 4562 N SPICEWOOD DR 0.2970 0.2970 401 P1 1.00 0.3927 0.1166 0.12 0.1607% 4,447.83$          0.1926 0.2653% 7,345.18$                       367.26$                             

196 23-380-008 33-02-02-23-380-008 BURCHMAN, JEREMY & KIMBERLY 4571 MISTYWOOD DR 0.3440 0.3440 401 P1 1.00 0.3917 0.1347 0.13 0.1856% 5,137.97$          0.2107 0.2903% 8,035.32$                       401.77$                             

197 23-380-009 33-02-02-23-380-009 NUGENT, CHRISTOPHER & LAURA 4563 MISTYWOOD DR 0.2930 0.2930 401 P1 1.00 0.3399 0.0996 0.10 0.1372% 3,798.04$          0.1756 0.2419% 6,695.39$                       334.77$                             

198 23-380-010 33-02-02-23-380-010 BURGESS, GARY J & CHRISTINE M 4551 MISTYWOOD DR 0.3520 0.3520 401 P1 1.00 0.3035 0.1068 0.11 0.1471% 4,073.19$          0.1828 0.2518% 6,970.54$                       348.53$                             

199 26-101-001 33-02-02-26-101-001 OSBORN, MICHAEL S & MARLENE 1494 FOREST HILLS DR 0.4590 0.4045 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.1213 0.12 0.1671% 4,626.79$          0.1213 0.1671% 4,626.79$                       231.34$                             

200 26-101-002 33-02-02-26-101-002 CORDILL, TODD Y & HOLLY J TRUSTEES 1484 FOREST HILLS DR 0.4590 0.4151 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.1245 0.12 0.1716% 4,749.07$          0.1245 0.1716% 4,749.07$                       237.45$                             

201 26-101-003 33-02-02-26-101-003 DAVIDSON, CARLA C & 1474 FOREST HILLS DR 0.4590 0.3707 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.1112 0.11 0.1532% 4,240.68$          0.1112 0.1532% 4,240.68$                       212.03$                             

202 26-101-004 33-02-02-26-101-004 MURLEY, DAVID & HUBBARD, SARAH 1462 FOREST HILLS DR 0.4590 0.3061 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0918 0.09 0.1265% 3,501.21$          0.0918 0.1265% 3,501.21$                       175.06$                             

203 26-101-005 33-02-02-26-101-005 HENRY, ANDREW GEORGE & 1452 FOREST HILLS DR 0.4590 0.2993 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0898 0.09 0.1237% 3,424.27$          0.0898 0.1237% 3,424.27$                       171.21$                             

204 26-101-006 33-02-02-26-101-006 GUNNELL, BRIAN A 1440 FOREST HILLS DR 0.4590 0.2969 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0891 0.09 0.1227% 3,395.95$          0.0891 0.1227% 3,395.95$                       169.80$                             

205 26-101-007 33-02-02-26-101-007 BLOOM, GABRIELLE E 1430 FOREST HILLS DR 0.4590 0.2957 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0887 0.09 0.1222% 3,382.65$          0.0887 0.1222% 3,382.65$                       169.13$                             

206 26-101-008 33-02-02-26-101-008 EL-AHMAD, SAMIR S & HIKMAT 1420 FOREST HILLS DR 0.5740 0.2959 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0888 0.09 0.1223% 3,384.74$          0.0888 0.1223% 3,384.74$                       169.24$                             

3/11/2022 3 of 5



Daniels Drain Meridian Township Proposed Assessments

ROLLNUM TAX NUM PARCELNUM OWNERNAME PROPSTREET TOTAL ACRES BENEFIT ACRES PROPCLASS P Code P C C x A C x A x P C x A x P %

 C x A x P 

Amount 

Commons 

Adjusted                

C x A x P Adjusted CAP Pct  Adjusted CAP Amount 

 20 Year Installment 

Payment Estimate 

207 26-105-001 33-02-02-26-105-001 LAWLER, CHARLES A & KAREN E 4466 ARBOR DR 0.4020 0.0702 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0210 0.02 0.0290% 802.68$             0.0210 0.0290% 802.68$                          40.13$                               

208 26-105-002 33-02-02-26-105-002 ODONNELL, BONNIE 4458 ARBOR DR 0.3290 0.1853 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0556 0.06 0.0766% 2,119.27$          0.0556 0.0766% 2,119.27$                       105.96$                             

209 26-105-003 33-02-02-26-105-003 ELIAS, MARY L 4454 ARBOR DR 0.3670 0.2117 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0635 0.06 0.0875% 2,421.57$          0.0635 0.0875% 2,421.57$                       121.08$                             

210 26-105-004 33-02-02-26-105-004 ARMSTRONG, WARREN B TRUST 4448 ARBOR DR 0.3670 0.2166 401 P1 1.00 0.3346 0.0725 0.07 0.0998% 2,763.24$          0.0725 0.0998% 2,763.24$                       138.16$                             

211 26-105-005 33-02-02-26-105-005 MARSHALL, KRISTINA M 4438 ARBOR DR 0.3670 0.2208 401 P1 1.00 0.3095 0.0683 0.07 0.0941% 2,605.69$          0.0683 0.0941% 2,605.69$                       130.28$                             

212 26-105-006 33-02-02-26-105-006 MOTT FAMILY REVOCABLE TRUST 4420 ARBOR DR 0.3670 0.2251 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0675 0.07 0.0930% 2,574.56$          0.0675 0.0930% 2,574.56$                       128.73$                             

213 26-105-007 33-02-02-26-105-007 WILLIAMS, ROBERT A 4414 ARBOR DR 0.3880 0.2391 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0717 0.07 0.0988% 2,735.05$          0.0717 0.0988% 2,735.05$                       136.75$                             

214 26-105-008 33-02-02-26-105-008 SKUSA, ERIC SCOTT 4408 ARBOR DR 0.4270 0.1176 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0353 0.04 0.0486% 1,345.50$          0.0353 0.0486% 1,345.50$                       67.27$                               

215 26-105-010 33-02-02-26-105-010 MOE, AUNG 4386 ARBOR DR 0.4970 0.1696 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0509 0.05 0.0701% 1,940.01$          0.0509 0.0701% 1,940.01$                       97.00$                               

216 26-105-011 33-02-02-26-105-011 DALIMONTE, KIM 4374 ARBOR DR 0.5430 0.3700 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.1110 0.11 0.1529% 4,232.73$          0.1110 0.1529% 4,232.73$                       211.64$                             

217 26-105-012 33-02-02-26-105-012 WINGER, KATHRYN 4364 ARBOR DR 0.5530 0.3820 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.1146 0.11 0.1579% 4,370.26$          0.1146 0.1579% 4,370.26$                       218.51$                             

218 26-105-013 33-02-02-26-105-013 WORLEY, PHILIP P & STOKOSA, MELODY 4350 ARBOR DR 0.3820 0.1104 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0331 0.03 0.0456% 1,262.99$          0.0331 0.0456% 1,262.99$                       63.15$                               

219 26-105-014 33-02-02-26-105-014 WAGER, SCOTT & JUDITH 1426 BIRCHWOOD DR 0.3860 0.3523 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.1057 0.11 0.1456% 4,030.67$          0.1057 0.1456% 4,030.67$                       201.53$                             

220 26-106-001 33-02-02-26-106-001 HAMILTON, WILLIAM D & BOYD, JAMIE 1413 FOREST HILLS DR 0.3150 0.2663 401 P1 1.00 0.3237 0.0862 0.09 0.1187% 3,287.22$          0.0862 0.1187% 3,287.22$                       164.36$                             

221 26-106-002 33-02-02-26-106-002 ZHANG, MENG 1407 FOREST HILLS DR 0.4020 0.4020 401 P1 1.00 0.3539 0.1423 0.14 0.1960% 5,424.73$          0.1423 0.1960% 5,424.73$                       271.24$                             

222 26-106-003 33-02-02-26-106-003 DAVIS, CHRISTOPHER 4459 HICKORYWOOD DR 0.4060 0.4060 401 P1 1.00 0.3263 0.1325 0.13 0.1825% 5,052.11$          0.1325 0.1825% 5,052.11$                       252.61$                             

223 26-106-004 33-02-02-26-106-004 MOTSCHENBACHER, GARTH D & STEPHANIE 4453 HICKORYWOOD DR 0.4490 0.4490 401 P1 1.00 0.3091 0.1388 0.14 0.1912% 5,292.17$          0.1388 0.1912% 5,292.17$                       264.61$                             

224 26-106-005 33-02-02-26-106-005 STECOVICH, RYAN P & BETHANY A 4447 HICKORYWOOD DR 0.3560 0.3560 401 P1 1.00 0.3047 0.1085 0.11 0.1494% 4,136.22$          0.1085 0.1494% 4,136.22$                       206.81$                             

225 26-106-006 33-02-02-26-106-006 CHEN, LIANGBIAO & 4441 HICKORYWOOD DR 0.3240 0.3240 401 P1 1.00 0.3073 0.0996 0.10 0.1371% 3,796.21$          0.0996 0.1371% 3,796.21$                       189.81$                             

226 26-106-007 33-02-02-26-106-007 FRAAS, THOMAS E & TRICIA A 4435 HICKORYWOOD DR 0.2750 0.2750 401 P1 1.00 0.3145 0.0865 0.09 0.1191% 3,298.30$          0.0865 0.1191% 3,298.30$                       164.91$                             

227 26-106-008 33-02-02-26-106-008 KAGEY, JONATHAN L & ASHLEY S 4429 HICKORYWOOD DR 0.2750 0.2750 401 P1 1.00 0.3211 0.0883 0.09 0.1216% 3,366.74$          0.0883 0.1216% 3,366.74$                       168.34$                             

228 26-106-009 33-02-02-26-106-009 BEHNKE REVOCABLE TRUST 4423 HICKORYWOOD DR 0.3100 0.3100 401 P1 1.00 0.3280 0.1017 0.10 0.1401% 3,877.83$          0.1017 0.1401% 3,877.83$                       193.89$                             

229 26-106-010 33-02-02-26-106-010 TANIMOTO, HIROSHI & KINUYO 4417 HICKORYWOOD DR 0.3100 0.3100 401 P2 1.20 0.3063 0.0949 0.11 0.1569% 4,344.28$          0.1139 0.1569% 4,344.28$                       217.21$                             

230 26-106-011 33-02-02-26-106-011 OWCZARZAK, RICK M TRUSTEE 4411 HICKORYWOOD DR 0.2750 0.2750 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.0825 0.10 0.1364% 3,775.08$          0.0990 0.1364% 3,775.08$                       188.75$                             

231 26-106-012 33-02-02-26-106-012 HARTWICK, EDWARD F & 4405 HICKORYWOOD DR 0.2750 0.2750 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0825 0.08 0.1136% 3,145.90$          0.0825 0.1136% 3,145.90$                       157.30$                             

232 26-106-013 33-02-02-26-106-013 SMITH, CHRISTOPHER R & ERIN M 4399 HICKORYWOOD DR 0.3100 0.3100 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0930 0.09 0.1281% 3,546.29$          0.0930 0.1281% 3,546.29$                       177.31$                             

233 26-106-014 33-02-02-26-106-014 CHURCH, RICHARD L & JANE E 4393 HICKORYWOOD DR 0.2750 0.2750 401 P1 1.00 0.3050 0.0839 0.08 0.1156% 3,198.86$          0.0839 0.1156% 3,198.86$                       159.94$                             

234 26-106-015 33-02-02-26-106-015 PAVLICK, MICHAEL J & KARIN M 4387 HICKORYWOOD DR 0.3170 0.3170 401 P1 1.00 0.3249 0.1030 0.10 0.1419% 3,927.26$          0.1030 0.1419% 3,927.26$                       196.36$                             

235 26-106-016 33-02-02-26-106-016 NORIEGA JR, JUAN 4381 HICKORYWOOD DR 0.3450 0.3450 401 P1 1.00 0.3402 0.1174 0.12 0.1617% 4,475.95$          0.1174 0.1617% 4,475.95$                       223.80$                             

236 26-107-001 33-02-02-26-107-001 FLESHNER FAMILY TRUST & 1414 FOREST HILLS DR 0.4570 0.4089 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.1227 0.12 0.1690% 4,678.15$          0.1227 0.1690% 4,678.15$                       233.91$                             

237 26-107-002 33-02-02-26-107-002 JAAKSI, DOUGLAS G & JANE C 1408 FOREST HILLS DR 0.5060 0.5060 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.1518 0.15 0.2091% 5,788.46$          0.1518 0.2091% 5,788.46$                       289.42$                             

238 26-107-003 33-02-02-26-107-003 WAGAW, WALELIGN G & 1402 FOREST HILLS DR 0.4710 0.4710 401 P1 1.00 0.3005 0.1415 0.14 0.1950% 5,396.97$          0.1415 0.1950% 5,396.97$                       269.85$                             

239 26-107-004 33-02-02-26-107-004 LEE, LIK CHUAN & ZENG, DIDIANA 4470 HICKORYWOOD DR 0.3590 0.3590 401 P1 1.00 0.3468 0.1245 0.12 0.1715% 4,746.89$          0.1245 0.1715% 4,746.89$                       237.34$                             

240 26-107-005 33-02-02-26-107-005 ENGEDA, ELSABETH 4464 HICKORYWOOD DR 0.3560 0.3560 401 P1 1.00 0.3523 0.1254 0.13 0.1728% 4,782.44$          0.1254 0.1728% 4,782.44$                       239.12$                             

241 26-107-006 33-02-02-26-107-006 RASMUSSEN, CAROLE ANN TRUST 4458 HICKORYWOOD DR 0.3400 0.3400 401 P1 1.00 0.3452 0.1174 0.12 0.1617% 4,475.15$          0.1174 0.1617% 4,475.15$                       223.76$                             

242 26-107-007 33-02-02-26-107-007 DEPPONG, GREGORY J & TAMMY L 4452 HICKORYWOOD DR 0.3150 0.3150 401 P1 1.00 0.3407 0.1073 0.11 0.1478% 4,092.76$          0.1073 0.1478% 4,092.76$                       204.64$                             

243 26-107-008 33-02-02-26-107-008 PLAEHN, SCOTT A & THERESE A 4446 HICKORYWOOD DR 0.2920 0.2920 401 P1 1.00 0.3166 0.0925 0.09 0.1274% 3,525.54$          0.0925 0.1274% 3,525.54$                       176.28$                             

244 26-107-009 33-02-02-26-107-009 FISHEL, ROBERT C & RHONDA TRUST 4440 HICKORYWOOD DR 0.3070 0.3070 401 P1 1.00 0.3222 0.0989 0.10 0.1362% 3,771.41$          0.0989 0.1362% 3,771.41$                       188.57$                             

245 26-107-010 33-02-02-26-107-010 REN, JIANHUA 4434 HICKORYWOOD DR 0.3100 0.3100 401 P1 1.00 0.3131 0.0971 0.10 0.1337% 3,701.01$          0.0971 0.1337% 3,701.01$                       185.05$                             

246 26-107-011 33-02-02-26-107-011 BENEDICT, JOHN C & NICOLE 4428 HICKORYWOOD DR 0.3100 0.3100 401 P1 1.00 0.3059 0.0948 0.09 0.1306% 3,616.21$          0.0948 0.1306% 3,616.21$                       180.81$                             

247 26-107-012 33-02-02-26-107-012 BAINBRIDGE, KENT L & SANDRA 4422 HICKORYWOOD DR 0.3250 0.3250 401 P2 1.20 0.3870 0.1258 0.15 0.2079% 5,755.02$          0.1509 0.2079% 5,755.02$                       287.75$                             

248 26-107-013 33-02-02-26-107-013 PENG, TAIQUAN & HE, ZHANGLI 1392 SILKWOOD DR 0.2790 0.2790 401 P2 1.20 0.3203 0.0894 0.11 0.1477% 4,089.49$          0.1072 0.1477% 4,089.49$                       204.47$                             

249 26-107-014 33-02-02-26-107-014 ALLEN, RICHARD J & SARAH E 4421 SATINWOOD DR 0.3250 0.3250 401 P2 1.20 0.3316 0.1078 0.13 0.1782% 4,932.09$          0.1293 0.1782% 4,932.09$                       246.60$                             

250 26-107-015 33-02-02-26-107-015 VOLKER, MARTIN A & 4427 SATINWOOD DR 0.3270 0.3270 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0981 0.10 0.1351% 3,740.77$          0.0981 0.1351% 3,740.77$                       187.04$                             

251 26-107-016 33-02-02-26-107-016 NOWICKI FAMILY TRUST 4433 SATINWOOD DR 0.3250 0.3250 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0975 0.10 0.1343% 3,717.88$          0.0975 0.1343% 3,717.88$                       185.89$                             

252 26-107-017 33-02-02-26-107-017 PERRY, SAMUEL 4439 SATINWOOD DR 0.3350 0.3350 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.1005 0.10 0.1384% 3,832.28$          0.1005 0.1384% 3,832.28$                       191.61$                             

253 26-107-018 33-02-02-26-107-018 FOLLAND, ROGER A & BARBARA 4445 SATINWOOD DR 0.3200 0.3200 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.0960 0.12 0.1587% 4,392.83$          0.1152 0.1587% 4,392.83$                       219.64$                             

254 26-107-019 33-02-02-26-107-019 DOHER, PAUL M & ELIZABETH 4451 SATINWOOD DR 0.3140 0.3140 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.0942 0.11 0.1557% 4,310.46$          0.1130 0.1557% 4,310.46$                       215.52$                             

255 26-107-020 33-02-02-26-107-020 SAMMARTINO, MARY LYNN 4457 SATINWOOD DR 0.3000 0.3000 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0900 0.09 0.1240% 3,431.89$          0.0900 0.1240% 3,431.89$                       171.59$                             

256 26-107-021 33-02-02-26-107-021 CONN, JOEL RUSSELL & 4463 SATINWOOD DR 0.3000 0.3000 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0900 0.09 0.1240% 3,431.89$          0.0900 0.1240% 3,431.89$                       171.59$                             

257 26-107-022 33-02-02-26-107-022 PUNCH, JERRY L & SUSAN M 4469 SATINWOOD DR 0.3040 0.3040 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.0912 0.11 0.1507% 4,173.18$          0.1094 0.1507% 4,173.18$                       208.66$                             

258 26-107-023 33-02-02-26-107-023 ZARKAR, AMAR & KIRTI 1393 IVYWOOD DR 0.3330 0.3330 401 P2 1.20 0.3153 0.1050 0.13 0.1735% 4,803.98$          0.1260 0.1735% 4,803.98$                       240.20$                             

259 26-107-025 33-02-02-26-107-025 MOESER, ADAM 1399 IVYWOOD DR 0.3430 0.3430 401 P2 1.20 0.3215 0.1103 0.13 0.1823% 5,045.76$          0.1323 0.1823% 5,045.76$                       252.29$                             

260 26-126-002 33-02-02-26-126-002 OKEMOS PUBLIC SCHOOLS 4371 CORNELL RD 10.0000 0.0000 201 P1 1.00 0.0000 0.0000 0.00 0.0000% -$                    0.0000 0.0000% -$                                 -$                                   

261 26-126-004 33-02-02-26-126-004 OKEMOS PUBLIC SCHOOLS CORNELL RD 1.8700 0.0000 202 P1 1.00 0.0000 0.0000 0.00 0.0000% -$                    0.0000 0.0000% -$                                 -$                                   

262 26-127-001 33-02-02-26-127-001 ESCHELBACH, MICHELLE TTEE OF 1384 IVYWOOD DR 0.3850 0.3850 401 P2 1.20 0.3239 0.1247 0.15 0.2061% 5,706.84$          0.1497 0.2061% 5,706.84$                       285.34$                             

263 26-127-002 33-02-02-26-127-002 ZAVADIL, MICHAEL F & CYNTHIA A 1378 IVYWOOD DR 0.3100 0.3100 401 P2 1.20 0.3161 0.0980 0.12 0.1620% 4,484.21$          0.1176 0.1620% 4,484.21$                       224.21$                             

264 26-127-003 33-02-02-26-127-003 JACOBS, MELANIE B 1340 IVYWOOD DR 0.3100 0.3100 401 P2 1.20 0.3047 0.0944 0.11 0.1561% 4,321.75$          0.1133 0.1561% 4,321.75$                       216.09$                             

265 26-127-004 33-02-02-26-127-004 WHITE, DAVID E & GAIL F 1336 IVYWOOD DR 0.3100 0.3100 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.0930 0.11 0.1537% 4,255.55$          0.1116 0.1537% 4,255.55$                       212.78$                             

266 26-127-005 33-02-02-26-127-005 SILKER LIVNG TRUST, CHRISTOPHER & 1332 IVYWOOD DR 0.3100 0.1727 401 P2 1.20 0.3000 0.0518 0.06 0.0856% 2,370.75$          0.0622 0.0856% 2,370.75$                       118.54$                             

267 26-127-006 33-02-02-26-127-006 MENG, MING 1328 IVYWOOD DR 0.3100 0.1114 401 P2 1.20 0.3037 0.0338 0.04 0.0559% 1,547.52$          0.0406 0.0559% 1,547.52$                       77.38$                               

268 26-127-007 33-02-02-26-127-007 PAWAR, MILIND S & MARY F 1324 IVYWOOD DR 0.3100 0.0805 401 P1 1.00 0.3966 0.0319 0.03 0.0440% 1,216.93$          0.0319 0.0440% 1,216.93$                       60.85$                               

269 26-127-008 33-02-02-26-127-008 MASTEN, SUSAN & 1320 IVYWOOD DR 0.7270 0.1291 401 P1 1.00 0.3975 0.0513 0.05 0.0707% 1,957.10$          0.0513 0.0707% 1,957.10$                       97.85$                               

270 26-127-009 33-02-02-26-127-009 FLOYD, TIMOTHY J & MARY JO 1316 IVYWOOD DR 0.6860 0.1483 401 P1 1.00 0.3342 0.0496 0.05 0.0683% 1,889.57$          0.0496 0.0683% 1,889.57$                       94.48$                               

271 26-127-010 33-02-02-26-127-010 MARR, BRET R & JENNA W 1321 IVYWOOD DR 0.6520 0.0904 401 P1 1.00 0.3692 0.0334 0.03 0.0460% 1,273.13$          0.0334 0.0460% 1,273.13$                       63.66$                               

272 26-127-011 33-02-02-26-127-011 CICHY, SHELLEY G & RONALD F TRUSTEE 1325 IVYWOOD DR 0.3970 0.3970 401 P1 1.00 0.3182 0.1263 0.13 0.1740% 4,817.11$          0.1263 0.1740% 4,817.11$                       240.86$                             

273 26-127-012 33-02-02-26-127-012 SIMS, RICHARD J & CAROLYN TRUSTEES 1329 IVYWOOD DR 0.3500 0.3500 401 P2 1.20 0.3743 0.1310 0.16 0.2165% 5,994.62$          0.1572 0.2165% 5,994.62$                       299.73$                             

274 26-127-013 33-02-02-26-127-013 WENG, JOHN JUYANG & MIN GUO 4460 ALDERWOOD DR 0.3530 0.3530 401 P1 1.00 0.3372 0.1190 0.12 0.1640% 4,539.44$          0.1190 0.1640% 4,539.44$                       226.97$                             

275 26-127-014 33-02-02-26-127-014 SHAHINIAN, LEVON & KATHERINE 4454 ALDERWOOD DR 0.3760 0.2934 401 P1 1.00 0.3614 0.1060 0.11 0.1460% 4,043.03$          0.1060 0.1460% 4,043.03$                       202.15$                             

276 26-128-001 33-02-02-26-128-001 ZHANG, XILIN & 1381 IVYWOOD DR 0.3350 0.3350 401 P2 1.20 0.3680 0.1233 0.15 0.2038% 5,640.55$          0.1479 0.2038% 5,640.55$                       282.03$                             

277 26-128-002 33-02-02-26-128-002 WAGNER, JAMES G & MIZUE 4460 SATINWOOD DR 0.3270 0.3270 401 P1 1.00 0.3153 0.1031 0.10 0.1420% 3,931.05$          0.1031 0.1420% 3,931.05$                       196.55$                             

278 26-128-003 33-02-02-26-128-003 FLANDERS, RONALD  & SARA  TRUSTEES 4454 SATINWOOD DR 0.3690 0.3690 401 P1 1.00 0.3075 0.1135 0.11 0.1563% 4,327.35$          0.1135 0.1563% 4,327.35$                       216.37$                             

279 26-128-004 33-02-02-26-128-004 RUPPERT, CHARLOTTE M LIV TRUST 4448 SATINWOOD DR 0.3670 0.3670 401 P2 1.20 0.3130 0.1149 0.14 0.1899% 5,256.30$          0.1378 0.1899% 5,256.30$                       262.82$                             

280 26-128-005 33-02-02-26-128-005 HICKS, SCOTT A & JUNE L 4442 SATINWOOD DR 0.3310 0.3310 401 P2 1.20 0.3342 0.1106 0.13 0.1829% 5,061.91$          0.1327 0.1829% 5,061.91$                       253.10$                             

281 26-128-006 33-02-02-26-128-006 CHEN, JUN & 4436 SATINWOOD DR 0.3190 0.3190 401 P1 1.00 0.3400 0.1085 0.11 0.1494% 4,135.49$          0.1085 0.1494% 4,135.49$                       206.77$                             

282 26-128-007 33-02-02-26-128-007 EZEAMAMA, AMARA & ONYE, BRIGHT 4430 SATINWOOD DR 0.3270 0.3270 401 P1 1.00 0.3291 0.1076 0.11 0.1482% 4,103.86$          0.1076 0.1482% 4,103.86$                       205.19$                             

283 26-128-008 33-02-02-26-128-008 MARKHAM, BRIAN L & JANET K 4424 SATINWOOD DR 0.3250 0.3250 401 P2 1.20 0.3748 0.1218 0.15 0.2013% 5,573.65$          0.1462 0.2013% 5,573.65$                       278.68$                             

3/11/2022 4 of 5



Daniels Drain Meridian Township Proposed Assessments

ROLLNUM TAX NUM PARCELNUM OWNERNAME PROPSTREET TOTAL ACRES BENEFIT ACRES PROPCLASS P Code P C C x A C x A x P C x A x P %

 C x A x P 

Amount 

Commons 

Adjusted                

C x A x P Adjusted CAP Pct  Adjusted CAP Amount 

 20 Year Installment 

Payment Estimate 

284 26-128-009 33-02-02-26-128-009 BELISLE, SIMON & 1374 SILKWOOD DR 0.2790 0.2790 401 P1 1.00 0.3536 0.0986 0.10 0.1359% 3,761.52$          0.0986 0.1359% 3,761.52$                       188.08$                             

285 26-128-010 33-02-02-26-128-010 SEBESTYEN, CAROLYN & MILLER, MEKEL 1341 IVYWOOD DR 0.2850 0.2850 401 P2 1.20 0.3609 0.1028 0.12 0.1700% 4,706.25$          0.1234 0.1700% 4,706.25$                       235.31$                             

286 26-128-011 33-02-02-26-128-011 LEO, FIORE L & ADRIANA M 1337 IVYWOOD DR 0.3330 0.3330 401 P2 1.20 0.3701 0.1232 0.15 0.2037% 5,639.18$          0.1479 0.2037% 5,639.18$                       281.96$                             

287 26-128-012 33-02-02-26-128-012 WU, FELICIA & (TRUSTEES) 4461 ALDERWOOD DR 0.3270 0.3270 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0981 0.10 0.1351% 3,740.77$          0.0981 0.1351% 3,740.77$                       187.04$                             

288 26-128-013 33-02-02-26-128-013 BARONDESS, DAVID A & MARGARET M 4455 ALDERWOOD DR 0.3270 0.3270 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0981 0.10 0.1351% 3,740.76$          0.0981 0.1351% 3,740.76$                       187.04$                             

289 26-128-014 33-02-02-26-128-014 COLE, MICHAEL & MORGAN 4449 ALDERWOOD DR 0.2870 0.2870 401 P1 1.00 0.3002 0.0862 0.09 0.1187% 3,285.76$          0.0862 0.1187% 3,285.76$                       164.29$                             

290 26-128-015 33-02-02-26-128-015 SHERRILL, BRADLEY M & CAROLYN 4443 ALDERWOOD DR 0.3090 0.3090 401 P1 1.00 0.3117 0.0963 0.10 0.1327% 3,672.53$          0.0963 0.1327% 3,672.53$                       183.63$                             

291 26-128-016 33-02-02-26-128-016 CAMERON, LORRAINE L & LANCE W 4435 ALDERWOOD DR 0.3790 0.3790 401 P1 1.00 0.3279 0.1243 0.12 0.1712% 4,739.43$          0.1243 0.1712% 4,739.43$                       236.97$                             

292 26-128-017 33-02-02-26-128-017 KACZMAREK, MARK W & MAUREEN K 4427 ALDERWOOD DR 0.3250 0.3250 401 P1 1.00 0.3011 0.0979 0.10 0.1348% 3,731.49$          0.0979 0.1348% 3,731.49$                       186.57$                             

293 26-128-018 33-02-02-26-128-018 BERI, MUNISH 1366 SILKWOOD DR 0.3250 0.3250 401 P1 1.00 0.3555 0.1155 0.12 0.1592% 4,405.99$          0.1155 0.1592% 4,405.99$                       220.30$                             

294 26-129-001 33-02-02-26-129-001 BROOKS, ROGER I & LANETTE K 1379 SILKWOOD DR 0.3500 0.1202 401 P2 1.20 0.4000 0.0481 0.06 0.0795% 2,200.75$          0.0577 0.0795% 2,200.75$                       110.04$                             

295 26-129-002 33-02-02-26-129-002 COLEMAN, LANCE C & KRISTI E 1373 SILKWOOD DR 0.3000 0.1174 401 P1 1.00 0.4000 0.0470 0.05 0.0647% 1,791.24$          0.0470 0.0647% 1,791.24$                       89.56$                               

296 26-129-003 33-02-02-26-129-003 LU, DENGSHENG & LI, GUIYING 1365 SILKWOOD DR 0.3500 0.1426 401 P1 1.00 0.4000 0.0570 0.06 0.0785% 2,174.36$          0.0570 0.0785% 2,174.36$                       108.72$                             

297 26-130-001 33-02-02-26-130-001 LEFFLER, JAMES T & 1311 SWEETWOOD DR 0.3600 0.2362 401 P1 1.00 0.3863 0.0913 0.09 0.1257% 3,480.39$          0.0913 0.1257% 3,480.39$                       174.02$                             

298 26-130-002 33-02-02-26-130-002 WALLACE, JACK & JANELLE 4428 ALDERWOOD DR 0.3470 0.3470 401 P1 1.00 0.3511 0.1218 0.12 0.1678% 4,645.58$          0.1218 0.1678% 4,645.58$                       232.28$                             

299 26-130-003 33-02-02-26-130-003 DROLET, KAVITA 4416 ALDERWOOD DR 0.3440 0.3440 401 P1 1.00 0.3407 0.1172 0.12 0.1614% 4,468.56$          0.1172 0.1614% 4,468.56$                       223.43$                             

300 26-130-004 33-02-02-26-130-004 PRYGOSKI, PHILIP J & MARY H 4404 ALDERWOOD DR 0.3820 0.3820 401 P1 1.00 0.3338 0.1275 0.13 0.1756% 4,861.96$          0.1275 0.1756% 4,861.96$                       243.10$                             

301 26-130-005 33-02-02-26-130-005 BURZYCH, MARK J & KIMBERLY 4396 ALDERWOOD DR 0.3890 0.3890 401 P1 1.00 0.3259 0.1268 0.13 0.1746% 4,833.72$          0.1268 0.1746% 4,833.72$                       241.69$                             

302 26-130-006 33-02-02-26-130-006 CORNELL WOODS ASSOCIATION CORNELL RD 0.0000 0.0000 402 P1 1.00 0.0000 0.0000 0.00 0.0000% -$                    0.0000 0.0000% -$                                 -$                                   

303 26-130-007 33-02-02-26-130-007 LOTHAMER, JESSE I & AMY M 4388 ALDERWOOD DR 0.3800 0.0371 401 P1 1.00 0.3446 0.0128 0.01 0.0176% 487.14$             0.0128 0.0176% 487.14$                          24.36$                               

304 26-132-001 33-02-02-26-132-001 ZHENG, YONG HUI & 1300 SWEETWOOD DR 0.3090 0.1882 401 P1 1.00 0.3028 0.0570 0.06 0.0785% 2,173.26$          0.0570 0.0785% 2,173.26$                       108.66$                             

305 26-132-002 33-02-02-26-132-002 LIU, TAOSHENG & YAN, LILI 1284 SWEETWOOD DR 0.3560 0.0604 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0181 0.02 0.0249% 690.40$             0.0181 0.0249% 690.40$                          34.52$                               

306 26-153-001 33-02-02-26-153-001 WILLIAMS, JAMES & LYNDA 4332 ARBOR DR 0.5230 0.1648 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0494 0.05 0.0681% 1,885.62$          0.0494 0.0681% 1,885.62$                       94.28$                               

307 26-154-001 33-02-02-26-154-001 TANAY, DAVID E & STACEY MOLITOR 1397 SILKWOOD DR 0.3370 0.3370 401 P2 1.20 0.3601 0.1214 0.15 0.2006% 5,553.73$          0.1456 0.2006% 5,553.73$                       277.69$                             

308 26-154-002 33-02-02-26-154-002 HARRIS, KYLE & DEBBIE 1391 SILKWOOD DR 0.2890 0.2890 401 P2 1.20 0.3335 0.0964 0.12 0.1593% 4,410.06$          0.1157 0.1593% 4,410.06$                       220.50$                             

309 26-154-003 33-02-02-26-154-003 WHITE, JOHN & LEONE TRUSTEES 1385 SILKWOOD DR 0.3700 0.2572 401 P2 1.20 0.4341 0.1116 0.13 0.1845% 5,108.11$          0.1340 0.1845% 5,108.11$                       255.41$                             

310 26-154-004 33-02-02-26-154-004 HEIM, NATHANIEL & LEE, JEAN 4404 HICKORYWOOD DR 0.3170 0.3170 401 P1 1.00 0.3316 0.1051 0.11 0.1448% 4,008.84$          0.1051 0.1448% 4,008.84$                       200.44$                             

311 26-154-005 33-02-02-26-154-005 SHI, WENJUN & YU, HUI 4394 HICKORYWOOD DR 0.3100 0.3100 401 P1 1.00 0.3235 0.1003 0.10 0.1382% 3,824.44$          0.1003 0.1382% 3,824.44$                       191.22$                             

312 26-154-006 33-02-02-26-154-006 THOMPSON, EVERETT & MARYAM A 4388 HICKORYWOOD DR 0.3100 0.3100 401 P1 1.00 0.3155 0.0978 0.10 0.1347% 3,729.61$          0.0978 0.1347% 3,729.61$                       186.48$                             

313 26-154-007 33-02-02-26-154-007 LATHAM, KEITH E & LISA B 4382 HICKORYWOOD DR 0.3820 0.3820 401 P1 1.00 0.3076 0.1175 0.12 0.1619% 4,480.96$          0.1175 0.1619% 4,480.96$                       224.05$                             

314 26-154-008 33-02-02-26-154-008 BEAL, MELISSA W 1400 SILVERWOOD DR 0.4060 0.2733 401 P1 1.00 0.3373 0.0922 0.09 0.1269% 3,514.23$          0.0922 0.1269% 3,514.23$                       175.71$                             

315 26-154-009 33-02-02-26-154-009 KAZMIERSKI, PHILIP F & JO ELLEN M 1392 SILVERWOOD DR 0.3440 0.2187 401 P1 1.00 0.3389 0.0741 0.07 0.1021% 2,825.35$          0.0741 0.1021% 2,825.35$                       141.27$                             

316 26-154-010 33-02-02-26-154-010 CLIMES, GARY & THERESA 4367 SATINWOOD DR 0.3990 0.1384 401 P1 1.00 0.3217 0.0445 0.04 0.0613% 1,697.80$          0.0445 0.0613% 1,697.80$                       84.89$                               

317 26-154-011 33-02-02-26-154-011 DELOYE, COREY ALLEN 4379 SATINWOOD DR 0.3440 0.2176 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0653 0.07 0.0899% 2,489.82$          0.0653 0.0899% 2,489.82$                       124.49$                             

318 26-154-012 33-02-02-26-154-012 MUI, RYAN KY & 4387 SATINWOOD DR 0.3440 0.2254 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0676 0.07 0.0931% 2,578.66$          0.0676 0.0931% 2,578.66$                       128.93$                             

319 26-154-013 33-02-02-26-154-013 HARKEMA, JACK R & LAURIE J TRUSTEES 4393 SATINWOOD DR 0.3440 0.2328 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0698 0.07 0.0962% 2,663.13$          0.0698 0.0962% 2,663.13$                       133.16$                             

320 26-154-014 33-02-02-26-154-014 RONEY, MARVIN G & LAUREE L 4399 SATINWOOD DR 0.3460 0.2415 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0724 0.07 0.0998% 2,762.63$          0.0724 0.0998% 2,762.63$                       138.13$                             

321 26-155-001 33-02-02-26-155-001 HARKNESS, CULLEN & DANIELLE 1415 SILVERWOOD DR 0.4110 0.1137 401 P1 1.00 0.3708 0.0422 0.04 0.0581% 1,607.68$          0.0422 0.0581% 1,607.68$                       80.38$                               

322 27-202-001 33-02-02-27-202-001 GUINS, PETER C & WEITZEL, RUTH D 4496 DOBIE RD 0.3100 0.1889 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0567 0.06 0.0781% 2,161.17$          0.0567 0.0781% 2,161.17$                       108.06$                             

323 27-202-002 33-02-02-27-202-002 THOMAS, BERNARD D & EILEEN 1684 FOREST HILLS DR 0.3790 0.0630 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0189 0.02 0.0260% 720.65$             0.0189 0.0260% 720.65$                          36.03$                               

324 27-202-003 33-02-02-27-202-003 TROTTER, LARRY C & MARIA C 1672 FOREST HILLS DR 0.4130 0.2806 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0842 0.08 0.1159% 3,209.69$          0.0842 0.1159% 3,209.69$                       160.48$                             

325 27-202-004 33-02-02-27-202-004 PYLE, RALPH E & BAGCHI, ALAKNANDA 1664 FOREST HILLS DR 0.3840 0.2465 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0739 0.07 0.1019% 2,819.85$          0.0739 0.1019% 2,819.85$                       140.99$                             

326 27-202-005 33-02-02-27-202-005 WITTEN, THOMAS J & DELPHINE M 1656 FOREST HILLS DR 0.3530 0.2255 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0676 0.07 0.0932% 2,579.53$          0.0676 0.0932% 2,579.53$                       128.98$                             

327 27-202-006 33-02-02-27-202-006 LIPPERT, MATTHEW L & SONYA L 1648 FOREST HILLS DR 0.3360 0.2122 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0637 0.06 0.0877% 2,427.56$          0.0637 0.0877% 2,427.56$                       121.38$                             

328 27-202-007 33-02-02-27-202-007 PORTER, SAUNDRA L & KATE K 1640 FOREST HILLS DR 0.3220 0.1973 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0592 0.06 0.0815% 2,256.73$          0.0592 0.0815% 2,256.73$                       112.84$                             

329 27-202-008 33-02-02-27-202-008 HUNTER, TERESA 1630 FOREST HILLS DR 0.3100 0.1803 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0541 0.05 0.0745% 2,062.55$          0.0541 0.0745% 2,062.55$                       103.13$                             

330 27-202-009 33-02-02-27-202-009 YE, WANCHENG 1622 FOREST HILLS DR 0.3100 0.1835 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0551 0.06 0.0758% 2,099.25$          0.0551 0.0758% 2,099.25$                       104.96$                             

331 27-202-010 33-02-02-27-202-010 BERNABEI, JOSEPH D 1614 FOREST HILLS DR 0.3100 0.1885 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0566 0.06 0.0779% 2,156.71$          0.0566 0.0779% 2,156.71$                       107.84$                             

332 27-202-011 33-02-02-27-202-011 MENG, STANLEY TRUST 1606 FOREST HILLS DR 0.3100 0.1936 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0581 0.06 0.0800% 2,214.55$          0.0581 0.0800% 2,214.55$                       110.73$                             

333 27-226-001 33-02-02-27-226-001 KATTELUS, DANIEL E & EMILY L & 1590 FOREST HILLS DR 0.3720 0.0175 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0052 0.01 0.0072% 200.17$             0.0052 0.0072% 200.17$                          10.01$                               

334 27-227-001 33-02-02-27-227-001 SCHULTZ, BLAINE S & LAURA L 4496 OAKWOOD DR 0.3440 0.1642 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0493 0.05 0.0678% 1,878.14$          0.0493 0.0678% 1,878.14$                       93.91$                               

335 27-227-002 33-02-02-27-227-002 WUORINEN, STEFAN J N & ALLISON J 1504 FOREST HILLS DR 0.3440 0.1337 401 P1 1.00 0.3000 0.0401 0.04 0.0553% 1,529.78$          0.0401 0.0553% 1,529.78$                       76.49$                               

335 188.5707 65.8619 72.598 100.0000% 2,768,322.00$  72.598 100% 2,768,322.00$               

3/11/2022 5 of 5



 
 

 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

12. A 

To:  Board Members 

From:  Patricia Herring Jackson, Township Supervisor 

Date:  April 8, 2022 

Re:  Economic Development Corporation Appointment 

  

Currently, there are two vacancies on the Economic Development Corporation (EDC) and the 

attached application has been received for review and recommendation.  

The EDC made the motion to support the recommendation to the Meridian Township Board to 

appoint Trisha Bird of Haslett to the EDC during their regular meeting on April 7, 2022. Of the 9 

member board, 6 members were present and unanimously support the recommendation of 

appointment.  

 

The following motions have been prepared for Board consideration: 

MOVE TO APPOINT TRISHA BIRD TO THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 

FOR A TERM ENDING 12/31/27.            

 

Attachment: 

1. Public Service Application 
 

 



Supervisor 
Clerk 
Treasurer 
Manager 

Phil Deschaine 
Patricia Herring Jackson 
Dan Opsommer 
Kathy Ann Sundland 

Trustee 
Trustee 
Trustee 
Trustee 

Elected Officials Compensation Commission* 
Environmental Commission 
Lake Lansing Watershed Advisory Committee* 
Land Preservation Advisory Board 
Park Commission (elected/appointed) 
Pension Trustees 
Planning Commission 
Township Board (elected/appointed) 
Transportation Commission* 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Other 

Name:  -ry- 2);(-(4. 
Occupation: 501€.5 ?lap" ;i1 5c '  'elac e of Employment:  IkAikete—r) 

VtAl.,- ( 0,  Clce_ (e4 r Vikk LA.SY't0 Home Address:  5-to75 
Phone: (da s)5 1 LlW venin Soorvp  E-mail4,6Sk,\o30 10L-V\00
Signature  A .0.-lefr"  Date  5t 17(2.02-2_ 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 

Ronald J. Styka 
Brett Dreyfus 
Julie Brixie 
Frank L. Walsh 

EST 1842 

MERIDIAN_ 
\1ZNSHIPM111 

APPLICATION FOR PUBLIC SERVICE 
I am interested in service on one or more of the following public bodies as checked below: 

Assessing Board of Review* 
Board of Water and Light Representative* 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority* 
Building and/or Fire Board of Appeals and 
Building Hearing Officer 
Capital Area Transportation Authority (CA.TA). 
Communications Commission* 
Community Resources Commission 
Corridor Improvement Authority* 
Downtown Development Authority* 
East Lansing-Meridian Water & Sewer Authority 
Economic Development Corporation 

(*Special conditions restrict eligibility for appointment) 

Indicate areas not included above which may warrant special attention or study that are of interest to you: 

Summarize your reasons for applying for this type of public service: , 
howe._ kvsie_ci k A Ao.s1e...kk S I ACP_ 2_005- 0,^ -t OSq-e- ret vs—ALLZO IA 

stV €-‘0110 0,,A8 k va. M.( (el6 of\e, e_,( 0,1\j, e.. 
Describe edikation, expenence or training which will assist you if appointed. (Attach resume if available) a reimAg-r, • ,,, f•tti cLAt or 

s„Mo...4 

vv.k tad- 40
 WO

a.strt-t, 

Other than the Downtown Development Authority Board and the Economic Development Corporation, persons appointed to Meridian 
Township boards and commissions must be a resident and elector (if of voting age) of the Township during the term of office. Excessive 
absences may be cause for review of appointment. 

(PLEASE USE BACK IF NEEDED) 
The policy for appointment of candidates to the various public service positions is based on the following criteria: desire to serve, 
experience, expertise, availability of time to serve, and maintenance of equitable geographic representation. In most instances it will be 
desirable to develop further information through a personal interview. This application will be retained in township files for two years. 
Please return this form to the Office of the Clerk, Charter Township of Meridian. 

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY 

Date Received Distro: Application # 

Registered Voter: Y / N 

Date Appointed: 

5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI. 48864 
517.853.4000 

A PRIME COMMUNITY 

merldlan.mlus 



TRISHA BIRD 517.243.7347 or tbirdaamgen.com 

5625 Ventura Place, Haslett, Michigan, 48840 
http://www.linkedin.com/in/trishabird 

SUMMARY 

A confident and results-driven professional with an in-depth knowledge of the healthcare industry. 
Experienced across a wide range of product categories including antibiotics, antipsychotics, 
cardiovascular, contraceptives, diabetes, oncology and respiratory products. Success in identifying and 
capturing opportunities and in delivering bottom-line results in managing multiple accounts. 
Demonstrates sound business judgment, well developed presentation, negotiation, communication 
and relationship building skills and can quickly establish trust, respect and rapport. Thrives in intense, 
fast-paced environments, and strong proponent of a positive attitude. Maintains the highest level of 
honesty, ethics and integrity. Loyal and dedicated to a company's growth and objectives. 

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 
Sept. 2014 — present Amgen — 

Thousand Oaks, CA 
Sales Planning Senior Manager — Inflammation Business Unit 
April 2021 to present 

Reaponsibleforfieldforre engagement, operating budget and semester meeting 
planning 

• Established engagement campaign with vendor partner to strengthen IBU 
culture 

• Streamlined process for capturing vacancy rates and working to improve 
staffing process 

• Successfully planned and executed two semester meetings, three virtual 
meetings and National BD Webinars 

• Assisted in establishing monitoring plan and schedule for GM/EDs 

CV Specialty Senior District Sales Manager — Michigan/Toledo 
District 

September 2014 to April 2021 

Responsible for biting a team to launch Corlanor and Repatha statewide and in 
Toledo, OH. Lead 7 territories (9 Sales Representatives) in driving initiation and 
pull-through for appropriate patients. 

• Awarded Coach of the Year in 2017 
• Chairman's Circle Winner in 2016 and 2019 
• Won Team Excellence in 2015, 2016, 2017, 2019, 2020 
• Awarded Spirit of BCBU in 2017 
• Awarded WE2 Making a Difference Award in 2018 
• Promoted to ACT III in 2019 
• MW Region DST Lead 2019-2020 
• Repatha FIT Team 2017 and FIT Access Team 2018 

• Region WE2 lead and Mentor Program Lead 2018 

• Access Workstream Trainer — 2016 and 2017 
• Assisted 3 SSRs with Field Training Manager promotion in 2017 and KAM 

promotions in 2019 

Internal Use Only General Business 



March 2010 — Sept. 2014 AstraZeneca — 
Wilmington, DE 
CV Specialty District Sales Manager — Michigan/Grand Rapids 
District 

Responsible for the launch of Manta statewide and in Toledo, OH in 2011-2012. 
From 2013 to present, lead 4 territories (10 Sales Representatives) in driving 
initiation and pull-through for appropriate ACS patients in the Grand Rapids 
District which encompasses everything except SE Michigan. 

• 2012 YTD attainment ranked 1 of 4 in the region and 12" in the nation 

• Implemented 1" Region Advisory Board in 2013 and worked with sales 
training and the brand team to provide insight and feedback on future 
resourcing and developmental needs 

• Developed state of Michigan pull-through plan for BCBS, Priority Health, 
Humana D and Health Plus 

• District delivered one of 1" strictly followed Brilinta only STEMI protocol 
accounts in nation with Spectrum with a current non-retail market share of 
45% as of June 2014 

May 2000 — March 2010 Merck/Schering-Plough Pharmaceuticals — 
Kenilworth NJ 
Regional Account Director — North Atlantic Region 

October 2008 to March 2010 

Responsible for the Regional account portfolio and development of 22 managed care 
organkations in Michigan. Key accounts include Priority Health and Michigan 
Medicaid Shared account responsibility for BCBS /BCN, HAP and HealthPlus. 
The pretnary focus is to increase pull/push through efforts with internal customers 
(fIeld sales) and external customers (MCO) to maximize profitable contracts and 
market share. 

• Developed innovative advocacy campaign in Michigan which established 64 
physician advocates during first 6 months of campaign 

• Involved in establishing and implementing successful pull/push through 
strategies for USMM and Sales 

• Team Lead for USMM Vytorin/Zetia joint venture for West/Northern 
Michigan markets 

• Delivered strategic business review to groups and individuals including 
divisional VP and Group VP 

• Constructed and implemented Michigan Field Sales Integration guide 
• Attended legislative committee meetings and reported on status of legislation 

applicable to Schering products and customers 

District Sales Manager — West Michigan 

November 2005 to October 2008 

Responsible for the sales and market share growth of 6 territories (12 Sales Representatives) in 
Michigan. Concentration on 5 core products in the cardiovascular and respiratory disease states. 
• Identified by Regional Director as "Emerging Talent" within the organization 

in 2007/2008 
• Improved overall District rank in Nation from 89/93 in Q1 2008 to 23/92 Q3 

2008 
• Partnered with Managed Care Managers to develop and institute plan for 

MMPC, a large 200+ physician group in West Michigan, to gain better access 
and provide value 

• Supported Government Affairs Manager in garnering physician and sales 
representative support 

Internal Use Only General Business 



• Served as meeting facilitator Schering/Merck collaboration - West and 
Northern Michigan 

• Ranked #1 in the Region and received 12th largest payout in the Nation for 
Strong Finish, Strong Start initiative, May 2007 

• Served as Area Talent and Development Center coach. Mentored High 
Potential Sales Representatives as well as three new District Managers 

• Continuous Learning Coordinator North Central Region - Region consistently 
ranked #1 for number of reps completing web-based training courses 

• Served as Regional Leadership Council facilitator, 2007-2008 

Professional Sales Representative — Ann Arbor, Jackson/Battle Creek and 
Lansing Territories 

May 2000 to November 2005 

Reiponsibk for the sales and market share growth of products in the cardiovascular and allergic 
rhinitis disease states. Launched Clminex, Zetia and Vytotin. 

EDUCATION 
Graduated May 1997 MICHIGAN STATE UNIVERSITY, EAST LANSING, MI 

Bachelor of Arts & Letters in English 

• Includes Cognates in Communications and Psychology 

Internal Use Only General Business 



12.B

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

To: Board Members 

From: Dan Opsommer, Assistant Township Manager 
Director of Public Works and Engineering 

Date: April 12, 2022 

Re: Letter of Agreement between the Charter Township of Meridian and the 
Department of Public Works and the Department of Parks and Recreation 
Technical, Professional and Officeworkers Association of Michigan (TPOAM) 

When I took over this role on February 14, 2022, there were a number of on-going issues with the 
union. First, there was an active grievance brought by the union regarding the on-call duty signup 
process. We were also having ongoing issues with retaining our lead workers. We have lost two 
lead water workers in the last 1 year and 6 months. We have five lead workers in total: 

1. Water Lead
2. Sewer Lead
3. Parks Lead
4. Building, Grounds and Cemetery Lead
5. Mechanic Lead

Our lead workers perform the same responsibility as other union members in terms of field work, 
but also have a supervisory role in leading their respective crews. Historically, there has been very 
little separation in compensation between lead workers and the employees they help supervise, 
which is why we are having issues with retaining lead workers. They simply aren’t compensated 
relative to their additional responsibilities. 

Lastly, we have a unique staffing situation for after-hours emergencies, including but not limited 
to: leaky water meters, water main breaks, and sewer backups. These departments are unique in 
that we have to have 24-hour staffing, but they are staffed differently than other 24-hour 
departments (i.e. Police and EMS/Fire). Serving on-call is the process we have for taking after-hour 
calls for emergencies. A leaky water meter can be solved by the person serving on-call, but sewer 
backups usually require 2 employees and water main breaks require crews of 4-5 employees. 

I have been working with our management team and the union members on solutions to all 
of these issues and am pleased to report that we have a solution to all three issues to 
present to the Board this evening. This process has been collaborative, has helped build 
trust and relationships, and has helped raise morale in my assessment. 

This letter of agreement is designed to compensate our lead workers appropriately for their 
supervisory responsibilities. Under this letter of agreement, effective March 17, 2022, lead 
workers will receive a $4.81 hourly wage increase, which amounts to $10,000 annually. Here is a 
breakdown of hourly wages under the existing contract, with the 1.5% increase approved by the 
Board in 2021 (on top of the 2% increase under the union contract), and this letter of agreement: 



 

 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

 

Memo to Township Board 
April 12, 2022 
Re: Letter of Agreement between the Charter Township of Meridian and the Department 
of Public Works and the Department of Parks and Recreation Technical, Professional and 
Officeworkers Association of Michigan (TPOAM) 

Employee 

Hourly Wage Under the  
Existing Contract 

Hourly Wage with the 1.5% 
Wage Increase for 2022 

Hourly Wage under this  
Letter of Agreement 

Percent Increase Over  
the Existing Contract 

Probationary Tenured Probationary Tenured Probationary Tenured Probationary Tenured 

Lead Workers $25.80 $26.98 $26.19 $27.38 $31.00 $32.19 20.14% 19.33% 

Lead Mechanic $29.04 $30.35 $29.48 $30.81 $34.29 $35.61 18.06% 17.33% 
 
This letter of agreement is also designed to help compensate and incentivize our Department of 
Public Works and Department of Parks and Recreation employees for serving on-call and 
responding to emergencies after-hours. Our employees sign up to serve on-call for one-week shifts 
throughout the year. They are paid a $250 stipend for serving an on-call shift and receive an 
additional $100 for holiday weeks. 
 
This letter of agreement will increase compensation for serving on-call by $50 (i.e. $300 for 
serving on-call and $400 for serving on-call during holiday weeks) and will create a new $40 
stipend for after-hours responses. If the on-call employee receives three leaky water meter calls in 
one night, they will receive their base wage, overtime if eligible, the $300 or $400 on-call stipend, 
and $120 for three after-hours responses (i.e. $40/after-hour response) under this new stipend. 
To give another example, if there is a water main break after-hours, we would assemble a crew of 
4-5 team members depending on the severity of the water main break. Each employee that 
responds would receive a $40 stipend for the after-hours response. 
 
Lastly, the stipend for heavy duty truck mechanic and master automobile mechanic certifications 
will increase by $250, to $1,750 for a heavy duty truck mechanic certification and $1,250 for a 
master automobile mechanic certification. 
 
The union has already signed the letter of agreement and directed their attorney to drop the 
grievance should the Board approve the agreement. Again, this process has been collaborative and 
has helped build trust and relationships. I believe this has helped raise morale across the union. 
 
The formal action we need from the Board this evening is the approval of the letter of agreement 
for the increases in compensation for the union members. The Board does not need to take any 
action regarding the on-call procedure, I’m simply apprising you so you have a holistic picture of 
everything we have been working with the union on. 
 
The following motion has been prepared for Board consideration: 
 

MOVE TO ADOPT THE LETTER OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP 
OF MERIDIAN AND THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS AND THE DEPARTMENT 
OF PARKS AND RECREATION TECHNICAL, PROFESSIONAL AND OFFICEWORKERS 
ASSOCIATION OF MICHIGAN (TPOAM) UNION EFFECTIVE MARCH 17, 2022. 

 



 

 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

 

Memo to Township Board 
April 12, 2022 
Re: Letter of Agreement between the Charter Township of Meridian and the Department 
of Public Works and the Department of Parks and Recreation Technical, Professional and 
Officeworkers Association of Michigan (TPOAM) 

Attachments: 
 

1. Letter of Agreement between the Charter Township of Meridian and the Department of 
Public Works and the Department of Parks and Recreation Technical, Professional and 
Officeworkers Association of Michigan (TPOAM) with an effective date of March 17, 2022. 

2. 2022 Trial Run for Newly Proposed On-Call Procedure 
3. 2020-2022 Union Contract between the Charter Township of Meridian and the Department 

of Public Works and the Department of Parks and Recreation Technical, Professional and 
Officeworkers Association of Michigan (TPOAM) 







2022 TRIAL RUN FOR NEWLY PROPOSED ON-CALL PROCEDURE 
 
Bi-Annual On-Call Schedule: Beginning April 29, 2022, on call duty will be scheduled bi-annually as 
follows: 
 

 Jan. 1 through June 30 (April 29-June 30 for 2022 test trial) 

 July 1 through Dec. 31 
 
On-Call Scheduling Deadlines: On-Call signup must be completed, meaning all weeks are filled, no later 
than Dec. 15 for the schedule beginning Jan. 1 and no later than June 15 for the schedule beginning July 
1. 
 
On-Call signup must be completed, meaning all weeks are filled, no later than April 15 for the schedule 
beginning April 29, 2022.  
 
Voluntary Signup: Members will be able to select an on-call shift each round. Each round will start with 
the member with the most seniority and go down the membership list in order from most to least 
seniority. 
 
The union may open the on-call voluntary signup for two or more rounds. If five rounds are held, 
members could sign up for up to five on-call shifts. 
 
Trading On-Call Weeks: Members can volunteer for as many on-call weeks, including holiday on-call 
weeks, as the voluntary signup process allows for. If five rounds are held, members could sign up for up 
to five on-call shifts. 
 
Members can then trade shifts freely using the form approved by the director of public works or the 
superintendent of public works. Completed forms, signed by both members participating in the trade, 
must be submitted to the superintendent of public works. 
 
If two members trade a shift, and the person who assumes responsibility for the shift cannot serve for 
any reason, then the shift will be filled by voluntary signup. If no members sign up voluntarily within one 
week, the shift will be filled using the forced list. 
 
Forced List: If one or more shifts go unfilled through the voluntary signup process, the union will assign 
the least senior member who hasn’t served on-call. The forced list will start over from least to most 
senior members once every member has served an on-call.  
 
The union will post and maintain a list of members and the date on-call was served on the bulletin board 
at the Service Center. An updated list will be posted as soon as time allows by the union and once it has 
been approved by the director of public works or the superintendent of public works. 
 
If every member who has not yet served on-call has put in for time off the week that a vacancy needs to 
be filled for on-call duty, or otherwise cannot serve that week, a new forced list will be created and the 
least senior member will be forced. However, the prior forced list will continue until each member has 
served on-call, voluntarily or forced. 
 



Definitions: 
 
As used in this procedure, “served” means that the member served their duty for an entire on-call week, 
voluntarily or forced, since July 1, 2021. “Served” does not mean that you signed up for a shift in the 
future. “Served” does not mean that you signed up for a shift and then traded it before performing your 
duties or were otherwise unable to perform your duties for any reason. 

























































 
 

 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

12. C 

To:  Board Members 

From:  Patricia Herring Jackson, Township Supervisor 

Date:  April 8, 2022 

Re:  Ingham County Broadband Task Force Appointment 

 

As you are aware, Ingham County recently formulated a countywide Broadband Task Force. I was 

nominated and selected to serve on the task force representing Meridian Township.  To date, I have 

attended two meetings and wish to appoint Clerk Guthrie to serve in my place.   

The following motion is proposed for Board consideration:   

MOVE TO APPOINT CLERK GUTHRIE TO REPLACE PATRICIA HERRING JACKSON TO 

SERVE AS MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP’S REPRESENTATIVE ON THE INGHAM COUNTY’S 

BROADBAND TASK FORCE. THE APPOINTMENT IS CONTINGENT ON THE APPROVAL 

OF INGHAM COUNTY OFFICIALS.       

 

 

 
 



 

 

12. D.  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

 

To:  Board Members 
 
From:  Dan Opsommer, Assistant Township Manager  

Director of Public Works and Engineering 
 
Date:  April 12, 2022 
 

Re: 2021 Order to Maintain Sidewalk Special Assessment District #19 – 
Resolution #4 Set Public Hearing for May 3, 2022 

 

The Township Board approved the 2021 Order to Maintain Sidewalk Special Assessment District 
#19 – Resolution #3 on September 21, 2021, which approved the estimated costs, determined the 
special assessment district, and directs the establishment of an assessment roll to repair sidewalks 
in the following areas: 
 

Briarwood; Briarwood #3, #4, and #5; East Meadows Condominiums; Heritage Hills; 
Heritage Hills #2, #3, and #4 

 
These areas are located in the following Sections: 8, 33, and 34. The total estimated cost for the 

proposed 2021 Order to Maintain Sidewalk Special Assessment District #19 is $25,654.86. 

 
For background purposes, since 1999, the Township has developed a proactive approach to 
minimize residential sidewalk hazards and potential liability to the Township by adopting a 
sidewalk replacement program.  
 
In accordance with ordinance Section 58-32b and 58-332d, the Township Board may order the 
repair of defective sidewalks. If the property owner fails to repair the sidewalk within 20 days 
after written notification, the Township may repair or replace the sidewalk and bill the cost of 
construction to the property owner.  
 
Resolution #4 will set the second public hearing for this special assessment district and puts the 
proposed special assessment roll on file with the office of the Township Clerk. The public hearing 
is to receive comment in favor and/or objections to the proposed 2021 Order to Maintain Sidewalk 
Special Assessment District #19. Notices will be mailed to the property owners more than 10 day 
in advance of the public hearing. 
 
The following motion has been prepared for the Board’s consideration: 
 

“MOVE TO APPROVE THE 2021 ORDER TO MAINTAIN SIDEWALK SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENT DISTRICT #19 RESOLUTION #4, WHICH FILES THE PROPOSED SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENT ROLL WITH THE OFFICE OF THE TOWNSHIP CLERK AND SETS THE 
DATE FOR A PUBLIC HEARING ON TUESDAY, MAY 3, 2022.” 

 
Attachments: 



 

 

 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

 

Memo to Township Board 
April 12, 2022 
Page 2 

Re: 2021 Order to Maintain Sidewalk Special Assessment District #19 – Resolution #4 Set  
Public Hearing for May 3, 2022 

 

1. 2021 Order to Maintain Sidewalk Special Assessment District #19 – Resolution #4 Set 
Public Hearing for May 3, 2022 

2. Proposed Assessment Roll for 2021 Order to Maintain Sidewalk Special Assessment 
District #19 – Resolution #4 



2021 ORDER TO MAINTAIN SIDEWALK 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT #19 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 4 

 
 

At a regular meeting of the Township Board of the Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham 
County, Michigan, held at the Meridian Township Municipal Building, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, 
Michigan  48864-1198, (517) 853-4000, on Tuesday, April 12, 2022, at 6:00 p.m. 
 
PRESENT:             
 
              
 
ABSENT:             
 
 

The following resolution was offered by        and 
 
supported by ____________________________. 

 
 

 WHEREAS, by resolution adopted September 21, 2021, the Township Board of the Charter 
Township of Meridian, determined to construct the more particularly hereinafter described public 
improvements to repair sidewalk and assess the cost thereof to the property deemed benefited by 
said improvements, all in accordance with Act 188, Public Acts of Michigan, 1954, as amended; and 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the Supervisor has prepared and reported to the Township Board a special 
assessment roll assessing the cost of said improvements to the property benefited thereby with the 
proper certificate attached thereto. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWNSHIP BOARD OF THE CHARTER 
TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, INGHAM COUNTY, MICHIGAN, as follows: 
 
 
1. Said special assessment roll shall be filed with the Office of the Township Clerk and shall be 

available for public examination during regular working hours on regular working days. 
 
2. The Township Board shall meet at 6:00 p.m. on Tuesday, May 3, 2022, at the Meridian 

Township Municipal Building, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Michigan, in the Charter Township 
of Meridian, for the purpose of reviewing and hearing objections to the special assessment 
roll. 

 
3. The Township Clerk shall cause notice of such hearing and the filing of the assessment roll to 

be published twice in a newspaper of general circulation in the Township, prior to the date 
of the hearing.  The first publication shall be at least ten (10) days before the hearing pursuant 
to Act 162, Public Acts of 1962.  The Clerk shall also cause notice of such hearing to be mailed 
by first class mail to all property owners in the special assessment district shown on the 
current assessment rolls of the Township, at least ten (10) full days before the date of said 
hearing.  Said notice as published and mailed shall be in substantially the following form:  
(SEE ATTACHED) 

  



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
 

2021 ORDER TO MAINTAIN SIDEWALK 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT #19 

 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

 
 
TO THE RECORD OWNERS OF, OR PARTIES IN INTEREST IN, THE FOLLOWING PROPERTY 
CONSTITUTING THE PROPOSED SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT: 
 

(SEE OTHER SIDE FOR LEGAL DESCRIPTION) 
 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a special assessment roll for the 2021 Order to Maintain 
Sidewalk Special Assessment District #9 (maintain by removal and replacement of sidewalk in 
various locations in the Township) has been prepared and is on file in the Office of the Township 
Clerk for public examination.  

 
Said special assessment roll has been prepared for the purpose of assessing the cost of the 

above described public improvements to the property benefited therefrom.  All questions and/or 
concerns should be directed to Meridian Township Department of Public Works & Engineering at 
(517) 853-4440. 
 
 TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that the Township Board will meet on Tuesday, May 3, 2021, at 
6:00 p.m. at the Meridian Township Municipal Building, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI  48864-1198, 
for the purpose of reviewing said special assessment roll and hearing objections thereto. 
 
An owner or party in interest, or his or her agent, may appear in person at the hearing to protest the 
special assessment, or shall be permitted to file his or her appearance or protest by letter with the 
Township Clerk before the close of this hearing, and his or her personal appearance is not required.  
The owner or any person having an interest in the real property who protests in person or in writing 
at the hearing may file a written appeal of the special assessment with the Michigan Tax Tribunal within 
30 days after the confirmation of the special assessment roll. 
 
 
 
Your special assessment is proposed to be $  . 
 
 
Date:     
 Deborah Guthrie, Township Clerk 
 Charter Township of Meridian  
 
  



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
2020 ORDER TO MAINTAIN SIDEWALK 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT #19 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 
 

LOTS: E 66 FT OF LOT 1 AND W 19 FT OF LOT 2; E 53’ OF LOT 2 & WEST 38’ OF LOT 3; LOT 5 & E 
10 FT. OF LOT 4; W. 79 FT. OF LOT 8;16; 21; 36; 40; 45; LOT 46 ENTIRE LOT 47 EXC. N. 74 FT; 49, 
BRIARWOOD SUBDIVISION. 
 
LOTS: 64; 65; 67; 77; LOT 81 & E 2 FT. OF LOT 80; 82; 83; 97; 98, 99; 115; 116; 117, BRIARWOOD 
SUBD. NO. 3. 
 
LOTS: 120; 123; 133; 134; 138; 151; LOT 153 BRIARWOOD SUBD. NO. 4. AND ALSO BEG. AT NE 
COR. OF LOT 153, TH. N 89 DEG 24' 00" E 30 FT, S 00 DEG. 00' 46" E 120.01 FT, S 89 DEG 24' 00" W 
30 FT TO SE COR. OF LOT 153, N 00 DEG 00' 46" W 120.01 FT TO PT. OF BEG.; 154; 158; 167; 174; 
179; 180; 186, BRIARWOOD SUBD. NO. 4. 
 
LOTS: 195; 196; 218; 228; 232; 237; 238; 243; 248; 257; 261; 275; 280; 281, BRIARWOOD SUBD. 
NO. 5. 
 
UNIT 2, EAST MEADOWS CONDOMINIUM. 
 
LOTS: 5; 6; 10; 11; LOT 12 & THE W 11 FT OF LOT 13; LOT 13 EXC THE W 11 FT THEREOF; 23; 26; 
29; 40; 41; HERITAGE HILLS SUBDIVISION 
 
LOTS: LOT 58 & W 22.5 FT. OF LOT 57; 59; 73; HERITAGE HILLS SUBD. NO. 2. 
 
LOTS: 82; 83; 87; LOT 92 HERITAGE HILLS SUBD NO 3. ALSO BEG AT NE COR OF LOT 92, TH N80 
DEG 01'15"E 20 FT, TH S 11 DEG 19'04"E 116.22 FT, TH S 80 DEG 54'30"W 20 FT, TH N 11 DEG 
19'04"W 116.22 FT TO BEG SEC 8; 99; 104; 114; 125, HERITAGE HILLS SUBD. NO. 3. 
 
LOTS: 128; 136; 140; 141; 142; 145; 146; 150; 157; 168; 170; 171; 177; 187; 197; 205; 206; 208; 
210; 220; 228, HERITAGE HILLS #4 SUBDIVISION. 
  



2021 Order to Maintain Sidewalk  
Special Assessment District #19 
Resolution No. 4 
Page 2 
 
 
 
 
4. All resolutions and parts of resolutions insofar as they conflict with the provisions of this 

resolution are hereby rescinded. 
 
 
ADOPTED: 
 
 YEAS:            
 
             
 
 NAYS:            
 
Resolution declared adopted. 
 
 
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF INGHAM ) 
 
 I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the Charter Township of 
Meridian, Ingham County, DO HEREBY CERTIFY, that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of 
proceedings taken by the Township Board at a regular meeting held on Tuesday, April 12, 2022. 
 
            
     Deborah Guthrie, Township Clerk 
     Charter Township of Meridian 
  



 

 
2021 ORDER TO MAINTAIN SIDEWALK 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 19 

 
-- CERTIFICATE OF SUPERVISOR – 

 
 
 
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
 ) ss. 
COUNTY OF INGHAM ) 
 
 I, Patricia H. Jackson, Supervisor of the Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, 
hereby certify that the attached 2021 Order to Maintain Sidewalk Special Assessment District #19 
Special Assessment Roll was made by me pursuant to the resolution of the Township Board of said 
Charter Township of Meridian heretofore adopted on April 12, 2021, and that in making such 
assessment roll, to the best of my judgment, I conformed in all respects to the directions contained in 
such resolution and the Statutes of the State of Michigan. 
 
            
             Patricia H. Jackson, Supervisor 
 
 
DATED: 
 
 Subscribed and sworn to before me this   day of    , 2022. 
 
 
 
 
            
 
       Notary Public, Ingham County, MI 
       My Commission expires:     
       Acting in Ingham County 

 
 



 

AFFIDAVIT OF MAILING 
 
 
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
 ) ss. 
COUNTY OF INGHAM ) 
 

I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the Charter Township of Michigan, 
Ingham County, Michigan, depose and say that I personally prepared for mailing and mailed by first 
class mail, on   , a notice of hearing, a true copy of which is 
attached hereto and made a part hereof, to each property owner of or party in interest in property 
located within the special assessment district described in the attached notice, whose name appears 
upon the last local tax assessment records for ad valorem tax purposes, which has been reviewed by 
the local board of review as supplemented by any subsequent changes in the names or the addresses 
of such owners or parties listed thereon; that I personally checked each envelope against the list of 
such owners or parties in interest shown by said tax assessment roll and that each envelope was 
properly addressed to each owner or party in interest as shown on said tax assessment roll; that each 
such envelope had contained therein the appropriate notice of the aforesaid hearing, was securely 
sealed, with postage fully prepaid thereon for first-class delivery, and was properly addressed; that I 
personally placed all of said envelopes in a United States Post Office receptacle in Okemos, Michigan, 
on said date; that said notice referred to a hearing scheduled for May 3, 2022, before the Board of 
the Charter Township of Meridian. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto affixed my official signature this   

day of  , 2022. 
 

   
 Deborah Guthrie, Township Clerk 
 Charter Township of Meridian 
 
 
 
        
 
Notary Public, Ingham County 
My Commission Expires:   
Acting in Ingham County, Michigan 
 



 2021 ORDER TO MAINTAIN SIDEWALK
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 19 - RESOLUTION 4

Parcel # Subdivision Lot No. Primary Name Street Address City ST Zip

1 33-02-02-33-278-005 Briarwood Subd. No. 5 228 2079 ASHLAND COLLIER, CODY E & STEPHANIE 2079 ASHLAND DR OKEMOS MI 48864 $456.17

2 33-02-02-33-278-004 Briarwood Subd. No. 5 229 2089 ASHLAND ABBASOV, KHASAN 2089 ASHLAND DR OKEMOS MI 48864 $0.00

3 33-02-02-33-276-035 Briarwood Subd. No. 5 232 2090 ASHLAND HALLMAN, SUSAN 2090 ASHLAND DR OKEMOS MI 48864 $543.06

4 33-02-02-33-278-002 Briarwood Subd. No. 4 174 2101 ASHLAND PENNINGTON, STEPHEN 2101 ASHLAND DR OKEMOS MI 48864 $238.94

5 33-02-02-33-229-016 Briarwood Subd. No. 4 154 2015 BELDING HOWSER, LAWRENCE E & BRENDA M 2015 BELDING CT OKEMOS MI 48864 $721.18

6 33-02-02-33-226-012 Briarwood Subd. No. 4 151 2016 BELDING WYMAN, MATHEW 2016 BELDING CT OKEMOS MI 48864 $217.22

7 33-02-02-33-276-016 Briarwood Subd. No. 4 158 2085 BELDING RANDHAWA, RANDY 2085 BELDING CT OKEMOS MI 48864 $868.89

8 33-02-02-33-204-001 Briarwood Subd. No. 3 97 2115 BELDING SCHWANIK, KARL J & MARGARET ANN 2115 BELDING CT OKEMOS MI 48864 $260.67

9 33-02-02-33-202-001 Briarwood Subd. No. 3 77 3940 BELDING BONSIGNORE, JONATHAN A & SABALA, LISA M 3940 BELDING CT OKEMOS MI 48864 $868.89

10 33-02-02-33-278-024 Briarwood Subd. No. 5 218 3801 BINGHAMPTON TEOH, ROBERT J H & MARGARET J 3801 BINGHAMTON DR OKEMOS MI 48864 $499.61

11 33-02-02-33-277-006 Briarwood Subd. No. 5 196 3830 BINGHAMPTON HAUGEN, RANDALL & RENUKA 3830 BINGHAMTON DR OKEMOS MI 48864 $760.28

12 33-02-02-33-277-005 Briarwood Subd. No. 5 195 3840 BINGHAMPTON ZWIER, LAWRENCE J & JEAN M 3840 BINGHAMTON DR OKEMOS MI 48864 $130.33

13 33-02-02-33-227-006 Briarwood Subd. No. 4 153+ 3940 BINGHAMPTON CESARIO, JOSEPH FRANK & CEASRIO, KATE CAMERON HELLER 3940 BINGHAMPTON DR OKEMOS MI 48864 $477.89

14 33-02-02-08-180-007 Heritage Hills Subd. No. 3 83 5893 BLYTHEFIELD PFLEGER, GEORGE A FAMILY TRUST 5893 BLYTHEFIELD DR EAST LANSING MI 48823 $404.03

15 33-02-02-08-127-009 Heritage Hills Subd. No. 3 82 5909 BLYTHEFIELD SANTUCCI, MARC & DEBORAH 5909 BLYTHEFIELD DR EAST LANSING MI 48823 $238.94

16 33-02-02-08-154-010 Heritage Hills Subd. 40 2885 BONITA KISHLER REV LVG TRUST, MARY C 2885 BONITA CIR EAST LANSING MI 48823 $217.22

17 33-02-02-08-126-022 Heritage Hills Subd. No. 4 187 2782 BUGLERS SEJDIU, BEHXHET 2782 BUGLERS WAY EAST LANSING MI 48823 $738.56

18 33-02-02-08-126-009 Heritage Hills Subd. No. 4 197 2832 BUGLERS JACKSON, ANDREA & VIGER, STEVEN 2832 BUGLERS WAY EAST LANSING MI 48823 $173.78

19 33-02-02-35-352-001 Ember Oaks 9 3598 CABARET AHMED, ZULFIQAR & NAZ, FAREEHA 3598 CABARET TRL OKEMOS MI 48864 $0.00

20 33-02-02-33-426-004 East Meadows Condominium 2 3740 CAVALIER EAST MEADOWS CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIATION 16429 UPTON RD, STE 2 EAST LANSING MI 48823 $195.50

21 33-02-02-08-101-021 Heritage Hills Subd. No. 2 73 2898 COLONY LAHAIE, LAWRENCE & LAHAIE, MICHELLE 2898 COLONY DR EAST LANSING MI 48823 $680.42

22 33-02-02-08-103-001 Heritage Hills Subd. No. 2 58+ 2919 COLONY MCGINTY, DENNIS & FREYA I 2919 COLONY DR EAST LANSING MI 48823 $217.22

23 33-02-02-08-102-005 Heritage Hills Subd. No. 2 59 2933 COLONY LAHTI, RUSSELL & AMANDA 2933 COLONY DR EAST LANSING MI 48823 $595.19

24 33-02-02-08-103-014 Heritage Hills Subd. 13- 2876 CRESTWOOD DR WILLIAMS, ALICIA N & MATTHEW M 2876 CRESTWOOD DR EAST LANSING MI 48823 $238.94

25 33-02-02-08-154-011 Heritage Hills Subd. 41 2881 CRESTWOOD DR JONES, STEVEN H & DARCIE C 2881 CRESTWOOD DR EAST LANSING MI 48823 $130.33

26 33-02-02-08-103-013 Heritage Hills Subd. 12+ 2886 CRESTWOOD DR PENDRED, MARK & BRIGIT 2886 CRESTWOOD DR EAST LANSING MI 48823 $456.17

27 33-02-02-08-103-008 Heritage Hills Subd. 11 2894 CRESTWOOD DR MOURADIAN, ZAVEN A & MONICA  MARY 2894 CRESTWOOD DR EAST LANSING MI 48823 $260.67

28 33-02-02-08-103-007 Heritage Hills Subd. 10 2900 CRESTWOOD DR RADER, ROBERT & AIMEE 2900 CRESTWOOD DR EAST LANSING MI 48823 $195.50

29 33-02-02-08-102-011 Heritage Hills Subd. 6 2942 CRESTWOOD DR TODARO, DONALD E & ZETER, MARY JO 2942 CRESTWOOD DR EAST LANSING MI 48823 $564.78

30 33-02-02-08-153-011 Heritage Hills Subd. 26 2943 CRESTWOOD DR KARDELL FAMILY TRUST 2943 CRESTWOOD DR EAST LANSING MI 48823 $564.78

31 33-02-02-08-102-010 Heritage Hills Subd. 5 2952 CRESTWOOD DR SUDDUTH, COLEMAN 2952 CRESTWOOD DR EAST LANSING MI 48823 $152.06

32 33-02-02-08-153-008 Heritage Hills Subd. 23 2955 CRESTWOOD CIR FOSTER, THYRA KAY & DUNCAN, NICHOLA 2955 CRESTWOOD CIR EAST LANSING MI 48823 $217.22

33 33-02-02-33-252-012  Briarwood Subd. No. 3 117 2163 DONOVAN FRISCH, ERIN P & HAGMAN, ANDREW M 2163 DONOVAN PL OKEMOS MI 48864 $377.90

34 33-02-02-33-203-009 Briarwood Subdivision 8- 2196 DONOVAN GIFFORD, ROLAND S & MARY L TRUST 2196 DONOVAN PL OKEMOS MI 48864 $745.58

35 33-02-02-33-202-010 Briarwood Subd. No. 3 82 2150 HERITAGE WARREN, JO ANN D TRUSTEE 2150 HERITAGE AVE OKEMOS MI 48864 $238.94

36 33-02-02-33-202-009 Briarwood Subd. No. 3 81+ 2158 HERITAGE DAVILA, MARIA D MOLINA 2158 HERITAGE AVE OKEMOS MI 48864 $238.94

37 33-02-02-33-203-005 Briarwood Subd. No. 3 67 2167 HERITAGE RYPKEMA, JAMES W & KATHLEEN J 2167 HERITAGE AVE OKEMOS MI 48864 $238.94

R e p a i r    A d d r e s s M a i l i n g    A d d r e s s
Property Owner 

Cost
Repair Address



 2021 ORDER TO MAINTAIN SIDEWALK
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 19 - RESOLUTION 4

Parcel # Subdivision Lot No. Primary Name Street Address City ST Zip

R e p a i r    A d d r e s s M a i l i n g    A d d r e s s
Property Owner 

Cost
Repair Address

38 33-02-02-33-203-004 Briarwood Subd. No. 3 66 2177 HERITAGE KARAGOULIS, LYNN & MICHAEL J REVOCA 2177 HERITAGE AVE OKEMOS MI 48864 $0.00

39 33-02-02-33-203-003 Briarwood Subd. No. 3 65 2187 HERITAGE SOURI FAMILY TRUST 2187 HERITAGE AVE OKEMOS MI 48864 $238.94

40 33-02-02-33-203-002 Briarwood Subd. No. 3 64 2195 HERITAGE MONROE, JANET L 2195 HERITAGE AVE OKEMOS MI 48864 $195.50

41 33-02-02-33-201-010 Briarwood Subd. No. 3 83 2198 HERITAGE GOODMAN, TYLER B & GOODMAN, JENNIFER 2198 HERITAGE AVE OKEMOS MI 48864 $456.17

42 33-02-02-33-201-009 Briarwood Subdivision 5+ 2208 HERITAGE FAMILY HOME ONE LLC P O BOX 408 GLEN ARBOR MI 49636 $173.78

43 33-02-02-33-201-007 Briarwood Subdivision 2- & 3- 2230 HERITAGE SKOUTELAS, ATHANASIOS LAMBROS 2230 HERITAGE AVE OKEMOS MI 48864 $238.94

44 33-02-02-33-201-006 Briarwood Subdivision 1 & 2- 2236 HERITAGE ROSS, PAULETTE F 2236 HERITAGE AVE OKEMOS MI 48864 $456.17

45 33-02-02-08-180-003 Heritage Hills Subd. 49 5874 HIGHGATE BOETTCHER, WILLIAM A & JULIE A 5874 HIGHGATE AVE EAST LANSING MI 48823 $0.00

46 33-02-02-08-127-012 Heritage Hills Subd. No. 4 210 5940 HIGHGATE LIGMANN-ZIELINSKA, ARIKA A & ZIELINSKI, KRZYSZTOF P 5940 HIGHGATE AVE EAST LANSING MI 48823 $477.89

47 33-02-02-08-104-007 Heritage Hills Subd. No. 4 208 5947 HIGHGATE MCDONNELL, STACY C & ROBERT F 5947 HIGHGATE AVE EAST LANSING MI 48823 $217.22

48 33-02-02-08-104-005 Heritage Hills Subd. No. 4 206 5963 HIGHGATE GREENBERG, STEVEN & WEINMAN LENA GREENBERG, LENA E WEINMAN 5963 HIGHGATE AVE EAST LANSING MI 48823 $254.15

49 33-02-02-08-104-004 Heritage Hills Subd. No. 4 205 5975 HIGHGATE MURRAY, CRAIG M & HEATHER J 5975 HIGHGATE AVE EAST LANSING MI 48823 $254.15

50 33-02-02-32-401-003 Sanctuary 46 2718 LOON KHEIRAIE, ALI ZOCKAIE & GHAMAMI, MEHRNAZ 2718 LOON LN OKEMOS MI 48864 $0.00

51 33-02-02-33-251-032 Briarwood Subdivision 36 3781 NEW SALEM EVANGELODIMOS, KALITHEA & ATHAN 3781 NEW SALEM AVE OKEMOS MI 48864 $217.22

52 33-02-02-33-253-003 Briarwood Subdivision 26 3782 NEW SALEM JUN, JUNG HA 3782 NEW SALEM AVE OKEMOS MI 48864 $0.00

53 33-02-02-33-251-024 Briarwood Subdivision 40 3823 NEW SALEM KELLEY, CHERYL A 3823 NEW SALEM AVE OKEMOS MI 48864 $434.44

54 33-02-02-33-251-023 Briarwood Subdivision 41 3833 NEW SALEM BUSINESS GROWTH STRATEGIES 3833 NEW SALEM AVE OKEMOS MI 48864 $0.00

55 33-02-02-33-252-010 Briarwood Subdivision 21 3836 NEW SALEM WEBB REVOCABLE TRUST 3836 NEW SALEM AVE OKEMOS MI 48864 $217.22

56 33-02-02-33-251-019 Briarwood Subdivision 45 3861 NEW SALEM KARL, LOIS JEAN 3861 NEW SALEM AVE OKEMOS MI 48864 $108.61

57 33-02-02-33-252-005 Briarwood Subdivision 16 3866 NEW SALEM PARTICKA, MICHAEL G & CHRISLYN A 3866 NEW SALEM AVE OKEMOS MI 48864 $673.39

58 33-02-02-33-251-018 Briarwood Subdivision 46 & 47- 3867 NEW SALEM BOCTOR, KAMIL & NABILA 3867 NEW SALEM AVE OKEMOS MI 48864 $130.33

59 33-02-02-33-251-015 Briarwood Subdivision 49 3891 NEW SALEM ZAHAKI, SOGHRA 3891 NEW SALEM AVE OKEMOS MI 48864 $217.22

60 33-02-02-08-130-013 Heritage Hills Subd. No. 4 171 5890 PATRIOTS BROWN, EUGENE W & JEAN P 5890 PATRIOTS WAY EAST LANSING MI 48823 $143.37

61 33-02-02-08-129-016 Heritage Hills Subd. No. 4 228 5915 PATRIOTS GAIER, SHARON 5915 PATRIOTS WAY EAST LANSING MI 48823 $260.67

62 33-02-02-08-130-008 Heritage Hills Subd. No. 4 176 5930 PATRIOTS SPRINGER, STEVEN M & PATRICIA R 5930 PATRIOTS WAY EAST LANSING MI 48823 $0.00

63 33-02-02-08-130-007 Heritage Hills Subd. No. 4 177 5944 PATRIOTS LEWIS, CHESTER W & FRANCES M TRUST 5944 PATRIOTS WAY EAST LANSING MI 48823 $260.67

64 33-02-02-33-252-014 Briarwood Subd. No. 3 115 3855 RALEIGH WHEELER, ABRAHAM & MINKIN, RACHEL TRUSTEES 3855 RALEIGH DR OKEMOS MI 48864 $217.22

65 33-02-02-33-252-013 Briarwood Subd. No. 3 116 3865 RALEIGH PICKENS, ALEX III & NAUDIA N 3865 RALEIGH DR OKEMOS MI 48864 $238.94

66 33-02-02-33-204-003 Briarwood Subd. No. 3 99 3926 RALEIGH HUDDLESTON, JOHN R 3926 RALEIGH DR OKEMOS MI 48864 $217.22

67 33-02-02-33-204-002 Briarwood Subd. No. 3 98 3936 RALEIGH JANSSENS, JOHN & MARGARET TRUSTEES 3936 RALEIGH DR OKEMOS MI 48864 $282.39

68 33-02-02-33-276-026 Briarwood Subd. No. 5 243 3845 ROXBURY WEBSTER, BENJAMIN & CAROL TRUSTEES 3845 ROXBURY AVE OKEMOS MI 48864 $238.94

69 33-02-02-33-228-012 Briarwood Subd. No. 5 257 3884 ROXBURY AHMED, JALAL U & FERDOUS 3884 ROXBURY AVE OKEMOS MI 48864 $130.33

70 33-02-02-33-276-021 Briarwood Subd. No. 5 248 3887 ROXBURY BASTANFAR, ROBERT B & BASTANFAR, MOSTAFA & AZAR SARA 3887 ROXBURY AVE OKEMOS MI 48864 $260.67

71 33-02-02-33-204-023 Briarwood Subd. No. 4 133 3851 SANDLEWOOD BARTOW, JON L & CAROL 4423 CALGARY BLVD OKEMOS MI 48864 $438.79

72 33-02-02-33-204-022 Briarwood Subd. No. 4 134 3855 SANDLEWOOD CHOU, ANN HUIAN & CHUNG-PO 3855 SANDLEWOOD DR OKEMOS MI 48864 $412.72

73 33-02-02-33-276-009 Briarwood Subd. No. 4 167 3864 SANDLEWOOD HEPP, RALPH E & PATRICIA 3864 SANDLEWOOD DR OKEMOS MI 48864 $304.11

74 33-02-02-33-204-018 Briarwood Subd. No. 4 138 3885 SANDLEWOOD DAUKA, MICHAEL & CHRISTINA 3885 SANDLEWOOD DR OKEMOS MI 48864 $217.22



 2021 ORDER TO MAINTAIN SIDEWALK
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 19 - RESOLUTION 4

Parcel # Subdivision Lot No. Primary Name Street Address City ST Zip

R e p a i r    A d d r e s s M a i l i n g    A d d r e s s
Property Owner 

Cost
Repair Address

75 33-02-02-08-181-002 Heritage Hills Subd. No. 3 92+ 5856 SHADOW LAWN GORDON, HOWARD F & BRENDA B 5856 SHADOW LAWN DR EAST LANSING MI 48823 $425.76

76 33-02-02-08-128-010 Heritage Hills Subd. No. 3 114 5917 SHADOW LAWN SYKES, JENNIFER E & SYKES-MC LAUGHLIN, GAVIN M 5917 SHADOW LAWN DR EAST LANSING MI 48823 $434.44

77 33-02-02-08-129-001 Heritage Hills Subd. No. 3 125 5934 SHADOW LAWN BOETTCHER FAMILY TRUST 5934 SHADOW LAWN DR EAST LANSING MI 48823 $434.44

78 33-02-02-08-129-010 Heritage Hills Subd. No. 4 220 5944 SHADOW LAWN SEGERLIND, T JOHNSON & SARAH J 5944 SHADOW LAWN DR EAST LANSING MI 48823 $238.94

79 33-02-02-33-229-028 Briarwood Subd. No. 5 282 2050 SHAGBARK NNAMA, SAMUEL K & IHUOMA 2050 SHAGBARK LN OKEMOS MI 48864 $0.00

80 33-02-02-33-229-027 Briarwood Subd. No. 5 281 2060 SHAGBARK RUDOLPH, TIMOTHY J 2060 SHAGBARK LN OKEMOS MI 48864 $521.33

81 33-02-02-33-276-032 Briarwood Subd. No. 5 237 2065 SHAGBARK LAFAVE, VICTORIA V 2065 SHAGBARK LN OKEMOS MI 48864 $217.22

82 33-02-02-33-229-026  Briarwood Subd. No. 5 280 2070 SHAGBARK BACKUS, EMILY & JONATHON 2070 SHAGBARK LN OKEMOS MI 48864 $673.39

83 33-02-02-33-276-031 Briarwood Subd. No. 5 238 2075 SHAGBARK BURBA, SEMMA 2075 SHAGBARK LN OKEMOS MI 48864 $238.94

84 33-02-02-33-229-025 Briarwood Subd. No. 5 279 2080 SHAGBARK CONRAD, CRAIG J & CAROL A 2080 SHAGBARK LN OKEMOS MI 48864 $0.00

85 33-02-02-33-229-012 Briarwood Subd. No. 5 275 2075 SHELDRAKE ANDROS, GEORGE J & JANE 2075 SHELDRAKE AVE OKEMOS MI 48864 $238.94

86 33-02-02-33-228-010 Briarwood Subd. No. 5 261 3891 SHELDRAKE WILLIAMS, ELAINE C TRUSTEE 3891 SHELDRAKE AVE OKEMOS MI 48864 $238.94

87 33-02-02-08-153-014 Heritage Hills Subd. 29 5847 SMITHFIELD KEEFE, DENNIS R & CAROLE W 5847 SMITHFIELD AVE EAST LANSING MI 48823 $238.94

88 33-02-02-08-253-002 Heritage Hills Subd. No. 4 140 2739 SOUTHWOOD CHENOWETH, WILLIAM A TRUST & OLIVIERI, LINDA M TRUST 2739 SOUTHWOOD DR EAST LANSING MI 48823 $477.89

89 33-02-02-08-203-012 Heritage Hills Subd. No. 4 142 2742 SOUTHWOOD MCGILLICUDDY, KYLER E & MEGAN 2742 SOUTHWOOD DR EAST LANSING MI 48823 $912.33

90 33-02-02-08-253-006 Heritage Hills Subd. No. 4 136 2747 SOUTHWOOD WARDELL, JOHN T & SONYA 2747 SOUTHWOOD DR EAST LANSING MI 48823 $738.56

91 33-02-02-08-203-009 Heritage Hills Subd. No. 4 145 2760 SOUTHWOOD HILL, MICHAEL S 2760 SOUTHWOOD DR EAST LANSING MI 48823 $697.99

92 33-02-02-08-203-008 Heritage Hills Subd. No. 4 146 2764 SOUTHWOOD CHASE, RAY H & JO ANN 2764 SOUTHWOOD DR EAST LANSING MI 48823 $521.33

93 33-02-02-08-182-018 Heritage Hills Subd. No. 4 128 2781 SOUTHWOOD NEH, GRACE & YOW, YA 2781 SOUTHWOOD DR EAST LANSING MI 48823 $217.22

94 33-02-02-08-181-008 Heritage Hills Subd. No. 4 150 2782 SOUTHWOOD JAKOVAC, SCOTT & SHANNON 2782 SOUTHWOOD DR EAST LANSING MI 48823 $217.22

95 33-02-02-08-182-017 Heritage Hills Subd. No. 4 127 2785 SOUTHWOOD BERTSCH, ANN T 2785 SOUTHWOOD DR EAST LANSING MI 48823 $0.00

96 33-02-02-08-182-014 Heritage Hills Subd. No. 3 104 2791 SOUTHWOOD COSCARELLI TRST, ROBERTO FRANCESCO & COSCARELLI TRST, MOLLY LIZABETH 2791 SOUTHWOOD DR EAST LANSING MI 48823 $456.17

97 33-02-02-08-182-009 Heritage Hills Subd. No. 3 99 2827 SOUTHWOOD GALLEGOS JR, GILBERT 2827 SOUTHWOOD DR EAST LANSING MI 48823 $608.22

98 33-02-02-08-182-008 Heritage Hills Subd. No. 3 98 2835 SOUTHWOOD SUDOL, ERIC J & SALAS, ANGELIA D 2835 SOUTHWOOD DR EAST LANSING MI 48823 $0.00

99 33-02-02-08-253-001 Heritage Hills Subd. No. 4 141 2737 STILL VALLEY DR KOIVISTO, ADAM D & BETH A 2737 STILL VALLEY DR EAST LANSING MI 48823 $217.22

100 33-02-02-08-202-003 Heritage Hills Subd. No. 4 168 2766 STILL VALLEY CT WILLIAMS, DAVID PAUL & ALLISON MARIE 2766 STILL VALLEY CT EAST LANSING MI 48823 $456.17

101 33-02-02-08-203-002 Heritage Hills Subd. No. 4 157 2771 STILL VALLEY DR WILLIAMS, MARK & CORINA 2771 STILL VALLEY DR EAST LANSING MI 48823 $238.94

102 33-02-02-08-203-001 Heritage Hills Subd. No. 4 156 2775 STILL VALLEY DR WATSON, ROBERT F 2775 STILL VALLEY DR EAST LANSING MI 48823 $0.00

103 33-02-02-08-202-001 Heritage Hills Subd. No. 4 170 2776 STILL VALLEY CT PASSANANTE, NANCY S TRUSTEE 2776 STILL VALLEY CT EAST LANSING MI 48823 $238.94

104 33-02-02-08-180-012 Heritage Hills Subd. No. 3 88 2823 STILL VALLEY DR JAHSHAN, MARY & JAHSHAN, SUSAN R 2823 STILL VALLEY DR EAST LANSING MI 48823 $0.00

105 33-02-02-08-180-011 Heritage Hills Subd. No. 3 87 2831 STILL VALLEY DR CHAMBERS, BRIAN & VIRGINIA 2831 STILL VALLEY DR EAST LANSING MI 48823 $217.22

106 33-02-02-32-228-014 Sunwind Estates 70 3925 SUNWIND AUDAS, PAULA M 3925 SUNWIND DR EAST OKEMOS MI 48864 $0.00

107 33-02-02-33-279-001 Briarwood Subd. No. 4 179 2099 TAMARACK GRIES FAMILY JOINT REV TRUST 2099 TAMARACK DR OKEMOS MI 48864 $477.89

108 33-02-02-33-254-017 Briarwood Subd. No. 4 180 2107 TAMARACK SEMERLY, CHARLES G & LISA M 2107 TAMARACK DR OKEMOS MI 48864 $955.78

109 33-02-02-33-253-014 Briarwood Subd. No. 4 123 2156 TAMARACK DAVIDEK, THOMAS & EVA 2156 TAMARACK DR OKEMOS MI 48864 $217.22

110 33-02-02-33-254-011 Briarwood Subd. No. 4 186 2167 TAMARACK ARENDS, JASON D & KATHERINE 2167 TAMARACK DR OKEMOS MI 48864 $434.44

111 33-02-02-33-253-011 Briarwood Subd. No. 4 120 2186 TAMARACK WALTON, ROBERT & JULIA TRUSTEES 2186 TAMARACK DR OKEMOS MI 48864 $195.50

112 33-02-02-35-301-008 Ember Oaks 16 1433 WANDERING PATEL, SHARADHDHEY & SHRADHDHA 1433 WANDERING WAY OKEMOS MI 48864 $0.00

$35,106.87



 

 

12. E.  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

 

To:  Board Members 
 
From:  Dan Opsommer, Assistant Township Manager  

Director of Public Works and Engineering 
 
Date:  April 12, 2022 
 
Re: Imposing escrow conditions for permitted work by telecommunication 

providers to ensure rights-of-way are returned to their original condition 
 

The Township has had ongoing issues with telecommunication providers damaging public and 
private property in the public right-of-way over many years. 
 
Since I assumed my new role with the Township on February 14, we have had the following issues 
with careless and reckless contractors hired by Metro Net: 
 

 Trenching underneath the pathway along Okemos Rd at the intersection of Woodfield, 
which has already caused the pathway to sink and crack. Trenching under any surface 
infrastructure (i.e. roads, curb and gutter, sidewalks/pathways, etc.) will compromise the 
integrity of the infrastructure as surface infrastructure relies on underlying soil 
compaction for its structural integrity. 

 Underground boring of fiber that broke the Township’s water main. Boring into our water 
main is very difficult to do as the main is located about 50 inches deep to protect it from 
frost. Whereas, telecommunication providers typically bore about 18-24 inches deep.  

 Underground boring of fiber that broke the Township’s curb box. The curb box was 
marked and they started the bore from approximately 6 feet away. When the curb box 
broke, soil went into the water line and created a blockage in the private water line to a 
home in Tacoma Hills. We immediately fixed the curb box and connected the resident to 
water via their neighbor’s home overnight while we required Metro Net and/or their 
contractor to pay an appropriate contractor that we have worked with and knows our 
water system to trench and replace the water line that was blocked. 

 Equipment left in the public road overnight at a stub street in Shaker Heights, which a 
resident living on that road mistakenly backed into during low visibility due to 
precipitation. This cause over $900 in damage to the resident’s vehicle. 

 Performing unpermitted work in Whispering Oaks and Cornell Woods. 
 Repeated failure to communicate with residents on when and how they will restore 

landscaping. 
 
In order to address future issues, I am asking the Township Board to authorize the Director of 
Public Works and Engineering to require telecommunication providers who are applying for 
permitted work within the public rights-of-way, to deposit escrow amounts that are of reasonable 
cost as a condition of their permit to cover performance standards and compliance with the permit 
requirements and specifications.  
 



 

 

 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

 

Memo to Township Board 
April 12, 2022 
Page 2 

Re: Imposing escrow conditions for permitted work by telecommunication providers to ensure 
rights-of-way are returned to their original condition 

Imposing this condition for escrowed funds will ensure that the public rights-of-way are returned 
to their original condition during and after the telecommunications provider's access and use, as 
provided under Section 70-184 (permit application procedures) of our code of ordinances, which 
states: 
 

(h) Conditions. The Township Board may impose conditions on a permit to protect the 
public health, safety, and welfare. Without limitation, these conditions may include the 
posting of a bond by the telecommunications provider in an amount that shall not exceed 
the reasonable cost to ensure that the public rights-of-way are returned to their original 
condition during and after the telecommunications provider's access and use. 

 
We have also had longstanding issues getting as-built documents from the telecommunication 
providers so we have accurate records of where they installed their infrastructure in the right-of-
way. This escrow condition will assist us in enforcing this requirement under our permits as the 
permittee will need to adhere to all conditions of the permit, including providing as-built 
documents, before we return their escrow funds back to them and close the permit. 
 
The following motion has been prepared for the Board’s consideration: 

 
“Move to authorize the Director of Public Works and Engineering to require 
telecommunication providers who are applying for permitted work within the 
public rights-of-way to deposit escrow amounts that are of reasonable cost per 
permit as a condition of their permit to cover performance standards and 
compliance with permit requirements and specifications to ensure that the public 
rights-of-way are returned to their original condition during and after the 
telecommunications provider's access and use, as provided under Section 70-184, 
permit application procedures, in the code of ordinances.” 



Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

13.B

To: Township Board  

From: Brian Shorkey, AICP, Senior Planner 

Date: April 4, 2022 

Re: Rezoning #2022-09 (Becky Beauchine Kulka Inc.), rezone approximately 0.99 
acres located at 2260 Jolly Oak Road from PO (Professional Office) to C-2 
(Commercial). 

The application under review is a request to rezone an approximately one-acre parcel located at 
2260 Jolly Oak Road from PO (Professional Office) to C-2 (Commercial). The Planning Commission 
held a public hearing on the rezoning at its meeting on March 28, 2022 and voted to recommend 
approval of the request at the same meeting, citing the following reasons: 

• The requested zoning is consistent with the 2017 Master Plan.
• Public water and sanitary sewer are available to serve the subject property.
• The subject property meets or exceeds the minimum standards for lot area and lot width in

the C-2, Commercial district.

The staff memorandum outlining the rezoning and minutes from the draft Planning Commission 
meeting at which the rezoning was discussed are attached for the Board’s review. 

Township Board Options 

The Township Board may approve or deny the proposed rezoning from PO (Professional Office) to C-
2 (Commercial). If the Board amends the proposal, the request may be referred back to the Planning 
Commission for a recommendation.  A resolution will be provided at a future meeting. 

Attachments 
1. Staff memorandum dated March 24, 2022 with attachments.
2. Planning Commission resolution recommending approval dated March 28, 2022.
3. Planning Commission minutes dated March 28, 2022.



 

 

To:  Planning Commission  
 
From:  Brian Shorkey, AICP, Senior Planner 
 
Date:  March 24, 2022 
 
Re: Rezoning #21060 (Becky Beauchine Kulka Inc.), rezone approximately 0.99 

acres located at 2260 Jolly Oak Road from PO (Professional Office) to C-2 
(Commercial). 

 
 
Becky Beauchine Kulka Inc. has requested the rezoning of an approximately one acre parcel 
located at 2260 Jolly Oak Road from PO (Professional Office) to C-2 (Commercial). A special use 
permit for a bank with a drive through (SUP #90051) was approved in 1990 and subsequently 
developed. 
 
The Future Land Use Map from the 2017 Master Plan designates the subject property in the 
Commercial category. 

 
 
 

2017 FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
 

 
 



 
Rezoning #21060 (Becky Beauchine Inc) 
Planning Commission (March 24, 2022) 
Page 2 

 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

Zoning 
The subject site is located in the PO zoning district, which requires a minimum 50 feet of lot width 
and 5,000 square feet of lot area. The requested C-2 (Commercial) zoning district requires a 
minimum of 100 feet of lot width and 4,000 square feet of lot area. The subject property is a corner 
lot with approximately 300 feet of lot width on Jolly Oak Road and 232 feet on Okemos Road. The 
subject property has 0.99 acres (43,124 square feet) of lot area. As a result, the site meets the 
minimum standards for both lot area and lot width of the proposed C-2 zoning district. The following 
table illustrates the lot width and lot area standards for the existing PO and proposed C-2 zoning 
districts: 
 

ZONING DISTRICT MINIMUM 
LOT AREA 

MINIMUM 
LOT WIDTH 

 PO 5,000 sq. ft. 50 ft. 
C-2 4,000 sq. ft. 100 ft. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ZONING MAP 
 

 



 
Rezoning #21060 (Becky Beauchine Inc) 
Planning Commission (March 24, 2022) 
Page 3 

 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

Physical Features 
The site currently contains a vacant building that used to house a bank with a drive through. The 
applicant is proposing to renovate the building to remove the drive through and accommodate the 
proposed jewelry store. The topography of the site is mainly flat as it is developed. The Flood 
Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) for Meridian Township indicates the property is not located in a 
floodplain.  
 
Wetlands 
The Township Wetland Map depicts no wetlands on the site.  It is not anticipated that a wetland 
delineation will be required for the redevelopment of the subject property. 
 
Greenspace Plan 
The Township Greenspace Plan does not show any preservation corridors on the subject property.  
 
Streets & Traffic 
The site double fronts on Jolly Oak Road and Okemos Road, although Jolly Oak Road is where the 
parcel is addressed from. The Township’s Pedestrian/Bicycle Master Plan designates Okemos Road 
as an on-road pathway. No new road cuts are proposed for the redevelopment of this site.  
 
The information below compares traffic generation between the existing PO zoning district and 
proposed C-2 zoning district and is based on the findings as presented in the applicant’s traffic 
impact study. It estimates future traffic by using data from the highest potential traffic generator in 
each zoning district, which in this case is the existing bank with a drive-through for the PO district 
and a high turnover sit down restaurant for the C-2 district. 
 

 Existing PO zoning  Proposed C-2 zoning  Change 

Peak Hour trips 
 

46 (a.m.) 
97 (p.m.) 

44 (a.m.) 
42 (p.m.) 

-2 
-55 

Average Daily 
trips 

462 493 31 

 
Utilities 
The site is currently served by municipal water or sewer/septic services.    
 
Staff Analysis 
The applicant has requested the rezoning of an approximate one acre parcel from PO to C-2. When 
evaluating a rezoning request, the Planning Commission should consider all uses permitted by right 
and by special use permit in the current and proposed zoning districts, as well as the reasons for 
rezoning listed on page two of the rezoning application (attached). 
 
The purpose of the PO zoning district (Section 86-432) is to accommodate those nonresidential uses 
of an administrative or professional nature. Uses permitted by right in the PO district include 
professional offices, hospitals, medical clinics, veterinary clinics, research laboratories, and religious 



 
Rezoning #21060 (Becky Beauchine Inc) 
Planning Commission (March 24, 2022) 
Page 4 

 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

institutions. Special land uses include child care centers, funeral homes, drug stores, barber or 
beauty shops, restaurants without drive-throughs, and religious institutions.   
 
The purpose of the C-2 zoning district (Section 86-404) is to accommodate commercial and business 
service activities that serve the community. The C-2 district permits a variety of business and service 
activities by right, including the requested use, and by special use permit. 
 
The Commercial category of the 2017 Future Land Use Map is intended to serve the community’s 
need for large, national retailers and restaurants mixed with regional draws and specialty stores at 
varying scales.  The Commercial future land use designation correlates with the C-1, C-2, C-3 
(Commercial), PO (Professional and Office), and CR (Commercial Recreation) zoning districts. 
 
Planning Commission Options 
The Planning Commission may recommend approval or denial of the request, or it may recommend 
a different zoning designation than proposed by the applicant to the Township Board. A resolution 
will be provided at a future meeting. 
 
Attachments 
1. Application. 
2. Rezoning criteria. 
3. Traffic assessment, prepared by Fleis & Vandenbrink, dated February 11, 2022. 
4. Resolution to approve. 









27725 Stansbury Boulevard, Suite 195 
Farmington Hills, MI 48334 

P: 248.536.0080 
F: 248.536.0079 

853790 - Proposed Jewelry Development, Meridian Twp. - FINAL RTS_2-11-22  www.fveng.com 

MEMO
VIA EMAIL 

To: 
Ms. Becky Beauchine Kulka 
Becky Beauchine Kulka Diamonds and Fine Jewelry

From: 
Jacob Swanson, PE 
Fleis & VandenBrink 

Date: February 11, 2022 

Re: 
Proposed Jewelry Store Development 
Meridian Township, Michigan 
Rezoning Traffic Study 

INTRODUCTION  

This memorandum presents the results of the Rezoning Traffic Study (RTS) for the proposed jewelry store in 
Meridian Township, Michigan, as shown in Figure 1. The property is currently occupied by a PNC Bank, and 
the existing building is proposed to be renovated to accommodate the proposed jewelry store. The existing use 
is zoned as Professional and Offices (PO) District and is proposed to be rezoned to commercial District (C-2) 
to accommodate the proposed use. As part of this proposed rezoning, Meridian Township has requested a 
rezoning traffic study (RTS) to determine the traffic impact of rezoning. 

F&V completed the Rezoning Traffic Study (RTS) for the subject parcel based on the information in the 
Township Ordinance, and requirements from Evaluating Traffic Impact Studies: A Recommended Practice for 
Michigan Communities, and trip generation data published by the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) in 
Trip Generation, 11th Edition.  

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

The project site located at 2260 Jolly Oak Road, generally located in the northwest quadrant of the Okemos 
Road & Jolly Oak Road intersection. Both Jolly Oak Road and Okemos Road are under the jurisdiction of the 
Ingham County Road Department (ICRD) and roadway information adjacent to the project site is summarized 
in Table 1.  

Table 1: Roadway Conditions 

Roadway Segment Jolly Oak Road Okemos Road 

Number of Lanes 2 (One-lane each direction) 
5 (Two-lane each direction and  

a center left turn lane) 

Functional Classification Local Principal Arterial 

Posted Speed Limit 35 mph 45 mph 

Traffic Volumes (AADT) N/A 21,981 vpd (MDOT 2018) 



Proposed Jewelry Store Development | Rezoning Traffic Study 
February 11, 2022  Page 2 of 5 

 

853790 - Proposed Jewelry Development, Meridian Twp. - FINAL RTS_2-11-22 

Figure 1: Site Location for the Proposed Development 

 
  

SITE 



Proposed Jewelry Store Development | Rezoning Traffic Study 
February 11, 2022  Page 3 of 5 

 

853790 - Proposed Jewelry Development, Meridian Twp. - FINAL RTS_2-11-22 

TRIP GENERATION

The proposed development includes renovation of existing PNC Bank building to accommodate the proposed 
jewelry store. The number of weekday daily and weekday peak hour (AM and PM) vehicle trips that would be 
generated by the proposed jewelry store were forecasted based on data published by ITE in the Trip Generation 
Manual, 11th Edition and the ITE Trip Generation Handbook, 3rd Edition. 

The proposed site location is currently zoned Professional and Offices (PO) district which is proposed to be 
rezoned from PO to commercial District (C-2) to accommodate the proposed use. An analysis was performed 
to determine the maximum site trip generation potential under the existing PO zoning. The Township Zoning 
Ordinance describes the land uses permitted by-right under the existing PO zoning classification which were 
matched to the land use categories described by the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) in Trip 
Generation, 11th Edition.   

Review of the ITE land use descriptions indicates that the Drive-in Bank (LUC 912) represent the highest trip 
generation potential for the existing PO zoning. The trip generation potential for this site was compared to the 
projected trips generated by the proposed zoning � Commercial District (C-2). Review of the ITE land use 
descriptions indicates that the Quality Restaurant (LUC 931) and High Turnover � Sit Down Restaurant (LUC 
932) represent the highest potential trip generation for this site under proposed C-2 zoning. The results of the 
trip generation analysis comparison are summarized in Table 2 which shows a minor increase in potential trip 
generation under proposed C-2 zoning during the weekday, however, it will generate less trips during the AM 
peak hour and significantly less trips during the PM peak hour. 

Table 2: Rezoning Trip Generation Comparison 

Zoning Land Use 
ITE 

Code Size Unit 

Average 
Daily Traffic 

(vpd) 

AM Peak Hour 
(vph) 

PM Peak Hour 
(vph) 

In Out Total In Out Total 

Existing 
Zoning PO 

Medical-Dental Office Building 720 4,600 SF 90 12 3 15 5 11 16 

Drive-in Bank 912 4,600 SF 462 27 19 46 49 48 97 

Maximum Trips for PO Zoning 462 27 19 46 49 48 97 

Proposed 
Zoning C-2 

Quality Restaurant 931 4,600 SF 386 2 1 3 24 12 36 

High Turnover (Sit-down) Restaurant 932 4,600 SF 493 24 20 44 26 16 42 

Maximum Trips for C-2 Zoning 493 24 20 44 26 16 42 

Difference 31 -3 1 -2 -23 -32 -55 

Further analysis performed to evaluate the projected traffic impact by the proposed jewelry store and the 
existing bank. The results of the trip generation analysis comparison are summarized in Table 3.  

Table 3: Site Trip Generation Comparison 

Land Use 
ITE 

Code Size Unit 

Average 
Daily Traffic 

(vpd) 

AM Peak Hour 
(vph) 

PM Peak Hour 
(vph) 

In Out Total In Out Total 

Existing Land Use Drive-in Bank 912 4,600 SF 462 27 19 46 49 48 97 

Proposed Land Use Strip Retail Plaza (<40k SF) 822 4,600 SF 424 7 4 11 23 22 45 

Difference -38 -20 -15 -35 -26 -26 -52 

The results of the analysis show that the proposed development (i.e., jewelry store) will generate significantly 
less traffic than the trip generation associated with the existing land use (i.e., bank) during the weekday peak 
hours (AM and PM). Additionally, the trip generation comparison indicates that the total number of trips 
generated by the proposed land use under the proposed zoning district (C-2) will not exceed 100 additional 
directional peak hour trips compared to the current land-use under the existing zoning district (PO). 

 



Proposed Jewelry Store Development | Rezoning Traffic Study 
February 11, 2022  Page 4 of 5 

 

853790 - Proposed Jewelry Development, Meridian Twp. - FINAL RTS_2-11-22 

INTERSECTION SIGHT DISTANCE ANALYSIS 

The speed limit on Jolly Oak Road is 35 mph and ICRD recommends a minimum of 390 feet intersection sight 
distance for passenger cars on a two-lane roadway. The projected horizontal sight distance at the proposed 
site driveway is shown on Figure 2. The result of the analysis shows that there is adequate horizontal sight 
distance to the east and west of the site driveway. 

Figure 2: Intersection sight distance at the Site Drive & Jolly Oak Road 

 
  



Proposed Jewelry Store Development | Rezoning Traffic Study 
February 11, 2022  Page 5 of 5 

 

853790 - Proposed Jewelry Development, Meridian Twp. - FINAL RTS_2-11-22 

CONCLUSIONS

 The potential trip generation under proposed C-2 zoning is slightly higher than the potential trip 
generation under existing PO zoning during the weekday; however, it will generate less trips during the 
AM peak hour and significantly less trips during the PM peak hour. 

 The proposed development (i.e., jewelry store) will generate significantly less traffic than the trip 
generation associated with the existing land use (i.e., bank) during both AM and PM peak periods. 

 The trip generation comparison indicates that the total number of trips generated by the proposed land 
use under the proposed zoning district (C-2) will not exceed 100 additional directional peak hour trips 
compared to the current land-use under the existing zoning district (PO).  

 The result of the intersection sight analysis shows that there is adequate horizontal sight distance at 
the site driveway. 

 The proposed development is expected to have a minimal impact on the existing road network and no 
further Traffic Study / Traffic Analysis is required. 

 
Any questions related to this memorandum, study, analysis, and results should be addressed to Fleis & 
VandenBrink.  
 

 I hereby certify that this engineering document was prepared by me or 
under my direct personal supervision and that I am a duly licensed 
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Michigan. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

RESOLUTION TO RECOMMEND APPROVAL            Rezoning #21060 
2260 Jolly Oak Road 

 
RESOLUTION 

 
At a regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the Charter Township of Meridian, 

Ingham County, Michigan, held at the Meridian Municipal Building, in said Township on the 28th 
day of March, 2022, at 7:00 p.m., Local Time. 
 
PRESENT: ___________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
ABSENT: ___________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 The following resolution was offered by _________________ and supported by _________________. 
 
 WHEREAS, Becky Beauchine Kulka Inc. requested the rezoning of an approximately one 
acre parcel located at 2260 Jolly Oak Road from PO (Professional Office) to C-2 (Commercial); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing and discussed at its regular 
meeting on March 28, 2022; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the subject property is adjacent to Commercial zoning on the south side and is 
not adjacent to any residentially zoned property; and 
 

WHEREAS, the proposed rezoning to C-2, Commerical, is consistent with the Master Plan for 
Meridian Township, which calls for Commerical uses on the site; and 
 

WHEREAS, public water and sanitary sewer are available to serve the subject property; and 
 

WHEREAS, the subject property meets or exceeds the minimum standards for lot area and 
lot width in the C-2, Commercial zoning district; and 
 

WHEREAS, approving the rezoning would allow the applicant to redevelop the vacant 
building currently on the site. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP 
OF MERIDIAN hereby recommends approval of Rezoning #21070 to rezone the approximately one-
acre parcel located at 2260 Jolly Oak Road from PO (Professional Office) to C-2 (Commercial). 
 
  
ADOPTED: YEAS: ________________________________________________________________________________ 
   

NAYS: ________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
    ) ss 
COUNTY OF INGHAM ) 

 
I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Chair of the Planning Commission of the 

Township of Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true 



Resolution to Recommend Approval 
Rezoning #21060 (Becky Beauchine Kulka Inc.) 
Page 2 
 
and a complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Planning Commission on 
the 28th day of March, 2022. 
 
 
       ___________________________________   
       Mark Blumer 
       Planning Commission Chair 

 
 
 



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes -DRAFT- 
Page 3 

 
 
Vice-Chair Trezise stated he remembers Mr. Baryshev, and would like to check the southern 
boundary of his property in case it needs additional light screening. 
 
Chair Premoe asked Mr. Wood about light disturbances to neighbors as the school does not 
turn off their lights at night. 
 
Mr. Wood stated the current issue pertains to interior security lights, and he is being 
diligent in ensuring these lights are turned off at night to avoid further disturbance.  
 
Jeff Frederick, 2758 Eastway Dr., Okemos, MI, stated he would like to see a layout that 
shows where the addition, fencing, and trees will be located. 
 
Director Schmitt stated the packet contains maps of the addition, and the details on fencing, 
trees, screening, etc. will be forth coming upon site plan review. 
 

Chair Blumer called for a straw poll on the proposed amendment. 
 
Commissioner Snyder stated she would like to review conditions and potentially add a 
condition in relation to light screening. 
 
Chair Blumer shared Commissioner Snyder’s concerns in relation to light screening. 
 

STRAW POLL YEAS: Chair Blumer, Vice-Chair Trezise, Commissioners McConnell, 
_________Richards, Premoe, Shrewsbury, Snyder  

 
NAYS: NONE 

 
RESULTS: 7-0 
 

Commissioner Premoe stated it would be helpful to have what was said about the lighting 
issue in writing. 
 
Chair Blumer closed the Public Hearing at 7:38 pm. 
 

B. Rezoning #21060 – 2260 Jolly Oak Road, PO to C-2 
 
Chair Blumer opened the Public Hearing at 7:40 pm. 
 
Senior Planner Shorkey outlined Rezoning #21060 – 2260 Jolly Oak Road, PO to C-2 for 
discussion. 
 
Commissioner Snyder how long the bank property has been vacant. Senior Planner Shorkey 
replied at least one year. 
 
Commissioner Shrewsbury asked if the Special Use Permit allowing them to have the drive-
through would be negated with this rezoning. 
 
Senior Planner Shorkey replied that is correct. 
 

schmitt
Highlight



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes -DRAFT- 
Page 4 

 
Applicant Becky Kulka, 6137 Cottage Dr., Haslett MI further outlined the case for discussion.  
 
Commissioner Richards asked about the company potentially going out of business. 
 
Ms. Kulka stated they were only liquidating their goods at that time, but that it 
unfortunately appeared as if they were going out of business. 
 
Commissioner McConnell asked if the renovation only pertains to the drive-through. 
 
Ms. Kulka stated this is mostly correct but she is thinking about an extension under the 
overhang where the drive through used to be. 
 
Chair Blumer asked if staff has any objection. 
 
Director Schmitt replied they do not. 
 

Chair Blumer moved to waive the rules to allow action on this item tonight. Seconded by 
Commissioner Snyder. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Commissioners Richards, Shrewsbury, Premoe, Snyder, Vice-

_________Chair Trezise, Commissioner McConnell, Chair Blumer  
 

NAYS: NONE 
 

MOTION CARRIED: 7-0 
 
Vice-Chair Trezise moved to approve Rezoning #21060 – 2260 Jolly Oak Road, PO to C-2. 
Seconded by Commissioner Snyder. 
 

Commissioner Richards asked if there is any issue piecing off a quarter of the condominium 
development in this way. 
 
Director Schmitt replied no. 
 

ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Commissioners Premoe, McConnell, Shrewsbury, Richards, Snyder, 
_________Vice-Chair Trezise, Chair Blumer  

 
NAYS: NONE 

 
MOTION CARRIED: 7-0 
 

Chair Blumer Closed the Public Hearing at 7:54 pm. 
 

C. Text Amendment 2022-07 – Delete RRR District 
 
Chair Blumer opened the Public Hearing at 7:55 pm. 
 
Senior Planner Shorkey outlined Text Amendment 2022-07 – Delete RRR District for 
discussion. 
 



Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

13.C

To: Board Members 

From: Timothy R. Schmitt, AICP 
Director of Community Planning and Development 

Date: April 4, 2022 

Re: Zoning Ordinance Updates 

Staff has spent the past several months working with the Planning Commission to address the first 
group in a series of ordinance issues, as part of a larger scale Zoning Ordinance review. These 
‘smaller’ scale items that have been discussed include items that have appeared frequently at the 
Zoning Board of Appeals, items that do not work well with modern development or situations, or 
items that are simply in conflict with other provisions in the ordinance.  We expect a number of 
additional changes to be proposed throughout the coming year, as Staff continues to work to 
modernize our Zoning Ordinance.  

The attached ordinances would address the following six items: 
- The standards used by the Zoning Board of Appeals for review of requests for variances
- Updates to the front yard lot coverage allowance in the Lake Lansing Residential Overlay 

district
- Updates to the front yard setback requirements in the Lake Lansing Residential Overlay

district
- Height of fences and screening in non-residential settings
- The number of decks or porches permitted in the same yard
- Deletion of the RRR, One-Family, Rural Residential, Low-Density District

The Planning Commission has reviewed each of these items and has raised no major concerns with 
any of them, after discussion. Staff welcomes any feedback from the Township Board and will bring 
each item back individually in the future to be introduced and ultimately decided upon. 
Alternatively, the Township Board can refer any item back to the Planning Commission for further 
discussion, should additional concerns be raised. 

Attachments 
1. Ordinance 2022-02 – ZBA standards of review – PC Information
2. Ordinance 2022-03 – Lake Lansing Lot Coverage – PC Information
3. Ordinance 2022-04 – Lake Lansing Front Yard Setbacks – PC Information
4. Ordinance 2022-05 – Fence Height – PC Information
5. Ordinance 2022-06 – Number of Decks – PC Information
6. Ordinance 2022-07 – RRR District Deletion – PC Information



 

 
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

To:  Members of the Planning Commission 
 
From:  Timothy R. Schmitt, AICP 

Director of Community Planning and Development 
 

Date:  March 24, 2022 
 
Re: Text Amendment 2022-02 – ZBA Standards of Review  
 
In January, Staff presented the initial concept behind modifying the standards of review for the 
Zoning Board of Appeals to grant a variance to a property owner. There are currently eight 
standards, which are at times duplicative. Staff is proposing to change the standards of review for a 
variance to more closely mirror the general standards for a practical difficulty (the basis for a non-
use variance) that have been established through legislation and case law in Michigan. This will 
streamline the ZBA’s work and make their decisions more defensible, should a decision ever be 
challenged in Court. 
 
The Planning Commission discussed the ordinance at length during their March 14th public hearing. 
The focus of the discussion was on subsection 3 with the language “and provide substantial justice.” 
At the meeting, Staff indicated that we did not believe it was a specific state legislation reference and 
that we would research the specifics of where that language comes from. The language is actually 
located towards the end of the Zoning Board of Appeals procedures in the State enabling legislation: 
 

“(7) If there are practical difficulties for nonuse variances as provided in subsection (8) or 
unnecessary hardship for use variances as provided in subsection (9) in the way of carrying 
out the strict letter of the zoning ordinance, the zoning board of appeals may grant a variance 
in accordance with this section, so that the spirit of the zoning ordinance is observed, public 
safety secured, and substantial justice done. The ordinance shall establish procedures for 
the review and standards for approval of all types of variances. The zoning board of appeals 
may impose conditions as otherwise allowed under this act.” 

 
Therefore, Staff would recommend leaving the substantial justice language in the Meridian 
Township ordinance, as it is a direct reference to the State enabling legislation. Staff apologizes for 
the confusion on this matter at the previous meeting. During the public hearing at the March 14th 
meeting and there were no public concerns raised. Staff is able to recommend approval of the 
proposed amendment at this time. A resolution recommending approval to the Township Board is 
included with this memo. The following motion has been prepared for the Planning Commission’s 
use: 
 
Motion to approve the attached resolution recommending approval to the Township Board 
for Ordinance 2022-02, an ordinance to update the Zoning Board of Appeals standards of 
review. 
 
Attachments 
1. Resolution recommending approval to the Township Board 
2. Clean version of Ordinance 2022-02 – ZBA standards of review  
3. Redlined version of Ordinance 2022-02 – ZBA standards of review  



RESOLUTION TO RECOMMEND APPROVAL              Zoning Amendment #2022-02 
Zoning Board of Appeals Review Criteria 

  
RESOLUTION 

 
At the regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the Charter Township of Meridian, 

Ingham County, Michigan, held at the Meridian Municipal Building, in said Township on the 28th 
day of March, 2022 at 7:00 p.m., Local Time. 
 
PRESENT: ___________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
ABSENT: ___________________________________________________________________________________________________   

 
 The following resolution was offered by _________________ and supported by ___________________. 
 

WHEREAS, the Zoning Board of Appeals is empowered by state law and local ordinance to 
grant dimensional variances from the zoning ordinance standards; and  

 
WHEREAS, there are currently a series of eight standards for the Zoning Board of Appeals to 

follow when reviewing a variance request; and 
 

WHEREAS, some of the eight criteria for review overlap, leading to confusion in reviewing a 
variance request; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Zoning Board of Appeals asked Staff to analyze the current standards to 

determine whether or not a change to the ordinance is warranted; and 
 

WHEREAS, after analysis, Staff has recommended changes to the review standards for the 
Zoning Board of Appeals, to more closely align with the State enabling legislation and eliminate 
confusion and overlapping standards. 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CHARTER 
TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN hereby recommends approval of Zoning Amendment #2022-02, to 
update the review standards for the Zoning Board of Appeals.  
 
ADOPTED: YEAS: ________________________________________________________________________________  
 
  NAYS: ________________________________________________________________________________                           
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
    ) ss 
COUNTY OF INGHAM ) 
 

I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Chair of the Planning Commission of the 
Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is 
a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Planning Commission 
on the 28th day of March, 2022. 
 
 

       _____________________________  
       Mark Blumer 
       Planning Commission Chair 



1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-02 1 
 2 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 86-221, REVIEW CRITERIA, OF THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP 3 
OF MERIDIAN ZONING CODE TO UPDATE THE STANDARDS THEREIN 4 

 5 
THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN ORDAINS: 6 
 7 
Section 1. Section 86-221, Review criteria, is hereby amended to read as follows:  8 
 9 

In the review of an application for a variance, the Zoning Board of Appeals should 10 
determine if the following criteria are satisfied: 11 

 12 
(1) Unique circumstances exist that are peculiar to the land or structure, that are not 13 

applicable to other land or structures in the same zoning district and these unique 14 
circumstances are not self-created. 15 

(2) Strict interpretation and enforcement of the literal terms and provisions of this 16 
chapter would result in practical difficulties that would prevent the owner from 17 
using the property for a permitted purpose.  18 

(3) Granting the variance is the minimum action necessary which would carry out the 19 
spirit of this zoning ordinance, secure public safety, and provide substantial 20 
justice. 21 

(4) Granting the variance will not adversely affect adjacent land or the essential 22 
character in the vicinity of the property. 23 

(5) Granting the variance will be generally consistent with public interest and the 24 
purposes and intent of this chapter. 25 

 26 
Section 2. Validity and Severability.  The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and the 27 

invalidity of any phrase, clause or part of this Ordinance shall not affect the validity 28 
or effectiveness of the remainder of the Ordinance. 29 

 30 
Section 3.  Repealer Clause.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict therewith are 31 

hereby repealed only to the extent necessary to give this Ordinance full force and 32 
effect. 33 

 34 
Section 4.  Savings Clause.  This Ordinance does not affect rights and duties matured, penalties 35 

that were incurred, and proceedings that were begun, before its effective date. 36 
 37 
Section 5.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be effective seven (7) days after its publication 38 

or upon such later date as may be required under Section 402 of the Michigan Zoning 39 
Enabling Act (MCL 125.3402) after filing of a notice of intent to file a petition for a 40 
referendum. 41 

 42 
ADOPTED by the Charter Township of Meridian Board at its regular meeting this XXth day of 43 
XXXXXXX, 2022.  44 

______________________________ 45 
Patricia Herring Jackson, Township Supervisor 46 

 47 
 48 

______________________________ 49 
Deborah Guthrie, Township Clerk 50 



1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-02 1 
 2 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 86-221, REVIEW CRITERIA, OF THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP 3 
OF MERIDIAN ZONING CODE TO UPDATE THE STANDARDS THEREIN 4 

 5 
THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN ORDAINS: 6 
 7 
Section 1. Section 86-221, Review criteria, is hereby amended to read as follows:  8 
 9 

In the review of an application for a variance, the Zoning Board of Appeals should 10 
determine if the following criteria are satisfied: 11 

 12 
(1) Unique circumstances exist that are peculiar to the land or structure, that are not 13 

applicable to other land or structures in the same zoning district and these unique 14 
circumstances are not self-created. 15 
These special unique circumstances are not self-created. 16 

(2) Strict interpretation and enforcement of the literal terms and provisions of this 17 
chapter would result in practical difficulties that would prevent the owner from using 18 
the property for a permitted purpose. . 19 
That the alleged practical difficulties which will result from a failure to grant the 20 
variance would unreasonably that would prevent the owner from using the property 21 
for a permitted purpose. 22 

(3) Granting the variance is the minimum action necessary that will make possible the 23 
use of the land or structure in a manner which is not contrary to the public interest 24 
and which would carry out the spirit of this zoning ordinance, secure public safety, 25 
and provide substantial justice. 26 

(4) Granting the variance will not adversely affect adjacent land or the essential character 27 
in the vicinity of the property. 28 
The conditions pertaining to the land or structure are not so general or recurrent in 29 
nature as to make the formulation of a general regulation for such conditions 30 
practicable. 31 

(5) Granting the variance will be generally consistent with public interest and the 32 
purposes and intent of this chapter. 33 

 34 
Section 2. Validity and Severability.  The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and the 35 

invalidity of any phrase, clause or part of this Ordinance shall not affect the validity 36 
or effectiveness of the remainder of the Ordinance. 37 

 38 
Section 3.  Repealer Clause.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict therewith are 39 

hereby repealed only to the extent necessary to give this Ordinance full force and 40 
effect. 41 

 42 
Section 4.  Savings Clause.  This Ordinance does not affect rights and duties matured, penalties 43 

that were incurred, and proceedings that were begun, before its effective date. 44 
 45 
Section 5.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be effective seven (7) days after its publication 46 

or upon such later date as may be required under Section 402 of the Michigan Zoning 47 
Enabling Act (MCL 125.3402) after filing of a notice of intent to file a petition for a 48 
referendum. 49 

 50 



2 
 

ADOPTED by the Charter Township of Meridian Board at its regular meeting this XXth day of 1 
XXXXXXX, 2022.  2 
 3 
 4 

______________________________ 5 
Patricia Herring Jackson, Township Supervisor 6 

 7 
______________________________ 8 

Deborah Guthrie, Township Clerk 9 



 

 
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

To:  Members of the Planning Commission 
 
From:  Timothy R. Schmitt, AICP 

Director of Community Planning and Development 
 

Date:  March 22, 2022 
 
Re: Text Amendment 2022-03 – Lake Lansing Residential Overlay District – Front 

Yard Lot Coverage  
 
In January, Staff presented the initial concept behind modifying the maximum amount of front yard 
lot coverage that is permitted in the Lake Lansing Residential Overlay district. This has been a 
consistent variance request for several years and the Zoning Board of Appeals asked Staff to look 
into the issue and see if some modifications could be made to the standards to reduce the number 
of variances that were being submitted.   
 
Based on previously granted variances, Staff recommended the language in the attached ordinance, 
increasing the front yard lot coverage from 50% to 65% on smaller lots and from 35% to 40% on 
larger lots. This allows for driveways to be constructed on the lots around the lake that are sized for 
more modern vehicles, without needing to receive a variance.  
 
The Planning Commission did not raise any concerns with this proposed amendment in their 
previous discussions. The public hearing for this request was held at the March 14th meeting and 
there were no public concerns raised. Staff is able to recommend approval of the proposed 
amendment at this time. A resolution recommending approval to the Township Board is included 
with this memo. The following motion has been prepared for the Planning Commission’s use: 
 
Motion to approve the attached resolution recommending approval to the Township Board 
for Ordinance 2022-03, an ordinance to update lot coverage standards in the Lake Lansing 
Residential Overlay district. 
 
Attachments 
1. Resolution recommending approval to the Township Board 
2. Clean version of Ordinance 2022-03 – Lake Lansing Residential Overlay – Lot Coverage  
3. Redlined version of Ordinance 2022-03 – Lake Lansing Residential Overlay – Lot Coverage 
 



RESOLUTION TO RECOMMEND APPROVAL              Zoning Amendment #2022-03 
Lake Lansing Residential Overlay – Lot Coverage 

  
RESOLUTION 

 
At the regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the Charter Township of Meridian, 

Ingham County, Michigan, held at the Meridian Municipal Building, in said Township on the 28th 
day of March, 2022 at 7:00 p.m., Local Time. 
 
PRESENT: ___________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
ABSENT: ___________________________________________________________________________________________________   

 
 The following resolution was offered by _________________ and supported by ___________________. 
 

WHEREAS, the Lake Lansing Residential Overlay District was established to provide more 
flexible standards for residential development near Lake Lansing, due to the small size of the lots 
and the age of the houses in the area; and  

 
WHEREAS, there continues to be a series of variance requests for driveway sizes and lot 

coverage within the Overlay District to allow for use of the properties around the lake; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Zoning Board of Appeals asked Staff to analyze the current standards and 
historic variances granted and denied and determine whether or not a change to the ordinance is 
warranted; and 
 

WHEREAS, after analysis, Staff has recommended changes to the front yard lot coverage for 
all lots covered by the overlay, to address some of the concerns raised by residents and the Zoning 
Board of Appeals. 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CHARTER 
TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN hereby recommends approval of Zoning Amendment #2022-03, to 
update the lot coverage standards for the front yard in the Lake Lansing Residential Overlay 
District.  
 
ADOPTED: YEAS: ________________________________________________________________________________  
 
  NAYS: ________________________________________________________________________________                           
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
    ) ss 
COUNTY OF INGHAM ) 
 

I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Chair of the Planning Commission of the 
Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is 
a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Planning Commission 
on the 28th day of March, 2022. 
 
 

       _____________________________  
       Mark Blumer 
       Planning Commission Chair 



1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-03 1 
 2 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 86-442, LAKE LANSING RESIDENTIAL OVERLAY DISTRICT, 3 
OF THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN ZONING CODE TO UPDATE THE STANDARDS 4 

THEREIN 5 
 6 

THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN ORDAINS: 7 
 8 
Section 1. Section 86-442, Lake Lansing Residential Overlay District, is hereby amended at 9 

subsection (f)(9) to read as follows:  10 
 11 
(9) Maximum driveway coverage.  12 

a. A driveway shall not occupy more than 65% of the total area of the front yard for 13 
residential lots that are less than 65 feet in width at the street line and created and 14 
recorded prior to October 5, 1960. 15 

b. A driveway shall not occupy more than 40% of the total area of the front yard for 16 
residential lots 65 feet or greater in width at the street line. 17 

c. A driveway shall not be permitted in the street right-of-way where the street has not 18 
been built. 19 

 20 
Section 2. Validity and Severability.  The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and the 21 

invalidity of any phrase, clause or part of this Ordinance shall not affect the validity 22 
or effectiveness of the remainder of the Ordinance. 23 

 24 
Section 3.  Repealer Clause.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict therewith are 25 

hereby repealed only to the extent necessary to give this Ordinance full force and 26 
effect. 27 

 28 
Section 4.  Savings Clause.  This Ordinance does not affect rights and duties matured, penalties 29 

that were incurred, and proceedings that were begun, before its effective date. 30 
 31 
Section 5.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be effective seven (7) days after its publication 32 

or upon such later date as may be required under Section 402 of the Michigan Zoning 33 
Enabling Act (MCL 125.3402) after filing of a notice of intent to file a petition for a 34 
referendum. 35 

 36 
ADOPTED by the Charter Township of Meridian Board at its regular meeting this XXth day of 37 
XXXXXXX, 2022.  38 
 39 
 40 

______________________________ 41 
Patricia Herring Jackson, Township Supervisor 42 

 43 
______________________________ 44 

Deborah Guthrie, Township Clerk 45 



1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-03 1 
 2 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 86-442, LAKE LANSING RESIDENTIAL OVERLAY DISTRICT, 3 
OF THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN ZONING CODE TO UPDATE THE STANDARDS 4 

THEREIN 5 
 6 

THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN ORDAINS: 7 
 8 
Section 1. Section 86-442, Lake Lansing Residential Overlay District, is hereby amended at 9 

subsection (f)(9) to read as follows:  10 
 11 
(9) Maximum driveway coverage.  12 

a. A driveway shall not occupy more than 5065% of the total area of the front yard for 13 
residential lots that are less than 65 feet in width at the street line and created and 14 
recorded prior to October 5, 1960, and are less than 65 feet in width at the street line. 15 

b. A driveway shall not occupy more than 3540% of the total area of the front yard for 16 
residential lots 65 feet or greater in width at the street line. 17 

c. A driveway shall not be permitted in the street right-of-way where the street has not 18 
been built. 19 

 20 
Section 2. Validity and Severability.  The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and the 21 

invalidity of any phrase, clause or part of this Ordinance shall not affect the validity 22 
or effectiveness of the remainder of the Ordinance. 23 

 24 
Section 3.  Repealer Clause.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict therewith are 25 

hereby repealed only to the extent necessary to give this Ordinance full force and 26 
effect. 27 

 28 
Section 4.  Savings Clause.  This Ordinance does not affect rights and duties matured, penalties 29 

that were incurred, and proceedings that were begun, before its effective date. 30 
 31 
Section 5.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be effective seven (7) days after its publication 32 

or upon such later date as may be required under Section 402 of the Michigan Zoning 33 
Enabling Act (MCL 125.3402) after filing of a notice of intent to file a petition for a 34 
referendum. 35 

 36 
ADOPTED by the Charter Township of Meridian Board at its regular meeting this XXth day of 37 
XXXXXXX, 2022.  38 
 39 
 40 

______________________________ 41 
Patricia Herring Jackson, Township Supervisor 42 

 43 
______________________________ 44 

Deborah Guthrie, Township Clerk 45 



 

 
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

To:  Members of the Planning Commission 
 
From:  Timothy R. Schmitt, AICP 

Director of Community Planning and Development 
 

Date:  March 23, 2022 
 
Re: Text Amendment 2022-04 – Lake Lansing Residential Overlay District – Front 

Yard Building Setbacks 
 
In January, Staff presented the initial concept behind modifying the front yard setbacks for the Lake 
Lansing Residential Overlay district. This has been a recurring variance request for several years 
and the Zoning Board of Appeals asked Staff to look into the issue and see if some modifications 
could be made to the standards to reduce the number of variances that were being submitted.   
 
Staff is recommending language that would allow a homeowner to establish a lesser setback than 
the current standard of 20 feet, based on the average setbacks of the properties within 150 feet of 
the subject property. This ensures that the new construction will be somewhat consistent with the 
neighborhood, while still allowing some flexibility for the new construction. There is existing 
language in the ordinance that is similar to this approach, so this is not a 100% new concept to the 
Township. However, this ordinance is well tailored for the area around the lake, where the lot sizes, 
setbacks, and house sizes can vary wildly. The 20-foot standard will remain in place for those lots 
that can accommodate the setback and the homeowners still want a normal sized driveway.  
 
The Planning Commission did not raise any concerns with this proposed amendment in their 
previous discussions. The public hearing for this request was held at the March 14th meeting and 
there were no public concerns raised. Staff is able to recommend approval of the proposed 
amendment at this time. A resolution recommending approval to the Township Board is included 
with this memo. The following motion has been prepared for the Planning Commission’s use: 
 
Motion to approve the attached resolution recommending approval to the Township Board 
for Ordinance 2022-04, an ordinance to update front yard setback standards in the Lake 
Lansing Residential Overlay district. 
 
 
 
Attachments 
1. Resolution recommending approval to the Township Board 
2. Clean version of Ordinance 2022-04 – Lake Lansing Residential Overlay – Front Yard Setbacks  
3. Redlined version of Ordinance 2022-04 – Lake Lansing Residential Overlay – Front Yard Setbacks 



RESOLUTION TO RECOMMEND APPROVAL              Zoning Amendment #2022-04 
Lake Lansing Residential Overlay – Front Yard Setbacks 

RESOLUTION 

At the regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the Charter Township of Meridian, 
Ingham County, Michigan, held at the Meridian Municipal Building, in said Township on the 28th 
day of March, 2022 at 7:00 p.m., Local Time. 

PRESENT: ___________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

ABSENT: ___________________________________________________________________________________________________  

The following resolution was offered by _________________ and supported by ___________________. 

WHEREAS, the Lake Lansing Residential Overlay District was established to provide more 
flexible standards for residential development near Lake Lansing, due to the small size of the lots 
and the age of the houses in the area; and 

WHEREAS, there continues to be a series of variance requests for front yard setbacks within 
the Overlay District to allow for use of the properties around the lake; and 

WHEREAS, the Zoning Board of Appeals asked Staff to analyze the current standards and 
historic variances granted and denied and determine whether or not an alternative approach to 
setbacks in the district is feasible and warranted; and 

WHEREAS, after analysis, Staff has recommended changes to the front yard setback to 
provide further flexibility for all lots covered by the overlay, to address some of the concerns raised 
by residents and the Zoning Board of Appeals. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CHARTER 
TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN hereby recommends approval of Zoning Amendment #2022-04, to 
update the front yard setback standards in the Lake Lansing Residential Overlay District.  

ADOPTED: YEAS: ________________________________________________________________________________ 

NAYS: ________________________________________________________________________________ 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
) ss 

COUNTY OF INGHAM ) 

I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Chair of the Planning Commission of the 
Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is 
a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Planning Commission 
on the 28th day of March, 2022. 

_____________________________  
Mark Blumer 
Planning Commission Chair 



1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-04 1 
 2 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 86-442, LAKE LANSING RESIDENTIAL OVERLAY DISTRICT, 3 
OF THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN ZONING CODE TO UPDATE THE STANDARDS 4 

THEREIN 5 
 6 

THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN ORDAINS: 7 
 8 
Section 1. Section 86-442, Lake Lansing Residential Overlay District, is hereby amended at 9 

subsection (f)(5)a. to read as follows:  10 
  11 

Front Yards. The front yard setback shall not be less than 20 feet from the street line, 12 
except  that it may be reduced to the average front yard setback of the homes within 13 
150 feet on the same side of the road. 14 

 15 
Section 2. Validity and Severability.  The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and the 16 

invalidity of any phrase, clause or part of this Ordinance shall not affect the validity 17 
or effectiveness of the remainder of the Ordinance. 18 

 19 
Section 3.  Repealer Clause.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict therewith are 20 

hereby repealed only to the extent necessary to give this Ordinance full force and 21 
effect. 22 

 23 
Section 4.  Savings Clause.  This Ordinance does not affect rights and duties matured, penalties 24 

that were incurred, and proceedings that were begun, before its effective date. 25 
 26 
Section 5.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be effective seven (7) days after its publication 27 

or upon such later date as may be required under Section 402 of the Michigan Zoning 28 
Enabling Act (MCL 125.3402) after filing of a notice of intent to file a petition for a 29 
referendum. 30 

 31 
ADOPTED by the Charter Township of Meridian Board at its regular meeting this XXth day of 32 
XXXXXXX, 2022.  33 
 34 
 35 

______________________________ 36 
Patricia Herring Jackson, Township Supervisor 37 

 38 
 39 

______________________________ 40 
Deborah Guthrie, Township Clerk 41 



1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-04 1 
 2 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 86-442, LAKE LANSING RESIDENTIAL OVERLAY DISTRICT, 3 
OF THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN ZONING CODE TO UPDATE THE STANDARDS 4 

THEREIN 5 
 6 

THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN ORDAINS: 7 
 8 
Section 1. Section 86-442, Lake Lansing Residential Overlay District, is hereby amended at 9 

subsection (f)(5)a. to read as follows:  10 
  11 

Front Yards. The front yard setback shall not be less than 20 feet from the street line, 12 
except for lots fronting on Lake Drive, East Lake Drive, West Lake Drive, or Marsh 13 
Road where the front yard setback shall be in accordance with the setback 14 
requirements of §86-367 that it may be reduced to the average front yard setback of 15 
the homes within 150 feet on the same side of the road. 16 

 17 
Section 2. Validity and Severability.  The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and the 18 

invalidity of any phrase, clause or part of this Ordinance shall not affect the validity 19 
or effectiveness of the remainder of the Ordinance. 20 

 21 
Section 3.  Repealer Clause.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict therewith are 22 

hereby repealed only to the extent necessary to give this Ordinance full force and 23 
effect. 24 

 25 
Section 4.  Savings Clause.  This Ordinance does not affect rights and duties matured, penalties 26 

that were incurred, and proceedings that were begun, before its effective date. 27 
 28 
Section 5.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be effective seven (7) days after its publication 29 

or upon such later date as may be required under Section 402 of the Michigan Zoning 30 
Enabling Act (MCL 125.3402) after filing of a notice of intent to file a petition for a 31 
referendum. 32 

 33 
ADOPTED by the Charter Township of Meridian Board at its regular meeting this XXth day of 34 
XXXXXXX, 2022.  35 
 36 
 37 

______________________________ 38 
Patricia Herring Jackson, Township Supervisor 39 

 40 
 41 

______________________________ 42 
Deborah Guthrie, Township Clerk 43 



 

 
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

To:  Members of the Planning Commission 
 
From:  Timothy R. Schmitt, AICP 

Director of Community Planning and Development 
 
Date:  March 23, 2022 
 
Re: Text Amendment 2022-05 – Fence Heights  
 
In January, Staff presented the initial concept behind modifying the fence height standards in the 
ordinance. The Zoning Board of Appeals had recently heard a case regarding the height of fences in 
the Industrial zoning district, which led to Staff reviewing the standards. In this review, we found 
multiple instances of fences in non-residential districts in excess of current ordinance requirements. 
Additionally, Staff has fielded several requests for screening in non-residential districts that would 
exceed six feet in height.  
 
Staff is recommending the slight attached changes to the fence ordinance to allow some flexibility 
for screening/fencing in nonresidential settings. Things such as outdoor storage or generators may 
have additional screening requirements, beyond six feet and allowing such screening in the 
ordinance will encourage better design.  
 
The Planning Commission did not raise any major concerns with this proposed amendment in their 
previous discussion. The public hearing for this request was held at the March 14th meeting and 
there were no public concerns raised. Staff is able to recommend approval of the proposed 
amendment at this time. A resolution recommending approval to the Township Board is included 
with this memo. The following motion has been prepared for the Planning Commission’s use: 
 
Motion to approve the attached resolution recommending approval to the Township Board 
for Ordinance 2022-05, an ordinance to update the fence height standards in non-single-
family residential districts. 
 
 
 
Attachments 
1. Resolution recommending approval to the Township Board 
2. Clean version of Ordinance 2022-05 – Fence Height  
3. Redlined version of Ordinance 2022-05 – Fence Height 
 



RESOLUTION TO RECOMMEND APPROVAL              Zoning Amendment #2022-05 
Fence Height 

  
RESOLUTION 

 
At the regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the Charter Township of Meridian, 

Ingham County, Michigan, held at the Meridian Municipal Building, in said Township on the 28th 
day of March, 2022 at 7:00 p.m., Local Time. 
 
PRESENT: ___________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
ABSENT: ___________________________________________________________________________________________________   

 
 The following resolution was offered by _________________ and supported by ___________________. 
 

WHEREAS, the current zoning ordinance limits any fence, wall, or screen to six feet, 
regardless of zoning district; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Zoning Board of Appeals received a request to modernize a fence taller than 

six feet on an industrial property and rejected the request; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Zoning Board of Appeals asked Staff to analyze the current standards to 
determine whether or not an alternative approach for fence height in non-residential zoning 
districts would be feasible and warranted; and 
 

WHEREAS, after analysis, Staff has recommended changes to the fence height requirements 
to recognize the difference between residential and nonresidential screening needs, to address 
some of the concerns raised by residents and the Zoning Board of Appeals. 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CHARTER 
TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN hereby recommends approval of Zoning Amendment #2022-05, to 
update the fence height standards throughout the Township.  
 
ADOPTED: YEAS: ________________________________________________________________________________  
 
  NAYS: ________________________________________________________________________________                           
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
    ) ss 
COUNTY OF INGHAM ) 
 

I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Chair of the Planning Commission of the 
Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is 
a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Planning Commission 
on the 28th day of March, 2022. 
 
 

       _____________________________  
       Mark Blumer 
       Planning Commission Chair 



1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-05 1 
 2 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 86-506, MAXIMUM HEIGHT OF FENCES, WALLS, AND 3 
SCREENS, OF THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN ZONING CODE TO UPDATE THE 4 

STANDARDS THEREIN 5 
 6 

THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN ORDAINS: 7 
 8 
Section 1. Section 86-506, Maximum height of fences, walls, and screens, is hereby amended to 9 

read as follows:  10 
 11 

(a) In any residential district, no fence, wall, or screen shall be erected higher than six 12 
feet. 13 

(b) In any nonresidential district, the height of a fence, wall, or screen may be increased 14 
to eight feet upon approval of the Director of Community Planning and Development.  15 

(c) The height of any fence, wall, or screen shall be measured from the ground upon 16 
which it sits to its highest point. Altering the existing grade, such as but not limited to 17 
mounding or terracing of land shall not be permitted to increase the height of the 18 
fence, wall, or screen, unless the combined height of such grading, mounding, or 19 
terracing together with the fence, wall, or screen meets the height standards of this 20 
section. 21 

 22 
Section 2. Validity and Severability.  The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and the 23 

invalidity of any phrase, clause or part of this Ordinance shall not affect the validity 24 
or effectiveness of the remainder of the Ordinance. 25 

 26 
Section 3.  Repealer Clause.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict therewith are 27 

hereby repealed only to the extent necessary to give this Ordinance full force and 28 
effect. 29 

 30 
Section 4.  Savings Clause.  This Ordinance does not affect rights and duties matured, penalties 31 

that were incurred, and proceedings that were begun, before its effective date. 32 
 33 
Section 5.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be effective seven (7) days after its publication 34 

or upon such later date as may be required under Section 402 of the Michigan Zoning 35 
Enabling Act (MCL 125.3402) after filing of a notice of intent to file a petition for a 36 
referendum. 37 

 38 
ADOPTED by the Charter Township of Meridian Board at its regular meeting this XXth day of 39 
XXXXXXX, 2022.  40 
 41 
 42 

______________________________ 43 
Patricia Herring Jackson, Township Supervisor 44 

 45 
 46 

______________________________ 47 
Deborah Guthrie, Township Clerk 48 



1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-05 1 
 2 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 86-506, MAXIMUM HEIGHT OF FENCES, WALLS, AND 3 
SCREENS, OF THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN ZONING CODE TO UPDATE THE 4 

STANDARDS THEREIN 5 
 6 

THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN ORDAINS: 7 
 8 
Section 1. Section 86-506, Maximum height of fences, walls, and screens, is hereby amended to 9 

read as follows:  10 
 11 

(a) In any residential district, Nno fence, wall, or screen shall be erected higher than six 12 
feet., as measured from the ground upon which it sits to its highest point. Altering the 13 
existing grade, such as but not limited to mounding or terracing of land shall not be 14 
permitted to increase the height of the fence, wall, or screen, unless the combined 15 
height of such grading, mounding, or terracing together with the fence, wall, or 16 
screen, is six feet or less above the ground upon which it sits. 17 

(b) In any nonresidential district, the height of a fence, wall, or screen may be increased 18 
to eight feet upon approval of the Director of Community Planning and Development.  19 

(c) The height of any fence, wall, or screen shall be measured from the ground upon 20 
which it sits to its highest point. Altering the existing grade, such as but not limited to 21 
mounding or terracing of land shall not be permitted to increase the height of the 22 
fence, wall, or screen, unless the combined height of such grading, mounding, or 23 
terracing together with the fence, wall, or screen meets the height standards of this 24 
section., is six feet or less  25 

 26 
Section 2. Validity and Severability.  The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and the 27 

invalidity of any phrase, clause or part of this Ordinance shall not affect the validity 28 
or effectiveness of the remainder of the Ordinance. 29 

 30 
Section 3.  Repealer Clause.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict therewith are 31 

hereby repealed only to the extent necessary to give this Ordinance full force and 32 
effect. 33 

 34 
Section 4.  Savings Clause.  This Ordinance does not affect rights and duties matured, penalties 35 

that were incurred, and proceedings that were begun, before its effective date. 36 
 37 
Section 5.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be effective seven (7) days after its publication 38 

or upon such later date as may be required under Section 402 of the Michigan Zoning 39 
Enabling Act (MCL 125.3402) after filing of a notice of intent to file a petition for a 40 
referendum. 41 

 42 
ADOPTED by the Charter Township of Meridian Board at its regular meeting this XXth day of 43 
XXXXXXX, 2022.  44 
 45 
 46 

______________________________ 47 
Patricia Herring Jackson, Township Supervisor 48 

 49 
 50 



2 
 

______________________________ 1 
Deborah Guthrie, Township Clerk 2 



 

 
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

To:  Members of the Planning Commission 
 
From:  Timothy R. Schmitt, AICP 

Director of Community Planning and Development 
 
Date:  March 23, 2022 
 
Re: Text Amendment 2022-06 – Yard Encroachments (Number of Decks/Patios)  
 
In January, Staff presented the initial concept behind modifying the allowed yard encroachments to 
permit multiple decks or patios in the same yard. This issue has come up occasionally, often due to 
grade changes around a house and walk out designs of some rear yards. After review, Staff found no 
pressing reason to maintain the limitation on the number of patios or decks in a yard, as long as the 
setbacks are still being met. Therefore, Staff is recommending the attached change to eliminate the 
restriction of one porch in any yard.  
 
The Planning Commission did not raise any major concerns with this proposed amendment in their 
previous discussion. The public hearing for this request was held at the March 14th meeting and 
there were no public concerns raised. Staff is able to recommend approval of the proposed 
amendment at this time. A resolution recommending approval to the Township Board is included 
with this memo. The following motion has been prepared for the Planning Commission’s use: 
 
Motion to approve the attached resolution recommending approval to the Township Board 
for Ordinance 2022-06, an ordinance to update the permitted number of yard 
encroachments in single-family residential districts. 
 
 
Attachments 
1. Resolution recommending approval to the Township Board 
2. Clean version of Ordinance 2022-06 – Yard Encroachments Permitted  
3. Redlined version of Ordinance 2022-06 – Yard Encroachments Permitted 
 



RESOLUTION TO RECOMMEND APPROVAL              Zoning Amendment #2022-06 
Deck/Porch Encroachments Into Yards 

  
RESOLUTION 

 
At the regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the Charter Township of Meridian, 

Ingham County, Michigan, held at the Meridian Municipal Building, in said Township on the 28th 
day of March, 2022 at 7:00 p.m., Local Time. 
 
PRESENT: ___________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
ABSENT: ___________________________________________________________________________________________________   

 
 The following resolution was offered by _________________ and supported by ___________________. 
 

WHEREAS, the current zoning ordinance limits any porch or deck to one per any yard; and  
 
WHEREAS, Staff has received requests in the past for multiple decks or porches in one yard, 

leading to confusion and issues for homeowners looking to add decks or porches to their 
backyards; and 
 

WHEREAS, after analyzing the situation, Staff is recommending the removal of the one 
porch per yard ordinance requirement, but leaving the setback and height requirements in place for 
all porches and decks.  
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CHARTER 
TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN hereby recommends approval of Zoning Amendment #2022-06, to 
update the yard encroachments permitted throughout the Township.  
 
ADOPTED: YEAS: ________________________________________________________________________________  
 
  NAYS: ________________________________________________________________________________                           
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
    ) ss 
COUNTY OF INGHAM ) 
 

I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Chair of the Planning Commission of the 
Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is 
a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Planning Commission 
on the 28th day of March, 2022. 
 
 

       _____________________________  
       Mark Blumer 
       Planning Commission Chair 



1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-06 1 
 2 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 86-564, YARD ENCROACHMENTS PERMITTED, OF THE 3 
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN ZONING CODE TO UPDATE THE STANDARDS THEREIN 4 

 5 
THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN ORDAINS: 6 
 7 
Section 1. Section 86-564, Yard Encroachments Permitted, is hereby amended at subsection (b) 8 

to eliminate subsection (b)(3) and to read as follows:  9 
 10 
(b) Unenclosed porches. Roofed or unroofed porches may project into a required side or 11 

rear yard a distance not to exceed eight feet, provided: 12 
(1) The porch is unenclosed, no higher than one story, and erected on piers. 13 
(2) The porch shall not be closer than eight feet at any point to any side or rear lot 14 

line. 15 
 16 
Section 2. Validity and Severability.  The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and the 17 

invalidity of any phrase, clause or part of this Ordinance shall not affect the validity 18 
or effectiveness of the remainder of the Ordinance. 19 

 20 
Section 3.  Repealer Clause.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict therewith are 21 

hereby repealed only to the extent necessary to give this Ordinance full force and 22 
effect. 23 

 24 
Section 4.  Savings Clause.  This Ordinance does not affect rights and duties matured, penalties 25 

that were incurred, and proceedings that were begun, before its effective date. 26 
 27 
Section 5.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be effective seven (7) days after its publication 28 

or upon such later date as may be required under Section 402 of the Michigan Zoning 29 
Enabling Act (MCL 125.3402) after filing of a notice of intent to file a petition for a 30 
referendum. 31 

 32 
ADOPTED by the Charter Township of Meridian Board at its regular meeting this XXth day of 33 
XXXXXXX, 2022.  34 
 35 
 36 

______________________________ 37 
Patricia Herring Jackson, Township Supervisor 38 

 39 
 40 

______________________________ 41 
Deborah Guthrie, Township Clerk 42 

https://ecode360.com/28783622#28783622


1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-06 1 
 2 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 86-564, YARD ENCROACHMENTS PERMITTED, OF THE 3 
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN ZONING CODE TO UPDATE THE STANDARDS THEREIN 4 

 5 
THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN ORDAINS: 6 
 7 
Section 1. Section 86-564, Yard Encroachments Permitted, is hereby amended at subsection (b) 8 

to eliminate subsection (b)(3) and to read as follows:  9 
 10 
(b) Unenclosed porches. Roofed or unroofed porches may project into a required side or 11 

rear yard a distance not to exceed eight feet, provided: 12 
(1) The porch is unenclosed, no higher than one story, and erected on piers. 13 
(2) The porch shall not be closer than eight feet at any point to any side or rear lot 14 

line. 15 
(3) That no building shall have more than one porch in any one yard. 16 

 17 
Section 2. Validity and Severability.  The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and the 18 

invalidity of any phrase, clause or part of this Ordinance shall not affect the validity 19 
or effectiveness of the remainder of the Ordinance. 20 

 21 
Section 3.  Repealer Clause.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict therewith are 22 

hereby repealed only to the extent necessary to give this Ordinance full force and 23 
effect. 24 

 25 
Section 4.  Savings Clause.  This Ordinance does not affect rights and duties matured, penalties 26 

that were incurred, and proceedings that were begun, before its effective date. 27 
 28 
Section 5.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be effective seven (7) days after its publication 29 

or upon such later date as may be required under Section 402 of the Michigan Zoning 30 
Enabling Act (MCL 125.3402) after filing of a notice of intent to file a petition for a 31 
referendum. 32 

 33 
ADOPTED by the Charter Township of Meridian Board at its regular meeting this XXth day of 34 
XXXXXXX, 2022.  35 
 36 
 37 

______________________________ 38 
Patricia Herring Jackson, Township Supervisor 39 

 40 
 41 

______________________________ 42 
Deborah Guthrie, Township Clerk 43 

https://ecode360.com/28783622#28783622


 

 

To:  Members of the Planning Commission  
 
From:  Brian Shorkey, AICP, Senior Planner 
 
Date:  March 24, 2022 
 
Re: Text Amendment 2022-07 – One-Family Rural Residential Low-Density (RRR) 

Deletion 
 
The 2017 Master Plan recommends that the nine one-family residential districts in the zoning 
ordinance be “simplified and consolidated”. In light of that recommendation, Planning staff has 
recently began analyzing the residential zoning districts. During the analysis, it was discovered that 
no parcel is zoned as One-Family Rural Residential Low-Density (RRR).  
 
There are no unique land uses permitted in the RRR district to make it distinct from the other 
residential districts, and in fact mirrors the RR district. The text of the RRR district is as follows: 
 
Sec. 86-369  RRR District: One-Family Rural Residential Low-Density District. 
 
(a) Purpose. The purpose of the RRR district is to retain a rural character in those areas appropriate 

for larger lot sizes and to maintain a lower population density in those areas. This section applies 
to the RRR district. 

(b) Uses permitted by right. All uses permitted by right in the RR district subject to all restrictions 
specified therefor. 

(c) Uses permitted by special use permit. All uses permitted by special use permit in the RR district 
subject to all restrictions therefor. 

(d) Dimensional requirements. The following minimum dimensions for lot area and width, front, 
side, and rear yards, together with maximum dimensions for lot coverage and building heights, 
shall be required for every structure and land use in this district, except as noted. 

(1) Minimum lot area: 80,000 square feet. Attention is directed to supplementary area 
regulations, Article V, Division 3 of this chapter, for permitted exceptions to lot area. 

(2) Minimum interior lot width: 200 feet. 

(3) Minimum corner lot width: 200 feet along the street upon which the lot fronts. 

(4) Maximum lot coverage. All buildings including accessory buildings shall not cover 
more than 10% of the lot area. 

(5) Minimum yard dimensions. 

a. Front yard. In accordance with the setback requirements of § 86-367 for the 
type of street upon which the lot fronts. 

b. Side yard: 25 feet. 

c. Rear yard: 50 feet. 

https://ecode360.com/28783506#28783506
https://ecode360.com/28781502#28781502


 
ZA #22007 
Planning Commission (March 28, 2022) 
Page 2 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

 

d. Corner lots. A front yard shall be maintained on each street side of a corner 
lot. Setbacks shall be equal to those required in § 86-367 for the type of 
street upon which the lot has frontage and all regulations applicable to front 
yards shall apply. 

e. Through and reverse frontage lots. Principal buildings shall be located in 
accordance with the front yard setback requirements of § 86-367 for the 
type of streets upon which the through or reverse frontage lot abuts. Access 
to residential sites shall be located on the street with the lowest functional 
classification as illustrated in § 86-367. All regulations applicable to front 
yards shall apply except freestanding accessory buildings or structures, such 
as decks, garages, sheds, swimming pools, and tennis courts, proposed for 
reverse frontage lots shall be located no closer than 30 feet from the right-
of-way of the designated rear yard. 

(6) Supplementary yard regulations. For permitted exceptions in yard dimensions, for 
permitted yard encroachments, and for placement of accessory building in yard area, 
refer to Article V, Division 4 of this chapter. 

(7) Maximum building height: two-and-one half stories, but not exceeding 35 feet. For 
permitted exceptions to residential building heights refer to Article V, Division 5 of 
this chapter. 

(8) Minimum living space. Minimum, gross living area per family shall not be less than 
1,000 square feet of floor area on the first floor if one story or 625 square feet of floor 
area on the first floor level if two stories, exclusive of any attached garage. In any 
case total living area shall not be less than 1,000 square feet. 

 
Staff is proposing to delete Section 86-369 – RRR District and all references to the RRR district 
throughout the zoning ordinance. A draft ordinance to this effect was introduced to the Planning 
Commission at their regular meeting on Monday, February 28, 2022. Deleting Section 86-369 would 
comply with the 2017 Master Plan’s recommendations and help to simplify the zoning ordinance by 
removing unnecessary text. Because no property is zoned RRR, deletion of Section 86-369 would 
not have any immediate effect on any homeowners in the township.  
 
Planning Commission Options 
 
The Planning Commission may recommend approval as written, recommend approval of a revised 
version, or recommend denial of the proposed zoning amendment. A resolution to recommend 
approval of the proposed zoning amendment is provided. 
 

Motion to adopt the resolution recommending approval of Zoning Amendment 2022-07 
in accordance with the revised draft ordinance language dated March 24, 2022. 

 
Attachments 
1. Resolution recommending approval to the Township Board 
2. Clean version of Ordinance 2022-07 – Deletion of RRR District 
3. Redlined version of Ordinance 2022-07 – Deletion of RRR District 

https://ecode360.com/28781502#28781502
https://ecode360.com/28781502#28781502
https://ecode360.com/28781502#28781502
https://ecode360.com/28783506#28783506
https://ecode360.com/28783506#28783506


RESOLUTION TO RECOMMEND APPROVAL              Zoning Amendment #2022-07 
RRR Deletion 

  
RESOLUTION 

 
At the regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the Charter Township of Meridian, 

Ingham County, Michigan, held at the Meridian Municipal Building, in said Township on the 28th 
day of March, 2022 at 7:00 p.m., Local Time. 
 
PRESENT: ___________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
ABSENT: ___________________________________________________________________________________________________   

 
 The following resolution was offered by _________________ and supported by ___________________. 
 

WHEREAS, the current zoning ordinance contains language that regulates a zoning district 
RRR – One-Family Rural Residential Low-Density District and  

 
WHEREAS, the Meridian Township 2017 Master Plan recommends simplifying and 

consolidating the zoning ordinance; and 
 

WHEREAS, no parcel in Meridian Township is zoned RRR – One-Family Rural Residential 
Low-Density; and 
 

WHEREAS, removal of the RRR – One-Family Rural Residential Low-Density district would 
not have any effect on any homeowners in the township; and 

 
WHEREAS, removal of the RRR – One-Family Rural Residential Low-Density district is in 

line with the Meridian Township 2017 Master Plan. 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CHARTER 
TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN hereby recommends approval of Zoning Amendment #2022-07, to 
delete Sec. 86-369 - RRR – One-Family Rural Residential Low-Density and all references to that 
section from the zoning ordinance.  
 
ADOPTED: YEAS: ________________________________________________________________________________  
 
  NAYS: ________________________________________________________________________________                           
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
    ) ss 
COUNTY OF INGHAM ) 
 

I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Chair of the Planning Commission of the 
Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is 
a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Planning Commission 
on the 28th day of March, 2022. 
 
 

       _____________________________  
       Mark Blumer 
       Planning Commission Chair 



1 

1 
2 
3 
4 

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-07

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF 
MERIDIAN AT MULTIPLE SECTIONS TO DELETE THE RRR, ONE-FAMILY RURAL RESIDENTIAL 

LOW-DENSITY DISTRICT, FROM THE ZONING ORDINANCE 5 
6 

THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN ORDAINS: 7 
8 

Section 1. Section 86-311, Establishment of Districts, is hereby amended to read as follows: 9 
10 

For the purpose of promoting the safety, morals, convenience, and the general welfare of the 11 
community, the Township is hereby divided into different zoning districts as follows: 12 

Types of Districts: 
RR Districts One-Family Rural Residential Districts 
RRA Districts One-Family Suburban Estate Districts 
RAAA Districts One-Family Low-Density Residential Districts 
RAA Districts One-Family Low-Medium-Density Residential Districts 
RA Districts One-Family Medium-Density Residential Districts 
RB Districts One-Family High-Density Residential Districts 
RX Districts One- and Two-Family Residential Districts 
RD Districts Multiple-Family Low-Density Districts 
RDD Districts Multiple-Family Low-Density Districts 
RC Districts Multiple-Family Medium-Density District 
RCC Districts Multiple-Family High-Density Districts 
RN Districts Village of Nemoka Mixed Residential District 
PRD Districts Planned Residential Development Overlay Districts 
C-1 Commercial District 
C-2 Commercial District 
C-3 Commercial District 
MP Districts Mobile Home Park Districts 
PO Districts Professional and Office Districts 
CR Districts Commercial Recreation Districts 
RP Districts Research Park and Office Park Districts 
I Districts Industrial Districts 
CV Districts Conservancy Districts 
AG Districts Agricultural District 
Wireless Communications Facilities Overlay Districts 
PUD Districts Planned Unit Development District 

13 
14 



2 
 

Section 2. Section 86-368, RR District, One-Family Rural Residential District, is hereby 1 
amended at subsection (b) to read as follows: 2 

 3 
(b) Uses permitted by right. 4 

(1) [UNCHANGED] 5 
(2) [UNCHANGED] 6 
(3) [UNCHANGED] 7 
(4) [UNCHANGED] 8 
(5) [UNCHANGED] 9 
(6) [UNCHANGED] 10 
(7) Customary agricultural operations. Including general farming, truck 11 

gardening, fruit orchards, nursery green houses not selling at retail on the 12 
premises, and usual farm buildings but subject to the following conditions: 13 

a. Raising and keeping of small animals, such as poultry, rabbits and 14 
goats, only in the RR district. 15 

b. Raising and keeping of livestock, such as cattle, hogs, sheep, and 16 
horses, provided that all such raising and keeping shall be for the 17 
personal use or consumption by the occupants of the premises, only 18 
in the RR district, provided that the minimum area upon which one 19 
such animal may be kept is three acres and that one additional animal 20 
may be kept for each additional acre by which the parcel exceeds 21 
three acres. 22 

c. Raising and keeping for profit livestock, such as cattle, hogs, sheep and 23 
similar livestock on a parcel of land not less than 10 acres in area, only 24 
in the RR district. 25 

d. No storage of manure or odor or dust-producing materials or use shall 26 
be permitted within 100 feet of any property line. 27 

e. No buildings for storage of mechanical equipment shall be permitted 28 
closer than 100 feet of any property line. 29 

f. No products shall be publicly displayed or offered for sale from the 30 
roadside except those grown upon the land abutting the road. 31 

g. Stabling or confining animals or poultry in barns, pens, stables, or 32 
corrals for the production of milk or egg products or for temporary 33 
holding of livestock for normal tending shall not be construed as a 34 
feedlot and shall be permitted by right, provided no such barn, pen, 35 
stable, or corral is located within 100 feet from any property line. 36 
Pasture land shall not be subject to any setbacks. Pasture land shall be 37 
identified by a predominance of vegetation consisting of desirable 38 
forage species upon which livestock graze. 39 

(8) Raising and keeping of chickens and rabbits as nonagricultural use. The 40 
raising and keeping of chickens and rabbits accessory only to one-family 41 
dwellings in the RRA, RAAA, RAA, and RA zoning districts is subject to the 42 
following requirements: 43 

a. Registration. 44 
1. Prior to the raising and keeping of chickens and rabbits on any 45 

property under this section, the property shall be registered 46 
with the Department of Community Planning and 47 
Development. 48 



3 
 

2. Only an individual living in a dwelling on the property shall 1 
raise or keep chickens and rabbits on the property. A 2 
registration may not be transferred. 3 

3. Notwithstanding registering with the Township, private 4 
restrictions on the use of property shall remain enforceable 5 
and take precedence over the registration. Private restrictions 6 
include, but are not limited to, deed restrictions, 7 
condominium master deed restrictions, neighborhood 8 
association by-laws, and covenant deeds. The interpretation 9 
and enforcement of the private restriction is the sole 10 
responsibility of the private parties involved. 11 

b. Standards. In addition to registering with the Township, the raising 12 
and keeping of chickens and rabbits accessory only to one-family 13 
dwellings in the RRA, RAAA, RAA, and RA zoning districts shall comply 14 
with the following standards: 15 

1. In no case shall the maximum number of chickens and rabbits 16 
in any combination exceed four. 17 

2. Roosters shall not be allowed. 18 
3. The sale of chickens, rabbits and eggs on the property is 19 

prohibited. 20 
4. Chickens and rabbits shall not be kept in any location on the 21 

property other than in the rear yard as defined by the zoning 22 
ordinance. 23 

5. Chickens and rabbits shall be provided with a covered 24 
structure and must be kept in the covered structure or an 25 
adjoining fenced area at all times. Covered structures and 26 
fenced areas used for the raising and keeping of chickens and 27 
rabbits are subject to all provisions of Chapter 86 (zoning), 28 
except the covered structure and fenced area shall be set back 29 
a minimum of 10 feet from a side or rear lot line and structures 30 
proposed for reverse frontage lots shall be located no closer 31 
than 30 feet to the right-of-way of the designated rear yard. 32 

6. All structures for the raising and keeping of chickens and 33 
rabbits shall be constructed so as to prevent rodents or other 34 
animals from being harbored underneath, within, or within 35 
the walls of the structure. 36 

7. All feed and other items associated with the raising and 37 
keeping of chickens and rabbits shall be kept in containers or 38 
otherwise protected so as to prevent access to or contact with 39 
rodents or other animals. 40 

8. The covered structure used to house the chickens and rabbits 41 
and any fenced area shall be kept in a sanitary condition. 42 

9. This section shall not regulate the keeping of chickens in those 43 
areas zoned RR (Rural Residential) or AG (Agricultural) where 44 
the raising of chickens is a permitted use when conducted in 45 
compliance with the Michigan Right to Farm Act and the 46 
generally accepted agricultural and management practices 47 
promulgated therein 48 

(9) [UNCHANGED] 49 
(10) [UNCHANGED] 50 



4 
 

(11) [UNCHANGED] 1 
(12) [UNCHANGED] 2 
(13) [UNCHANGED] 3 
(14) [UNCHANGED] 4 
(15) [UNCHANGED] 5 
(16) [UNCHANGED] 6 
(17) [UNCHANGED] 7 
(18) [UNCHANGED] 8 
(19) [UNCHANGED] 9 

 10 
Section 3. Section 86-369, RRR District: One-Family Rural Residential Low-Density District, is 11 

hereby deleted in its entirety. 12 
 13 
Section 4. Section 86-432, PO District, Professional and Office District, is hereby amended to 14 

read as follows: 15 
 16 

(a) [UNCHANGED] 17 
(b) Uses Permitted. The following types of commercial activities may be permitted, 18 

provided that only public sanitary sewerage will be utilized. All of the following uses 19 
permitted must be conducted wholly in a permanent, fully enclosed building: 20 
(1) [UNCHANGED] 21 
(2) [UNCHANGED] 22 
(3) [UNCHANGED] 23 
(4) [UNCHANGED] 24 
(5) [UNCHANGED] 25 
(6) Religious institutions, except when located adjacent to a one-family or two-26 

family residential zoning district  27 
(c) Uses permitted by special use permit. 28 

(1) [UNCHANGED] 29 
(2) [UNCHANGED] 30 
(3) [UNCHANGED] 31 
(4) Religious institutions, when located adjacent to a one-family or two-family 32 

residential zoning district, subject to the following site location and 33 
development standards: 34 
a. [UNCHANGED] 35 
b. [UNCHANGED] 36 
c. [UNCHANGED] 37 
d. [UNCHANGED] 38 
e. [UNCHANGED] 39 
f. [UNCHANGED] 40 

(d) [UNCHANGED] 41 
(e) [UNCHANGED] 42 

 43 
Section 5. Section 86-439, Planned Unit Development, is hereby amended at subsection (c) to 44 

read as follows: 45 
   46 

(c) General restrictions and standards. 47 
(1) Minimum project area. Subject to the conditions set forth in this section and 48 

elsewhere in this chapter, planned unit developments are permitted on sites of 49 
any size. No commercial uses of any nature shall be permitted in any planned unit 50 



5 
 

development of less than 15 contiguous acres or in any planned unit development 1 
located in the RR rural residential district. For planned unit development 2 
consisting of 15 contiguous acres or more and located in any district except RR, 3 
the commercial uses shall be allowed as provided for by the chapter but in no 4 
event shall such use occupy more than 3% of the total buildable land area of the 5 
planned unit development. Prior to issuance of a building permit for construction 6 
of any approved commercial use, occupancy permits shall have been issued for a 7 
minimum of 75% of the planned unit development's residential component. Land 8 
used for commercial purposes in a planned unit development shall not be used to 9 
determine allowable residential densities. 10 

(2) [UNCHANGED] 11 
(3) [UNCHANGED] 12 
(4) [UNCHANGED] 13 
(5) [UNCHANGED] 14 
(6) [UNCHANGED] 15 
(7) [UNCHANGED] 16 
(8) [UNCHANGED] 17 
(9) [UNCHANGED] 18 
(10) [UNCHANGED] 19 
(11) [UNCHANGED] 20 

 21 
Section 6. Validity and Severability.  The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and the 22 

invalidity of any phrase, clause or part of this Ordinance shall not affect the validity 23 
or effectiveness of the remainder of the Ordinance. 24 

 25 
Section 7. Repealer Clause.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict therewith are 26 

hereby repealed only to the extent necessary to give this Ordinance full force and 27 
effect. 28 

 29 
Section 8.  Savings Clause.  This Ordinance does not affect rights and duties matured, penalties 30 

that were incurred, and proceedings that were begun, before its effective date. 31 
 32 
Section 9.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be effective seven (7) days after its publication 33 

or upon such later date as may be required under Section 402 of the Michigan Zoning 34 
Enabling Act (MCL 125.3402) after filing of a notice of intent to file a petition for a 35 
referendum. 36 

 37 
ADOPTED by the Charter Township of Meridian Board at its regular meeting this XXth day of 38 
XXXXXXX, 2022.  39 
 40 
 41 

______________________________ 42 
Patricia Herring Jackson, Township Supervisor 43 

 44 
 45 

______________________________ 46 
Deborah Guthrie, Township Clerk 47 



1 

1 
2 
3 
4 

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-07 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF 
MERIDIAN AT MULTIPLE SECTIONS TO DELETE THE RRR, ONE-FAMILY RURAL RESIDENTIAL 

LOW-DENSITY DISTRICT, FROM THE ZONING ORDINANCE 5 
6 

THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN ORDAINS: 7 
8 

Section 1. Section 86-311, Establishment of Districts, is hereby amended to read as follows: 9 
10 

For the purpose of promoting the safety, morals, convenience, and the general welfare of the 11 
community, the Township is hereby divided into different zoning districts as follows: 12 

Types of Districts: 
RR Districts One-Family Rural Residential Districts 
RRR Districts One-Family Rural Residential Low-Density Districts 
RRA Districts One-Family Suburban Estate Districts 
RAAA Districts One-Family Low-Density Residential Districts 
RAA Districts One-Family Low-Medium-Density Residential Districts 
RA Districts One-Family Medium-Density Residential Districts 
RB Districts One-Family High-Density Residential Districts 
RX Districts One- and Two-Family Residential Districts 
RD Districts Multiple-Family Low-Density Districts 
RDD Districts Multiple-Family Low-Density Districts 
RC Districts Multiple-Family Medium-Density District 
RCC Districts Multiple-Family High-Density Districts 
RN Districts Village of Nemoka Mixed Residential District 
PRD Districts Planned Residential Development Overlay Districts 
C-1 Commercial District 
C-2 Commercial District 
C-3 Commercial District 
MP Districts Mobile Home Park Districts 
PO Districts Professional and Office Districts 
CR Districts Commercial Recreation Districts 
RP Districts Research Park and Office Park Districts 
I Districts Industrial Districts 
CV Districts Conservancy Districts 
AG Districts Agricultural District 
Wireless Communications Facilities Overlay Districts 
PUD Districts Planned Unit Development District 

13 
14 



2 
 

Section 2. Section 86-368, RR District, One-Family Rural Residential District, is hereby 1 
amended at subsection (b) to read as follows: 2 

 3 
(b) Uses permitted by right. 4 

(1) [UNCHANGED] 5 
(2) [UNCHANGED] 6 
(3) [UNCHANGED] 7 
(4) [UNCHANGED] 8 
(5) [UNCHANGED] 9 
(6) [UNCHANGED] 10 
(7) Customary agricultural operations. Including general farming, truck 11 

gardening, fruit orchards, nursery green houses not selling at retail on the 12 
premises, and usual farm buildings but subject to the following conditions: 13 

a. Raising and keeping of small animals, such as poultry, rabbits and 14 
goats, only in the RR and RRR districts. 15 

b. Raising and keeping of livestock, such as cattle, hogs, sheep, and 16 
horses, provided that all such raising and keeping shall be for the 17 
personal use or consumption by the occupants of the premises, only 18 
in the RR and RRR districts, provided that the minimum area upon 19 
which one such animal may be kept is three acres and that one 20 
additional animal may be kept for each additional acre by which the 21 
parcel exceeds three acres. 22 

c. Raising and keeping for profit livestock, such as cattle, hogs, sheep and 23 
similar livestock on a parcel of land not less than 10 acres in area, only 24 
in the RR and RRR districts. 25 

d. No storage of manure or odor or dust-producing materials or use shall 26 
be permitted within 100 feet of any property line. 27 

e. No buildings for storage of mechanical equipment shall be permitted 28 
closer than 100 feet of any property line. 29 

f. No products shall be publicly displayed or offered for sale from the 30 
roadside except those grown upon the land abutting the road. 31 

g. Stabling or confining animals or poultry in barns, pens, stables, or 32 
corrals for the production of milk or egg products or for temporary 33 
holding of livestock for normal tending shall not be construed as a 34 
feedlot and shall be permitted by right, provided no such barn, pen, 35 
stable, or corral is located within 100 feet from any property line. 36 
Pasture land shall not be subject to any setbacks. Pasture land shall be 37 
identified by a predominance of vegetation consisting of desirable 38 
forage species upon which livestock graze. 39 

(8) Raising and keeping of chickens and rabbits as nonagricultural use. The 40 
raising and keeping of chickens and rabbits accessory only to one-family 41 
dwellings in the RRA, RAAA, RAA, and RA zoning districts is subject to the 42 
following requirements: 43 

a. Registration. 44 
1. Prior to the raising and keeping of chickens and rabbits on any 45 

property under this section, the property shall be registered 46 
with the Department of Community Planning and 47 
Development. 48 



3 
 

2. Only an individual living in a dwelling on the property shall 1 
raise or keep chickens and rabbits on the property. A 2 
registration may not be transferred. 3 

3. Notwithstanding registering with the Township, private 4 
restrictions on the use of property shall remain enforceable 5 
and take precedence over the registration. Private restrictions 6 
include, but are not limited to, deed restrictions, 7 
condominium master deed restrictions, neighborhood 8 
association by-laws, and covenant deeds. The interpretation 9 
and enforcement of the private restriction is the sole 10 
responsibility of the private parties involved. 11 

b. Standards. In addition to registering with the Township, the raising 12 
and keeping of chickens and rabbits accessory only to one-family 13 
dwellings in the RRA, RAAA, RAA, and RA zoning districts shall comply 14 
with the following standards: 15 

1. In no case shall the maximum number of chickens and rabbits 16 
in any combination exceed four. 17 

2. Roosters shall not be allowed. 18 
3. The sale of chickens, rabbits and eggs on the property is 19 

prohibited. 20 
4. Chickens and rabbits shall not be kept in any location on the 21 

property other than in the rear yard as defined by the zoning 22 
ordinance. 23 

5. Chickens and rabbits shall be provided with a covered 24 
structure and must be kept in the covered structure or an 25 
adjoining fenced area at all times. Covered structures and 26 
fenced areas used for the raising and keeping of chickens and 27 
rabbits are subject to all provisions of Chapter 86 (zoning), 28 
except the covered structure and fenced area shall be set back 29 
a minimum of 10 feet from a side or rear lot line and structures 30 
proposed for reverse frontage lots shall be located no closer 31 
than 30 feet to the right-of-way of the designated rear yard. 32 

6. All structures for the raising and keeping of chickens and 33 
rabbits shall be constructed so as to prevent rodents or other 34 
animals from being harbored underneath, within, or within 35 
the walls of the structure. 36 

7. All feed and other items associated with the raising and 37 
keeping of chickens and rabbits shall be kept in containers or 38 
otherwise protected so as to prevent access to or contact with 39 
rodents or other animals. 40 

8. The covered structure used to house the chickens and rabbits 41 
and any fenced area shall be kept in a sanitary condition. 42 

9. This section shall not regulate the keeping of chickens in those 43 
areas zoned RR (Rural Residential), RRR (Single Family, Low 44 
Density, Rural Residential), or AG (Agricultural) where the 45 
raising of chickens is a permitted use when conducted in 46 
compliance with the Michigan Right to Farm Act and the 47 
generally accepted agricultural and management practices 48 
promulgated therein 49 

(9) [UNCHANGED] 50 



4 
 

(10) [UNCHANGED] 1 
(11) [UNCHANGED] 2 
(12) [UNCHANGED] 3 
(13) [UNCHANGED] 4 
(14) [UNCHANGED] 5 
(15) [UNCHANGED] 6 
(16) [UNCHANGED] 7 
(17) [UNCHANGED] 8 
(18) [UNCHANGED] 9 
(19) [UNCHANGED] 10 

 11 
Section 3. Section 86-369, RRR District: One-Family Rural Residential Low-Density District, is 12 

hereby deleted in its entirety. 13 
 14 
Section 4. Section 86-432, PO District, Professional and Office District, is hereby amended to 15 

read as follows: 16 
 17 

(a) [UNCHANGED] 18 
(b) Uses Permitted. The following types of commercial activities may be permitted, 19 

provided that only public sanitary sewerage will be utilized. All of the following uses 20 
permitted must be conducted wholly in a permanent, fully enclosed building: 21 
(1) [UNCHANGED] 22 
(2) [UNCHANGED] 23 
(3) [UNCHANGED] 24 
(4) [UNCHANGED] 25 
(5) [UNCHANGED] 26 
(6) Religious institutions, except when located adjacent to a one-family or two-27 

family residential zoning district (RRR, RR, RRA, RAAA, RAA, RA, RB, and RX) 28 
(c) Uses permitted by special use permit. 29 

(1) [UNCHANGED] 30 
(2) [UNCHANGED] 31 
(3) [UNCHANGED] 32 
(4) Religious institutions, when located adjacent to a one-family or two-family 33 

residential zoning district (RRR, RR, RRA, RAAA, RAA, RA, RB, and RX), subject to 34 
the following site location and development standards: 35 
a. [UNCHANGED] 36 
b. [UNCHANGED] 37 
c. [UNCHANGED] 38 
d. [UNCHANGED] 39 
e. [UNCHANGED] 40 
f. [UNCHANGED] 41 

(d) [UNCHANGED] 42 
(e) [UNCHANGED] 43 

 44 
Section 5. Section 86-439, Planned Unit Development, is hereby amended at subsection (c) to 45 

read as follows: 46 
   47 

(c) General restrictions and standards. 48 
(1) Minimum project area. Subject to the conditions set forth in this section and 49 

elsewhere in this chapter, planned unit developments are permitted on sites of 50 



5 
 

any size. No commercial uses of any nature shall be permitted in any planned unit 1 
development of less than 15 contiguous acres or in any planned unit development 2 
located in the RRR single-family rural residential low density or RR rural 3 
residential districts. For planned unit development consisting of 15 contiguous 4 
acres or more and located in any district except RRR and RR, the commercial uses 5 
shall be allowed as provided for by the chapter but in no event shall such use 6 
occupy more than 3% of the total buildable land area of the planned unit 7 
development. Prior to issuance of a building permit for construction of any 8 
approved commercial use, occupancy permits shall have been issued for a 9 
minimum of 75% of the planned unit development's residential component. Land 10 
used for commercial purposes in a planned unit development shall not be used to 11 
determine allowable residential densities. 12 

(2) [UNCHANGED] 13 
(3) [UNCHANGED] 14 
(4) [UNCHANGED] 15 
(5) [UNCHANGED] 16 
(6) [UNCHANGED] 17 
(7) [UNCHANGED] 18 
(8) [UNCHANGED] 19 
(9) [UNCHANGED] 20 
(10) [UNCHANGED] 21 
(11) [UNCHANGED] 22 

 23 
Section 6. Validity and Severability.  The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and the 24 

invalidity of any phrase, clause or part of this Ordinance shall not affect the validity 25 
or effectiveness of the remainder of the Ordinance. 26 

 27 
Section 7. Repealer Clause.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict therewith are 28 

hereby repealed only to the extent necessary to give this Ordinance full force and 29 
effect. 30 

 31 
Section 8.  Savings Clause.  This Ordinance does not affect rights and duties matured, penalties 32 

that were incurred, and proceedings that were begun, before its effective date. 33 
 34 
Section 9.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be effective seven (7) days after its publication 35 

or upon such later date as may be required under Section 402 of the Michigan Zoning 36 
Enabling Act (MCL 125.3402) after filing of a notice of intent to file a petition for a 37 
referendum. 38 

 39 
ADOPTED by the Charter Township of Meridian Board at its regular meeting this XXth day of 40 
XXXXXXX, 2022.  41 
 42 
 43 

______________________________ 44 
Patricia Herring Jackson, Township Supervisor 45 

 46 
 47 

______________________________ 48 
Deborah Guthrie, Township Clerk 49 



Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

13.D

To: Board Members 

From: Deborah Guthrie, Clerk and Trustee Courtney Wisinski 

Date: April 6, 2022 

Re: Designation of Juneteenth for all Township Employees 

As part of the DEI Committee, Supervisor Jackson, Clerk Guthrie, and Trustee Wisinski would like 
to discuss Juneteenth as a paid holiday. 

The last holiday adopted by the Township Board was Martin Luther King Jr. Day in January of 
2001. We would like the Personnel Policy – Holiday Pay to include Juneteenth as a paid holiday for 
all employees for the following reasons: 

1. Juneteenth honors the emancipation of enslaved African Americans in the US and we
would like to see Meridian honor that as well each year by designating it as a holiday

2. Juneteenth meets the Township Board’s DEI objective to foster a workplace that adheres to
the highest standards of diversity, equity and inclusion

3. Juneteenth not only commemorates the past, it calls us to action today
4. Congress passed Juneteenth as a federal holiday in 2021
5. Juneteenth has became a State of Michigan holiday
6. Juneteenth is observed as a State of Michigan paid holiday:

https://www.michigan.gov/som/government/state-holidays
7. Honoring Juneteenth meets the Board’s goal of focusing on retention, recruitment and

well-being

The following motion is offered for your consideration: 

Move to approve the attached resolution celebrating and designating Juneteenth as an 
official Meridian Township government holiday by closing administrative offices in 
observance of this Federal and State Holiday and to amend all contracts and the Personnel 
Policy to include Juneteenth as a paid holiday for all employees. 

https://www.michigan.gov/som/government/state-holidays


RESOLUTION TO APPROVE             IN RECOGNITION AND CELEBRATION OF  
JUNETEENTH AND DESIGNATED AS A TOWNSHIP HOLIDAY 

 
RESOLUTION 

 
 

At a regular meeting of the Township Board of the Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham County, 
Michigan, held at the Meridian Municipal Building, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864, in said 
Township on the ____ day of _______, 2022, at 6:00 p.m., Local Time. 
 
PRESENT: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
 
The following resolution is offered by ____________ and supported by ____________ 
 
WHEREAS, Juneteenth is the oldest celebration of the emancipation of African American slaves, and 
is so named for the June 19, 1866 adoption of Black Independence Day in Galveston, Texas; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Juneteenth celebrates America’s commitment to liberty and equality in accordance with 
the Constitution of the United States, along with the Emancipation Declaration, issued by President 
Lincoln on September 22, 1862, later became effective on January 1, 1863; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the 13th Amendment to the Constitution abolished slavery, ratified by Congress on 
December 6, 1865; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the history of African Americans is a study of resilience for the plight of slavery in our 
history, and today, for the over 45 million people in forced labor and other forms of human 
trafficking; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Congress passed Juneteenth as a US Federal holiday commemorating the end of 
slavery in the United States; and,  
 
WHEREAS, in 2021 the State of Michigan passed Juneteenth as a State paid holiday beginning 
2022; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Juneteenth meets the Township Board’s DEI objective to foster a workplace that 
adheres to the highest standards of diversity, equity and inclusion; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Meridian Township Board encourages the entire community, region, state and 
country to celebrate Juneteenth; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Meridian Township Board passed a resolution of support on June 15, 2021 
encouraging the entire community, region, state and country to recognize and celebrate 
Juneteenth; and, 
 
  



Resolution to Approve 
In Recognition and Celebration of Juneteenth 
And Designation as a Township Holiday 
April 6, 2022 
Page 2 
 
WHEREAS, the signed resolution also recognized, adopted and proclaimed the resolution to 
underscore the freedom with dignity of every human being, opposing and rejecting any form of 
oppression and pledging to support our residents, churches and organizations working to achieve 
social justice, genuine equality and protecting the human rights for all people of Meridian 
Township; and, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWNSHIP BOARD OF THE CHARTER 
TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, INGHAM COUNTY, MICHIGAN, that the Meridian Township Board 
recognizes, adopts and proclaims this Resolution to underscore the freedom with dignity of every 
human being. As a governmental body, we oppose and reject any form of oppression and pledge to 
support our residents, churches and organizations working to achieve social justice, genuine equality 
and protect the human rights for all people of Meridian Township; and, 
 
FURTHER RESOLVE to designate Juneteenth as an official Township government holiday by closing 
administrative offices in observance of this Federal holiday and to amend all contracts and the 
Personnel Policy – Holiday Pay to include Juneteenth as a paid holiday for all employees. 
 
 
ADOPTED: 
YEAS:  
NAYS:  
 
Resolution is declared  
 
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 

)ss:  
COUTNY OF INGHAM ) 
 
I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the Township Board of the Charter 
Township of Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true 
and complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Township Board on the ___ 
day of_______, 2022.  
 
 

_________________________________________________ 
Deborah Guthrie 
Meridian Township Clerk 



Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

13. E

To: Board Members 

From: Ken Plaga, Chief of Police 

Date: April 1, 2022 

Re: Small Talk Children’s Advocacy Center Donation 

Small Talk Children's Advocacy Center is a non-profit organization dedicated to providing hope, 
healing, and justice for children and families impacted by abuse in Ingham and Eaton counties. Our 
Department works closely with Small Talk staff and we recognize the powerful positive impact they 
provide. 

To honor their extraordinary commitment to the community, our Department would like to donate 
$5,000 to their organization from the Police Forfeiture fund.  It is a requirement of the State of 
Michigan that 25% of the forfeiture fund revenue be utilized toward victims. April is Child Abuse 
Prevention Month and there is no better time to contribute and support the Small Talk Center than 
now. The donation would be equal to supporting 75 abused children through their first counseling 
session.  

The following motion is proposed for Board consideration: 

MOVE TO AUTHORIZE THE DONATION OF $5,000.00 OF POLICE FORFEITURE MONEY 
TO THE SMALL TALK CHILDREN’S ADVOCACY CENTER TO SUPPORT ABUSED 
CHILDREN AND THEIR FAMILIES. 

 Attachment: 
1. March 17, 2002 letter from Small Talk Children’s Advocacy Center.




	1. April 12, 2022 Township Board Regular Meeting Agenda
	9.A Communications
	comm cover
	03.14.2022 Notification of Municipalities Ingham County Drain Office 280.72 of Pubklic act 40 of 1956
	03.14.2022 To Sportmen Against Hunger Thank you letters
	03.17.2022 Meridian Township Board Appoints Two New Township Trustees Press Release.._
	03.21.2022 Township Awarded Highest Form of Recognition in Financial Reporting Pres.._
	03.27.2022 and 04.02.2022 Notice of Review of Special Assessment Roll for Daniels Drain Public Drain Improvement District 21
	03.28.2022 Meridian Township 2021-2022 Deer Management Program Completed Press Rele.._
	03.28.2022 Meridian Township Brings Back Celebrate Meridian Festival in 2022 Pres.._
	04.01.2022 Dave and Jane Ledebuhr Daniels Drain
	04.03.2022 SUP 22-05011  22-051 3830 and 3836 Okemos Road Planning Commission Public Hearing 04.25.2022
	04.03.2022 Township Board Meeting Time Change for 04.26.2022 meeting
	CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN
	MEETING NOTICE
	CHANGE OF MEETING TIME FOR
	TUESDAY, APRIL 26, 2022 MEETING TO 5 PM

	04.03.2022 Variance Request 22-04-20-1 Jerry Fedewa Homes ZBA public hearing 04.20.2022
	04.03.2022 Variance Request 22-04-20-2 Jerry Fedewa Homes ZBA public hearing 04.20.2022
	04.03.2022 Variance Request 22-04-20-3 eyde Hannah Plaza LLC ZBA Public Hearing 04.20.2022
	04.03.2022 Variance Request 22-04-20-4 SH G2755 LLC ZBA public hearing 04.20.2022
	04.05.2022 Community-Wide Love A Park Day Returns Press Release
	04.05.2022 Flashlight Easter Egg Hunt Returns to Meridian Press Release
	04.05.2022 Meridian Township Selects New Project Management  Operations Director P.._
	04.06.2022 Michael McAlvey Appeal of Special Assessment Daniels Drain
	04.07.2022 Daniels Drain Invoice
	04.08.2022 Lansing State Journal Township Board Public Hearing Notice Village of Okemos MRF Request No. 2
	04.10.2022 Planning Commission Public Hearing MUPUD 22-00014  Haslett Village
	04.11.2022 Cindy Grundemann - Deer Cull
	From: Cindy Grundemann    Good job!! Keep up the good work!  I have a treehouse in my backyard that could be used as a stand.  Please let me know if you would be interested for next year’s cull.  4220 Van Atta Road

	04.11.2022 Daniels Drain Assessment Objection-Adler_April2022
	04.11.2022 Donna C - Village of Okemos
	From: Donna C <dhcot@hotmail.com> Sent: Tuesday, April 5, 2022 10:42 AM To: Amber Clark <clark@meridian.mi.us> Subject: The Village of Okemos concerns to address.

	04.11.2022 Emily Stivers Hendrickson Support Letter
	04.11.2022 Helen Huang Letter on Daniels Drain
	2nd objection letter for daniels drain.pdf
	IMG-3264.pdf
	IMG-3263.pdf
	IMG-3262.pdf
	IMG-2509.pdf

	04.11.2022 Ingham County Trail  Parks Millage Funding Approved 2022
	04.11.2022 J Stei Born - Deer Cull
	04.11.2022 Janice Milligan Daniels Drain
	04.11.2022 Larry Wagenknecht - Deer Cull
	04.11.2022 Meridian Police Press Release - overturned kayak
	04.11.2022 Michelle Wright - Letter of Recommendation
	04.11.2022 Michelle Wright - Letter of Recommendation.pdf
	2022.03.07 LOR Scott Hendrickson.pdf

	04.11.2022 Mike Zavadil Daniels Drain 1
	04.11.2022 Randall Schaetzl - Deer Cull

	9.B Minutes
	minutes cover.pdf
	(1)Move to approve and ratify the minutes of the Regular Meetingof February 15th, 2022, as submitted.(2)Move to approve and ratify the minutes of the Special Meetingof February 22nd, 2022, as submitted.ALTERNATE MOTION:(1)Move to approve and ratify the minutes of the Regular Meetingof February 15th, 2022, with the following amendment(s):(2)Move to approve and ratify the minutes of the Special Meetingof February 22nd, with the following amendment(s):[insert amendments]9.B

	Binder1.pdf
	Draft Minutes 03-15-22 Special Bd Meeting
	Draft Minutes 03-15-22 Regular Bd Meeting


	9.C Bills
	9.D MDOT performance resolution
	Board Packet Memo 2022 MDOT Performance Resolution 3.20.22 FINAL DRAFT.pdf
	2022 MDOT Performance Resolution - Charter Township of Meridian.pdf

	9.E 2022-04-12 FF FT Ratification Timothy Brighton
	9.F  Fireworks Memo and Application
	April 12, 2022 Township Board Celebrate Meridian Fireworks Memo
	2022 Application for Fireworks

	9.G. 04.12.2022 Township Board Memo and Resolution Liquor License
	04.12.2022 Township Board Memo Celebrate Meridian Festival Liquor License
	04.12.2022 Township Board Resolution Celebrate Meridian Liquor License

	11.A. & 13.A. Daniels Drain Public Drain Improvement SAD #21 Public Hear...
	Sheets and Views
	11 x 17
	por



	12.A EDC Appointment
	12.B TPOAM
	Board Packet Memo Letter of Agreement with TPOAM Union 3.20.22 DRAFT.pdf
	1. Letter of Agreement between the Charter Township of Meridian and the Department of Public Works and the Department of Parks and TPOAM.pdf
	2. 2022 Trial Run for Newly Proposed On-Call Procedure.pdf
	3. 2020-2022 Union Contract between the Charter Township of Meridian and the Department of Public Works and the Department of Parks and TPOAM.pdf

	12.C Ingham County Broadband Appointment
	12.D OTM SAD Memo and Attachments FINAL DRAFT
	12.D OTM SAD Memo and Attachments FINAL DRAFT.pdf
	12.D OTM SAD Memo and Attachments FINAL DRAFT.pdf

	Res 4 Roll.pdf

	12.E. Imposing escrow conditions for permitted work by telecommunication providers within the ROW
	13.B - Ordinance 2022-09 - Rezone 2260 Jolly Oak Drive
	13.C - Zoning Ordinance Updates (04-12-22 TB Meeting)
	8A - Ordinance 2022-02 ZBA standards of review.pdf
	2022-02 - PC ACTION Memo
	PC Resolution to Approve TA 2022-02
	ZBA Standards Change CLEAN
	ZBA Standards Change REDLINED

	8B - Ordinance 2022-03 Lake Lansing Overlay Front Yard Coverage.pdf
	2022-03 - PC Action Memo
	Lake Lansing Lot Coverage Ordinance Change CLEAN
	Lake Lansing Lot Coverage Ordinance Change REDLINE

	8C - Ordinance 2022-04 Lake Lansing Overlay front yard setbacks.pdf
	2022-04 - PC Action Memo
	Lake Lansing Front Yard Setbacks Ordinance Change CLEAN
	Lake Lansing Front Yard Setbacks Ordinance Change REDLINE
	PC Resolution to Approve TA 2022-04

	8D - Odinance 2022-05 Fence Height.pdf
	2022-05 - PC Action Memo
	PC Resolution to Approve TA 2022-05
	Fence Height Ordinance Change CLEAN
	Fence Height Ordinance Change REDLINE

	8E - Ordinance 2022-06 Yard Encroachments.pdf
	2022-06 - PC Action Memo
	PC Resolution to Approve TA 2022-06
	Number of Decks CLEAN
	Number of Decks REDLINE

	7C - Ordinance 2022-07 RRR Deletion.pdf
	RRR Deletion Memo to PC - 2
	PC Resolution to Approve TA 2022-07
	Ordinance 2022-07 - RRR Deletions Ordinance CLEAN
	Ordinance 2022-07 - RRR Deletions Ordinance REDLINE


	13.D Juneteenth Memo
	13.D Juneteenth Memo.pdf
	Resolution in Recognition and Celebration of Juneteenth.pdf
	RESOLUTION TO APPROVE             IN RECOGNITION AND CELEBRATION OF
	JUNETEENTH AND DESIGNATED AS A TOWNSHIP HOLIDAY
	PRESENT:

	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWNSHIP BOARD OF THE CHARTER
	STATE OF MICHIGAN )



	13.E Small Talk Letter 3.17.22

	Clear Form button: 
	Text1: Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan
	Text2: 
	0: Director of Public Works and Engineering
	1: Chief Engineer
	2: Superintendent of Public Works
	3: Senior Project Engineer and/or Project Engineer

	Text3: Township Board
	Text4: Charter Township of Meridian
	Text5: Ingham
	Text6: regular
	Text7: 12
	Text8: April
	Text9: 2022
	Text11: Township Clerk
	Print Signed Name: Deborah Guthrie


